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Introduction
The Public Accounts of the Province of Prince Edward Island are presented through the
publication of Volume I: The Audited Consolidated Financial Statements, Volume II, the financial
statements of the Operating Fund and the details of revenues and expenses of the Operating
Fund, and Volume III which presents a reproduction of the available audited financial
statements of the Province’s Agencies, Boards and Crown Corporations.

Internet Address – Volumes I, II, and III of the Public Accounts are available in PDF format on
the Province’s Website:
https://www.princeedwardisland.ca/en/topic/public-accounts
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Management's Report
The integrity, relevance and comparability of the data in the accompanying consolidated financial statements
are the responsibility of management.
The consolidated financial statements are prepared by management in accordance with Canadian public sector
accounting standards established by the Public Sector Accounting Board of the Chartered Professional
Accountants of Canada. A summary of the significant accounting policies is disclosed in note 1 to the
consolidated financial statements. The preparation of consolidated financial statements necessarily involves
the use of estimates based on management's judgment, particularly when transactions affecting the current
period cannot be finalized with certainty until future periods.
To meet its responsibility, management maintains a system of internal controls designed to provide reasonable
assurance that assets are safeguarded, transactions are properly authorized and recorded in compliance with
legislative and regulatory requirements, and reliable financial information is available on a timely basis for
preparation of the consolidated financial statements. These systems are monitored and evaluated by
management.
Management is accountable to the Board of Directors of Finance PEI on matters of financial reporting and
internal controls. Management provides the Board with internal consolidated financial statements on a
monthly basis and externally audited consolidated financial statements annually. The Board also discusses any
significant financial reporting or internal control matters prior to their approval of the consolidated financial
statements.
The consolidated financial statements have been audited by ArsenaultBestCameronEllis, independent external
auditors appointed by the Corporation. The accompanying Independent Auditor's Report outlines their
responsibilities, the scope of their examination and their opinion on the consolidated financial statements.
On behalf of Finance PEI
___________________________________
Jamie Aiken, CPA, CA
Chief Executive Officer of Finance PEI

38%/,&$&&2817692/80(,,,

July 21, 2020
Independent Auditor's Report
To the Board of Directors of Finance PEI
Opinion
We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Finance PEI, which comprise
the consolidated statement of financial position as at March 31, 2020, and the consolidated statements of
operations, accumulated surplus, changes in net financial assets (debt) and cash flows for the year then
ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.
In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the
consolidated financial position of Finance PEI as at March 31, 2020, and the consolidated results of its
operations and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Canadian public sector
accounting standards.
Basis for Opinion
We conducted our audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit
of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of Finance PEI in accordance with
the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in Canada, and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial Statements
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in
accordance with Canadian public sector accounting standards, and for such internal control as
management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing Finance PEI’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate Finance PEI or to cease
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.
Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing Finance PEI’s financial reporting process.
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements. As part of an audit in accordance with
Canadian generally accepted auditing standards, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:
(1)
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!

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error,
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.

!

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of Finance PEI’s internal control.

!

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

!

Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on Finance PEI's ability to continue as a going
concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in
our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained
up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause Finance
PEI to cease to continue as a going concern.

!

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal
control that we identify during our audit.

Chartered Professional Accountants

(2)
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Finance PEI
Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
As at March 31, 2020
2020
$

2019
$

Assets
Financial assets
Cash
Accounts receivable (notes 2 and 11)
Loans receivable (note 3)
Advances to related company (note 11)
Due from the Province of Prince Edward Island (note 11)
Investment in private companies (note 4)

18,837,195
666,061
196,823,415
39,292
11,163,650
-

2,290,792
725,447
177,145,723
39,292
11,163,650
139,813

227,529,613

191,504,717

2,159,722
1,202,092
19,003,442
42,505,122
153,155,059

1,744,307
1,270,821
14,830,066
12,195,122
152,840,920

218,025,437

182,881,236

9,504,176

8,623,481

97,904
593,538
285,664
28,147,802

86,134
620,249
277,902
28,811,242

29,124,908

29,795,527

38,629,084

38,419,008

Liabilities
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities (note 11)
Deferred revenue
Advances from related companies (note 11)
Short-term notes payable (note 5)
Long-term debt (note 6)

Net financial assets
Contingent liabilities (note 9)
Commitments (note 10)
Non-financial assets
Prepaid expenses
Net investment in lease (note 7)
Foreclosed properties (note 8)
Property holdings (notes 6 and 11) (Schedule 2)

Accumulated surplus

Approved by the Board of Directors
_____________________________ Director

_____________________________ Director
(3)
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Finance PEI
Consolidated Statement of Accumulated Surplus
For the year ended March 31, 2020
2020
$

Accumulated surplus - Beginning of year
Operating surplus

Accumulated surplus - End of year

(4)

2019
$

38,419,008

29,396,578

210,076

9,022,430

38,629,084

38,419,008
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Finance PEI
Consolidated Statement of Operations
For the year ended March 31, 2020
Budget
(Unaudited)
$

Actual
2020
$

Actual
2019
$

Revenue
Interest from borrowers
Interest from deposits
Property operations (note 11)
Post-receivership income
Management fees (note 11)
Grant income
Gain on sale of property holdings
Miscellaneous

9,250,000
32,200
4,275,000
500,000
125,000

10,352,541
24,419
4,900,283
497,826
133,424
887,722
197,605

9,576,461
29,116
4,381,243
13,282
500,000
366,135
241,899

14,182,200

16,993,820

15,108,136

717,700
5,116,500
4,702,500
1,500,000

818,200
5,741,848
5,231,400
4,992,296

817,502
5,613,242
5,014,089
(5,359,127)

12,036,700

16,783,744

6,085,706

2,145,500

210,076

9,022,430

Expenses (notes 6 and 11) (Schedule 1)
Administration
Lending operations
Property operations
Provision for (recovery of) possible losses

Operating surplus

(5)
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Finance PEI
Consolidated Statement of Changes in Net Financial Assets (Debt)
For the year ended March 31, 2020
2020
$

Annual surplus

210,076

Acquisition of property holdings
Amortization of property holdings
Gain on disposal of property holdings
Proceeds on disposal of property holdings
Increase in provision on foreclosed properties
Additions to foreclosed properties

(1,062,607)
1,618,846
(887,722)
994,923
(7,762)
655,678

Decrease (increase) in prepaid expenses
Decrease in net investment in lease

Increase in financial assets

2019
$
9,022,430
(868,520)
1,496,041
(366,135)
1,413,600
44,800
(9,975)
1,709,811

(11,770)

25,214

26,711

25,804

670,619

1,760,829

880,695

10,783,259

Net financial assets (debt) - Beginning of year

8,623,481

(2,159,778)

Net financial asset - End of year

9,504,176

8,623,481

(6)
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Finance PEI
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
For the year ended March 31, 2020
2020
$

2019
$

Cash provided by (used in)
Operating activities
Operating surplus
Items not affecting cash
Amortization
Change in net investment in lease
Provision for (recovery of) possible losses
Gain on disposal of property holdings

Net change in non-cash working capital items
Decrease (increase) in accounts receivable
Decrease (increase) in prepaid expenses
Increase in accounts payable and accrued liabilities
Increase (decrease) in deferred revenue

210,076

9,022,430

1,618,846
26,711
4,990,320
(887,722)

1,496,041
25,804
(5,359,127)
(366,135)

5,958,231

4,819,013

76,786
(11,770)
415,415
(68,728)

Financing activities
Increase in advances from related companies
Increase in short-term notes payable
Repayment of short-term notes payable
Increase in long-term debt
Repayment on long-term debt

Investing activities
Increase in loans receivable
Decrease in advances to related companies
Additions to and purchases of property holdings
Reductions and proceeds on disposal of property holdings
Additions to foreclosed properties
Payments received on investment in private companies

Change in cash
Cash - Beginning of year
Cash - End of year

(7)

(117,278)
25,214
157,569
7,928

6,369,934

4,892,446

4,173,376
30,750,000
(440,000)
16,450,000
(16,135,861)

251,649
(7,500,020)
25,600,000
(21,526,442)

34,797,515

(3,174,813)

(24,785,600)
(1,062,607)
994,923
(7,762)
240,000

(1,632,743)
123,858
(868,520)
1,413,600
(9,975)
200,000

(24,621,046)

(773,780)

16,546,403

943,853

2,290,792

1,346,939

18,837,195

2,290,792
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Finance PEI
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
March 31, 2020

1

Summary of significant accounting policies
The financial statements of the corporation have been prepared in accordance with Canadian public sector
accounting standards established by the Public Sector Accounting Board of CPA Canada. The following is a
summary of significant accounting policies used in the preparation of these statements:
a) General
These consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the wholly-owned subsidiaries, Atlantic
Technology Centre Inc., P.E.I. Infrastructure Inc. and 100417 P.E.I. Inc., all having March 31, 2020 year
ends.
b) Cash
Cash is comprised of cash on hand and cash in banks and is recorded at cost.
c) Accounts receivable
Accounts receivable arise from tenant rents, trade sales, staff advance and Harmonized Sales Tax
receivable. An allowance for doubtful accounts has been calculated through discussions with
management, assessment of the other circumstances influencing the collectibility of amounts, and using
historical loss experience. Amounts deemed uncollectible are written off and deducted from the carrying
value of the receivable. Amounts subsequently recovered from accounts previously written off are
credited to the allowance account in the period of recovery.
d) Loans receivable
Loans are recorded at amortized cost less an allowance for possible losses.
An impaired loan is a loan where in management’s opinion there is no longer reasonable assurance as to
the timely collection of the full amount of principal and interest. Allowances for possible losses are
calculated on loans receivable as outlined in note 1i).
e) Due from Province of Prince Edward Island
The amount due from Province of Prince Edward Island is funding receivable related to the allowance for
possible credit losses.
f) Investments in private companies
Investment in private companies, except for two preferred share investments not considered to be
concessionary, are recorded at one-half of cost. An expense of 50% was charged to development programs
when the funds were invested. The remaining cost is reduced by any applicable allowance for possible
losses. Any recovery exceeding the balance in share investment is taken into revenue when received.

(8)
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Finance PEI
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
March 31, 2020
The two investments in preferred shares of private companies that are not being carried at one-half of their
cost are being carried at the lower of cost and estimated realizable value.
Investment in private companies are reviewed annually for potential declines in value and are written down
or an allowance is recorded if a decline in value is considered evident. Write downs are included in
lending operations expense.
It is not practical within the constraints of timeliness and cost to determine the fair market value of the
investment in private companies as these investments are in closely held private companies that have no
organized financial market. The estimated realizable value of these investments is based on expected
future cash flows.
g) Net investment in lease
Net investment in lease represents the net present value of the minimum lease payments receivable over
the term of the lease plus the purchase option for leases with a deferred purchase option.
h) Property holdings, foreclosed properties and amortization
i)

Property holdings
Property holdings are reported at the lower of cost and estimated realizable value. Property holdings
are amortized using the straight-line method at the following annual rates:
Land improvements
Leasehold improvements
Buildings
Equipment

10%
7%
14 - 30 years
20%, 33% and 100%

Proceeds on the sale of land included in industrial sites is recorded as a reduction in the carrying value
of the asset.
ii)

Foreclosed properties
Foreclosed properties are carried at the lower of cost of the impaired asset prior to realization of the
related security and the underlying estimated realizable value of the security.
Reductions from the carrying value of the impaired asset to estimated realizable value is recorded as a
provision for possible losses.

iii) Estimated realizable value
Estimated realizable value for land and buildings held for resale or under lease purchase options and
industrial site buildings, is its property tax assessed value. Estimated realizable value for industrial
sites is the expected proceeds on resale. Estimated realizable value for the test cells is the net cost to
construct the assets supported by payments under a long-term lease agreement. If property and
equipment carrying value should exceed estimated realizable value, additional amortization or a
writedown is provided.
(9)
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Finance PEI
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
March 31, 2020

i) Deferred revenue
Contributions received and not expended on land purchases and grants to finance infrastructure costs and
contributions to occupants of the Biocommons park are recorded as deferred revenue.
j) Allowance for possible losses
An allowance for possible losses is maintained which is considered adequate to absorb all credit and
investment related losses of financial position items including guarantees. The allowance is deducted from
the applicable asset on the statement of financial position, except for guarantees. The allowance for
guarantees is included in accounts payable and accrued liabilities.
The allowance consists of specific and general provisions.
Specific provisions include the accumulated allowances for losses on particular assets required to reduce
the book values to estimated realizable amounts. Specific provisions for loans receivable, accounts
receivable, investments in private companies and foreclosed properties total $17,638,044 (2019 $18,318,008).
The Corporation does not accrue interest on a loan receivable once a specific provision has been recorded
against the loan.
The Corporation reviews its loans portfolio accounts receivable, investments and advances, foreclosed
properties and property holdings and guarantees on an ongoing basis to assess whether an allowance is
required.
A variety of methods are used to determine the amount expected to be recovered from accounts receivable,
loans receivable, investments in and advances to private companies and property holdings, including
estimated future cash flows and the estimated fair value of the underlying security and value of any
collateral security taken.
A general provision of $19,529,051 (2019 - $13,881,263) includes accumulated allowances for losses
which are prudential in nature and are not specifically identified. The general provision is based on past
performance of similar assets, the level of the specific provision, management's judgment, the economic
climate and the maturity and financial strength of the investee.
k) Employee pension plan
The Corporation's staff are members of the Province of Prince Edward Island pension plan. The pension
plan obligation is a liability of the Province and not Finance PEI and no liability for these costs has been
accrued by the Corporation at March 31, 2020.
l) Post retirement benefits
The Corporation provides retirement benefits to eligible employees. The benefit is based on one week's
salary per year of service to a maximum of 26 weeks and is expensed on an accrual basis.

(10)
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Finance PEI
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
March 31, 2020
m) Revenue recognition
Interest on loans from borrowers is recognized as revenue in the period earned except where a loan is
classified as impaired. Interest earned on an impaired loan is recognized as revenue only when it has been
received.
Revenue from property operations are recorded when collection is reasonably assured and all other
significant conditions of service are met.
Revenue from service fees, post-receivership income, management fees and miscellaneous income are
recorded when earned and collection is reasonably assured.
Government contributions and interest from deposits are recorded in the period earned.
n) Government transfers
Government transfers are the transfer of assets from senior levels of government that are not the result of
an exchange transaction, are not expected to be repaid in the future, or the result of a direct financial
return. Government transfers are recognized in the financial statements as revenue in the period in which
events giving rise to the transfer occur, providing the transfers are authorized, any eligibility criteria have
been met, and reasonable estimates on the amounts can be determined.
o) Financial instruments
(a) Measurement of financial instruments
Finance PEI's financial instruments consist of cash, accounts receivable, loans receivable, advances to
company, due from Province of Prince Edward Island, investment in private companies, accounts
payable and accrued liabilities, short-term notes payable, long-term debt and advances from related
companies.
The company initially measures its financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value adjusted by, in
the case of a financial instrument that will not be measured subsequently at fair value, the amount of
transaction costs directly attributable to the instrument. This fair value amount is then deemed to be
the amortized cost of the financial instrument.
The company subsequently measures all its financial assets and financial liabilities at amortized cost.
(b) Impairment
Financial assets measured at amortized cost are tested for impairment when there are indicators of
possible impairment. When a significant adverse change has occurred during the period in the
expected timing or amount of future cash flows from the financial asset or group of assets, a writedown is recognized in net earnings. The write-down reflects the difference between the carrying
amount and the higher of:

(11)
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Finance PEI
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
March 31, 2020
i)

The present value of the cash flows expected to be generated by the asset or group of assets;

ii)

The amount that could be realized by selling the asset or group of assets;

iii)

The net realizable value of any collateral held to secure repayment of the asset or group of
assets.

When events occurring after the impairment confirm that a reversal is necessary, the reversal is
recognized in net earnings up to the amount of the previously recognized impairment.
p) Management estimates and judgments
The presentation of financial statements in conformity with Canadian public sector standards requires
management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amount of assets and liabilities
and disclosure of contingent liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of
revenues and expenditures during the year. Actual results could differ from the following estimates:
!

The amount recorded regarding the allowance for possible credit losses is subject to management's
assessment of the performance of the company's loans receivable, investments and accounts
receivable as well as the valuation of the assets placed as security;

!

The amount recorded for amortization of property holdings on the statement of operations is subject
to management's assessment of the estimated useful life of the company's property holdings;

!

The recognized amounts of potential claims and liabilities depend on management's assessment of
future costs and the probability these events will occur; and

!

Since January 31, 2020, the outbreak of COVID-19 (coronavirus) has resulted in governments
worldwide enacting emergency measures to combat the spread of the virus. These measures have
caused material disruption to businesses globally resulting in an economic slowdown, and global
equity markets have experienced significant volatility and weakness. The duration and impact of the
COVID-19 outbreak is unknown at this time, as is the outcome of government and central bank
interventions.
In management's estimation, these events have not had a material impact on the carrying value of
assets and liabilities reported in these financial statements as at March 31, 2020. The duration and
impact of the COVID-19 pandemic remains unclear at this time. Therefore, it is not possible to
reliably estimate the duration and severity of these consequences, as well as their impact on the
financial position and results of the company for future periods.

(12)
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Finance PEI
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
March 31, 2020
2

Accounts receivable
2020
$
Trade accounts receivable
HST receivable
Other

1,003,458
136,311
368,011

909,629
76,978
595,983

Allowance for possible losses

1,507,780
(841,719)

1,582,590
(857,143)

666,061

725,447

857,143
(15,424)

790,958
66,185

841,719

857,143

Continuity of allowance for possible losses
Beginning of year
Add: provision recorded

3

2019
$

Loans receivable
2020
Allowance
for possible
losses
General
$

Allowance
for possible
losses
Specific
$

2,466,018
2,424,067
2,976,328
2,352,903
5,424,512

1,400,000
168,267
186,284
466,027

1,056,843
270,695
613,921

9,175
2,255,800
2,519,349
2,352,903
4,344,564

750,283
1,942,698
1,902,193
1,731,737
2,438,515

15,643,828

2,220,578

1,941,459

11,481,791

8,765,426

30,201,888
19,336,490
26,337,078
104,959,788
31,553,391
10,000
38,727

3,389,615
2,886,000
1,651,325
7,675,000
1,706,533
-

3,659,720
376,967
2,091,126
1,373,119
2,276,333
10,000
-

23,152,553
16,073,523
22,594,627
95,911,669
27,570,525
38,727

19,920,146
15,786,437
23,025,258
86,282,065
23,319,664
46,727

212,437,362

17,308,473

9,787,265

185,341,624

168,380,297

228,081,190

19,529,051

11,728,724

196,823,415

177,145,723

Total
$
Working capital loans
Agriculture
Tourism
Manufacturing and processing
Fisheries
Small business

Long-term loans
Agriculture
Tourism
Manufacturing and processing
Fisheries and aquaculture
Small business
Shipbuilding/Shipping
Eco energy

2019

(13)

Net
$

Net
$
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Finance PEI
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
March 31, 2020
Working capital loans are repayable over various terms to a maximum of 5 years with interest rates ranging
from 4.95% to 8.45%.
Long-term loans are repayable over various terms to a maximum of 10 years with interest rates ranging from
4.00% to 9.25%.
Security for working capital loans and long-term loans consists of promissory notes, land, building, inventory
and personal guarantees from the borrowers.

Continuity of allowance for possible losses

4

2020
$

2019
$

Allowance for possible losses - Beginning of year
Add: Provision recorded during year
Less: Recoveries during year
Less: Loans written off

26,172,364
5,770,982
(663,071)
(22,500)

31,422,669
4,272,569
(9,522,874)
-

Allowance for possible losses - End of year

31,257,775

26,172,364

Investment in private companies

Investment in private companies
Small Business and Venture Capital Equity Program investments
Less: Allowance for possible losses

2020
$

2019
$

438,910
(438,910)

438,910
(438,910)

Investment in preferred shares of private companies
Less: Allowance for possible losses

142,812
(142,812)

382,812
(242,999)

-

139,813

-

139,813

Continuity of allowance for possible losses

Allowance for possible losses - Beginning of year
Less: Recovery during the year
Allowance for possible losses - End of year

(14)

2020
$

2019
$

681,909
(100,187)

801,721
(119,812)

581,722

681,909
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Finance PEI
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
March 31, 2020

5

Short-term notes payable
2020
$
Demand note payable to Island Investment Development Inc.
Demand notes payable to Province of Prince Edward Island

2019
$

6,998,482
35,506,640

6,998,482
5,196,640

42,505,122

12,195,122

The demand notes payable to Island Investment Development Inc. includes a $15,000,000 available operating
line of credit with an outstanding balance at March 31, 2020 of $6,998,482 (2019 - $6,998,482).
The demand note to Island Investment Development Inc. is secured by a promissory note for $15,000,000 and
a revolving credit agreement. The demand notes to Province of Prince Edward Island are unsecured.
Interest paid by Finance PEI is included in the expenditure category to which it relates. Included is interest
for 2020 in the amount of $504,459 (2019 - $352,136).
Demand notes payable are issued by the Province of Prince Edward Island and Island Investment
Development Inc. with interest set monthly based on the Province's short-term lending rate in existence at the
first day of the month. These notes are renewed on an ongoing basis with interest payable monthly.

(15)
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Finance PEI
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
March 31, 2020

6

Long-term debt
2020
$
4.00% note payable to Island Investment Development Inc., no
specific repayment terms
4.00% note payable to Island Investment Development Inc., no
specific repayment terms
4.00% note payable to Island Investment Development Inc., due
April 2018, repayable $8,165 monthly including
principal and interest
2.31% note payable to Province of Prince Edward Island, due
August 22, 2023, repayable in $260,127 quarterly
payments including principal and interest
6.01% note payable, due December 2024, repayable $88,025
monthly including principal and interest
5.54% note payable, due December 2024, repayable $7,969
monthly including principal and interest
3.46% note payable to Province of Prince Edward Island, due
March 31, 2031, repayable in $32,366 quarterly
payments including principal and interest
3.23% note payable to Province of Prince Edward Island, due
June 1, 2032, repayable in $342,453 annual payments
including principal and interest
3.03% note payable to Province of Prince Edward Island, due
November 30, 2023, repayable in $189,252 quarterly
payments including principal and interest
Notes payable to Province of Prince Edward Island with interest
rates from 1.65% to 3.45%, maturing at various dates
between 2019 and 2024
2.03% note payable to Province of Prince Edward Island, due
January 31, 2025, repayable $10,541 quarterly including
principal and interest

2019
$

556,846

556,846

1,430,499

1,430,499

977,127

1,034,945

2,520,521

3,488,785

4,362,753

5,135,014

399,171

470,797

1,180,256

1,270,653

3,588,971

3,808,411

2,673,883

3,337,261

135,265,032

132,307,709

200,000

-

153,155,059

152,840,920

Island Investment Development Inc. is a provincial Crown corporation. The repayment terms of the $556,846
and $1,430,499 loans are to be determined at a future date.
The 6.01% and 5.54% notes payable are secured by a general security agreement covering certain property
holdings with a net book value of nil.
All other notes payable are unsecured.

(16)
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Finance PEI
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
March 31, 2020
The aggregate amount of principal payments estimated to be required in each of the next five years to meet
retirement provisions is as follows:
$
Year ending March 31, 2021
2022
2023
2024
2025

19,085,621
39,418,162
33,963,764
24,638,378
32,320,171

Interest paid by Finance PEI and its subsidiaries in the amount of $3,575,252 (2019 - $3,688,355) is included
in the expenditure category to which it relates.

7

Net investment in lease
Net investment in lease representing the purchase option receivable from a lessee, due December 2035.
The net investment in this lease is recorded at the net present value of the total lease payments using a
discount rate of 3.75%, calculated as follows:
2020
$
Total of lease payments to be received to December 2035
Less: Portion representing interest at 3.75%
Net present value of net investment in lease

8

2019
$

800,030
(206,492)

850,030
(229,781)

593,538

620,249

Foreclosed properties

Foreclosed projects - land, buildings and equipment held for
resale
Less: Allowance for possible losses

2020
$

2019
$

4,952,171
(4,666,507)

4,944,409
(4,666,507)

285,664

(17)

277,902
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
March 31, 2020
Continuity of allowance for possible losses
2020
$
Allowance for possible losses - Beginning of year
Add: Provision recorded during the year
Less: Write-offs during the year

-

Allowance for possible losses - End of year

9

4,666,507

4,666,507

2019
$
5,999,582
44,800
(1,377,875)
4,666,507

Contingent liabilities
A counterclaim has been commenced against the Corporation in response to an action for a deficiency
remaining after realization on collateral held by the P.E.I. Lending Agency. The claimant has not provided
any details as to the nature and extent of damages or loss for which they seek compensation. There is no
liability recorded in these financial statements as it is management's opinion that no liability is likely to arise
as a result of this counterclaim. The counterclaim has been ongoing since 1996.

10 Commitments
Loans approved but not disbursed at March 31, 2020 total $21,961,511 (2019 - $6,534,022).

11 Related party account balances and transactions
Related parties
The related companies are provincial Crown corporations or subsidiaries of provincial Crown corporations.
Statement of Financial Position
2020
$
Advances to related company:
Biocommons Development Inc.
Advances from related companies:
Innovation PEI
Island Investment Development Inc.
Prince Edward Island Century 2000 Fund Inc.

(18)

2019
$

39,292

39,292

11,065,496
5,818,648
2,119,298

11,153,660
1,156,172
2,520,234

19,003,442

14,830,066
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Finance PEI
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
March 31, 2020
The advances to/from related companies and due from the Province of Prince Edward Island, are non-interest
bearing and have no specific terms of repayment. Innovation PEI and Island Investment Development Inc. are
provincial Crown corporations. Prince Edward Island Century 2000 Fund Inc. is a subsidiary of a provincial
Crown corporation. Biocommons Development Inc. is a non-profit company with a similar Board of
Directors as P.E.I. Infrastructure Inc.'s Board of Directors.
Included in accounts receivable, accounts payable and accrued liabilities are the following amounts due
from/due to related parties:
2020
2019
$
$
Accounts receivable:
Due from Province of Prince Edward Island
Due from related companies

157,019
32,605

94,714
200,000

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities:
Due to Province of Prince Edward Island
Due to related companies

302,915
748,160

168,513
750,864

Property holdings
The Province of Prince Edward Island conveys land to the Corporation periodically to be used for
development purposes. The exchange and carrying amounts of land when transferred into the Corporation is
nil.
Statement of operations
Included in property operations revenue is $793,589 (2019 - $553,696) from related parties.
During the year, management fees of $497,826 (2019 - $500,000) were received from Island Investment
Development Inc., a provincial Crown corporation.
Included in expenditures is $3,296,918 (2019 - $3,408,549) in interest paid to Province of Prince Edward
Island and $154,519 (2019 - $160,720) in interest paid to Island Investment Development Inc., a provincial
Crown corporation.
The above transactions were recorded in the normal course of operations and measured at exchange amounts.
Other
The Corporation rents land for the annual amount of $2,120 plus applicable taxes from Slemon Park
Corporation under a fifty-year lease agreement, effective for the term September 28, 2001 to September 28,
2051.
Slemon Park Corporation is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Island Investment Development Inc.

(19)
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12 Financial risk management objectives and policies
Finance PEI’s principal business activities result in a statement of financial position that consists primarily of
financial instruments. The principal financial risks that arise from transacting financial instruments include
credit, liquidity, market and operational risk. Authority for all risk-taking activities rests with the Board of
Directors (Board), which approves risk management policies, delegates’ limits and regularly reviews
management’s risk assessments and compliance with approved policies. Qualified professionals throughout
Finance PEI manage these risks through comprehensive and integrated control processes and models,
including regular review and assessment of risk measurement and reporting processes.
(a) Credit risk
Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the company if a customer or counterparty of a financial
instrument fails to meet its contractual obligations. Credit risk arises primarily from the company’s loans
receivable.
The company's maximum exposure to credit risk at the statement of financial position date in relation to
each class of recognized financial assets is the carrying amount of those assets indicated in the statement
of financial position. The maximum credit exposure does not take into account the value of any
collateral or other security held, in the event other entities/parties fail to perform their obligations under
the financial instruments in question.
The company's maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date was:

Cash
Accounts receivable
Loans receivable
Advances to related companies
Due from the Province of Prince Edward Island
Investment in private companies

(i)

2020
$

2019
$

18,837,195
666,061
196,823,415
39,292
11,163,650
-

2,290,792
725,447
177,145,723
39,292
11,163,650
139,813

227,529,613

191,504,717

Loans receivable
For the loans receivable portfolio, the company uses risk modelling that is customer based rather
than product based. The company reviews the borrowers capacity to repay the loan rather than
relying exclusively on collateral, although it is an important component in establishing credit risk.
Typically, collateral consists of capital assets held by the borrower but can extend to working capital
assets such as inventory when warranted. Any shortfall in collateral as compared to the carrying
value of the loan is considered when analyzing the loan for the provision that needs to be applied to
it.

(20)
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Finance PEI
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
March 31, 2020
Credit is approved by staff and the company’s Board of Directors with loans in excess of $1 million
requiring approval by Treasury Board and loans in excess of $2.5 million requiring approval by
Executive Council. The company factors the financial strength of each borrower, the security
available, their position in industry and past payment history when assessing all potential loans.
A loan is considered past due when a party has not made a payment by the contractual due date.
The following table presents the carrying value of loans that are past due but not classified as
impaired:
0 - 60 days
$
As at:
March 31, 2020
March 31, 2019

60 - 120 days
$

1,123,391
297,698

682,340
442,701

+120 days
$
4,023,800
6,689,864

Total
$
5,829,531
7,430,263

(b) Liquidity risk
Liquidity risk is the risk that the company may not be able to meet its financial obligations as they come
due. Specifically, the company needs to ensure it has adequate resources to repay all accounts payable
and accrued liabilities, advances from related companies, notes payable and mortgages as they come due.
The company's approach to manage liquidity risk is to closely monitor its cash flows and forecast the
expected receipts and obligations.
The table below analyzes the company's financial liabilities into relevant groupings based on the
remaining period at the statement of financial position date to the contractual maturity date.
Under 1
year
$
Accounts payable and
accrued liabilities
Advances from related
companies
Short-term notes payable
Long-term debt

Between
1 - 5 years
$

Over
5 years
$

2020
Total
$

2,159,722

-

-

2,159,722

19,003,442
42,505,122
19,085,621

130,340,475

3,728,963

19,003,442
42,505,122
153,155,059

82,753,907

130,340,475

3,728,963

216,823,345

(21)
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Under 1
year
$
Accounts payable and
accrued liabilities
Advances from related
companies
Short-term notes payable
Long-term debt

Between
1 - 5 years
$

Over
5 years
$

2019
Total
$

1,744,307

-

-

1,744,307

14,830,066
12,195,122
17,966,766

129,867,398

5,006,756

14,830,066
12,195,122
152,840,920

46,736,261

129,867,398

5,006,756

181,610,415

(c) Market risk
Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices, such as interest rates and equity prices will affect
the company’s income or the value of its holdings in financial instruments. The objective of market risk
management is to manage and control market risk exposures within acceptable parameters, while
optimizing the return on risk.
i)

Interest rate risk
Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will
fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. For the Corporation, mismatches in the
balances of assets, liabilities and off-statement of financial position financial instruments that
mature and reprice in varying reporting periods generate interest rate risk. These mismatches will
arise through the ordinary course of business as the Corporation manages member portfolios of
loans and deposits with changing term preferences and through the strategic positioning of the credit
union to enhance profitability.
The following table provides the potential impact of an immediate and sustained 1% increase or
decrease in interest rates on net interest income, assuming no further hedging is undertaken. These
measures are based on assumptions made by management. All interest rate risk measures are based
upon interest rate exposures at a specific time and continuously change as a result of business
activities and the Corporation’s management initiatives.
Net interest
income
change
$
Impact of
1% increase in interest rates
1% decrease in interest rates

63,241
(63,241)

(22)

Interest
expense
change
$
512,885
(512,885)

38%/,&$&&2817692/80(,,,



Finance PEI
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
March 31, 2020
(d) Operational risk
Operational risk is the risk of direct or indirect loss arising from a wide variety of causes associated with
the company’s processes, personnel, technology and infrastructure, and from external factors other than
credit, market and liquidity risks such as those arising from legal and regulatory requirements and
generally accepted standards of corporate behaviour.
The company’s objective is to manage operational risk so as to balance the avoidance of financial losses
and damage to the company’s reputation with overall cost effectiveness and to avoid control procedures
that restrict initiative and creativity. The primary responsibility for the development and implementation
of controls to address operational risk is assigned to senior management.
(e) Capital management
The primary objective of Finance PEI's capital management is to ensure that it maintains a healthy
financial position in order to support its business. Finance PEI manages its capital structure and makes
changes to it in light of changes in economic conditions.

(23)

Administration
Lending operations
Property operations
Provision for possible losses

Expenses

Administration
Lending operations
Property operations
Provision for possible losses

Expenses

For the year ended March 31, 2020

413,987
123,418
537,405

2,150,861

(24)

2,924,597

2,908,038
16,559

Property
Operations
$

Operating
Goods &
Services
$

Salaries
Benefits
$
335,170
1,299,089
516,602
-

3,103,327

551,155

2,191,093

3,101,351
1,976

Property
Operations
$

424,916
126,239
-

Operating
Goods &
Services
$

323,048
1,444,988
423,057
-

Salaries
Benefits
$

Consolidated Schedule of Expenses by Type

Finance PEI

(5,063,690)

311,996
(5,375,686)

Lending
Operations
$

5,239,613

249,293
4,990,320

Lending
Operations
$

4,040,492

4,002,157
38,335
-

Interest
Expense
$

4,079,711

4,047,567
32,144
-

Interest
Expense
$

1,496,041

68,345
1,427,696
-

Amortization
$

1,618,845

70,236
1,548,609
-

Amortization
$

6,085,706

817,502
5,613,242
5,014,089
(5,359,127)

Total
$

2019

16,783,744

818,200
5,741,848
5,231,400
4,992,296

Total
$

2020

Schedule 1
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Industrial Sites
Land
Land improvements
Leasehold improvements
Building
Equipment

Property holdings held
for resale
Land
Buildings

General
Land
Land improvements
Building

29,687
133,424
852,801
46,695
1,062,607
1,062,607

45,023,984

52,295,952

-

2,917,605

3,109,976
2,789,802
1,001,339
30,835,989
7,286,878

-

-

4,354,363

1,705,171
1,212,434

-

Additions
$

981,500
44,765
3,328,098

Beginning
$

As at and for the year ended March 31, 2020

Schedule of Property Holdings

Finance PEI

(183,496)

(183,496)

(183,496)
-

-

-

-

-

Disposals
$

(25)

53,175,063

45,903,095

3,139,663
2,923,226
1,001,339
31,505,294
7,333,573

2,917,605

1,705,171
1,212,434

4,354,363

981,500
44,765
3,328,098

Disposals/
Ending
$

Cost

23,484,710

21,760,810

2,750,684
437,495
11,379,277
7,193,354

288,251

288,251

1,435,649

44,765
1,390,884

1,618,846

1,441,833

12,628
70,094
1,263,031
96,080

48,497

48,497

128,516

128,516

Beginning Amortization
$
$

(76,295)

(76,295)

(76,295)
-

-

-

-

-

Disposals/
adjustments
$

Accumulated amortization

25,027,261

23,126,348

2,763,312
507,589
12,566,013
7,289,434

336,748

336,748

1,564,165

44,765
1,519,400

Ending
$

28,147,802

22,776,747

3,139,663
159,914
493,750
18,939,281
44,139

2,580,857

1,705,171
875,686

2,790,198

981,500
1,808,698

Net book
value
$

2020

Schedule 2
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Test cell

868,520

4,937,000

57,411,897

682,798

45,388,651

133,303

2,784,302
52,999
539,433
90,366

120,869
12,434

Property holdings held for resale
Land
1,584,302
1,200,000
Buildings

4,104,442
2,789,802
1,001,339
30,296,556
7,196,512

52,419

4,301,944

Industrial Sites
Land
Land improvements
Leasehold improvements
Building
Equipment

52,419

Additions
$

981,500
44,765
3,275,679

General
Land
Land improvements
Building

Beginning
$

As at and for the year ended April 01, 2019

Schedule of Property Holdings

Finance PEI

(5,984,465)

(4,937,000)

(1,047,465)

(1,047,465)
-

-

-

-

-

Disposals
$

(26)

52,295,952

-

45,023,984

3,109,976
2,789,802
1,001,339
30,835,989
7,286,878

2,917,605

1,705,171
1,212,434

4,354,363

981,500
44,765
3,328,098

Ending
$

Cost

25,541,487

3,552,818

20,439,656

2,745,255
367,401
10,161,681
7,165,319

240,000

240,000

1,309,013

44,765
1,264,248

1,496,041

-

1,321,154

5,429
70,094
1,217,596
28,035

48,251

48,251

126,636

126,636

Beginning Amortization
$
$

(3,552,818)

(3,552,818)

-

-

-

-

-

-

Disposals
$

23,484,710

-

21,760,810

2,750,684
437,495
11,379,277
7,193,354

288,251

288,251

1,435,649

44,765
1,390,884

Ending
$

Accumulated amortization

28,811,242

-

23,263,174

3,109,976
39,118
563,844
19,456,712
93,524

2,629,354

1,705,171
924,183

2,918,714

981,500
1,937,214

Net book
value
$

2019

Schedule 2
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0DQDJHPHQW¶V5HVSRQVLELOLW\IRU)LQDQFLDO5HSRUWLQJ
0DUFK



7KHILQDQFLDOVWDWHPHQWVKDYHEHHQSUHSDUHGE\PDQDJHPHQWLQDFFRUGDQFHZLWK&DQDGLDQ
SXEOLFVHFWRUDFFRXQWLQJVWDQGDUGVDQGWKHLQWHJULW\DQGREMHFWLYLW\RIWKHVHVWDWHPHQWVDUH
PDQDJHPHQW¶VUHVSRQVLELOLW\ 0DQDJHPHQWLVDOVRUHVSRQVLEOHIRUDOORIWKHQRWHVWRWKH
ILQDQFLDOVWDWHPHQWVDQGVFKHGXOHVDQGIRUHQVXULQJWKDWWKLVLQIRUPDWLRQLVFRQVLVWHQW
ZKHUHDSSURSULDWHZLWKWKHLQIRUPDWLRQFRQWDLQHGLQWKHILQDQFLDOVWDWHPHQWV $VXPPDU\RI
WKHVLJQLILFDQWDFFRXQWLQJSROLFLHVDUHGHVFULEHGLQ1RWHWRWKHILQDQFLDOVWDWHPHQWV

0DQDJHPHQWLVDOVRUHVSRQVLEOHIRULPSOHPHQWLQJDQGPDLQWDLQLQJDV\VWHPRILQWHUQDO
FRQWUROVWRSURYLGHUHDVRQDEOHDVVXUDQFHWKDWUHOLDEOHILQDQFLDOLQIRUPDWLRQLVSURGXFHG
7KHLQWHUQDOFRQWUROVDUHGHVLJQHGWRSURYLGHUHDVRQDEOHDVVXUDQFHWKDWDVVHWVDUH
VDIHJXDUGHGWUDQVDFWLRQVDUHSURSHUO\DXWKRUL]HGDQGUHFRUGHGLQFRPSOLDQFHZLWK
OHJLVODWLYHDQGUHJXODWRU\UHTXLUHPHQWVDQGUHOLDEOHILQDQFLDOLQIRUPDWLRQLVDYDLODEOHRQD
WLPHO\EDVLVIRUSUHSDUDWLRQRIWKHILQDQFLDOVWDWHPHQWV

7KH%RDUGRI7UXVWHHVLVUHVSRQVLEOHIRUHQVXULQJWKDWPDQDJHPHQWIXOILOVLWVUHVSRQVLELOLWLHV
IRUILQDQFLDOUHSRUWLQJDQGLQWHUQDOFRQWURODQGH[HUFLVHVWKHVHUHVSRQVLELOLWLHVWKURXJKWKH
%RDUG 7KH%RDUGUHYLHZVH[WHUQDODXGLWHGILQDQFLDOVWDWHPHQWV\HDUO\ 7KH%RDUGDOVR
GLVFXVVHVDQ\VLJQLILFDQWILQDQFLDOUHSRUWLQJRULQWHUQDOFRQWUROPDWWHUVSULRUWRWKHLUDSSURYDO
RIWKHILQDQFLDOVWDWHPHQWV


7KHH[WHUQDODXGLWRUV*UDQW7KRUQWRQ//3FRQGXFWDQLQGHSHQGHQWH[DPLQDWLRQLQ
DFFRUGDQFHZLWK&DQDGLDQDXGLWLQJVWDQGDUGVDQGH[SUHVVWKHLURSLQLRQRQWKHILQDQFLDO
VWDWHPHQWV 7KHH[WHUQDODXGLWRUVKDYHIXOODQGIUHHDFFHVVWRILQDQFLDOPDQDJHPHQWRIWKH
)UHQFK/DQJXDJH6FKRRO%RDUGDQGPHHWZKHQUHTXLUHG 7KHDFFRPSDQ\LQJ$XGLWRU¶V
5HSRUWRXWOLQHVWKHLUUHVSRQVLELOLWLHVWKHVFRSHRIWKHLUH[DPLQDWLRQDQGWKHLURSLQLRQRQWKH
ILQDQFLDOVWDWHPHQWV


2QEHKDOIRIWKH)UHQFK/DQJXDJH6FKRRO%RDUG





'LUHFWRURI&RUSRUDWH6HUYLFHV
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,QGHSHQGHQWDXGLWRUV·UHSRUW


*UDQW7KRUQWRQ//3
QG )ORRU 5R\DO %DQN %XLOGLQJ
 :DWHU 6WUHHW 32 %R[ 
6XPPHUVLGH3(
&19
7
)




7RWKH%RDUGRI7UXVWHHVRIWKH 
)UHQFK/DQJXDJH6FKRRO%RDUG

2SLQLRQ
:HKDYHDXGLWHGWKHILQDQFLDOVWDWHPHQWVRIWKH)UHQFK/DQJXDJH6FKRRO%RDUG ³WKH%RDUG´ 
ZKLFK FRPSULVHWKHVWDWHPHQWRIILQDQFLDOSRVLWLRQDVDW0DUFKWKHVWDWHPHQWVRI
RSHUDWLRQV DQGFKDQJHVLQQHWGHEWDQGWKHVWDWHPHQWRIFDVKIORZVIRUWKH\HDUWKHQHQGHG
DQGQRWHVWRWKHILQDQFLDOVWDWHPHQWV LQFOXGLQJDVXPPDU\RIVLJQLILFDQWDFFRXQWLQJSROLFLHV
,QRXURSLQLRQWKHDFFRPSDQ\LQJILQDQFLDOVWDWHPHQWVSUHVHQWIDLUO\LQDOOPDWHULDOUHVSHFWVWKH
ILQDQFLDOSRVLWLRQRIWKH)UHQFK/DQJXDJH6FKRRO%RDUGDVDW0DUFKDQGLWVUHVXOWVRI
RSHUDWLRQVDQGLWVFDVKIORZVIRUWKH\HDUWKHQHQGHGLQDFFRUGDQFHZLWK &DQDGLDQSXEOLF
VHFWRUDFFRXQWLQJVWDQGDUGV


%DVLVIRU2SLQLRQ
:HFRQGXFWHGRXUDXGLWLQDFFRUGDQFHZLWK&DQDGLDQJHQHUDOO\DFFHSWHGDXGLWLQJVWDQGDUGV
2XU UHVSRQVLELOLWLHVXQGHUWKRVHVWDQGDUGVDUHIXUWKHUGHVFULEHGLQWKH$XGLWRU V
5HVSRQVLELOLWLHVIRUWKH $XGLWRIWKH)LQDQFLDO6WDWHPHQWVVHFWLRQRIRXUUHSRUW:HDUH
LQGHSHQGHQWRIWKH%RDUGLQ DFFRUGDQFHZLWKWKHHWKLFDOUHTXLUHPHQWVWKDWDUHUHOHYDQWWRRXU
DXGLWRIWKHILQDQFLDOVWDWHPHQWVLQ &DQDGDDQGZHKDYHIXOILOOHGRXURWKHUHWKLFDO
UHVSRQVLELOLWLHVLQDFFRUGDQFHZLWKWKHVHUHTXLUHPHQWV :HEHOLHYHWKDWWKHDXGLWHYLGHQFHZH
KDYHREWDLQHGLVVXIILFLHQWDQGDSSURSULDWHWRSURYLGHDEDVLV IRURXURSLQLRQ


5HVSRQVLELOLWLHVRI0DQDJHPHQWIRUWKH)LQDQFLDO 6WDWHPHQWV
0DQDJHPHQWLVUHVSRQVLEOHIRUWKHSUHSDUDWLRQDQGIDLUSUHVHQWDWLRQRIWKHVHILQDQFLDO
VWDWHPHQWVLQ DFFRUGDQFHZLWK&DQDGLDQSXEOLFVHFWRUDFFRXQWLQJVWDQGDUGVDQGIRUVXFK
LQWHUQDOFRQWURODV PDQDJHPHQWGHWHUPLQHVLVQHFHVVDU\WRHQDEOHWKHSUHSDUDWLRQRIILQDQFLDO
VWDWHPHQWVWKDWDUHIUHH IURPPDWHULDOPLVVWDWHPHQWZKHWKHUGXHWRIUDXGRUHUURU
,Q SUHSDULQJ WKH ILQDQFLDO VWDWHPHQWVPDQDJHPHQW LV UHVSRQVLEOH IRUDVVHVVLQJ WKH %RDUG¶V
DELOLW\ WR FRQWLQXHDV D JRLQJ FRQFHUQ GLVFORVLQJ DVDSSOLFDEOHPDWWHUV UHODWHGWR DJRLQJ
FRQFHUQDQGXVLQJ WKHJRLQJFRQFHUQEDVLVRIDFFRXQWLQJXQOHVVPDQDJHPHQWHLWKHULQWHQGV
WROLTXLGDWHWKH%RDUGRUWR FHDVHRSHUDWLRQVRUKDVQRUHDOLVWLFDOWHUQDWLYHEXWWRGRVR
7KRVHFKDUJHGZLWKJRYHUQDQFHDUHUHVSRQVLEOHIRURYHUVHHLQJWKH%RDUG¶VILQDQFLDOUHSRUWLQJSURFHVV




$XGLW7D[$GYLVRU\
#*UDQW7KRUQWRQ//3$&DQDGLDQ0HPEHURI*UDQW7KRUQWRQ,QWHUQDWLRQDO/WG
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$XGLWRU¶V5HVSRQVLELOLWLHVIRUWKH$XGLWRIWKH)LQDQFLDO6WDWHPHQWV
2XUREMHFWLYHVDUHWRREWDLQUHDVRQDEOHDVVXUDQFHDERXWZKHWKHUWKHILQDQFLDOVWDWHPHQWVDVDZKROH
DUHIUHHIURPPDWHULDOPLVVWDWHPHQWZKHWKHUGXHWRIUDXGRUHUURUDQGWRLVVXHDQDXGLWRU¶VUHSRUWWKDW
LQFOXGHVRXURSLQLRQ5HDVRQDEOHDVVXUDQFHLVDKLJKOHYHORIDVVXUDQFHEXWLVQRWDJXDUDQWHHWKDW
DQDXGLWFRQGXFWHGLQDFFRUGDQFHZLWK&DQDGLDQJHQHUDOO\DFFHSWHGDXGLWLQJVWDQGDUGVZLOODOZD\V
GHWHFWDPDWHULDOPLVVWDWHPHQWZKHQLWH[LVWV 0LVVWDWHPHQWVFDQDULVHIURPIUDXGRUHUURUDQGDUH
FRQVLGHUHGPDWHULDOLILQGLYLGXDOO\RULQWKHDJJUHJDWHWKH\FRXOGUHDVRQDEO\EHH[SHFWHGWRLQIOXHQFH
WKHHFRQRPLFGHFLVLRQVRIXVHUVWDNHQRQWKHEDVLVRIWKHVHILQDQFLDOVWDWHPHQWV
$VSDUWRIDQDXGLWLQDFFRUGDQFHZLWK&DQDGLDQJHQHUDOO\DFFHSWHGDXGLWLQJVWDQGDUGVZHH[HUFLVH
SURIHVVLRQDOMXGJPHQWDQGPDLQWDLQSURIHVVLRQDOVNHSWLFLVPWKURXJKRXWWKHDXGLW :HDOVR
x

,GHQWLI\DQGDVVHVVWKHULVNVRIPDWHULDOPLVVWDWHPHQWRIWKHILQDQFLDOVWDWHPHQWVZKHWKHUGXHWR
IUDXGRUHUURUGHVLJQDQGSHUIRUPDXGLWSURFHGXUHVUHVSRQVLYHWRWKRVHULVNVDQGREWDLQDXGLW
HYLGHQFHWKDWLVVXIILFLHQWDQGDSSURSULDWHWRSURYLGHDEDVLVIRURXURSLQLRQ7KHULVNRIQRW
GHWHFWLQJDPDWHULDOPLVVWDWHPHQWUHVXOWLQJIURPIUDXGLVKLJKHUWKDQIRURQHUHVXOWLQJIURPHUURU
DVIUDXGPD\LQYROYHFROOXVLRQIRUJHU\LQWHQWLRQDORPLVVLRQVPLVUHSUHVHQWDWLRQVRUWKHRYHUULGH
RILQWHUQDOFRQWURO

x

2EWDLQDQXQGHUVWDQGLQJRILQWHUQDOFRQWUROUHOHYDQWWRWKHDXGLWLQRUGHUWRGHVLJQDXGLW
SURFHGXUHVWKDWDUHDSSURSULDWHLQWKHFLUFXPVWDQFHVEXWQRWIRUWKHSXUSRVHRIH[SUHVVLQJDQ
RSLQLRQRQWKHHIIHFWLYHQHVVRIWKH%RDUG VLQWHUQDOFRQWURO

x

(YDOXDWHWKHDSSURSULDWHQHVVRIDFFRXQWLQJSROLFLHVXVHGDQGWKHUHDVRQDEOHQHVVRIDFFRXQWLQJ
HVWLPDWHVDQGUHODWHGGLVFORVXUHVPDGHE\PDQDJHPHQW

x

&RQFOXGHRQWKHDSSURSULDWHQHVVRIPDQDJHPHQW VXVHRIWKHJRLQJFRQFHUQEDVLVRIDFFRXQWLQJ
DQGEDVHGRQWKHDXGLWHYLGHQFHREWDLQHGZKHWKHUDPDWHULDOXQFHUWDLQW\H[LVWVUHODWHGWRHYHQWV
RUFRQGLWLRQVWKDWPD\FDVWVLJQLILFDQWGRXEWRQWKH%RDUG VDELOLW\WRFRQWLQXHDVDJRLQJFRQFHUQ
,IZHFRQFOXGHWKDWDPDWHULDOXQFHUWDLQW\H[LVWVZHDUHUHTXLUHGWRGUDZDWWHQWLRQLQRXUDXGLWRU V
UHSRUWWRWKHUHODWHGGLVFORVXUHVLQWKHILQDQFLDOVWDWHPHQWVRULIVXFKGLVFORVXUHVDUHLQDGHTXDWH
WRPRGLI\RXURSLQLRQ2XUFRQFOXVLRQVDUHEDVHGRQWKHDXGLWHYLGHQFHREWDLQHGXSWRWKHGDWHRI
RXUDXGLWRU VUHSRUW+RZHYHUIXWXUHHYHQWVRUFRQGLWLRQVPD\FDXVHWKH%RDUGWRFHDVHWR
FRQWLQXHDVDJRLQJFRQFHUQ

x

(YDOXDWHWKHRYHUDOOSUHVHQWDWLRQVWUXFWXUHDQGFRQWHQWRIWKHILQDQFLDOVWDWHPHQWVLQFOXGLQJWKH
GLVFORVXUHVDQGZKHWKHUWKHILQDQFLDOVWDWHPHQWVUHSUHVHQWWKHXQGHUO\LQJWUDQVDFWLRQVDQG
HYHQWVLQDPDQQHUWKDWDFKLHYHVIDLUSUHVHQWDWLRQ

:HFRPPXQLFDWHZLWKWKRVHFKDUJHGZLWKJRYHUQDQFHUHJDUGLQJDPRQJRWKHUPDWWHUVWKHSODQQHG
VFRSHDQGWLPLQJRIWKHDXGLWDQGVLJQLILFDQWDXGLWILQGLQJVLQFOXGLQJDQ\VLJQLILFDQWGHILFLHQFLHVLQ
LQWHUQDOFRQWUROWKDWZHLGHQWLI\GXULQJRXUDXGLW

6XPPHUVLGH&DQDGD
$XJXVW




&KDUWHUHG3URIHVVLRQDO$FFRXQWDQWV

$XGLW7D[$GYLVRU\
#*UDQW7KRUQWRQ//3$&DQDGLDQ0HPEHURI*UDQW7KRUQWRQ,QWHUQDWLRQDO/WG
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)UHQFK/DQJXDJH6FKRRO%RDUG
6WDWHPHQWVRI2SHUDWLRQVDQG&KDQJHVLQ1HW'HEW



 


<HDUHQGHG0DUFK

5HYHQXH
*UDQWV
6DODULHVDQGEHQHILWV
0DLQWHQDQFHDQGRSHUDWLRQ
$GPLQLVWUDWLRQ
7UDQVSRUWDWLRQ
3URJUDPV
5HQRYDWLRQVUHSDLUVDQG
PDLQWHQDQFH
3URIHVVLRQDOGHYHORSPHQW
2/()XQGLQJ
2WKHUUHYHQXH 1RWH 



3DJH
([SHQVHV 1RWH 
6DODULHVDQGEHQHILWV
 
0DLQWHQDQFHDQGRSHUDWLRQ 
$GPLQLVWUDWLRQ

7UDQVSRUWDWLRQ

3URJUDPV

5HQRYDWLRQVUHSDLUVDQG
PDLQWHQDQFH

3URIHVVLRQDOGHYHORSPHQW







 
















































 
([FHVV H[SHQVHV UHYHQXHV









 


1HWGHEW EHJLQQLQJRI\HDU



1HWGHEWHQGRI\HDU









 



 


  

 

([FHVV H[SHQVHV UHYHQXHV























 

 







































 







  




 








6HHDFFRPSDQ\LQJQRWHVWRWKHILQDQFLDOVWDWHPHQWV
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)UHQFK/DQJXDJH6FKRRO%RDUG
6WDWHPHQWRI)LQDQFLDO3RVLWLRQ





0DUFK

)LQDQFLDODVVHWV
&DVKDQGFDVKHTXLYDOHQWV
5HFHLYDEOHV 1RWH 
3UHSDLGV
'HSDUWPHQWRI(GXFDWLRQSRVWHPSOR\PHQWEHQHILWV
'HSDUWPHQWRI(GXFDWLRQGHIHUUHGVDODU\SODQ





















 












)LQDQFLDOOLDELOLWLHV
3D\DEOHVDQGDFFUXDOV
*HQHUDO
6DODULHVDQGEHQHILWV
3URYLQFHRI3ULQFH(GZDUG,VODQG
'HIHUUHGUHYHQXH 1RWH 
3RVWHPSOR\PHQWEHQHILWV 1RWH 
'HIHUUHGVDODU\SURJUDP

 




























1HWGHEW




  


&RQWLQJHQF\ 1RWH 
2QEHKDOIRIWKH%RDUG








  
















&KDLUSHUVRQ

7UXVWHH

6HHDFFRPSDQ\LQJQRWHVWRWKHILQDQFLDOVWDWHPHQWV
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)UHQFK/DQJXDJH6FKRRO%RDUG
6WDWHPHQWRI&DVK)ORZV





<HDUHQGHG0DUFK

,QFUHDVH GHFUHDVH LQFDVKDQGFDVKHTXLYDOHQWV

2SHUDWLQJDFWLYLWLHV









([FHVV H[SHQVHV UHYHQXH








&KDQJHLQQRQFDVKZRUNLQJFDSLWDO
5HFHLYDEOHV
3UHSDLGV
3D\DEOHV
'HIHUUHGUHYHQXH





  






(QGRI\HDU

 


  




%HJLQQLQJRI\HDU


 



1HWGHFUHDVHLQFDVKDQGFDVKHTXLYDOHQWV
&DVKDQGFDVKHTXLYDOHQWV




 
















 






6HHDFFRPSDQ\LQJQRWHVWRWKHILQDQFLDOVWDWHPHQWV
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)UHQFK/DQJXDJH6FKRRO%RDUG
1RWHVWRWKH)LQDQFLDO6WDWHPHQWV
0DUFK




1DWXUHRIRSHUDWLRQV


7KH%RDUGKDVWKHUHVSRQVLELOLW\WRSURYLGHSULPDU\DQGVHFRQGDU\HGXFDWLRQUHTXLUHPHQWVLQ
)UHQFK WR SHRSOH ZLWKLQ 3ULQFH (GZDUG ,VODQG 7KH %RDUG LV IXQGHG E\ WKH 'HSDUWPHQW RI
(GXFDWLRQDQG/LIHORQJ/HDUQLQJ



6XPPDU\RIVLJQLILFDQWDFFRXQWLQJSROLFLHV

%DVLVRIDFFRXQWLQJ
7KH %RDUG IROORZV WKH UHFRPPHQGDWLRQV RI WKH 3XEOLF 6HFWRU $FFRXQWLQJ %RDUG RI WKH
&DQDGLDQ,QVWLWXWHRI&KDUWHUHG$FFRXQWDQWV


5HYHQXHUHFRJQLWLRQ
7KH %RDUG IROORZV WKH GHIHUUDO PHWKRG RI DFFRXQWLQJ IRU JUDQWV IRU VSHFLDO SURMHFWV *UDQWV
UHVWULFWHG IRU VSHFLDO SURMHFWV DUH UHFRJQL]HG DV UHYHQXH LQ WKH \HDU LQ ZKLFK WKH UHODWHG
H[SHQVHV DUH LQFXUUHG 7KHXQH[SHQGHGSRUWLRQRIJUDQWVUHFHLYHGIRUVSHFLILFSXUFKDVHVLV
GHIHUUHG DQG XVHG IRU UHODWHG IXWXUH SXUFKDVHV 8QUHVWULFWHG DPRXQWV DUH UHFRJQL]HG DV
UHYHQXH ZKHQ UHFHLYHG RU UHFHLYDEOH LI WKH DPRXQW WR EH UHFHLYHG FDQ EH UHDVRQDEO\
HVWLPDWHG DQG FROOHFWLRQ LV UHDVRQDEO\DVVXUHG

*RYHUQPHQW WUDQVIHUV DUH UHFRJQL]HG DV UHYHQXHV ZKHQ WKH WUDQVIHU LV DXWKRUL]HG DQG
HOLJLELOLW\FULWHULDDUHPHW 7RWKHH[WHQWWKDWWUDQVIHUVWLSXODWLRQVJLYHULVHWRDQREOLJDWLRQWKDW
PHHWVWKHGHILQLWLRQRIDOLDELOLW\WUDQVIHUVDUHUHFRJQL]HGDVGHIHUUHGUHYHQXH


5HWLUHPHQWDOORZDQFHV
7KH)UHQFK/DQJXDJH6FKRRO%RDUGUHFRUGVDQDQQXDOH[SHQVHEDVHGRQWKHFKDQJHLQWKH
DFWXDULDOO\ GHWHUPLQHG REOLJDWLRQ IRU UHWLUHPHQW DOORZDQFH EHQHILWV QHW RI SD\PHQWV GXULQJ
WKH\HDU )XQGVWRVHWWOHWKHREOLJDWLRQZKLFKDUHDOLDELOLW\RIWKH%RDUGZLOOEHUHLPEXUVHGE\
WKH 'HSDUWPHQWRI(GXFDWLRQDQG/LIHORQJ/HDUQLQJ DW WKH WLPH RI SD\PHQW 7KHUHIRUH D
UHFHLYDEOH IURP WKH 'HSDUWPHQW LV UHFRUGHGIRUWKHHQWLUHUHWLUHPHQWDOORZDQFHDPRXQW

5HWLUHPHQWDOORZDQFHVDUHSURYLGHGWRHPSOR\HHVRQGHDWKRUUHWLUHPHQWLIWKHHPSOR\HHKDV
\HDUVRIFRQWLQXRXVVHUYLFH  \HDUVIRUH[FOXGHGPHPEHUV 7KHUHWLUHPHQWDOORZDQFHLV
IRUVRPDQ\GD\VSHU\HDURIVHUYLFHZLWKPD[LPXPVZKLFKYDU\EDVHGRQXQLRQDIILOLDWLRQ


9DFDWLRQSD\
9DFDWLRQHQWLWOHPHQWVDUHH[SHQVHGDVHDUQHG


'HIHUUHGUHYHQXH
7KH XQH[SHQGHG SRUWLRQ RI JUDQWV UHFHLYHG IRU VSHFLILF SXUFKDVHV LV GHIHUUHG DQG XVHG IRU
UHODWHGIXWXUHSXUFKDVHV
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)UHQFK/DQJXDJH6FKRRO%RDUG
1RWHVWRWKH)LQDQFLDO6WDWHPHQWV
0DUFK


&DVKDQGFDVKHTXLYDOHQWV
&DVK DQG FDVK HTXLYDOHQWV LQFOXGH FDVK RQ KDQG DQG EDODQFHV ZLWK EDQNV QHW RI EDQN
RYHUGUDIWDQGKLJKO\OLTXLGVKRUWWHUPGHSRVLWV


3HQVLRQSODQV
,QVWUXFWLRQDO HPSOR\HHV RI WKH %RDUG DUH PHPEHUV RI 7HDFKHU 6XSHUDQQXDWLRQ 3HQVLRQ
3ODQRIWKH3URYLQFHRI3ULQFH(GZDUG,VODQG7KHH[SHQVHRIWKH%RDUGLVOLPLWHGWRFXUUHQW
\HDU FRQWULEXWLRQV DV DQ\ VKRUWIDOO LQ IXQGLQJ RI WKH SHQVLRQ SODQ LV WKH UHVSRQVLELOLW\ RI WKH
3URYLQFH RI 3ULQFH (GZDUG ,VODQG 7 K H  DPRXQW SDLG WR WKLV SODQ GXULQJ WKH \HDU LV
  

0HPEHUVRIWKHVXSSRUWVWDII DUH PHPEHUV RI WKH 3ULQFH (GZDUG ,VODQG (GXFDWLRQ 6HFWRU
3HQVLRQ3ODQZLWKERWKGHILQHGEHQHILWGHILQHGFRQWULEXWLRQFRPSRQHQWV7KHH[SHQVHRIWKH
%RDUGLVOLPLWHGWRDPDWFKLQJFRQWULEXWLRQHTXDOWRWKHHPSOR\HHSRUWLRQ


&HUWDLQ PHPEHUV RI WKH VXSSRUW VWDII RI WKH %RDUG DUH PHPEHUV RI WKH &LYLO 6HUYLFH
6XSHUDQQXDWLRQ 3HQVLRQ 3ODQ RI WKH 3URYLQFH RI 3ULQFH (GZDUG ,VODQG 7KH H[SHQVH RI WKH
%RDUGLVOLPLWHGWRFXUUHQW\HDUFRQWULEXWLRQVDVDQ\VKRUWIDOOLQIXQGLQJRIWKHSHQVLRQSODQLV
WKH UHVSRQVLELOLW\ RI WKH 3URYLQFH RI 3ULQFH (GZDUG ,VODQG 7KH DPRXQW SDLG WR WKLV SODQ
GXULQJ WKH\HDULV  


:RUNHUV¶FRPSHQVDWLRQFODLPV
7KH )UHQFK /DQJXDJH 6FKRRO %RDUG LV D UHJLVWHUHG HPSOR\HU ZLWK WKH :RUNHU¶V
&RPSHQVDWLRQ%RDUGRI3ULQFH(GZDUG,VODQGIRULQVWUXFWLRQDODQGVXSSRUWVWDII7KH 6FKRRO
%RDUG UHFRUGV DQ DQQXDO H[SHQVH EDVHG RQ SD\UROO DVVHVVPHQWV LQ DFFRUGDQFH ZLWK WKH
:RUNHUV¶&RPSHQVDWLRQ$FW






'HIHUUHGVDODU\SODQ
7HDFKHUV HPSOR\HG ZLWK WKH )UHQFK /DQJXDJH 6FKRRO %RDUG FDQ SDUWLFLSDWH LQ D SURJUDP
WKDW DOORZVWKHP WRGHIHU D SRUWLRQ RI WKHLUDQQXDO VDODU\DQG WDNHD SDLG OHDYH RI DEVHQFH
7KH GHIHUUDO UHVXOWV LQ D OLDELOLW\ WR WKH WHDFKHUV ZKLFK LV VDWLVILHG GXULQJ WKH SDLG OHDYH RI
DEVHQFH)XQGVWRVHWWOHWKHREOLJDWLRQZKLFKDUHDOLDELOLW\RIWKH%RDUGZLOOEHUHLPEXUVHG
E\ WKH 'HSDUWPHQW RI (GXFDWLRQ DQG /LIHORQJ /HDUQLQJ RI 3ULQFH (GZDUG ,VODQG DQG
WKHUHIRUH DQ\ OLDELOLW\ KDV DQ RIIVHWWLQJ UHFHLYDEOH GXH IURP WKH 'HSDUWPHQW
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)UHQFK/DQJXDJH6FKRRO%RDUG
1RWHVWRWKH)LQDQFLDO6WDWHPHQWV
0DUFK
0HDVXUHPHQWXQFHUWDLQW\DQGWKHXVHRIHVWLPDWHV
&DQDGLDQ SXEOLF VHFWRU DFFRXQWLQJ VWDQGDUGV UHTXLUH PDQDJHPHQW WR PDNH HVWLPDWHV DQG
DVVXPSWLRQV WKDW DIIHFW WKH UHSRUWHG DPRXQWV RI DVVHWV DQG OLDELOLWLHV DQG GLVFORVXUH RI
FRQWLQJHQW DVVHWV DQG OLDELOLWLHV DW WKH GDWH RI WKH ILQDQFLDO VWDWHPHQWV DQG WKH UHSRUWHG
DPRXQWVRIUHYHQXHDQGH[SHQVHVGXULQJWKH\HDU

0HDVXUHPHQW XQFHUWDLQW\ WKDW PD\ EH PDWHULDO WR WKHVH ILQDQFLDO VWDWHPHQWV H[LVWV IRU WKH
OLDELOLW\ IRU HPSOR\HH IXWXUH EHQHILWV RI      EHFDXVH DFWXDO
H[SHULHQFH PD\ GLIIHU IURP DFWXDULDO DVVXPSWLRQV 7KHVH HVWLPDWHV DQG DVVXPSWLRQV DUH
UHYLHZHG SHULRGLFDOO\ DQG DV DGMXVWPHQWV EHFRPH QHFHVVDU\WKH\DUHUHSRUWHGLQHDUQLQJV
LQWKHSHULRGVLQZKLFKWKH\EHFRPHNQRZQ

:KLOH EHVW HVWLPDWHV DUH XVHG IRU UHSRUWLQJ LWHPV VXEMHFW WR PHDVXUHPHQW XQFHUWDLQW\ LW LV
UHDVRQDEO\SRVVLEOHWKDWFKDQJHVLQIXWXUHFRQGLWLRQVRFFXUULQJZLWKLQRQHILVFDO\HDUFRXOG
UHTXLUHPDWHULDOFKDQJHVLQWKHDPRXQWVUHFRJQL]HGRUGLVFORVHG










2WKHUUHYHQXH



3URJUDPIXQGLQJ
2WKHU
5HQWDOVDQGUHFRYHUDEOHFRVWV




































([SHQVHVE\GHSDUWPHQW


7KH IROORZLQJ LV D VXPPDU\ RI WKH H[SHQVHV UHSRUWHG RQ WKH VWDWHPHQW RI RSHUDWLRQV E\
GHSDUWPHQWH[FOXGLQJHPSOR\HHEHQHILWV



,QVWUXFWLRQDO
$GPLQLVWUDWLRQ
7UDQVSRUWDWLRQ
0DLQWHQDQFHDQGRSHUDWLRQV
(PSOR\HHEHQHILWV
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)UHQFK/DQJXDJH6FKRRO%RDUG
1RWHVWRWKH)LQDQFLDO6WDWHPHQWV
0DUFK




5HFHLYDEOHV

7UDQVLWLRQSD\
+67
2WKHU
































%DQNLQGHEWHGQHVV


7KH%RDUGKDVDQDXWKRUL]HGRSHUDWLQJOLQHRIFUHGLWRIEHDULQJLQWHUHVWDWRI
ZKLFK  ZDVXQXVHGDW0DUFK








'HIHUUHGUHYHQXH







)XQGVGHVLJQDWHGIRU
$XWLVPWUDLQLQJ
&DSLWDOSURMHFWV
&RPPXQLW\IXQGLQJ
/LEUDU\
2IILFLDOODQJXDJHV
2WKHU
3URIHVVLRQDOGHYHORSPHQW
3URJUDPPDWHULDOV
6SHFLDOSURMHFWV
6SHFLDOL]DWLRQ
6FKRROLPSURYHPHQW
4XHEHF3(,
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)UHQFK/DQJXDJH6FKRRO%RDUG
1RWHVWRWKH)LQDQFLDO6WDWHPHQWV
0DUFK




3RVWHPSOR\PHQWEHQHILWV


$Q DQDO\VLVRIWKHFRPSRQHQWVRIDQGFKDQJHVLQSRVWHPSOR\PHQWEHQHILWV OLDELOLWLHVLVDV
IROORZV





5HWLUHPHQWDOORZDQFH
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7KH UHWLUHPHQW DOORZDQFH EDODQFHV DUH EDVHG RQ DQ LQGHSHQGHQW DFWXDULDO YDOXDWLRQ GDWHG
$SULOSURYLGHGE\WKH3HQVLRQDQG%HQHILWV'LYLVLRQRIWKH3URYLQFHRI3ULQFH(GZDUG
,VODQG 3XEOLF 6HUYLFH &RPPLVVLRQ 7KH UHSRUW ZDV DPHQGHG IRU D FKDQJH LQ WKH GLVFRXQW
UDWH WR EH XVHG LQ WKH YDOXDWLRQ RI WKH OLDELOLW\7KH DPHQGPHQW ZDV GDWHG $SULO  
7KH 3URYLQFHRI3ULQFH(GZDUG,VODQGSURMHFWVWKHWRWDOOLDELOLW\LQWKH \HDUVEHWZHHQWKHWUL
DQQXDO DFWXDULDO YDOXDWLRQV 7KH DPHQGPHQW GDWHG $SULO   LV UHIOHFWHG LQ WKH
 SURMHFWLRQSUHSDUHGE\WKH3URYLQFHRI3ULQFH(GZDUG,VODQG

7KH HFRQRPLF DVVXPSWLRQV XVHG LQ GHWHUPLQLQJ WKH DFWXDULDO YDOXH RI DFFUXHG UHWLUHPHQW
DOORZDQFHV ZHUH GHYHORSHG E\ UHIHUHQFH WR H[SHFWHG ORQJ WHUP PDUNHW FRQGLWLRQV
6LJQLILFDQWDFWXDULDODVVXPSWLRQVXVHGLQWKHYDOXDWLRQVDQGSURMHFWLRQVDUH


'LVFRXQWUDWH
([SHFWHGLQIODWLRQUDWH
([SHFWHGDYHUDJHUHPDLQLQJVHUYLFHOLIH


SHUDQQXP
SHUDQQXP
\HDUV
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)UHQFK/DQJXDJH6FKRRO%RDUG
1RWHVWRWKH)LQDQFLDO6WDWHPHQWV
0DUFK




*UDQWDOORFDWLRQILJXUHV



7KH PDMRULW\ RI WKH %RDUG¶V DFWLYLWLHV DUH IXQGHG E\ WKH 'HSDUWPHQW RI (GXFDWLRQ DQG
/LIHORQJ/HDUQLQJ 7KH DQQXDO JUDQW DOORFDWLRQIURP WKH'HSDUWPHQWSURYLGHVGHWDLOV DVWR
WKH IXQGLQJ DOORFDWLRQV IRU HDFK RSHUDWLRQDO DUHD ZLWK WKH H[FHSWLRQ RI VDODULHV 7KRXJK
PDUJLQDO WKH %RDUG DOVR KDV UHYHQXHV IURP RWKHU VRXUFHV D SRUWLRQ RI ZKLFK KDV EHHQ
GHIHUUHGIURPSULRU\HDUV WKDWDUH QRW LQFOXGHG LQ WKH EXGJHW ILJXUHV SUHVHQWHG 7KH JUDQW
IRU VDODULHV LV IRU DQ DSSURYHG QXPEHU RI IXOO WLPHHPSOR\HHV IRU WKH %RDUG )XQGLQJ IRU
WKHDSSURYHGQXPEHURISRVLWLRQV LV SURYLGHG E\WKH'HSDUWPHQW EXW WKH DFWXDO GROODU YDOXH
RI WKH DSSURYHG SRVLWLRQV LV QRW LQFOXGHGLQWKHLGHQWLILHGJUDQW6LQFHDGROODUYDOXHZDVQRW
SURYLGHGIRUVDODULHVWKHJUDQW DVVRFLDWHG ZLWK WKLV H[SHQGLWXUH KDV EHHQ H[FOXGHG IURP
WKLV QRWH WR WKH ILQDQFLDO VWDWHPHQWV 7KH IROORZLQJ ILJXUHV DUH WKH RSHUDWLRQDO EXGJHW
DOORFDWLRQV SURYLGHG E\ WKH 'HSDUWPHQW FRPSDUHGWRWKHDFWXDOUHVXOWVIRU


*UDQW
DOORFDWLRQ
E\FDWHJRU\
0DUFK



$FWXDO
H[SHQGLWXUHV
E\FDWHJRU\
0DUFK









$GPLQLVWUDWLRQ
5HQRYDWLRQVDQGHTXLSPHQW
,QVWUXFWLRQDO
0DLQWHQDQFHDQGRSHUDWLRQV
7UDQVSRUWDWLRQ
3URIHVVLRQDOGHYHORSPHQW
2/()XQGLQJ






















 &RQWLQJHQF\


7KH%RDUGKDV HOHFWHGWR VHOI LQVXUH LWVHOI UHODWHG WRFROOLVLRQFRYHUDJH 'XULQJ WKH \HDU QR
HYHQWVZHUHUHSRUWHGLQDFFRUGDQFHZLWKWKHSROLFLHVRIWKHFROOLVLRQFRQWLQJHQF\IXQG

 &29,'

6LQFH -DQXDU\   WKH VSUHDG RI &29,' KDV VHYHUHO\ LPSDFWHG PDQ\ ORFDO
HFRQRPLHV DURXQG WKH JOREH ,Q PDQ\ FRXQWULHV LQFOXGLQJ &DQDGD EXVLQHVVHV DQG
RUJDQL]DWLRQV DUH EHLQJ IRUFHG WR FHDVH RU OLPLW RSHUDWLRQV IRU ORQJ RU LQGHILQLWH SHULRGV RI
WLPH0HDVXUHVWDNHQWRFRQWDLQWKHVSUHDGRIWKHYLUXVLQFOXGLQJWUDYHOEDQVTXDUDQWLQHV
VRFLDO GLVWDQFLQJ DQG FORVXUHV RI QRQHVVHQWLDO VHUYLFHV KDYH WULJJHUHG VLJQLILFDQW
GLVUXSWLRQVWREXVLQHVVHVDQGRUJDQL]DWLRQVZRUOGZLGHUHVXOWLQJLQDQHFRQRPLFVORZGRZQ
7KHGXUDWLRQDQGLPSDFWRIWKH&29,'SDQGHPLFUHPDLQVXQFOHDUDWWKLVWLPH

7KHRXWEUHDNRI&29,'DQGUHODWHGJOREDOUHVSRQVHVKDYHFDXVHGPDWHULDO GLVUXSWLRQV
WRRUJDQL]DWLRQVDURXQGWKHZRUOGOHDGLQJWRDQHFRQRPLF
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)UHQFK/DQJXDJH6FKRRO%RDUG
1RWHVWRWKH)LQDQFLDO6WDWHPHQWV
0DUFK
VORZGRZQ7KH%RDUG¶VVFKRROVKDYHEHHQFORVHGVLQFH0DUFKRI7KH%RDUGDQGWKH
'HSDUWPHQW RI (GXFDWLRQ DQG /LIHORQJ /HDUQLQJ DUH FXUUHQWO\ IRUHFDVWLQJ DQG SODQQLQJ WR
UHRSHQVFKRROVLQ6HSWHPEHURI$Q\XQDQWLFLSDWHGFRVWVUHODWHGWR&29,'ZLOOEH
FORVHO\PRQLWRUHGDVDZD\WRDVVHVVLIDGGLWLRQDOIXQGLQJIRUWKH%RDUGLVUHTXLUHG

7KH GXUDWLRQ DQG LPSDFW RI WKH &29,' SDQGHPLF DV ZHOO DV WKH HIIHFWLYHQHVV RI
JRYHUQPHQW DQG FHQWUDO EDQN UHVSRQVHV UHPDLQV XQFOHDU DW WKLV WLPH ,W LV QRW SRVVLEOH WR
UHOLDEO\HVWLPDWHWKHGXUDWLRQDQGVHYHULW\RIWKHVHFRQVHTXHQFHVDVZHOODVWKHLULPSDFWRQ
WKHILQDQFLDOSRVLWLRQDQGUHVXOWVRIWKH%RDUGIRUIXWXUHSHULRGV
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)UHQFK/DQJXDJH6FKRRO%RDUG
6FKHGXOHRI6DODULHVDQG%HQHILWV([SHQVH
<HDUHQGHG0DUFK









 
$GPLQLVWUDWLYHSRVLWLRQV
0DQDJHPHQW

2G\VVĠHSURJUDP

0DLQWHQDQFHDQGRSHUDWLRQ

$GPLQLVWUDWLYHDVVLVWDQWV

7HDFKHUV

(GXFDWLRQDODVVLVWDQWVDQG\RXWKVHUYLFHZRUNHUV 
7UDQVSRUWDWLRQ






 
















%HQHILWV
5HWLUHPHQWDOORZDQFH










1RWHV


$GPLQLVWUDWLYH SRVLWLRQ VDODULHV LQFOXGH SULQFLSDOV YLFHSULQFLSDOV GHSDUWPHQW KHDGV DQG
FRQVXOWDQWV

%RDUGPDQDJHPHQWVDODULHVLQFOXGHWKHVXSHULQWHQGHQWGLUHFWRURILQVWUXFWLRQGLUHFWRURI
DGPLQLVWUDWLRQDQGILQDQFHDVVLVWDQWGLUHFWRURIDGPLQLVWUDWLRQDQGILQDQFHDQGDGPLQLVWUDWLYH
DVVLVWDQW

2G\VVpHSURJUDPVDODULHVLQFOXGHVDODULHVIRUWKH)UHQFK0RQLWRU3URJUDP

0DLQWHQDQFHDQGRSHUDWLRQVVDODULHVLQFOXGHVFKRROFXVWRGLDQVDQGFOHDQHUV

$GPLQLVWUDWLYHDVVLVWDQWVDODULHVLQFOXGHVFKRROERDUGVXSSRUWVWDIIDQGVFKRROVXSSRUWVWDII 

7HDFKHUV¶VDODULHVLQFOXGHDOOWHDFKLQJVWDIIH[FOXGLQJWKRVHOLVWHGDERYH

6DODULHVRIHGXFDWLRQDODVVLVWDQWVDQGRWKHUZRUNHUVLQFOXGHDOOHGXFDWLRQDODVVLVWDQWVDQG
\RXWKVHUYLFHZRUNHUV 

7UDQVSRUWDWLRQVDODULHVLQFOXGHEXVGULYHUV

%HQHILWVLQFOXGHWKHHPSOR\HU¶VVKDUHRI&DQDGD3HQVLRQ3ODQDQG(PSOR\PHQW,QVXUDQFH
JURXS LQVXUDQFHSHQVLRQUHWLUHPHQWEHQHILWVDQGYDULRXVHPSOR\HH DOORZDQFHV
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)UHQFK/DQJXDJH6FKRRO%RDUG
6FKHGXOHRI$GPLQLVWUDWLRQ([SHQVH
<HDUHQGHG0DUFK
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)UHQFK/DQJXDJH6FKRRO%RDUG
6FKHGXOHRI7UDQVSRUWDWLRQ([SHQVH
<HDUHQGHG0DUFK
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)UHQFK/DQJXDJH6FKRRO%RDUG
6FKHGXOHRI3URJUDP([SHQVH
<HDUHQGHG0DUFK
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July 16, 2020
Independent Auditor's Report
To the Board of Directors of Island Investment Development Inc.
Opinion
We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Island Investment Development Inc.,
which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at March 31, 2020, and the consolidated
statements of comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to
the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.
In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of Island Investment Development Inc. as at March 31, 2020, and the results of its operations and its
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards.
Basis for Opinion
We conducted our audit in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards. Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial
Statements section of our report. We are independent of Island Investment Development Inc. in accordance
with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in Canada, and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Consolidated Financial
Statements
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance
with International Financial Reporting Standards, and for such internal control as management determines is
necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error.
In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing Island Investment Development
Inc.’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate Island Investment
Development Inc. or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.
Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing Island Investment Development Inc.’s financial
reporting process.
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards will always detect a material misstatement
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in
the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the
basis of these financial statements. As part of an audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted
auditing standards, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the
audit. We also:
(1)
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!

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

!

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of Island Investment Development Inc.’s internal control.

!

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by management.

!

Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions
that may cast significant doubt on Island Investment Development Inc.'s ability to continue as a going
concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our
auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the
date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause Island Investment
Development Inc. to cease to continue as a going concern.

!

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a
manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that
we identify during our audit.

Chartered Professional Accountants

(2)
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Island Investment Development Inc.
Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
As at March 31, 2020
2020
$

2019
$

Assets
Cash
Marketable securities
Accounts receivable (notes 7 and 17)
Prepaid expense
Inventory (note 15)
Demand loan receivable (note 9)
Notes receivable (note 10)
Advances to related company (note 17)
Investment in private companies (note 11)
Deferred financing costs (note 12)
Investment properties (notes 8 and 15)
Property and equipment (Schedule and note 15)
Restricted funds (note 13)
Cash and marketable securities

18,704,173
5,562,756
6,985,131
44,104
121,272
7,007,465
144,580,842
2,119,298
4,148,387
77,100
12,916,348
3,049,115

19,115,551
8,254,707
2,422,072
71,723
148,890
7,009,549
139,028,791
2,520,284
3,287,094
137,269
11,619,161
2,728,079

121,489,012

173,406,536

326,805,003

369,749,706

2,895,037
7,920,859
121,489,012

3,117,824
22,865,078
173,406,536

132,304,908

199,389,438

194,500,095

170,360,268

326,805,003

369,749,706

Liabilities
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities (notes 14 and 17)
Long-term debt (note 15)
Restricted funds (note 13)

Commitments (note 18)

Retained earnings

Approved by the Board of Directors
_____________________________ Director

_____________________________ Director
(3)
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Island Investment Development Inc.
Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
For the year ended March 31, 2020

Retained earnings - Beginning of year
Net earnings for the year

Retained earnings - End of year

(4)

2020
$

2019
$

170,360,268

150,104,258

24,139,827

20,256,010

194,500,095

170,360,268
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Island Investment Development Inc.
Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
For the year ended March 31, 2020
2020
$

2019
$

6,474,181
3,812,088
1,767,112
16,600,000
11,305,989

5,685,883
5,081,795
2,011,693
17,445,000
8,984,346

39,959,370

39,208,717

135,334
498,708
29,755
501,338
1,699
135,516
535,326
59,857
105,401
133,200
9,124
8,465,253
2,447,626
64,582
1,678,678
31,926
903,391
63,165

400,923
585,180
6,659
449,518
1,162
132,598
535,000
9,440
72,999
217,206
19,137
7,732,227
5,998,972
50,000
1,652,903
37,521
713,452
433,067

15,799,879

19,047,964

24,159,491

20,160,753

Revenue
Interest on notes and loan receivable (note 17)
Investment income
Provincial Nominee Program fees
Provincial Nominee Program defaults
Property operations (notes 16 and 17)

Expenses
Doubtful accounts
Education contribution
Equipment
Grants - private companies
Interest and bank charges
Interest on notes payable (note 17)
Management fees (note 17)
Meetings and conferences
Office
Professional fees
Promotion and advertising
Property operations (note 17)
Provision for possible losses
Rent (note 17)
Salaries (note 17)
Travel
Amortization
Amortization of deferred financing costs

Operating earnings
Other income (expense)
Gain on sale of property and equipment
Interest income
Loss from hurricane damages
Insurance recovery from hurricane damages

Net earnings for the year

5,336
(513,051)
488,051

95,144
113
-

(19,664)

95,257

24,139,827

(5)

20,256,010
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Island Investment Development Inc.
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
For the year ended March 31, 2020
2020
$

2019
$

24,139,827

20,256,010

Cash provided by (used in)
Operating activities
Net earnings for the year
Items not affecting cash
Amortization
Amortization of deferred financing costs
Gain on sale of property and equipment
Provision for possible losses

903,391
63,165
(5,336)
2,447,626

Net change in non-cash working capital items
Increase in accounts receivable
Decrease (increase) in prepaid expense
Decrease (increase) in inventory
Decrease in accounts payable and accrued liabilities

713,452
433,067
(95,144)
5,998,972

27,548,673

27,306,357

(4,563,059)
27,619
27,618
(222,787)

(1,248,814)
(55,855)
(30,337)
(913,605)

22,818,064

25,057,746

(14,944,219)
400,986

(47,564,420)
911,199

(14,543,233)

(46,653,221)

(861,293)
2,691,951
(51,917,524)
51,917,524
(7,999,677)
2,084
(640,762)
(2,036,909)
156,057
5,336
(2,996)

(846,583)
49,804,000
(41,690,474)
41,690,474
(17,805,493)
(3,105)
(369,655)
(6,727,454)
3,544,234
95,144
-

(8,686,209)

27,691,088

(411,378)

6,095,613

Financing activities
Decrease in long-term debt - net
Decrease in advances to related company

Investing activities
Increase in investment in private companies
Decrease in marketable securities - net
Decrease in restricted funds - cash and marketable securities
Decrease in restricted funds - liability
Increase in notes receivable - net
Decrease (increase) in demand loan receivable
Additions to property and equipment
Additions to investment properties
Capital grants received
Proceeds on disposal of property and equipment
Increase in deferred financing costs

Increase (decrease) in cash
Cash - Beginning of year

19,115,551

13,019,938

Cash - End of year

18,704,173

19,115,551

(6)
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Island Investment Development Inc.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
March 31, 2020
1

Reporting entity
The company is a provincial Crown corporation established under the provisions of the Island Investment
Development Inc. Act and is therefore a non-taxable entity under the provisions of the Income Tax Act.
The company is the corporate administrator of government-administered venture capital funds in the Province
of Prince Edward Island with its purpose to invest in active business operations. The investments are made in
typically new or expanding companies. The company also develops and commercializes the real property
assets of the former Canadian Forces Base Summerside. It rents real property to commercial and residential
tenants and operates airport, accomodations, food and beverage and retail divisions.
The company administers the Prince Edward Island Provincial Nominee Program on behalf of the Province of
Prince Edward Island, and charges applicants under the program various fees to process the applications
received.
Island Investment Development Inc.'s head office is located in Charlottetown, Prince Edward Island.
Island Investment Development Inc. prepares its financial statements in compliance with Canadian
International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRS”) as issued by the International Accounting Standards
Board (“IASB”).
These financial statements have been approved for issue by the Board of Directors on July 16, 2020.

2

Basis of presentation
(a) Basis of consolidation
These financial statements include the operations of Island Investment Development Inc. and its whollyowned subsidiaries, Prince Edward Island Century 2000 Fund Inc. (Century 2000 Fund) and Slemon Park
Corporation.
(b) Basis of measurement
These financial statements have been presented on the historical cost basis except for certain financial
instruments as indicated in note 3(a).
(c) Functional and presentation currency
These financial statements are presented in Canadian dollars, which is the company’s functional
currency.

(7)
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Island Investment Development Inc.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
March 31, 2020
(d) Use of estimates and judgments
The preparation of the financial statements requires management to make judgments, estimates and
assumptions that affect the application of policies and reported amounts of assets, liabilities, revenue and
expenses during the period. The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical experience
and various other factors that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which
form the basis of making judgments about carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not readily
apparent from other sources. Actual results could differ from those estimates. Estimates and underlying
assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognized in the
period in which the estimates are revised and in any future periods affected.
The judgments that have the most significant effect on the amounts recognized in the financial statements
are detailed in note 5.

3

Summary of significant accounting policies
(a) Financial instruments
i)

Classification and measurement of financial assets
The company applies IFRS 9 and classifies its financial assets into one of the following
measurement categories:
!
!
!

Amortized cost;
Fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL); or
Fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI).

Financial assets include both debt and equity instruments.
Debt instruments
Classification and subsequent measurement of debt instruments depend on:
i)
ii)

the company's business model for managing the asset; and
the cash flow characteristics of the asset.

Business model assessment involves determining how financial assets are managed in order to
generate cash flows. The company's business model assessment is based on the following
categories:
!
!
!

Held to collect: The objective of the business model is to hold assets and collect contractual
cash flows. Any sales of the asset are incidental to the objective of the model.
Held to collect and for sale: Both collecting contractual cash flows and sales are integral to
achieving the objectives of the business model.
Other business model: The business model is neither held-to-collect nor held-to-collect and for
sale.
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Island Investment Development Inc.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
March 31, 2020
The company assesses the business model at a portfolio level reflective of how groups of assets are
managed together to achieve a particular business objective. For the assessment of a business
model, the company takes into consideration the following factors:
!

!
!

Whether the assets are held for trading purposes (ie. assets that the company acquires or incurs
principally for the purpose of selling or repurchasing in the near term, or holds as part of a
portfolio that is managed together for short-term profit or position taking;
The risks that affect the performance of assets held within a business model and how those
risks are managed; and
The revenue of prior periods and expectations about future revenue activity.

The contractual cash flow characteristics assessment involves assessing the contractual features of
an instrument to determine if they give rise to cash flows that are consistent with a basic lending
arrangement. Contractual cash flows are consistent with a basic lending arrangement if they
represent cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount
outstanding (SPPI).
Principal is defined as the fair value of the instrument at initial recognition. Principal may change
over the life of the instrument due to repayments or amortization of premium/discount.
Interest is defined as the consideration for the time value of money and the credit risk associated
with the principal amount outstanding and for other basic lending risks and costs (liquidity risk and
administrative costs), and a profit margin.
If the company identifies any contractual features that could significantly modify the cash flows of
the instrument such that they are no longer consistent with a basic lending arrangement, the related
financial asset is classified and measured at FVTPL.
Based on these factors, the company classifies its debt instruments into one of the following three
measurement categories:
Amortized cost
Assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows where those cash flows represent solely
payments of principal and interest ("SPPI"), and that are not designated at FVTPL, are measured at
amortized cost. The carrying amount of these assets is adjusted by any expected credit loss
allowance recognized and measured in note 10. Interest income form these financial assets is
included in 'Interest on notes and loans receivable' using the effective interest rate method.

(9)

38%/,&$&&2817692/80(,,,



Island Investment Development Inc.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
March 31, 2020
Fair value through profit or loss
Assets that do not meet the criteria for amortized cost or FVOCI are measured at fair value through
profit or loss. A gain or loss on a debt investment that is subsequently measured at fair value
through profit or loss and is not part of a hedging relationship is recognized in profit or loss and
presented in the profit or loss statement within "Investment income" in the period in which it arises,
unless it arises from debt instruments that were designated at fair value or which are not held for
trading, in which case they are presented separately in "Investment income". Interest income from
these financial assets is included in "Investment income" using the effective interest method.
Fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI)
Financial assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows and for selling the assets,
where the assets' cash flows represent solely payments of principal and interest, and that are not
designated at FVTPL, are measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI).
Movements in the carrying amount are taken through other comprehensive income (OCI), expect for
the recognition of impairment gains or losses, interest revenue and foreign exchange gains and
losses on the instrument's amortized cost which are recognized in profit or loss. When the financial
asset is derecognized, the cumulative gain or loss previously recognized in OCI is reclassified form
equity to profit or loss and recognized in "Investment income". Interest income from these financial
assets is included in "Investment income" using the effective interest rate method.
Equity instruments
The company subsequently measures all equity investments at FVTPL, except where the company's
management has elected, at initial recognition, to irrevocably designate an equity investment at
FVOCI. When this election is used, fair value gains and losses are recognized in other
comprehensive income and are not subsequently reclassified to profit or loss, including on disposal.
Impairment losses and reversals of impairment losses are not reported separately from other
changes in fair value. Dividends, when representing a return on such investments, continue to be
recognized in profit or loss as other income when the company's right to receive payments is
established.
Gains and losses on equity investments at FVTPL are included in "Investment income" in the
statement of comprehensive income.
ii)

Classification and measurement of financial liabilities
Financial liabilities are classified into one of the following measurement categories:
!
!
!

Amortized cost;
Fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL);
Designated at FVTPL.
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Island Investment Development Inc.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
March 31, 2020
Financial liabilities measured at amortized cost
Notes payable and restricted funds are accounted for at amortized cost. Interest on notes payable,
calculated using the effective interest rate method, is recognized as interest expense.
Financial liabilities measured at FVTPL
Financial liabilities measured at FVTPL are held principally for the purpose of repurchasing in the
near term, or form a part of a portfolio of identified financial instruments that are managed together
and for which there is evidence of a recent actual pattern of short-term profit-making. Financial
liabilities are recognized on a trade date and are accounted for at fair value, with changes in fair
value and any gains or losses recognized in the Statement of Comprehensive Income as part of the
non-interest income. Transaction costs are expensed as incurred.
Financial liabilities designated at FVTPL
Financial liabilities classified in this category are those that have been designated by the company
upon initial recognition, and once designated, the designation is irrevocable. The FVTPL
designation is only available for those financial liabilities for which a reliable estimate of fair value
can be obtained.
Financial liabilities are designated at FVTPL when one of the following criteria is met:
!
!
!

The designation eliminates or significantly reduces an accounting mismatch which would
otherwise arise; or
A group of financial liabilities are managed and their performance is evaluated on a fair value
basis, in accordance with a documented risk management strategy; or
The financial liability contains one or more embedded derivatives which significantly modify
the cash flows otherwise required.

Financial liabilities designated at FVTPL are recorded in the Statement of Financial Position at fair
value and any changes in fair value are recognized in the Statement of Comprehensive Income.

(11)
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Island Investment Development Inc.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
March 31, 2020
iii) Determination of fair value
Fair value of a financial asset or liability is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid
to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants in the principal, or in its
absence, the most advantageous market to which the company has access at the measurement date.
The company measures instruments carried at fair value under the following fair value hierarchy.
The different levels have been defined as follows:
!
!
!

Level 1 - quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities;
Level 2 - inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the
asset or liability, either directly (ie. as prices) or indirectly (ie. derived from prices); and
Level 3 - inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data
(unobservable inputs).

Determination of fair value and the resulting hierarchy requires the use of observable market data
whenever available. The classification in the hierarchy is based upon the lowest level of input that
is significant to the measurement of fair value.
iv) Derecognition of financial assets and liabilities
The derecognition criteria are applied to the transfer of part of an asset rather than the asset as a
whole, only if such part comprises specifically identified cash flows from the asset, a fully
proportionate share of the cash flows from the asset, or a fully proportionate share of specifically
identified cash flows from the asset.
A financial asset is derecognized when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset has
expired or the company transfers the contractual rights to receive the cash flows from the financial
asset; or has assumed an obligation to pay those cash flows to an independent third-party, or the
company has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of that asset to an
independent third-party. Management determines whether substantially all the risk and rewards of
ownership have been transferred by quantitatively comparing the variability in cash flows before
and after the transfer. If the variability in cash flows remains significantly similar subsequent to the
transfer, the company has retained substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership.
Where substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset are neither retained
nor transferred, the company derecognizes the transferred asset only if it has lost control over the
asset. Control over the asset is represented by the practical ability to sell the transferred asset. If the
company retains control over the asset, it will continue to recognize the asset to the extent of its
continuing involvement.
On derecognition of a financial asset, the difference between the carrying amount and the sum of (i)
the consideration received and (ii) any cumulative gain or loss that had been recognized in other
comprehensive income is recognized in the Statement of Comprehensive Income.
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Island Investment Development Inc.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
March 31, 2020
A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the liability is discharged, cancelled
or expires. If an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same counterparty on
substantially different terms or the terms of the existing liability are substantially modified, such an
exchange or modification is treated as a derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of
a new liability at fair value. The difference in the respective carrying amount of the existing liability
and the new liability is recognized as a gain/loss in the Statement of Comprehensive Income.
v)

Impairment
The company applied a three-stage approach to measure allowance for credit losses, using an
expected credit loss approach as required under IFRS 9 for the financial assets measured at
amortized cost.
The expected credit loss impairment model reflects the present value of all cash shortfalls related to
default events either (i) over the following twelve months or (ii) over the expected life of a financial
instrument.
The impairment model measures credit loss allowances using a three-stage approach based on the
extent of credit deterioration since origination:
!

!

!

Stage 1 – where there has not been a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition
of a financial instrument, an amount equal to 12 months expected credit loss is recorded. The
expected credit loss is computed using a probability of default occurring over the next 12
months. For those instruments with a remaining maturity of less than 12 months, a probability
of default corresponding to remaining term to maturity is used.
Stage 2 – when a financial instrument experiences a credit risk subsequent to origination but is
not considered to be in default, it is included in Stage 2. This requires the computation of
expected credit loss based on the probability of default over the remaining estimated life of the
financial instrument.
Stage 3 – financial instruments that are considered to be in default are included in this stage.
Similar to Stage 2, the allowance for credit losses captures the lifetime expected credit losses.

The probability of default (PD), exposure at default (EAD) and loss given default (LGD) inputs used
to estimate expected credit losses are modelled based on macroeconomic variables that are most
closely related with credit losses in the relevant portfolio.
Details of these statistical inputs are as follows:
!
!

PD – the probability of default is an estimate of the likelihood of default over a given time
horizon. A default may only happen at a certain time over the remaining estimated life.
EAD – the exposure at default is an estimate of the exposure at a future default date, taking into
account expected changes in the exposure after the reporting date, including repayments of
principal and interest, whether scheduled by contract or otherwise, expected drawdowns on
committed facilities and accrued interest from missed payments.
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Island Investment Development Inc.
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March 31, 2020
!

LGD – the loss given default is an estimate of the loss arising in the case where a default occurs
at a given time. It is based on the difference between the contractual cash flows due and those
that the lender would expect to receive, including from the realization of any collateral. It is
usually expressed as a percentage of the EAD.

At each reporting date, the company assesses whether there has been a significant increase in credit
risk for exposures since initial recognition by comparing the risk of default occurring over the
remaining expected life from the reporting date and the date of initial recognition. The assessment
considers borrower-specific quantitative and qualitative information without consideration of
collateral and the impact of forward-looking macroeconomic factors. Common assessments for
credit risk include management judgment, delinquency and monitoring.
When measuring expected credit loss, the company considers the maximum contractual period over
which the company is exposed to credit risk. All contractual terms are considered when determining
the expected life, including prepayment and extension and rollover options.
The company considers a financial instrument to be in default as a result of one or more loss events
that occurred after the date of initial recognition of the instrument and the loss event has a negative
impact on the estimated future cash flows of the instrument that can be reliably estimated. This
includes events that indicate:
!
!
!
!

Significant financial difficulty of the borrower;
Default or delinquency in interest or principal payments;
High probability of the borrower entering a phase of bankruptcy or a financial recognition;
Measurable decrease in the estimated future cash flows from the loan or the underlying assets
that back the loan.

The company considers that default has occurred and classifies the financial asset as impaired when
it is more than 90 days past due.
The company writes off an impaired financial asset, either partially or fully, when there is no realistic
prospect of recovery. Where financial assets are secured, write-off is generally after receipt of any
proceeds from the realization of security. In circumstances where the net realizable value of any
collateral has been determine and there is no reasonable expectation of further recover, write-off may be
earlier.
(b) Cash
Cash consists of cash held in banks and cash on hand. Bank indebtedness is considered to be a
financing instrument.
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Island Investment Development Inc.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
March 31, 2020
(c) Inventory
Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and net realizable value. Costs are assigned using the
specific item formula for food inventory. Costs include all expenses directly attributable to the
purchase and delivery of the product to the Company's location. Oil inventory is valued at the lower
of cost and net realizable value and is recorded at invoice cost on a first-in, first-out basis. Net
realizable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less any applicable
selling expenses.
(d) Deferred financing costs
The costs incurred in obtaining financing have been capitalized and are being amortized using the
straight-line basis over the term of the notes payable, which is sixty months.
(e) Borrowing costs
Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition or construction of a qualifying assets are
added to the cost of the assets until they are substantially ready for their intended use. Other
borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they are incurred.
(f) Property and equipment
Property and equipment are recorded at the fair value on the transition date of April 1, 2015 to IFRS
for Slemon Park Corporation, a subsidiary, as deemed cost, with additions since that time measured
at historic cost. Subsequent to initial recognition, property and equipment is recorded at cost less
accumulated amortization and accumulated impairment losses. The company allocates the amount
recognized in respect of each item in property and equipment to its significant components and
amortizes each component separately.
Amortization is recognized so as to write-off the cost less residual values over the useful lives of the
assets. The estimated useful lives, residual values and amortization method are reviewed at each
year-end with the effect of any changes in estimates accounted for on a prospective basis.
Amortization rates are as follows:
Water and sewer infrastructure
Runways and taxiways
Roads and parking areas
Buildings
Heavy equipment
Furniture and equipment
Motor vehicles
Computer equipment and software

2% - 4%
8%
8%
4% - 20%
20%
20%
30%
30%

declining balance
declining balance
declining balance
declining balance
declining balance
declining balance
declining balance
declining balance

As asset's carrying value is written down immediately to its recoverable amount if the asset's
carrying amount is higher than its estimated recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the
higher of the asset's fair value less costs to sell and the value in use. No property and equipment
were identified as impaired as at March 31, 2020.
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(g) Investment properties
Investment properties include land and buildings, roads and paving held to earn rental income.
Investment properties are recorded at the fair value on the transition date of April 1, 2015 to IFRS of
Slemon Park Corporation, a subsidiary, as deemed cost, with additions since that time measured at
historic cost. Subsequent to its initial recognition, investment properties are recorded at cost less
accumulated amortization and accumulated impairment losses. The company allocates the amount
recognized in respect of each item in investment properties to its significant components and
amortizes each component separately.
Amortization is recognized so as to write-off the cost less residual values over the useful lives of the
assets. The estimated useful lives, residual values and amortization method are reviewed at each
year-end with the effect of any changes in estimates accounted for on a prospective basis.
Amortization rates are as follows:
Building
Building - roof/shingles
Building - equipment
Building - painting
Building - tenant improvements based on lease term 1 - 5 years
Building - tenant improvements based on lease term 6 - 15
years

4%
6%
8%
10%

declining balance
declining balance
declining balance
declining balance

20% declining balance
10% declining balance

Investment properties are derecognized when it has been disposed of or permanently withdrawn
from use and no future economic benefit is expected from its disposal. Any gains or losses on
retirement or disposal of investment properties are recognized in the income statement in the year of
retirement or disposal.
(h) Capitalization policy - property and equipment and investment properties
Acquisition, construction or development over time:
The cost of constructing a capital asset includes direct construction or development costs (such as
materials and labour) and overhead costs directly attributable to the construction or development
activity.
The cost of capital assets includes the purchase price and other acquisition costs such as installation
costs including architectural, design and engineering fees, legal fees, survey costs, site preparation
costs, freight charges, transportation insurance costs, duties, testing and preparation charges.
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Betterment:
The cost incurred to enhance the service potential of a capital asset is a betterment. Service
potential may be enhanced when there is an increase in the previously assessed physical output or
service capacity, associated operating costs are lowered, the life or useful life is extended, or the
quality of output is improved. The cost incurred in the maintenance of the service potential of a
capital asset is a repair, not a betterment. If a cost has the attributes of both a repair and a
betterment, the portion considered to be a betterment is included in the cost of the capital asset.
Government assistance:
Government assistance towards acquisition of capital assets is deducted from the related capital
assets with any amortization calculated on the net amount.
Buildings and renovations:
All expenditures that provide future benefit beyond the annual operating period and which are an
integral component of the building are classified as an addition to the building.
(i)

Impairment of long-lived assets
For impairment assessment purposes, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are
largely independent cash inflows (cash generating units). As a result, some assets are tested
individually for impairment and some are tested at cash generating unit level. The company tests
long-lived assets for impairment on an annual basis or whenever events or changes in circumstances
indicate that its carrying amount of the asset is not recoverable. An impairment loss is recognized
when the carrying amount of the asset is not recoverable and exceeds its fair value. The impairment
loss is measured as the amount by which the carrying amount of the long-lived asset exceeds its
recoverable amount. The carrying amount of a long-lived asset is not recoverable if the carrying
amount exceeds the higher of fair value less costs to disposal and value-in-use. To determine the
value-in-use, management estimates expected future cash flows from each cash-generating unit and
determines a suitable discount rate in order to calculate the present value of those cash flows.

(j) Revenue recognition
Interest on notes and loans receivable is recognized as revenue in the period earned.
Investment income is recorded in the period earned.
Provincial Nominee Program fees are recorded as revenue when earned.
Provincial Nominee Program defaults are recorded as revenue in the year in which the deposit
period ends and the applicant does not meet the conditions for repayment.
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Property operations revenue is recognized when all the following criteria have been met: transfer to
the buyer of significant risks and rewards of ownership; the company does not retain any continuing
managerial involvement; the revenue amount can be reliably measured; it is probably that the
economic benefits will flow to the company; and costs incurred can be reliably measured.
Accommodation, food and beverage, sports centre, retail and airport operation revenues, included in
property operations, are measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable less
any trade discounts or volume rebates. Revenues are recognized when the goods or services have
been provided to the customer, it is probable that the associated economic benefit will flow to the
company and the amount of revenue can be reliably measured.
Revenue from commercial and residential rental operations, included in property operations, is
recognized straight-line over the terms of the leases when collection is reasonably assured. The
difference between the rental revenue recognized and the amounts contractually due under the lease
agreements is recorded in trade receivables. The company retains substantially all of the benefits
and risks of ownership of its income properties and, therefore, accounts for its leases with tenants as
operating leases. Realty tax and operating cost recoveries, and other incidental income are
recognized on an accrual basis.
Miscellaneous revenue is recognized in the period in which the transaction or events that give rise to
the revenue occur and collection is reasonably assured.
(k) Government assistance and other grants
The Governments of Canada and Prince Edward Island have made grants to fund renovations to
existing facilities of Slemon Park Corporation. Grants are not recognized until there is reasonable
assurance that the entity will comply with the conditions attaching to the grant, and that the grant
will be received. These funds, along with other grants received, are credited to the operating
expenses or capital assets to which they relate. During the year, $156,057 (2019 - $3,544,234) in
grants were received or receivable related to capital projects and credited to investment properties
property and equipment.
(l)

Provisions
Provisions are recorded when a present legal or constructive obligation exists as a result of past
events where it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be
required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate of the amount of the obligation can be made.
The amount recognized as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration required to settle the
present obligation at the statement of financial position date, taking into account the risks and
uncertainties surrounding the obligation. Where a provision is measured using the cash flows
estimated to settle the present obligation, its carrying amount is the present value of those cash
flows.
A provision for onerous contracts is recognized when the expected benefits to be derived by the
company from a contract are lower than the unavoidable costs of meeting its obligations under the
contract. No provisions meeting the criteria for recognition exist for the periods presented.
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4

Agent agreement
Prince Edward Island Century 2000 Fund Inc.
The Federal Minister of Citizenship and Immigration acts as an Agent for the company and Crown
corporations of other participating provinces by receiving investments from immigrant investors and
disbursing them to the provincial Crown corporations in accordance with the allocation formula set out in the
federal Immigration Regulations, 1978. All monies received by the Agent pursuant to the issuance of debt
obligations are held by the Agent in a separate account from the moment such monies are received, on behalf
of the company and the provincial designates. Investments are subject to a commission agreement whereby a
5% commission is paid to the party that facilitates an investment. These commissions are paid out of the
special account by the Agent on the first day of the second month following the issuance of a visa to the
investor to the party that made the facilitated investment, and are recorded as deferred financing charges by
the company.
The Agent disburses the provincial allocation, less applicable commissions, to the company at the beginning
of the five-year allocation period. The Agent issues a promissory note to the investor on behalf of the
company. The company is obligated to repay the note, bearing interest at 0%, within 30 days after the expiry
of the allocation period.
The company is required to repay the investor, through the Agent, the investor's promissory note within 90
days of receipt by the Agent of a request by the investor to withdraw his/her application for permanent
residence, or upon the refusal of the application by the Minister.
In the 2014 Federal Government Budget, it was disclosed that Citizenship Immigration Canada (CIC) would
be terminating the Federal Immigrant Investor Programs during the 2014 calendar year. Subsequently, CIC
has communicated to all provinces that there will be no accelerated repayment schedule for funds received
through the Immigrant Investor Program.

5

Critical accounting estimates and judgments
The company makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future that will, by definition, seldom equal
actual results. These estimates and judgments have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the period the assumptions change. The principal areas involving
a higher degree of judgment or complexity and/or area which require significant estimates is described below:
(a) Allowance for credit losses
The expected credit loss model requires the recognition of credit losses based on up to 12 months of
expected losses for performing loans and the recognition of lifetime losses on performing loans that have
experienced a significant credit risk since origination.
The determination of a significant increase in credit risk takes into account many different factors since
origination, and certain other criteria, such as delinquencies. The assessment of a significant increase in
credit risk requires experienced credit judgment.
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In determining whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk and in calculating the amount
of expected credit losses, we must rely on estimates and exercise judgment regarding matters for which
the ultimate outcome is unknown. These judgments include changes in circumstances that may cause
future assessments of credit risk to be materially different from current assessments, which could require
an increase or decrease in the allowance for credit losses.
(b) Fair value of financial instruments
Fair value measurement techniques are used to value various financial assets and financial liabilities and
are used in impairment testing on certain non-financial assets.
The fair values of the company's financial instruments were estimated using the valuation methods and
assumptions described below. Since many of the company’s financial instruments lack an available
trading market, the fair values represent estimates of the current market value of instruments, taking into
account changes in interest rates that have occurred since their origination. Due to the use of subjective
assumptions and uncertainties, the fair value amounts should not be interpreted as being realizable in an
immediate settlement of the instruments.
Fair values of floating loans and deposits approximate book value as the interest rates on these
instruments automatically re-price to market and the spread remains appropriate. Fixed rate loans are
valued by discounting the contractual future cash flows at current market rates for loans with similar
credit risks. Fixed rate deposits are valued by discounting the contractual future cash flows using market
rates currently being offered for deposits with similar terms. A credit valuation adjustment is applied to
the calculated fair value of uninsured deposits to account for the company’s own risk.
The fair value for the company’s investments as detailed in note 11 is determined as follows:
!

Atlantic Canada Regional Venture Fund LP and Island Capital Partners Seed Investment Fund LP
do not trade in a public market. Fair value is determined by using Level 3 indicators.

(c) Estimated useful lives of investment properties and property and equipment
Management estimates the useful lives of investment properties and property and equipment based on the
period during which assets are expected to be available for use. The amounts and timing of recorded
amortization expense of investment properties and property and equipment for any period are affected by
these estimated useful lives. The estimates are reviewed at least annually and are updated if expectations
change as a result of physical wear and tear, legal and other limits to use. It is possible that changes in
these factors may cause changes in the estimated useful lives of the company's investment properties and
property and equipment in the future.
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(d) Investment properties fair value
The fair market value of investment properties is disclosed on an annual basis as of the statement of
financial position date. This fair value information is also used to identify potential impairment losses as
of the statement of financial position date. The valuations are prepared using recognized valuation
techniques and the principles of IFRS 13, Fair Value Measurement. The determination of the fair value
requires the use of estimates and judgments on future cash flows from assets, discount rates applicable to
those assets due to their nature and location, the unit of account, and assumptions with respect to highest
and best use. These estimates are based on local market conditions existing at the statement of financial
position date, including the impact of recent market transactions. The valuation techniques and
significant unobservable inputs used in determining the fair value of investment properties are set out in
note 8.
(e) Investment properties and property and equipment
The company's accounting policies related to investment properties and property and equipment are
described in note 3. In applying these policies, judgment is applied to determine the significant
components of each asset, including the useful lives over which componentized assets are to be
amortized. Judgment is also required in determining what assets are classified as property, plant and
equipment and what assets are classified as investment property.
(f)

COVID-19
Since January 31, 2020, the outbreak of COVID-19 (coronavirus), has resulted in governments
worldwide enacting emergency measures to combat the spread of the virus. These measures have caused
material disruption to businesses globally resulting in an economic slowdown, and global equity markets
have experienced significant volatility and weakness. The duration and impact of the COVID-19
outbreak is unknown at this time, as is the outcome of government and central bank interventions.
The company has determined that these events have not had a material impact on the carrying value of
assets and liabilities reported in these financial statements as at March 31, 2020. The duration and
impact of the COVID-19 pandemic remains unclear at this time. Therefore, it is not possible to reliably
estimate the duration and severity of these consequences, as well as their impact on the financial position
and results of the company for future periods.

(21)
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6

Financial instruments
Fair values versus carrying amounts
The fair values of financial assets and liabilities, together with the carrying amounts shown in the statement of
financial position, are as follows:
March 31, 2020
Fair
level
hierarchy
Financial assets
Cash
Marketable securities
Accounts receivable
Demand loan
receivable
Notes receivable
Advance to related
company
Investments in private
companies
Restricted funds

Fair
value
$

Carrying
amount
$

Fair
value
$

Level 1
Level 1
Level 2

18,704,173
5,562,756
6,985,131

18,704,173
5,562,756
6,985,131

19,115,551
8,254,707
2,422,072

19,115,551
8,254,707
2,422,072

Level 2
Level 2

7,007,465
144,580,842

7,007,465
144,580,842

7,009,549
139,028,791

7,009,549
139,028,791

Level 2

2,119,298

2,119,298

2,520,284

2,520,284

Level 3
Level 1

4,148,387
121,489,012

4,148,387
121,489,012

3,287,094
173,406,536

3,287,094
173,406,536

310,597,064

310,597,064

355,044,584

355,044,584

2,895,037
7,920,859
121,489,012

2,895,037
7,920,859
121,489,012

3,117,824
22,865,078
173,406,536

3,117,824
22,865,078
173,406,536

132,304,908

132,304,908

199,389,438

199,389,438

2020
$

2019
$

Financial liabilities carried
Accounts payable and accrued
liabilities
Level 2
Long-term debt
Level 2
Restricted funds
Level 2

7

Carrying
amount
$

April 1, 2019

Accounts receivable

Trade
Related party (note 17)
Other
Less: Allowance for doubtful accounts

(22)

1,870,112
6,405,260
243,444
(1,533,685)

1,971,665
1,345,257
347,255
(1,242,105)

6,985,131

2,422,072



38%/,&$&&2817692/80(,,,

Island Investment Development Inc.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
March 31, 2020

8

Investment properties
The fair market value of investment properties as of March 31, 2020 is $18,603,638 (2019 $13,942,683). The Investment properties have been valued using a capitalized net operating income method
and a market approach. Under this method, capitalization rates are applied to net operating income (revenues
less property operating expenses). The key assumption is the capitalization rate of 10% to 14 % (2019 - 10%
to 14%). The rate was further calibrated by applying a discount to reflect a recent orderly transaction
occurring at arm's length under current market conditions. This discount is to reflect the nature of these
specialized assets and their location.
This valuation process is classified as Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy and represents the estimated price
that would be received to sell the asset in an orderly transaction between market participants at the
measurement dates. The fair value is based on each asset group's current use as a revenue generating
investment property. The current use is considered to be the highest and best use. The company utilized
capitalization and discount rates based on recent market transactions and past appraisals. To the extent that
rates change from one reporting period to the next,or should another rate be more appropriate than the rate
previously used, the fair value of the investment properties would increase or decrease accordingly.
Land
$

Buildings, roads
and paving
$

Total
$

Cost
Balance - March 31, 2019
Additions
Grants received

1,471,505
107,347
-

11,662,233
1,929,562
(147,528)

13,133,738
2,036,909
(147,528)

Balance - March 31, 2020

1,578,852

13,444,267

15,023,119

Accumulated amortization
Balance - March 31, 2019
Amortization expense

(2,290)
(8,691)

(1,512,287)
(583,503)

(1,514,577)
(592,194)

Balance - March 31, 2020

(10,981)

(2,095,790)

(2,106,771)

Net carrying value
March 31, 2019

1,469,215

10,149,946

11,619,161

March 31, 2020

1,567,871

11,348,477

12,916,348

(23)
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The future minimum lease payments to be received under non-cancelable operating leases in aggregate for
each of the following periods:

$
Under 1 year
2 to 5 years
Over 5 years

2,389,093
6,258,987
7,393,273

Total
9

16,041,353

Demand loan receivable

Demand note receivable from Finance PEI
Accrued interest receivable

2020
$

2019
$

6,998,482
8,983

6,998,482
11,067

7,007,465

7,009,549

The company entered into an agreement with Finance PEI, a provincial Crown corporation, to provide a
$15,000,000 revolving line of credit.
Interest is charged monthly at a rate equal to the Department of Provincial Treasury of Prince Edward Island's
short-term lending rate and the total amount is repayable on demand.
The demand loan is secured by a promissory note for $15,000,000 and a revolving credit agreement.

(24)
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10 Notes receivable
(a) Loans at amortized cost
Gross
loans
$
Manufacturing and
processing 53,987,632
general
Manufacturing and
processing - steel 7,416,529
Information and
communication
211,585
technology
Aerospace
2,435,505
Tourism
26,653,323
General business
74,646,602
Agriculture
1,757,889
Fisheries/aquaculture 2,143,635
Residential
374,615
Bioscience
10,657,269
180,284,584

Allowance for
credit losses
$

2020
Net carrying
amount
$

Gross
loans
$

2019
Allowance for Net carrying
credit losses
amount
$
$

13,140,488

40,847,144

48,693,753

10,048,679

38,645,074

-

7,416,529

7,226,971

-

7,226,971

205,914
2,434,896
2,113,329
14,510,041
2,141,581
1,157,493

5,671
609
24,539,994
60,136,561
1,757,889
2,054
374,615
9,499,776

201,589
2,494,287
29,635,167
74,106,473
1,757,911
2,064,310
6,104,446

157,554
2,493,664
3,657,498
14,158,174
978,357
1,762,190

44,035
623
25,977,669
59,948,299
1,757,911
1,085,953
4,342,256

35,703,742

144,580,842

172,284,907

33,256,116

139,028,791

(b) Impaired loans
2020
Gross
impaired
loans
$
Manufacturing
and processing
13,265,019
- general
Manufacturing and
696,730
processing - steel
Information and
communication
technology
211,585
Aerospace
2,435,505
Tourism
15,506,915
General business
35,672,986
Agriculture
1,757,889
Fisheries/aquaculture 2,143,635
Bioscience
1,414,947
73,105,211

2019

Allowance for
credit losses
$

Net carrying
amount
$

Gross
impaired
loans
$

12,711,251

553,768

13,558,732

9,976,813

3,581,919

-

696,730

7,226,971

-

7,226,971

205,914
2,434,896
1,988,316
14,082,587
2,141,581
945,645

5,671
609
13,518,599
21,590,399
1,757,889
2,054
469,302

201,589
2,494,287
17,954,081
35,070,541
2,064,310
3,217,193

157,554
2,493,664
3,656,591
13,948,910
978,358
1,762,190

44,035
623
14,297,490
21,121,631
1,085,952
1,455,003

34,510,190

38,595,021

81,787,704

32,974,080

48,813,624

(25)

Allowance for Net carrying
credit losses
amount
$
$
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(c) Allowance for credit losses
2020
Balance
as at
April 1,
2019
$

Provision
for
credit
losses
$

Net
write-offs
$

Net
$

Manufacturing and processing
10,048,679
- general
Information and communication
technology
157,554
Aerospace
2,493,664
Tourism
3,657,497
General business
14,158,175
Fisheries/aquaculture
978,357
Bioscience
1,762,190

3,091,810

-

13,140,489

48,360
(58,767)
(1,544,169)
351,866
1,163,223
(604,697)

-

205,914
2,434,897
2,113,328
14,510,041
2,141,580
1,157,493

33,256,116

2,447,626

-

35,703,742

Balance
as at
April 1,
2018
$

Provision
for
credit
losses
$

Net
write-offs
$

Net
$

2019

Manufacturing and processing
8,553,806
- general
Information and communication
technology
Aerospace
828,377
Tourism
1,029,243
General business
15,533,630
Fisheries/aquaculture
412,088
Bioscience
900,000

1,494,873

-

10,048,679

157,554
1,665,287
2,628,254
(1,375,455)
566,269
862,190

-

157,554
2,493,664
3,657,497
14,158,175
978,357
1,762,190

27,257,144

5,998,972

-

33,256,116
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As at March 31, 2020
Manufacturing and processing
- general
Information and communication
technology
Aerospace
Tourism
General business
Fisheries/aquaculture
Bioscience

As at March 31, 2019
Manufacturing and processing
- general
Information and communication
technology
Aerospace
Tourism
General business
Fisheries/aquaculture
Bioscience

Stage 1
$

Stage 2
$

Stage 3
$

Total
$

429,237

1,650,007

11,061,244

13,140,488

125,013
427,454
211,848

2,434,896
429,710
13,823,586
2,051,730
-

205,914
1,558,606
259,001
89,851
945,645

205,914
2,434,896
2,113,329
14,510,041
2,141,581
1,157,493

1,193,552

20,389,929

14,120,261

35,703,742

Stage 1
$

Stage 2
$

Stage 3
$

Total
$

71,865

575,025

9,401,788

10,048,678

906
209,265
-

2,493,664
3,051,319
13,214,432
888,507
1,762,190

157,554
605,272
734,478
89,851
-

157,554
2,493,664
3,657,497
14,158,175
978,358
1,762,190

282,036

21,985,137

10,988,943

33,256,116

Loans past due but not impaired
31 - 90 days
Manufacturing and
processing - general

-

91+ days
$

2020
Total
$

31 - 90 days
$

91+ days
$

2019
Total
$

2,724,119

2,724,119

-

2,884,828

2,884,828

Related party notes:
Included in manufacturing and processing are unsecured notes receivable due from Finance PEI of $3,703,648
(2019 - $3,762,085).
Included in notes receivable is accrued interest of $739,177 (2019 - $739,797) from Finance PEI.

(27)
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11 Investment in private companies
2020
$
Investment in private companies:
Atlantic Canada Regional Venture Fund LP
Island Capital Partners Seed Investment Fund

2019
$

2,148,387
2,000,000

1,887,094
1,400,000

4,148,387

3,287,094

12 Deferred financing costs

Accumulated
amortization
$

Cost
$
Commissions

853,233

776,133

2020

2019

Net
$

Net
$

77,100

137,269

13 Restricted funds
Restricted funds held in trust consist of the following amounts held under the Provincial Nominee Program:
2020
$
Good Faith deposits
Language deposits
Escrow deposits - business impact category
Intermediary deposits

2019
$

104,073
21,665
120,663,274
700,000

104,073
21,665
172,580,798
700,000

121,489,012

173,406,536

The company has internally restricted cash and marketable securities to meet or exceed the restricted funds
payable.
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14 Accounts payable and accrued liabilities
2020
$
Trade payables and accruals
Government remittances
Related entities
Other

2019
$

1,674,833
75,866
405,535
738,803

2,479,109
38,456
240,122
360,137

2,895,037

3,117,824

15 Long-term debt
2020
$
Prince Edward Island Century 2000 Fund Inc.
Non-interest bearing notes payable, nominally dated with
commencement dates ranging from April 1, 2015 to
April 1, 2019, repayable in full in five years from the
commencement date pursuant to the federally
administered Immigrant Investor Program
Island Investment Development Inc.
1.61% term loan, due August 2023, to the Province of Prince
Edward Island, payable in quarterly payments of
$155,574 including interest, unsecured
2.46% term loan, due November 2022, to the Province of
Prince Edward Island, payable in quarterly payments
of $47,962 including interest, unsecured
Slemon Park Corporation
Non-interest bearing loan, payments of $6,250, commenced on
September 1, 2019 for 120 consecutive months
Non-interest bearing loan, payments of $4,100, commencing on July
1, 2020, followed by payments of $4,275 for all remaining periods

2019
$

2,032,751

16,483,081

4,173,233

4,663,348

508,625

685,238

706,250

675,000

500,000

358,411

7,920,859

22,865,078

Prince Edward Island Century 2000 Fund Inc.
All notes payable are pursuant to the Immigrant Investor Regulations.
The Province of Prince Edward has provided a guarantee of the notes payable to the Minister of Citizenship
and Immigration (Agent) in the event of the failure of Prince Edward Island Century 2000 Fund Inc. to repay
the notes payable to the Agent within 30 days following the end of the allocation period.
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Slemon Park Corporation
As additional security for certain long-term debt and an authorized operating line of credit of $900,000,
Slemon Park Corporation has provided a location specific general security agreement over all present and
future personal property of certain buildings, a floating charge over inventory and appliances of the residential
units, an assignment of residential rents, an assignment of specific commercial rents, a first fixed charge
mortgage with cash value insurance coverage over the residential units, a collateral mortgage over certain
properties and a general assignment of book debts.
The principal payments due on the long-term debt over the next five years are as follows:
$
Year ending March 31, 2021
2022
2023
2024
2025

2,229,266
1,191,373
1,003,654
2,739,716
169,100

16 Revenue from contracts with customers
The company has recognized the following amounts related to revenue in accordance with IFRS 15 on the
statement of comprehensive income:

Accommodations
Food and beverage
Airport
Retail

2020
$

2019
$

1,503,789
1,906,831
513,008
300,488

1,030,896
1,164,190
657,454
284,378

4,224,116

3,136,918

The company has recognized the following amounts related to revenue in accordance with IAS 17 on the
statement of income and comprehensive income:

Commercial rent
Residential rent

(30)

2020
$

2019
$

4,043,533
3,038,340

3,362,005
2,485,423

7,081,873

5,847,428

11,305,989

8,984,346
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The revenue from contracts with customers is included in property operations on the Consolidated Statement
of Comprehensive Income.
The above revenues recognized in accordance with IFRS 15 were derived from hotel, restaurant, airport and
retail sites which are located at Slemon Park, Prince Edward Island. The company has not recognized any
additional contract assets or liabilities associated with this revenue.

17 Related party transactions
Related parties
Finance PEI, Innovation PEI and Tourism PEI are Crown corporations of the Province of Prince Edward
Island.
Related party balances
Included in accounts receivable is $5,818,648 (2019 - $1,1156,172) from Finance PEI.
Included in accounts payable and accrued liabilities is $86,349 (2019 - $86,304) to Innovation P.E.I.
Advances to related company:
2020
$
Finance PEI

2,119,298

2019
$
2,520,284

Advances to related company are non-interest bearing with no specific terms of repayment.
Transactions
Included in interest on notes and loan receivable is $164,904 (2019 - $160,270) from Finance PEI.
Included in expenses are management fees of $535,326 (2019 - $535,000) and rent of $50,000 (2019 $50,000) to Finance PEI and interest on notes payable of $134,079 (2019 - $136,056) to the Province of
Prince Edward Island.
Included in property operations is revenue of $3,817,436 (2019 - $1,068,085) and purchases of $590,370
(2019 - $617,891) from enterprises controlled by the Province of Prince Edward Island.
Included in capital grants received is $156,065 (2019 - $1,520,000) from the Province of Prince Edward
Island or enterprises controlled by the Province of Prince Edward Island.
These transactions are in the normal course of operations and are measured at the amount of consideration
established and agreed to by the two parties and approximate fair market value.
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Compensation of directors and key management personnel
The remuneration of directors and key management personnel during 2020 and 2019 were as follows:

Salaries

2020
$

2019
$

636,588

615,693

Key management personnel consist of the executive director, directors and manager needed to administer the
programs in Island Investment Development Inc. Certain members of key management are employed under
Innovation PEI and the portion of their salary which pertains to the work performed for Island Investment
Development Inc. is reflected in the $535,326 (2019 - $535,000) management fee paid to Finance PEI.

18 Commitments
Prince Edward Island Century 2000 Fund Inc. loans approved but not disbursed at March 31, 2020 amount to
$14,301,198 (2019 - $6,454,267).
Island Investment Development Inc. has committed to, but not disbursed $2,851,611 (2019 - $3,680,520) in
advances to private companies.

19 Comparative figures
Certain comparative figures presented for the 2019 fiscal year have been restated to conform with the
financial statement presentation adopted in the current year.

20 Financial risk management objectives and policies
Island Investment Development Inc.’s principal business activities result in a statement of financial position
that consists primarily of financial instruments. The principal financial risks that arise from transacting
financial instruments include credit, liquidity, market and operational risk. Authority for all risk-taking
activities rests with the Board of Directors (Board), which approves risk management policies, delegates’
limits and regularly reviews management’s risk assessments and compliance with approved policies.
Qualified professionals throughout Island Investment Development Inc. manage these risks through
comprehensive and integrated control processes and models, including regular review and assessment of risk
measurement and reporting processes.
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(a) Credit risk
Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the company if a customer or counterparty of a financial
instrument fails to meet its contractual obligations. Credit risk arises primarily from the company’s notes
receivable and marketable securities.
The company's maximum exposure to credit risk at the statement of financial position date in relation to
each class of recognized financial assets is the carrying amount of those assets indicated in the statement
of financial position. The maximum credit exposure does not take into account the value of any collateral
or other security held, in the event other entities/parties fail to perform their obligations under the
financial instruments in question.
The company's maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date was:

Cash
Marketable securities
Accounts receivable
Demand loan receivable
Notes receivable
Advances to related companies
Investment in private company
Restricted funds

i)

2020
$

2019
$

18,704,173
5,562,756
6,985,131
7,007,465
144,580,842
2,119,298
4,148,387
121,489,012

19,115,551
8,254,707
2,422,072
7,009,549
139,028,791
2,520,284
3,287,094
173,406,536

310,597,064

355,044,584

Notes receivable
For the notes receivable portfolio, the company uses risk modelling that is customer based rather
than product based. The company reviews the borrowers capacity to repay the loan rather than
relying exclusively on collateral, although it is an important component in establishing credit risk.
Typically, collateral consists of capital assets held by the borrower but can extend to working capital
such as inventory when warranted. Any shortfall in collateral as compared to the carrying value of
the loan is considered when analyzing the loan for the provision that needs to be applied to it.
Credit is approved by staff and the company’s Board of Directors with loans in excess of $1 million
requiring approval by Treasury Board. The company factors the financial strength of each borrower,
the security which is available, their position in industry and past payment history when assessing
all potential loans.

ii)

Cash and marketable securities
Cash and marketable securities have a low credit risk exposure as the assets are high quality
investments with low risk counterparties.

(33)
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(b) Liquidity risk
Liquidity risk is the risk that the company may not be able to meet its financial obligations as they come
due. Specifically, the company needs to ensure it has adequate resources to repay all accounts payable
and accrued liabilities, notes payable and to pay back any deposits under the Provincial Nominee
Program as they come due. The company's approach to manage liquidity risk is to closely monitor its
cash flows and forecast the expected receipts and obligations.
The table below analyzes the company's financial liabilities into relevant groupings based on the
remaining period at the statement of financial position date to the contractual maturity date.
2020
Under 1
year
$
Accounts payable and
accrued liabilities
Long-term debt
Restricted funds

Between
1 - 2 years
$

Between
2 - 5 years
$

Over
5 years
$

2,895,037
2,229,266
121,489,012

1,191,373
-

3,912,470
-

587,750
-

2,895,037
7,920,859
121,489,012

126,613,315

1,191,373

3,912,470

587,750

132,304,908

Total
$

2019
Under 1
year
$
Accounts payable and
accrued liabilities
Long-term debt
Restricted funds

Between
1 - 2 years
$

Between
2 - 5 years
$

Over
5 years
$

3,117,824
15,306,354
173,406,536

2,242,266
-

5,316,458
-

-

3,117,824
22,865,078
173,406,536

191,830,714

2,242,266

5,316,458

-

199,389,438

Total
$

As at March 31, 2020, the company has $145,755,941 (2019 - $200,776,794) in cash and marketable
securities that is readily available to be used to meet the cash outflows of the company's financial
liabilities.
(c) Market risk
Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices, such as interest rates and equity prices will affect
the company’s income or the value of its holdings in financial instruments. The objective of market risk
management is to manage and control market risk exposures within acceptable parameters, while
optimizing the return on risk.
(34)
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(i)

Price risk
The company is exposed to price risk because of the marketable securities held by the company that
are classified as fair value through profit or loss. This company is not exposed to commodity price
risk. To manage its price risk arising from marketable security is the company diversifies its
portfolio.

(ii) Interest rate risk
The following table sets out the assets and liabilities on the earlier of contractual maturity or
repricing date. Use of the table to derive information about the company's interest rate risk position
is limited by the fact that borrowers may choose to terminate their financial instruments at a date
earlier than contractual maturity or repricing date. For example, notes receivable are shown at
contractual maturity but could prepay earlier.
Under
1 year
$
Assets
Cash
Marketable securities
Accounts receivable
Prepaid expenses
Inventory
Demand loan receivable
Effective interest rate
Notes receivable (net of
allowance for losses)
Effective interest rate
Advances to related company
Investment in private
companies
Deferred financing costs
Property and equipment
Investment properties
Restricted funds
Total assets

Over 1 to
5 years
$

18,704,173
5,562,756
6,998,482
1.53%
14,357,007
3.90%
-

114,424,151
4.15%
-

Over
5 years
$
15,799,684
2.43%
-

Not interest
rate sensitive
$

2020
Total
$

6,985,131
44,104
121,272
8,983

18,704,173
5,562,756
6,985,131
44,104
121,272
7,007,465

-

144,580,842

2,119,298

2,119,298

-

-

-

4,148,387
77,100
3,049,115
12,916,348
121,489,012

4,148,387
77,100
3,049,115
12,916,348
121,489,012

45,622,418

114,424,151

15,799,684

150,958,750

326,805,003

2,895,037
-

2,895,037
7,920,859

121,489,012

121,489,012

Liabilities and surplus
Accounts payable and
accrued liabilities
Long-term debt
Effective interest rate
Restricted funds
Effective interest rate
Retained earnings

2,227,866
1.60%
0.94%
-

5,095,443
1.51%
-

-

194,500,095

194,500,095

Total liabilities and retained
earnings

2,227,866

5,095,443

597,550

318,884,144

326,805,003

Interest rate sensitivity gap

43,394,552

109,328,708

15,202,134

(35)

597,550
0.00%

(167,925,394)

-
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Island Investment Development Inc.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
March 31, 2020
Under
1 year
$
Assets
Cash
Marketable securities
Accounts receivable
Prepaid expenses
Inventory
Demand loan receivable
Effective interest rate
Note receivable (net of
allowance for losses)
Effective interest rate
Advances to related company
Investment in private
companies
Deferred financing costs
Property and equipment
Investment properties
Restricted funds

Over 1 to
5 years
$

19,115,551
8,254,707
6,998,482
1.34%

-

21,590,294
4.13%
-

100,141,627
4.33%
-

Over
5 years
$
17,296,870
2.00%
-

Not interest
rate sensitive
$

2019
Total
$

2,422,072
71,723
148,890
11,067

19,115,551
8,254,707
2,422,072
71,723
148,890
7,009,549

-

139,028,791

2,520,284

2,520,284

-

-

-

3,287,094
137,269
2,728,079
11,619,161
173,406,536

3,287,094
137,269
2,728,079
11,619,161
173,406,536

Total assets

55,959,034

100,141,627

17,296,870

196,352,175

369,749,706

Liabilities and surplus
Accounts payable and
accrued liabilities
Long-term debt
Restricted funds
Effective interest rate
Retained earnings

15,306,354
30,738
0.94%
-

7,558,724

-

3,117,824
173,375,798

3,117,824
22,865,078
173,406,536

-

-

170,360,268

170,360,268

-

346,853,890

Total liabilities and retained earnings
Interest rate sensitivity gap

15,337,092

40,621,942

7,558,724
92,582,903

17,296,870

369,749,706

(150,501,715)

-

(d) Operational risk
Operational risk is the risk of direct or indirect loss arising from a wide variety of causes associated with
the company’s processes, personnel, technology and infrastructure, and from external factors other than
credit, market and liquidity risks such as those arising from legal and regulatory requirements and
generally accepted standards of corporate behaviour.
The company’s objective is to manage operational risk so as to balance the avoidance of financial losses
and damage to the company’s reputation with overall cost effectiveness and to avoid control procedures
that restrict initiative and creativity. The primary responsibility for the development and implementation
of controls to address operational risk is assigned to senior management.
(e) Capital management
The primary objective of Island Investment Development Inc.'s capital management is to ensure that it
maintains a healthy financial position in order to support its business. Island Investment Development
Inc. manages its capital structure and makes changes to it in light of changes in economic conditions.
(36)
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Island Investment Development Inc.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
March 31, 2020

(37)

Land
Buildings and improvements
Paving and water and sewer
Furniture and equipment
Motor vehicles
Computer equipment and
software

Land
Buildings and improvements
Paving and water and sewer
Furniture and equipment
Motor vehicles
Computer equipment and
software

Additions
$
121,101
92,571
278,300
127,006
21,784
640,762

Additions
$
51,341
60,525
181,451
63,286
13,052
369,655

Beginning
$

30,043
930,985
1,417,942
1,151,826
163,733

105,897

3,800,426

Beginning
$

30,043
879,644
1,357,417
994,609
100,447
92,845

3,455,005

For the year ended March 31, 2020

Schedule of Property and Equipment

Island Investment Development Inc.

(24,234)

-

(24,234)
-

Grants
Received
$

Cost 2019

(8,529)

-

(8,529)
-

Grants
Received
$

Cost 2020

3,800,426

105,897

30,043
930,985
1,417,942
1,151,826
163,733

Ending
$

4,432,659

127,681

30,043
1,052,086
1,501,984
1,430,126
290,739

Ending
$

799,611

61,859

177,075
100,594
421,742
38,341

Beginning
$

1,072,347

73,111

208,140
188,308
540,626
62,162

Beginning
$

1,383,544

86,215

243,246
272,983
679,863
101,237

Ending
$

272,736

11,252

31,065
87,714
118,884
23,821

Amortization
$

1,072,347

73,111

208,140
188,308
540,626
62,162

Ending
$

Accumulated amortization 2019

311,197

13,104

35,106
84,675
139,237
39,075

Amortization
$

Accumulated amortization 2020

2,728,079

32,786

30,043
722,845
1,229,634
611,200
101,571

Net book
value
$

2019

3,049,115

41,466

30,043
808,840
1,229,001
750,263
189,502

Net book
value
$

2020

Schedule
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0DQDJHPHQW¶V5HVSRQVLELOLW\IRU)LQDQFLDO5HSRUWLQJ
0DUFK




7KH ILQDQFLDO VWDWHPHQWV DUH WKH UHVSRQVLELOLW\ RI PDQDJHPHQW DQG KDYH EHHQ SUHSDUHG LQ
FRQIRUPLW\ZLWK,QWHUQDWLRQDO)LQDQFLDO5HSRUWLQJ6WDQGDUGV0DQDJHPHQWLVDOVRUHVSRQVLEOH
IRUWKHQRWHVWRWKHILQDQFLDOVWDWHPHQWVDQGVFKHGXOHVDQGIRUHQVXULQJWKDWWKLVLQIRUPDWLRQLV
FRQVLVWHQWZKHUHDSSURSULDWHZLWKWKHLQIRUPDWLRQFRQWDLQHGLQWKHILQDQFLDOVWDWHPHQWV%DVHG
RQPDQDJHPHQW¶VNQRZOHGJHKDYLQJH[HUFLVHGUHDVRQDEOHGLOLJHQFHWKHILQDQFLDOVWDWHPHQWV
IDLUO\UHSUHVHQWLQDOOPDWHULDOUHVSHFWWKHILQDQFLDOSRVLWLRQDVDW0DUFK

0DQDJHPHQWLVUHVSRQVLEOHIRULPSOHPHQWLQJDQGPDLQWDLQLQJDV\VWHPRILQWHUQDOFRQWUROWR
SURYLGHUHDVRQDEOHDVVXUDQFHWKDWUHOLDEOHILQDQFLDOLQIRUPDWLRQLVSURGXFHG

7KH%RDUGRI'LUHFWRUVLVUHVSRQVLEOHIRUHQVXULQJWKDWPDQDJHPHQWIXOILOVLWVUHVSRQVLELOLWLHVIRU
ILQDQFLDOUHSRUWLQJDQGLQWHUQDOFRQWURO7KH%RDUGUHYLHZVLQWHUQDOILQDQFLDOUHSRUWVRQDUHJXODU
EDVLVDQGH[WHUQDOO\DXGLWHGILQDQFLDOVWDWHPHQWVDQQXDOO\7KH%RDUGUHFRPPHQGVDSSURYDORI
WKHDXGLWHGH[WHUQDOILQDQFLDOVWDWHPHQWVDQGPHHWVSHULRGLFDOO\ZLWKPDQDJHPHQWDQGH[WHUQDO
DXGLWRUVFRQFHUQLQJLQWHUQDOFRQWUROVDQGRWKHUPDWWHUVUHODWLQJWRILQDQFLDOUHSRUWLQJ

*UDQW7KRUQWRQ,VODQG:DVWH0DQDJHPHQW&RUSRUDWLRQ¶VLQGHSHQGHQWDXGLWRUVKDVSHUIRUPHG
DQDXGLWRI,VODQG:DVWH0DQDJHPHQW&RUSRUDWLRQ¶VILQDQFLDOVWDWHPHQWVLQDFFRUGDQFHZLWK
,QWHUQDWLRQDO )LQDQFLDO 5HSRUWLQJ 6WDQGDUGV 7KH ,QGHSHQGHQW $XGLWRU¶V 5HSRUW RXWOLQHV WKH
VFRSHRIWKLVLQGHSHQGHQWDXGLWDQGLQFOXGHVWKHRSLQLRQH[SUHVVHGRQWKHILQDQFLDOVWDWHPHQWV
7KHDXGLWRUVKDYHIXOODQGIUHHDFFHVVWRILQDQFLDOLQIRUPDWLRQDQGPDQDJHPHQWRI,VODQG:DVWH
0DQDJHPHQW&RUSRUDWLRQDVUHTXLUHG

BBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBB 



BBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBB 

*HUU\0RRUH









6KHUL7D\ORU%UDGOH\

&KLHI([HFXWLYH2IILFHU 





&KLHI)LQDQFLDO2IILFHU
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,QGHSHQGHQW$XGLWRU¶V5HSRUW
7RWKH%RDUGRI'LUHFWRUVRI

,VODQG:DVWH0DQDJHPHQW&RUSRUDWLRQ

2SLQLRQ

Grant Thornton LLP
Suite 410
98 Fitzroy Street, PO Box 187

Charlottetown,
PE
C1A 7K4
T +1 902 892 6547
F +1 902 566 5358
www.GrantThornton.ca



:HKDYHDXGLWHGWKHFRQVROLGDWHGILQDQFLDOVWDWHPHQWVRI,VODQG:DVWH0DQDJHPHQW&RUSRUDWLRQ
³WKH&RUSRUDWLRQ´ ZKLFKFRPSULVHWKHFRQVROLGDWHGVWDWHPHQWRIILQDQFLDOSRVLWLRQDVDW0DUFK
DQGWKHFRQVROLGDWHGVWDWHPHQWRIFRPSUHKHQVLYHLQFRPHFRQVROLGDWHGVWDWHPHQWRI
FKDQJHVLQHTXLW\DQGFRQVROLGDWHGVWDWHPHQWRIFDVKIORZVIRUWKH\HDUWKHQHQGHGDQGQRWHVWR
WKHFRQVROLGDWHGILQDQFLDOVWDWHPHQWVLQFOXGLQJDVXPPDU\RIVLJQLILFDQWDFFRXQWLQJSROLFLHV
,QRXURSLQLRQWKHDFFRPSDQ\LQJFRQVROLGDWHGILQDQFLDOVWDWHPHQWVSUHVHQWIDLUO\LQDOOPDWHULDO
UHVSHFWV WKH FRQVROLGDWHG ILQDQFLDO SRVLWLRQ RI ,VODQG :DVWH 0DQDJHPHQW &RUSRUDWLRQ DV DW
0DUFKDQGLWVFRQVROLGDWHGILQDQFLDOSHUIRUPDQFHDQGLWVFRQVROLGDWHGFDVKIORZVIRU
WKH\HDUWKHQHQGHGLQDFFRUGDQFHZLWK,QWHUQDWLRQDO)LQDQFLDO5HSRUWLQJ6WDQGDUGV ,)56V 
%DVLVIRU2SLQLRQ
:HFRQGXFWHGRXUDXGLWLQDFFRUGDQFHZLWK&DQDGLDQJHQHUDOO\DFFHSWHGDXGLWLQJVWDQGDUGV2XU
UHVSRQVLELOLWLHVXQGHUWKRVHVWDQGDUGVDUHIXUWKHUGHVFULEHGLQWKHAuditor's Responsibilities for
the Audit of the consolidated Financial StatementsVHFWLRQRIRXUUHSRUW:HDUHLQGHSHQGHQWRI
WKH&RUSRUDWLRQLQDFFRUGDQFHZLWKWKHHWKLFDOUHTXLUHPHQWVWKDWDUHUHOHYDQWWRRXUDXGLWRIWKH
FRQVROLGDWHGILQDQFLDOVWDWHPHQWVLQ&DQDGDDQGZHKDYHIXOILOOHGRXURWKHUHWKLFDOUHVSRQVLELOLWLHV
LQDFFRUGDQFHZLWKWKHVHUHTXLUHPHQWV:HEHOLHYHWKDWWKHDXGLWHYLGHQFHZHKDYHREWDLQHGLV
VXIILFLHQWDQGDSSURSULDWHWRSURYLGHDEDVLVIRURXURSLQLRQ
2WKHU0DWWHUV
2XU DXGLW ZDV FRQGXFWHG IRU WKH SXUSRVH RI IRUPLQJ DQ RSLQLRQ RI WKH FRQVROLGDWHG ILQDQFLDO
VWDWHPHQWVRI,VODQG:DVWH0DQDJHPHQW&RUSRUDWLRQDVDZKROH7KHVXSSOHPHQWDU\LQIRUPDWLRQ
LQFOXGHGLQWKHVFKHGXOHVSUHVHQWHGIRUWKHSXUSRVHRIDGGLWLRQDODQDO\VLVDQGLVQRWDUHTXLUHG
SDUWRIWKHFRQVROLGDWHGILQDQFLDOVWDWHPHQWV6XFKLQIRUPDWLRQKDVEHHQVXEMHFWWRWKHDXGLWLQJ
SURFHGXUHVDSSOLHGLQWKHDXGLWRIWKHFRQVROLGDWHGILQDQFLDOVWDWHPHQWVDQGLQRXURSLQLRQLV
IDLUO\VWDWHGLQDOOPDWHULDOUHVSHFWVLQUHODWLRQWRWKHFRQVROLGDWHGILQDQFLDOVWDWHPHQWVWDNHQDVD
ZKROH
5HVSRQVLELOLWLHVRI0DQDJHPHQWDQG7KRVH&KDUJHGZLWK*RYHUQDQFHIRUWKH
FRQVROLGDWHG)LQDQFLDO6WDWHPHQWV
0DQDJHPHQWLVUHVSRQVLEOHIRUWKHSUHSDUDWLRQDQGIDLUSUHVHQWDWLRQRIWKHFRQVROLGDWHGILQDQFLDO
VWDWHPHQWVLQDFFRUGDQFHZLWK,QWHUQDWLRQDO)LQDQFLDO5HSRUWLQJ6WDQGDUGV ,)56V DQGIRUVXFK
LQWHUQDOFRQWURODVPDQDJHPHQWGHWHUPLQHVLVQHFHVVDU\WRHQDEOHWKHSUHSDUDWLRQRIFRQVROLGDWHG
ILQDQFLDOVWDWHPHQWVWKDWDUHIUHHIURPPDWHULDOPLVVWDWHPHQWZKHWKHUGXHWRIUDXGRUHUURU.
,QSUHSDULQJWKHFRQVROLGDWHGILQDQFLDOVWDWHPHQWVPDQDJHPHQWLVUHVSRQVLEOHIRUDVVHVVLQJWKH
&RUSRUDWLRQ¶VDELOLW\WRFRQWLQXHDVDJRLQJFRQFHUQGLVFORVLQJDVDSSOLFDEOHPDWWHUVUHODWHGWR
JRLQJFRQFHUQDQGXVLQJWKHJRLQJFRQFHUQEDVLVRIDFFRXQWLQJXQOHVVPDQDJHPHQWHLWKHULQWHQGV
WROLTXLGDWHWKH&RUSRUDWLRQRUWRFHDVHRSHUDWLRQVRUKDVQRUHDOLVWLFDOWHUQDWLYHEXWWRGRVR
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7KRVH FKDUJHG ZLWK JRYHUQDQFH DUH UHVSRQVLEOH IRU RYHUVHHLQJ WKH &RUSRUDWLRQ¶V ILQDQFLDO
UHSRUWLQJSURFHVV
$XGLWRU¶V5HVSRQVLELOLWLHVIRUWKH$XGLWRIWKH&RQVROLGDWHG)LQDQFLDO6WDWHPHQWV
2XU REMHFWLYHV DUH WR REWDLQ UHDVRQDEOH DVVXUDQFH DERXW ZKHWKHU WKH FRQVROLGDWHG ILQDQFLDO
VWDWHPHQWVDVDZKROHDUHIUHHIURPPDWHULDOPLVVWDWHPHQWZKHWKHUGXHWRIUDXGRUHUURUDQGWR
LVVXH DQ DXGLWRU¶V UHSRUW WKDW LQFOXGHV RXU RSLQLRQ  5HDVRQDEOH DVVXUDQFH LV D KLJK OHYHO RI
DVVXUDQFHEXWLVQRWDJXDUDQWHHWKDWDQDXGLWFRQGXFWHGLQDFFRUGDQFHZLWK&DQDGLDQJHQHUDOO\
DFFHSWHG DXGLWLQJ VWDQGDUGV ZLOO DOZD\V GHWHFW D PDWHULDO PLVVWDWHPHQW ZKHQ LW H[LVWV
0LVVWDWHPHQWVFDQDULVHIURPIUDXGRUHUURUDQGDUHFRQVLGHUHGPDWHULDOLILQGLYLGXDOO\RULQWKH
DJJUHJDWHWKH\FRXOGUHDVRQDEO\EHH[SHFWHGWRLQIOXHQFHWKHHFRQRPLFGHFLVLRQVRIXVHUVWDNHQ
RQWKHEDVLVRIWKHVHFRQVROLGDWHGILQDQFLDOVWDWHPHQWV
$V SDUW RI DQ DXGLW LQ DFFRUGDQFH ZLWK &DQDGLDQ JHQHUDOO\ DFFHSWHG DXGLWLQJ VWDQGDUGV ZH
H[HUFLVHSURIHVVLRQDOMXGJPHQWDQGPDLQWDLQSURIHVVLRQDOVNHSWLFLVPWKURXJKRXWWKHDXGLW:H
DOVR
x

,GHQWLI\ DQG DVVHVV WKH ULVNV RI PDWHULDO PLVVWDWHPHQW RI WKH FRQVROLGDWHG ILQDQFLDO
VWDWHPHQWVZKHWKHUGXHWRIUDXGRUHUURUGHVLJQDQGSHUIRUPDXGLWSURFHGXUHVUHVSRQVLYH
WRWKRVHULVNVDQGREWDLQDXGLWHYLGHQFHWKDWLVVXIILFLHQWDQGDSSURSULDWHWRSURYLGHDEDVLV
IRURXURSLQLRQ7KHULVNRIQRWGHWHFWLQJDPDWHULDOPLVVWDWHPHQWUHVXOWLQJIURPIUDXGLVKLJKHU
WKDQ IRU RQH UHVXOWLQJ IURP HUURU DV IUDXG PD\ LQYROYH FROOXVLRQ IRUJHU\ LQWHQWLRQDO
RPLVVLRQVPLVUHSUHVHQWDWLRQVRUWKHRYHUULGHRILQWHUQDOFRQWURO

x

2EWDLQ DQ XQGHUVWDQGLQJ RI LQWHUQDO FRQWURO UHOHYDQW WR WKH DXGLW LQ RUGHU WR GHVLJQ DXGLW
SURFHGXUHVWKDWDUHDSSURSULDWHLQWKHFLUFXPVWDQFHVEXWQRWIRUWKHSXUSRVHRIH[SUHVVLQJ
DQRSLQLRQRQWKHHIIHFWLYHQHVVRIWKH&RUSRUDWLRQ¶VLQWHUQDOFRQWURO

x

(YDOXDWH WKH DSSURSULDWHQHVV RI DFFRXQWLQJ SROLFLHV XVHG DQG WKH UHDVRQDEOHQHVV RI
DFFRXQWLQJHVWLPDWHVDQGUHODWHGGLVFORVXUHVPDGHE\PDQDJHPHQW

x

&RQFOXGH RQ WKH DSSURSULDWHQHVV RI PDQDJHPHQW V XVH RI WKH JRLQJ FRQFHUQ EDVLV RI
DFFRXQWLQJDQGEDVHGRQWKHDXGLWHYLGHQFHREWDLQHGZKHWKHUDPDWHULDOXQFHUWDLQW\H[LVWV
UHODWHGWRHYHQWVRUFRQGLWLRQVWKDWPD\FDVWVLJQLILFDQWGRXEWRQWKH&RUSRUDWLRQ¶VDELOLW\WR
FRQWLQXHDVDJRLQJFRQFHUQ,IZHFRQFOXGHWKDWDPDWHULDOXQFHUWDLQW\H[LVWVZHDUHUHTXLUHG
WRGUDZDWWHQWLRQLQRXUDXGLWRU VUHSRUWWRWKHUHODWHGGLVFORVXUHVLQWKHFRQVROLGDWHGILQDQFLDO
VWDWHPHQWVRULIVXFKGLVFORVXUHVDUHLQDGHTXDWHWRPRGLI\RXURSLQLRQ2XUFRQFOXVLRQVDUH
EDVHGRQWKHDXGLWHYLGHQFHREWDLQHGXSWRWKHGDWHRIRXUDXGLWRU VUHSRUW+RZHYHUIXWXUH
HYHQWVRUFRQGLWLRQVPD\FDXVHWKH&RUSRUDWLRQWRFHDVHWRFRQWLQXHDVDJRLQJFRQFHUQ

x

(YDOXDWH WKH RYHUDOO SUHVHQWDWLRQ VWUXFWXUH DQG FRQWHQW RI WKH FRQVROLGDWHG ILQDQFLDO
VWDWHPHQWV LQFOXGLQJ WKH GLVFORVXUHV DQG ZKHWKHU WKH FRQVROLGDWHG ILQDQFLDO VWDWHPHQWV
UHSUHVHQWWKHXQGHUO\LQJWUDQVDFWLRQVDQGHYHQWVLQDPDQQHUWKDWDFKLHYHVIDLUSUHVHQWDWLRQ

x

2EWDLQVXIILFLHQWDSSURSULDWHDXGLWHYLGHQFHUHJDUGLQJWKHILQDQFLDOLQIRUPDWLRQRIWKHHQWLWLHV
RUEXVLQHVVDFWLYLWLHV ZLWKLQWKH*URXSWRH[SUHVVDQRSLQLRQRQWKHFRQVROLGDWHGILQDQFLDO
VWDWHPHQWV:HDUHUHVSRQVLEOHIRUWKHGLUHFWLRQVXSHUYLVLRQDQGSHUIRUPDQFHRIWKHJURXS
DXGLW:HUHPDLQVROHO\UHVSRQVLEOHIRURXUDXGLWRSLQLRQ

:H FRPPXQLFDWH ZLWK WKRVH FKDUJHG ZLWK JRYHUQDQFH UHJDUGLQJ DPRQJ RWKHU PDWWHUV WKH
SODQQHG VFRSH DQG WLPLQJ RI WKH DXGLW DQG VLJQLILFDQW DXGLW ILQGLQJV LQFOXGLQJ DQ\ VLJQLILFDQW
GHILFLHQFLHVLQLQWHUQDOFRQWUROWKDWZHLGHQWLI\GXULQJRXUDXGLW

&KDUORWWHWRZQ&DQDGD
-XQH


&KDUWHUHG3URIHVVLRQDO$FFRXQWDQWV
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,VODQG:DVWH0DQDJHPHQW&RUSRUDWLRQ
&RQVROLGDWHG6WDWHPHQWRI2SHUDWLRQVDQG&KDQJHVLQ1HW
$VVHWV
<HDUHQGHG0DUFK



5HYHQXHV
 +RXVHKROGXVHUIHHV 3DJH 
 
 
 'LVSRVDOIHHV 3DJH 




 7LUHV




 'HFRPPLVVLRQLQJDQGPRQLWRULQJ




 (QYLURQPHQWDO,QGXVWULDO6HUYLFHV,QF 3DJH 




 6WHZDUGVKLSVDQGRWKHU





  
 
 
([SHQGLWXUHV
 $GPLQLVWUDWLRQ 3DJH 




 $GYHUWLVLQJHGXFDWLRQDQGSXEOLFUHODWLRQV 3DJH 




 2SHUDWLRQDOFRVWV
  5HVLGHQWLDOFROOHFWLRQ 3DJH 




  'LVSRVDO 3DJHV 




  7LUHFROOHFWLRQDQGGLVSRVDO 3DJH 




 'HFRPPLVVLRQLQJDQGPRQLWRULQJ




 ,QWHUHVWRQORQJWHUPGHEW




 'HSUHFLDWLRQ




 (QYLURQPHQWDO,QGXVWULDO6HUYLFHV,QF 3DJH 




 6WHZDUGVKLSVDQGRWKHU




 
  
 
 

([FHVVRI H[SHQGLWXUHVRYHUUHYHQXHV 
 UHYHQXHVRYHUH[SHQGLWXUHV

 




1HWDVVHWVEHJLQQLQJRI\HDU
 
 

([FHVVRI H[SHQGLWXUHVRYHUUHYHQXHV 
 UHYHQXHVRYHUH[SHQGLWXUHV

 



1HWDVVHWVHQGRI\HDU
 
 


6HHDFFRPSDQ\LQJQRWHVDQGVFKHGXOHVWRWKHFRQVROLGDWHGILQDQFLDOVWDWHPHQWV
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,VODQG:DVWH0DQDJHPHQW&RUSRUDWLRQ
&RQVROLGDWHG6WDWHPHQWRI)LQDQFLDO3RVLWLRQ
0DUFK





$VVHWV
&XUUHQW
 &DVKDQGFDVKHTXLYDOHQWV


 
 
 5HFHLYDEOHV 1RWH 


 
 
 7HUPGHSRVLWV


 
 
 3UHSDLGV






  


 
 
  

3HUIRUPDQFHGHSRVLWV






3URSHUW\DQGHTXLSPHQW 1RWH 


 
 
  
  




  


/LDELOLWLHV
&XUUHQW
 3D\DEOHVDQGDFFUXDOV


 
 
 &XUUHQWSRUWLRQRIORQJWHUPGHEW 1RWH 

 
 
 'HEWGXHRQGHPDQG 1RWH 






  


 
 
 

&RQWUDFWRUGHSRVLWV






'HIHUUHGJRYHUQPHQWDVVLVWDQFH 1RWH 

 
 
/RQJWHUPGHEW 1RWH 


 
 
$VVHWUHWLUHPHQWREOLJDWLRQ 1RWH 


 
 
  


 
 
 
1HWDVVHWV


 
 
 

  




 

&RPPLWPHQWV 1RWH 



2QEHKDOIRIWKH%RDUG



 
'LUHFWRU 
'LUHFWRU


6HHDFFRPSDQ\LQJQRWHVDQGVFKHGXOHVWRWKHFRQVROLGDWHGILQDQFLDOVWDWHPHQWV
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,VODQG:DVWH0DQDJHPHQW&RUSRUDWLRQ
&RQVROLGDWHG6WDWHPHQWRI&DVK)ORZV
<HDUHQGHG0DUFK



,QFUHDVH GHFUHDVH LQFDVKDQGFDVKHTXLYDOHQWV

 2SHUDWLQJ
  &DVKUHFHLYHGIURPFXVWRPHUV
 
 
  &DVKSD\PHQWVWRVXSSOLHUV
  
  
  &DVKSD\PHQWVWRHPSOR\HHV



 
  ,QWHUHVWSDLG

 

 
  ,QWHUHVWUHFHLYHG





   




 
 )LQDQFLQJ
  3URFHHGVIURPORQJWHUPGHEW




  *RYHUQPHQWDVVLVWDQFHUHFHLYHG




  5HSD\PHQWRIORQJWHUPGHEW

 

 
   
   

 

 

 ,QYHVWLQJ
  ,QFUHDVHLQSHUIRUPDQFHGHSRVLWV



 
  3URFHHGVIURPVDOHRIHTXLSPHQW




  3XUFKDVHRISURSHUW\DQGHTXLSPHQW

 

 

   

 

 

1HW GHFUHDVH LQFUHDVHLQFDVKDQGFDVKHTXLYDOHQWV

 



&DVKDQGFDVKHTXLYDOHQWV

 %HJLQQLQJRI\HDU





 (QGRI\HDU
 
 


6HHDFFRPSDQ\LQJQRWHVDQGVFKHGXOHVWRWKHFRQVROLGDWHGILQDQFLDOVWDWHPHQWV
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,VODQG:DVWH0DQDJHPHQW&RUSRUDWLRQ
1RWHVWRWKH&RQVROLGDWHG)LQDQFLDO6WDWHPHQWV
0DUFK

 1DWXUHRIRSHUDWLRQV

7KH&RUSRUDWLRQLVD3ULQFH(GZDUG,VODQGFURZQFRUSRUDWLRQHVWDEOLVKHGXQGHUWKHSURYLVLRQV
RIWKHEnvironmental Protection ActDQGWKHUHIRUHLVH[HPSWIURPLQFRPHWD[HVXQGHU
SDUDJUDSK  G RIWKH&DQDGLDQIncome Tax Act7KH&RUSRUDWLRQ¶VREMHFWLYHLVWR
LPSOHPHQWDQGPDQDJHDSURYLQFHZLGHZDVWHPDQDJHPHQWV\VWHP7KLVLQFOXGHVWKH
FROOHFWLRQDQGGLVSRVDORIVROLGZDVWHJHQHUDWHGLQ3ULQFH(GZDUG,VODQG

(QYLURQPHQWDO,QGXVWULDO6HUYLFHV,QFLVDZKROO\RZQHGVXEVLGLDU\RI,VODQG:DVWH
0DQDJHPHQW&RUSRUDWLRQ7KH&RUSRUDWLRQ¶VREMHFWLYHLVWRRSHUDWHZDWHUDQGZDVWHZDWHU
IDFLOLWLHV

7KH&RUSRUDWLRQDQGLWVZKROO\RZQHGVXEVLGLDU\DUHORFDWHGDW:DWWV$YHQXH
&KDUORWWHWRZQ3ULQFH(GZDUG,VODQG

7KHFRQVROLGDWHGILQDQFLDOVWDWHPHQWVZHUHDXWKRUL]HGIRULVVXHLQDFFRUGDQFHZLWKD
UHVROXWLRQRIWKH%RDUGRI'LUHFWRUVRQ'$7(


 6XPPDU\RIVLJQLILFDQWDFFRXQWLQJSROLFLHV

%DVLVRISUHVHQWDWLRQDQGDGRSWLRQRI,)56
7KHFRQVROLGDWHGILQDQFLDOVWDWHPHQWVRIWKH&RUSRUDWLRQKDYHEHHQSUHSDUHGLQDFFRUGDQFH
ZLWK,QWHUQDWLRQDO)LQDQFLDO5HSRUWLQJ6WDQGDUGV ,)56 

7KHFRQVROLGDWHGILQDQFLDOVWDWHPHQWVRIWKH,VODQG:DVWH0DQDJHPHQW&RUSRUDWLRQFRPSO\
LQDOOPDWHULDOUHVSHFWVZLWK,)56DVLVVXHGE\WKH,QWHUQDWLRQDO$FFRXQWLQJ6WDQGDUGV%RDUG
,$6% LQHIIHFWDVDW0DUFK

7KHSULQFLSDODFFRXQWLQJSROLFLHVDSSOLHGLQWKHSUHSDUDWLRQRIWKHFRQVROLGDWHGILQDQFLDO
VWDWHPHQWDUHVHWRXWEHORZ


%DVLVRIPHDVXUHPHQW
7KHFRQVROLGDWHGILQDQFLDOVWDWHPHQWVRIWKH&RUSRUDWLRQKDYHEHHQSUHSDUHGRQDKLVWRULFDO
FRVWEDVLV7KH&RUSRUDWLRQ¶VIXQFWLRQDOFXUUHQF\LVWKH&DQDGLDQGROODUZKLFKLVWKH
FXUUHQF\RIWKHSULPDU\HFRQRPLFHQYLURQPHQWLQZKLFKWKH&RUSRUDWLRQRSHUDWHVZKLFKLV
DOVRWKHSUHVHQWDWLRQFXUUHQF\RIWKHFRQVROLGDWHGILQDQFLDOVWDWHPHQWV

3ULQFLSDOVRIFRQVROLGDWLRQ
7KHFRQVROLGDWHGILQDQFLDOVWDWHPHQWVLQFOXGHWKHDFFRXQWVRIWKH&RUSRUDWLRQDQGLWVZKROO\
RZQHGVXEVLGLDU\(QYLURQPHQWDO,QGXVWULDO6HUYLFHV,QF6LJQLILFDQWLQWHUFRPSDQ\WUDQVDFWLRQV
DUHHOLPLQDWHGXSRQFRQVROLGDWLRQ


&DVKDQGFDVKHTXLYDOHQWV
&DVKDQGFDVKHTXLYDOHQWVLQFOXGHFDVKRQKDQGDQGEDODQFHVZLWKEDQNVQHWRIEDQN
RYHUGUDIWVDQGKLJKO\OLTXLGWHPSRUDU\PRQH\PDUNHWLQVWUXPHQWVZLWKRULJLQDOPDWXULWLHVRI
WKUHHPRQWKVRUOHVV%DQNERUURZLQJVDUHFRQVLGHUHGWREHILQDQFLQJDFWLYLWLHV
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,VODQG:DVWH0DQDJHPHQW&RUSRUDWLRQ
1RWHVWRWKH&RQVROLGDWHG)LQDQFLDO6WDWHPHQWV
0DUFK

 6XPPDU\RIVLJQLILFDQWDFFRXQWLQJSROLFLHV FRQW¶G 

%RUURZLQJFRVWV
%RUURZLQJFRVWVGLUHFWO\DWWULEXWDEOHWRWKHDFTXLVLWLRQRUFRQVWUXFWLRQRISURSHUW\SODQWDQG
HTXLSPHQWDUHDGGHGWRWKHFRVWRIWKHDVVHWVXQWLOWKH\DUHVXEVWDQWLDOO\UHDG\IRUWKHLU
LQWHQGHGXVH

5HYHQXHUHFRJQLWLRQ
5HYHQXHVDUHUHFRJQL]HGZKHQSHUIRUPDQFHREOLJDWLRQVXQGHUDJUHHPHQWVRUFRQWUDFWVDUH
VDWLVILHGLQDQDPRXQWWKDWUHIOHFWVWKHFRQVLGHUDWLRQWKH&RUSRUDWLRQH[SHFWVWREHHQWLWOHGWR
LQH[FKDQJHIRUWKRVHVHUYLFHV

7KH&RUSRUDWLRQGHWHUPLQHVUHYHQXHUHFRJQLWLRQWKURXJKWKHIROORZLQJVWHSV
  ,GHQWLILFDWLRQRIWKHFRQWUDFWRUFRQWUDFWVZLWKDFXVWRPHU
  ,GHQWLILFDWLRQRIWKHSHUIRUPDQFHREOLJDWLRQVLQWKHFRQWUDFW
  'HWHUPLQDWLRQRIWKHWUDQVDFWLRQSULFH
  $OORFDWLRQRIWKHWUDQVDFWLRQSULFHWRWKHSHUIRUPDQFHREOLJDWLRQVLQWKHFRQWUDFWDQG
  5HFRJQLWLRQRIUHYHQXHZKHQRUDVWKH&RUSRUDWLRQVDWLVILHVDSHUIRUPDQFH
REOLJDWLRQ

+RXVHKROGXVHUIHHVDUHEDVHGRQDQDQQXDODVVHVVPHQWDSSOLHGWRWKHKRXVHKROG¶V
SURSHUW\WD[DVVHVVPHQW5HYHQXHLVUHFRJQL]HGVWUDLJKWOLQHRYHUWKH\HDURQDPRQWKO\
EDVLVEDVHGRQWKHDQQXDODVVHVVPHQWUDWH

'LVSRVDOUHYHQXHVDUHUHFRJQL]HGZKHQWKHZDVWHKDVEHHQGHOLYHUHGWRWKHGURSRII
IDFLOLWLHV

7LUHUHYHQXHVDUHUHFRJQL]HGZKHQWKHWLUHVKDYHEHHQGLVSRVHGRIDWGLVSRVDOVLWHV

5HYHQXHVDQGHDUQLQJVIURPXWLOLW\XVHUIHHVDQGH[FHVVH[SHQGLWXUHUHFRYHULHVDUHUHFRUGHG
ZKHQFROOHFWLRQLVUHDVRQDEO\DVVXUHGDQGDOORWKHUVLJQLILFDQWFRQGLWLRQVRIVHUYLFHDUHPHW

'HIHUUHGJRYHUQPHQWDVVLVWDQFH
*RYHUQPHQWJUDQWVUHODWLQJWRWKHDFTXLVLWLRQRIDVVHWVDQGHTXLSPHQWSXUFKDVHGE\
(QYLURQPHQWDO,QGXVWULDO6HUYLFHV,QFDUHUHFRUGHGDVGHIHUUHGFUHGLWV7KLVDFFRXQWLVEHLQJ
DPRUWL]HGRQWKHVDPHEDVLVDVWKHUHODWHGDVVHWVDUHEHLQJGHSUHFLDWHGDQGLVUHIOHFWHGDVD
UHGXFWLRQLQFXUUHQWGHSUHFLDWLRQH[SHQVH

)LQDQFLDOLQVWUXPHQWV
7KH&RUSRUDWLRQ¶VILQDQFLDODVVHWVDUHFODVVLILHGDVIDLUYDOXHWKURXJKSURILWRUORVVRU
DPRUWL]HGFRVW)LQDQFLDOOLDELOLWLHVDUHFODVVLILHGDVDPRUWL]HGFRVW)LQDQFLDODVVHWVDQG
OLDELOLWLHVDUHLQLWLDOO\UHFRJQL]HGDWIDLUYDOXHZLWKVXEVHTXHQWPHDVXUHPHQWEDVHGRQ
FODVVLILFDWLRQ7KHFODVVLILFDWLRQGHSHQGVRQWKHSXUSRVHIRUZKLFKWKHILQDQFLDOLQVWUXPHQWV
ZHUHDFTXLUHGWKHLUFKDUDFWHULVWLFVDQGFKRLFHZKHUHDSSOLFDEOH

)LQDQFLDODVVHWVDUHPHDVXUHGDWIDLUYDOXHH[FHSWWKRVHFODVVLILHGDVDPRUWL]HGFRVWZKLFK
DUHLQLWLDOO\UHFRJQL]HGDWIDLUYDOXHQHWRIDQ\WUDQVDFWLRQFRVWVGLUHFWO\DWWULEXWDEOHWRWKH
LVVXDQFHRIWKHLQVWUXPHQWWKHQVXEVHTXHQWO\FDUULHGDWDPRUWL]HGFRVWXVLQJWKHHIIHFWLYH
LQWHUHVWUDWHPHWKRG
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,VODQG:DVWH0DQDJHPHQW&RUSRUDWLRQ
1RWHVWRWKH&RQVROLGDWHG)LQDQFLDO6WDWHPHQWV
0DUFK

 6XPPDU\RIVLJQLILFDQWDFFRXQWLQJSROLFLHV FRQW¶G 

)LQDQFLDOOLDELOLWLHVDUHLQLWLDOO\PHDVXUHGDWIDLUYDOXHQHWRIDQ\WUDQVDFWLRQFRVWVGLUHFWO\
DWWULEXWDEOHWRWKHLVVXDQFHRIWKHLQVWUXPHQWDQGDUHVXEVHTXHQWO\FDUULHGDWFRVWXVLQJWKH
HIIHFWLYHLQWHUHVWUDWHPHWKRG

,PSDLUPHQWRIILQDQFLDODVVHWV
7KH&RUSRUDWLRQPHDVXUHVLPSDLUPHQWRIILQDQFLQJDVVHWVXVLQJDQH[SHFWHGFUHGLWORVV
³(&/´ PRGHO7KLVDSSOLHVWRILQDQFLDODVVHWVFODVVLILHGDWDPRUWL]HGFRVW7KH(&/PRGHO
UHVXOWVLQDQDOORZDQFHIRUFUHGLWORVVHVEHLQJUHFRUGHGRQILQDQFLDODVVHWVUHJDUGOHVVRI
ZKHWKHUWKHUHKDVEHHQDQDFWXDOLPSDLUPHQW

$FFRXQWLQJHVWLPDWHVDQGPHDVXUHPHQWXQFHUWDLQW\
7KHSUHSDUDWLRQRIFRQVROLGDWHGILQDQFLDOVWDWHPHQWVLQFRQIRUPLW\ZLWK,)56UHTXLUHVWKHXVH
RIMXGJHPHQWVDVVXPSWLRQVDQGHVWLPDWHVDVDWWKHGDWHRIWKHFRQVROLGDWHGILQDQFLDO
VWDWHPHQWVWKDWDIIHFWWKHUHSRUWHGDPRXQWVRIDVVHWVDQGOLDELOLWLHVGLVFORVXUHRIFRQWLQJHQW
OLDELOLWLHVDQGWKHUHSRUWHGDPRXQWVRIUHYHQXHVDQGH[SHQVHVGXULQJWKHUHSRUWLQJSHULRGV
SUHVHQWHG

0HDVXUHPHQWXQFHUWDLQW\H[LVWVZKHQWKHUHLVDYDULDQFHEHWZHHQWKHUHFRJQL]HGDPRXQWDQG
DQRWKHUUHDVRQDEOHDPRXQW6RPHDFFRXQWLQJPHDVXUHPHQWVUHTXLUHPDQDJHPHQW¶VEHVW
HVWLPDWHEDVHGRQDVVXPSWLRQVDVDWWKHFRQVROLGDWHGILQDQFLDOVWDWHPHQWGDWHWKDWUHIOHFWWKH
PRVWSUREDEOHVHWRIHFRQRPLFFRQGLWLRQVDQGSODQQHGFRXUVHVRIDFWLRQ

$VVHWUHWLUHPHQWREOLJDWLRQVHPSOR\HHIXWXUHEHQHILWVDOORZDQFHIRUGRXEWIXODFFRXQWVDQG
GHSUHFLDWLRQDUHWKHPRVWVLJQLILFDQWLWHPVWKDWDUHEDVHGRQDFFRXQWLQJHVWLPDWHV$FWXDO
UHVXOWVFRXOGGLIIHUIURPWKHHVWLPDWHVPDGHE\PDQDJHPHQWLQWKHVHFRQVROLGDWHGILQDQFLDO
VWDWHPHQWVDQGWKHVHGLIIHUHQFHVZKLFKPD\EHPDWHULDOFRXOGUHTXLUHDGMXVWPHQWLQ
VXEVHTXHQWUHSRUWLQJSHULRGV6HH1RWHIRUDGGLWLRQDOGHWDLOVRQWKHDVVHWUHWLUHPHQW
REOLJDWLRQ

3URYLVLRQV
3URYLVLRQVDUHUHFRUGHGZKHQDSUHVHQWOHJDORUFRQVWUXFWLYHREOLJDWLRQH[LVWVDVDUHVXOWRI
SDVWHYHQWVZKHUHLWLVSUREDEOHWKDWDQRXWIORZRUUHVRXUFHVHPERG\LQJHFRQRPLFEHQHILWV
ZLOOEHUHTXLUHGWRVHWWOHWKHREOLJDWLRQDQGDUHOLDEOHHVWLPDWHRIWKHDPRXQWRIWKHREOLJDWLRQ
FDQEHPDGH7KHDPRXQWUHFRJQL]HGDVDSURYLVLRQLVWKHEHVWHVWLPDWHRIWKHFRQVLGHUDWLRQ
UHTXLUHGWRVHWWOHWKHSUHVHQWREOLJDWLRQDWWKHFRQVROLGDWHGVWDWHPHQWRIILQDQFLDOSRVLWLRQ
GDWHWDNLQJLQWRDFFRXQWWKHULVNVDQGXQFHUWDLQWLHVVXUURXQGLQJWKHREOLJDWLRQ:KHUHD
SURYLVLRQLVPHDVXUHGXVLQJWKHFDVKIORZVHVWLPDWHGWRVHWWOHWKHSUHVHQWREOLJDWLRQLWV
FDUU\LQJDPRXQWLVWKHSUHVHQWYDOXHRIWKRVHFDVKIORZV
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,VODQG:DVWH0DQDJHPHQW&RUSRUDWLRQ
1RWHVWRWKH&RQVROLGDWHG)LQDQFLDO6WDWHPHQWV
0DUFK

 6XPPDU\RIVLJQLILFDQWDFFRXQWLQJSROLFLHV FRQW¶G 

$SURYLVLRQIRURQHURXVFRQWUDFWVLVUHFRJQL]HGZKHQWKHH[SHFWHGEHQHILWVWREHGHULYHGE\
WKH&RUSRUDWLRQIURPDFRQWUDFWDUHORZHUWKDQWKHXQDYRLGDEOHFRVWVRIPHHWLQJLWV
REOLJDWLRQVXQGHUWKHFRQWUDFW

&29,'
6LQFH-DQXDU\WKHVSUHDGRI&29,'KDVVHYHUHO\LPSDFWHGPDQ\ORFDOHFRQRPLHV
DURXQGWKHJOREH,QPDQ\FRXQWULHVLQFOXGLQJ&DQDGDEXVLQHVVHVDUHEHLQJIRUFHGWRFHDVHRU
OLPLWRSHUDWLRQVIRUORQJRULQGHILQLWHSHULRGVRIWLPH0HDVXUHVWDNHQWRFRQWDLQWKHVSUHDGRIWKH
YLUXVLQFOXGLQJWUDYHOEDQVTXDUDQWLQHVVRFLDOGLVWDQFLQJDQGFORVXUHVRIQRQHVVHQWLDOVHUYLFHV
KDYH WULJJHUHG VLJQLILFDQW GLVUXSWLRQV WR EXVLQHVVHV ZRUOGZLGH UHVXOWLQJ LQ DQ HFRQRPLF
VORZGRZQ7KHGXUDWLRQDQGLPSDFWRIWKH&29,'SDQGHPLFUHPDLQVXQFOHDUDWWKLVWLPH

7KH&RUSRUDWLRQKDVGHWHUPLQHGWKDWWKHVHHYHQWVKDYHQRWKDGDPDWHULDOLPSDFWRQWKHFDUU\LQJ
YDOXHRIDVVHWVDQGOLDELOLWLHVUHSRUWHGLQWKHVHILQDQFLDOVWDWHPHQWVDVDW0DUFK7KH
GXUDWLRQDQGLPSDFWRIWKH&29,'SDQGHPLFDVZHOODVWKHHIIHFWLYHQHVVRIJRYHUQPHQWDQG
FHQWUDOEDQNUHVSRQVHVUHPDLQVXQFOHDUDWWKLVWLPH,WLVQRWSRVVLEOHWRUHOLDEO\HVWLPDWHWKH
GXUDWLRQDQGVHYHULW\RIWKHVHFRQVHTXHQFHVDVZHOODVWKHLULPSDFWRQWKHILQDQFLDOLPSDFWRQ
WKHILQDQFLDOSRVLWLRQDQGUHVXOWVRIWKH&RUSRUDWLRQIRUIXWXUHSHULRGV

6SHFLILFDFFRXQWLQJSROLFLHV
7RIDFLOLWDWHDEHWWHUXQGHUVWDQGLQJRIWKH&RUSRUDWLRQ¶VFRQVROLGDWHGILQDQFLDOVWDWHPHQWV
VLJQLILFDQWDFFRXQWLQJSROLFLHVDUHGLVFORVHGLQWKHQRWHVZKHUHDSSOLFDEOHRIWKHUHODWHG
DFFRXQWLQJWRSLFV$OLVWLQJRIWKHVHQRWHVLVDVIROORZV

1RWH
7RSLF
3DJH


3URSHUW\DQGHTXLSPHQW





$VVHWUHWLUHPHQWREOLJDWLRQ




(PSOR\HHIXWXUHEHQHILWV


$FFRXQWLQJVWDQGDUGVDGRSWHGGXULQJWKH\HDU
7KH&RUSRUDWLRQDGRSWHGWKHIROORZLQJQHZVWDQGDUGVHIIHFWLYH$SULOLQDFFRUGDQFH
ZLWKWKHLUDSSOLFDEOHWUDQVLWLRQSURYLVLRQV

IFRS 16 Leases (“IFRS 16”)
,)56VXSHUVHGHG,$6/HDVHV ³,$6´ ,)56LQFOXGHVWKHSULQFLSOHVIRUWKH
UHFRJQLWLRQPHDVXUHPHQWSUHVHQWDWLRQDQGGLVFORVXUHRIOHDVHVIRUERWKSDUWLHVWRD
FRQWUDFW WKHOHVVHHDQGWKHOHVVRU 7KHOHVVHHLVUHTXLUHGWRUHFRJQL]HDQGGHSUHFLDWHWKH
DVVHWVDQGOLDELOLWLHVIRUDOOOHDVHVZLWKDWHUPRIPRUHWKDQPRQWKVXQOHVVWKHXQGHUO\LQJ
DVVHWLVRIORZYDOXH7KH&RUSRUDWLRQGHWHUPLQHGWKDWOHDVHVRXWVWDQGLQJDUHRIORZYDOXH
$GRSWLRQRI,)56GLGQRWKDYHDVLJQLILFDQWLPSDFWRQWKH&RUSRUDWLRQ¶VILQDQFLDO
VWDWHPHQWV
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,VODQG:DVWH0DQDJHPHQW&RUSRUDWLRQ
1RWHVWRWKH&RQVROLGDWHG)LQDQFLDO6WDWHPHQWV
0DUFK

 5HFHLYDEOHV





  


7UDGH


 
 
*RYHUQPHQWDVVLVWDQFH






6DOHVWD[QHW










 
 


 3URSHUW\DQGHTXLSPHQW

$FFRXQWLQJSROLF\
3URSHUW\DQGHTXLSPHQWDUHUHSRUWHGDWFRVWOHVVVXEVHTXHQWGHSUHFLDWLRQDQGLPSDLUPHQW
ORVVHV7KHFRVWRISURSHUW\DQGHTXLSPHQWLQFOXGHVH[SHQGLWXUHVWKDWDUHGLUHFWO\DWWULEXWDEOH
WRWKHLUDFTXLVLWLRQRUFRQVWUXFWLRQLQFOXGLQJERUURZLQJFRVWVDQGDQ\RWKHUFRVWGLUHFWO\
DWWULEXWDEOHWRWKHLQVWDOODWLRQDQGGHFRPPLVVLRQLQJRIWKHDVVHW3URSHUW\DQGHTXLSPHQWDUH
GHSUHFLDWHGRYHUWKHLUHVWLPDWHGOLYHVRQWKHGLPLQLVKLQJEDODQFHEDVLV:KHQSDUWVRIDQLWHP
RISURSHUW\DQGHTXLSPHQWKDYHPDWHULDOO\GLIIHUHQWXVHIXOOLYHVRUSDWWHUQVRIEHQHILW
FRQVXPSWLRQWKH\DUHDFFRXQWHGIRUVHSDUDWHO\ LHDVPDMRUFRPSRQHQWV 7KHUDWHVXVHG
DUHDVIROORZV
  
  %XLOGLQJV
\UV VWUDLJKWOLQH

  0RWRUYHKLFOHV
\UV VWUDLJKWOLQH
  2IILFHHTXLSPHQW
\UV VWUDLJKWOLQH

  &RPSXWHUHTXLSPHQW
\UV VWUDLJKWOLQH


  &RPSXWHUVRIWZDUH
\UV VWUDLJKWOLQH

  /HDVHKROGLPSURYHPHQWV
\UV VWUDLJKWOLQH

  6LWHHTXLSPHQW
DQG\UV VWUDLJKWOLQH
  /HDFKDWHIDFLOLW\
DQG\UV VWUDLJKWOLQH

  &RPSRVWIDFLOLW\
DQG\UV VWUDLJKWOLQH
  :DVWH:DWFKGURSRIIFHQWHUV
\UV VWUDLJKWOLQH
  :DVWHDQGFRPSRVWFDUWV
DQG\UV VWUDLJKWOLQH
  :DVWHZDWHULQIUDVWUXFWXUH
\UV VWUDLJKWOLQH

0DWHULDOUHVLGXDOYDOXHHVWLPDWHVDQGHVWLPDWHVRIXVHIXOOLIHDUHXSGDWHGDVUHTXLUHGEXWDW
OHDVWDQQXDOO\

,$6,PSDLUPHQWRI$VVHWVUHTXLUHVDQHQWLW\WRWHVWDVVHWVIRULPSDLUPHQWLILQGLFDWLRQVRI
LPSDLUPHQWH[LVW%DVHGRQDQDQDO\VLVRIFDVKIORZVWKH&RUSRUDWLRQKDVHVWDEOLVKHGWKDW
WKHDSSURSULDWHFDVKJHQHUDWLQJXQLWIRULPSDLUPHQWUHYLHZLVWKHHQWLUHHQWLW\$VWKH
&RUSRUDWLRQKDVWKHSRZHUWRLQFUHDVHGLVSRVDODQGVHZHUUDWHVWRHQVXUHIXOOIXQGLQJLQWR
WKHIRUHVHHDEOHIXWXUHLPSDLUPHQWDWWKHHQWLW\OHYHOLVUHPRWH$VDW0DUFK
PDQDJHPHQWFRQGXFWHGDQLPSDLUPHQWUHYLHZDWWKHHQWLW\OHYHOZKLFKFRQILUPHGWKDWWKHUH
ZHUHQRVLJQLILFDQWLQGLFDWRUVRILPSDLUPHQWZKLFKZRXOGKDYHDPDWHULDOLPSDFWRQWKH
&RUSRUDWLRQ¶VDELOLW\WRJHQHUDWHIXWXUHHFRQRPLFEHQHILWVIURPLWVRSHUDWLQJQRQILQDQFLDO
DVVHWV









*URVVFDUU\LQJ
%DODQFH$SU
$GGLWLRQV
'LVSRVLWLRQV
%DODQFH0DU

'HSUHFLDWLRQDQG
,PSDLUPHQW
%DODQFH$SU
'LVSRVDOV
'HSUHFLDWLRQ
%DODQFH0DU

&DUU\LQJDPRXQW

*URVVFDUU\LQJ
%DODQFH$SU
$GGLWLRQV
'LVSRVLWLRQV
%DODQFH0DU

'HSUHFLDWLRQDQG
,PSDLUPHQW
%DODQFH$SU
'LVSRVDOV
'HSUHFLDWLRQ
%DODQFH0DU

&DUU\LQJDPRXQW
















   
  


 

   

 




 





      
  
    

     
 

      

 

 
 






 

 
 

 



 
 



           

              

   
 
 
 

                 
                 

   
   

   
   

      






           

              

   
 
 
 

                 
              

      

    

   




 

    



  



 
  


7RWDO
 



 
 

2IILFH 
(,6, 
HTXLS ,QIUDVWUXFW 

      

     


  
 
 

      

:DVWH 
6LWH 
0RWRU 
FDUWV  HTXLSPHQW  YHKLFOHV 



   

  

   
   

&RPSRVW :DVWH:DWFK 
IDFLOLW\  GURSRII 

 




 

/DQGILOO  /HDFKDWH 
FHOOV 
IDFLOLW\ 



            

  
 
 

    
     
 
             


















%XLOGLQJV  

  
    
 


 

         
        







/DQG

















0DUFK

 3URSHUW\DQGHTXLSPHQW FRQW¶G 

,VODQG:DVWH0DQDJHPHQW&RUSRUDWLRQ
1RWHVWRWKH&RQVROLGDWHG)LQDQFLDO6WDWHPHQWV
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,VODQG:DVWH0DQDJHPHQW&RUSRUDWLRQ
1RWHVWRWKH&RQVROLGDWHG)LQDQFLDO6WDWHPHQWV
0DUFK

 /RQJWHUPGHEW

 


GHEHQWXUHDPRUWL]HGWRDQGPDWXULQJ
LQ'HFHPEHUSD\DEOHLQTXDUWHUO\
LQVWDOPHQWVRISULQFLSDODQGLQWHUHVWRI
7KHGHEHQWXUHLVXQFRQGLWLRQDOO\VHFXUHGE\WKH
3URYLQFHRI3ULQFH(GZDUG,VODQG

    

GHEHQWXUHDPRUWL]HGWRDQGPDWXULQJLQ
-XQHSD\DEOHLQPRQWKO\LQVWDOPHQWVRI
SULQFLSDODQGLQWHUHVWRI

 
 


GHEHQWXUHDPRUWL]HGDQGPDWXULQJLQ-DQXDU\
SD\DEOHLQPRQWKO\LQVWDOPHQWVRISULQFLSDO
DQGLQWHUHVWRI

 
 


3ULPHSOXVGHPDQGORDQDGYDQFHGWR
(QYLURQPHQWDO,QGXVWULDO6HUYLFHV,QF$VVHFXULW\
IRUWKHORDQWKHERUURZHUKDVSURYLGHGD
SURPLVVRU\QRWHIRUWKHIXOODPRXQWRIWKHORDQ
7KHORDQZLOOQRWEHRXWVWDQGLQJIRUDSHULRG
JUHDWHUWKDQPRQWKV

 
 


3ULPHSOXVGHPDQGORDQDGYDQFHGWR
(QYLURQPHQWDO,QGXVWULDO6HUYLFHV,QF$VVHFXULW\
IRUWKHORDQWKHERUURZHUKDVSURYLGHGD
SURPLVVRU\QRWHIRUWKHIXOODPRXQWRIWKHORDQ
 
 



3DLGRXWGXULQJWKH\HDU

 
 



    
/HVVFXUUHQWSRUWLRQ


 

GHEWGXHRQGHPDQG


  




    


%DVHGRQQRUPDOUHSD\PHQWWHUPVDQQXDOSULQFLSDOUHSD\PHQWVLQHDFKRIWKHQH[WILYH\HDUV
DUHGXHDVIROORZV
DQGEH\RQG
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,VODQG:DVWH0DQDJHPHQW&RUSRUDWLRQ
1RWHVWRWKH&RQVROLGDWHG)LQDQFLDO6WDWHPHQWV
0DUFK

 5HYHQXHIURPFRQWUDFWVZLWKFXVWRPHUV
7KH&RUSRUDWLRQKDVUHFRJQL]HGWKHIROORZLQJDPRXQWVUHODWHGWRUHYHQXHLQDFFRUGDQFHZLWK
,)56RQWKHVWDWHPHQWRIRSHUDWLRQVDQGFKDQJHVLQQHWDVVHWV

  

 

+RXVHKROGXVHUIHHV
   
'LVSRVDOIHHV

 

7LUHV

 

'HFRPPLVVLRQLQJDQGPRQLWRULQJ

 

(QYLURQPHQWDO,QGXVWULDO6HUYLFHV,QF

 

6WHZDUGVKLSVDQGRWKHU

 


  
   

7KHVHUHYHQXHVUHFRJQL]HGLQDFFRUGDQFHZLWK,)56ZHUHGHULYHGIURPKRXVHKROGXVHU
IHHVZDVWHPDQDJHPHQWGLVSRVDOVLWHVDQGJRYHUQPHQWJUDQWVORFDWHGLQ3ULQFH(GZDUG
,VODQG&DQDGD7KH&RUSRUDWLRQKDVQRWUHFRJQL]HGDQ\DGGLWLRQDOFRQWUDFWDVVHWVRUOLDELOLWLHV
DVVRFLDWHGZLWKWKLVUHYHQXH


 'HIHUUHGJRYHUQPHQWDVVLVWDQFH

'HIHUUHGUHYHQXHUHSUHVHQWVJRYHUQPHQWDVVLVWDQFHUHFHLYHGE\(QYLURQPHQWDO,QGXVWULDO
6HUYLFHV,QFIRUZDWHUDQGVHZHULQIUDVWUXFWXUH7KHUHYHQXHZLOOEHUHFRJQL]HGRYHUWKHOLIHRI
WKHDVVRFLDWHGZDWHUDQGVHZHUDVVHWV
  

 

%DODQFHEHJLQQLQJRI\HDU
  

$PRXQWUHFHLYHGRUUHFHLYDEOHGXULQJWKH\HDU

 

$PRXQWUHFRJQL]HGDVUHYHQXHGXULQJWKH\HDU

   
 

%DODQFHHQGRI\HDU
   


 $VVHWUHWLUHPHQWREOLJDWLRQ

$FFRXQWLQJSROLF\
$QDVVHWUHWLUHPHQWREOLJDWLRQLVUHFRJQL]HGDVDOLDELOLW\IRUREOLJDWLRQVDVVRFLDWHGZLWKWKH
FORVXUHRIWKH&RUSRUDWLRQ¶VODQGILOOVLWHDQGUHWXUQLQJVXFKODQGWRLWVRULJLQDOFRQGLWLRQDVVHW
E\VWDQGDUGVRIHQYLURQPHQWDOUHJXODWLRQV
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,VODQG:DVWH0DQDJHPHQW&RUSRUDWLRQ
1RWHVWRWKH&RQVROLGDWHG)LQDQFLDO6WDWHPHQWV
0DUFK

 $VVHWUHWLUHPHQWREOLJDWLRQ FRQW¶G 

$VVHWUHWLUHPHQWREOLJDWLRQVDUHPHDVXUHGDWWKHSUHVHQWYDOXHRIPDQDJHPHQW¶VEHVW
HVWLPDWHRIWKHH[SHQGLWXUHUHTXLUHGWRVHWWOHWKHSUHVHQWREOLJDWLRQDWWKHGDWHRIWKH
VWDWHPHQWRIILQDQFLDOSRVLWLRQ3URYLVLRQVDUHGHWHUPLQHGE\GLVFRXQWLQJWKHH[SHFWHGIXWXUH
FDVKIORZVDWDULVNIUHHUDWH7KHH[SHFWHGFDVKIORZVUHIOHFWFXUUHQWPDUNHWDVVHVVPHQWV
DQGWKHULVNVVSHFLILFWRWKHOLDELOLW\

7KHREOLJDWLRQLVUHYLHZHGUHJXODUO\E\WKH&RUSRUDWLRQ¶VPDQDJHPHQWEDVHGRQFXUUHQW
UHJXODWLRQVFRVWWHFKQRORJLHVDQGLQGXVWU\VWDQGDUGV7KHGLVFRXQWHGREOLJDWLRQLVLQLWLDOO\
FDSLWDOL]HGDVSDUWRIWKHFDUU\LQJDPRXQWRIWKHUHODWHGODQGILOODQGDFRUUHVSRQGLQJOLDELOLW\LV
UHFRJQL]HG7KHLQFUHDVHLQWKHODQGILOOVLWHDVVHWLVGHSUHFLDWHGRYHUWKHHVWLPDWHGOLIHRIWKH
FRUUHVSRQGLQJODQGILOOZKLOHWKHOLDELOLW\LVDFFUHWHGDVILQDQFHH[SHQVHLQHDUQLQJVXQWLO
VHWWOHGRUVROG6XEVHTXHQWWRWKHLQLWLDOPHDVXUHPHQWWKHREOLJDWLRQLVDGMXVWHGDWWKHHQGRI
HDFKSHULRGWRUHIOHFWWKHSDVVDJHRIWLPHFKDQJHVLQWKHHVWLPDWHGIXWXUHFDVKIORZV
XQGHUO\LQJWKHREOLJDWLRQDQGFKDQJHVLQWKHULVNIUHHUDWH(VWLPDWHGIXWXUHFDVKIORZVDUH
EDVHGRQHVWLPDWHGFXUUHQWFRVWVDGMXVWHGWRWKHIXWXUHH[SHFWHGFORVXUHGDWHE\DSSO\LQJDQ
HVWLPDWHRILQIODWLRQ7KHLQFUHDVHLQWKHREOLJDWLRQGXHWRWKHSDVVDJHRIWLPHLVUHFRJQL]HG
DVILQDQFHH[SHQVHVZKHUHDVLQFUHDVHVDQGRUGHFUHDVHVGXHWRFKDQJHVLQWKHHVWLPDWHG
IXWXUHFDVKIORZVRUFKDQJHVLQWKHULVNIUHHUDWHDUHFDSLWDOL]HG$FWXDOFRVWVLQFXUUHGXSRQ
VHWWOHPHQWRIWKHREOLJDWLRQDUHFKDUJHGDJDLQVWWKHREOLJDWLRQWRWKHH[WHQWWKHREOLJDWLRQ
ZDVHVWDEOLVKHG

$Q\UHGXFWLRQRQWKHREOLJDWLRQDQGWKHUHIRUHDQ\GHGXFWLRQIURPWKHDVVHWWRZKLFKLW
UHODWHVPD\QRWH[FHHGWKHFDUU\LQJDPRXQWRIWKDWDVVHW,ILWGRHVDQ\H[FHVVRYHUWKH
FDUU\LQJYDOXHLVWDNHQLPPHGLDWHO\WRSURILWRUORVV

,IWKHFKDQJHLQHVWLPDWHUHVXOWVLQDQLQFUHDVHLQWKHREOLJDWLRQDQGWKHUHIRUHDQDGGLWLRQWR
WKHFDUU\LQJYDOXHRIWKHDVVHWWKH&RUSRUDWLRQFRQVLGHUVZKHWKHUWKLVLVDQLQGLFDWLRQRI
LPSDLUPHQWRIWKHDVVHWDVDZKROHDQGLIVRWHVWVIRULPSDLUPHQWLQDFFRUGDQFHZLWK,$6
,IWKHUHYLVHGDVVHWVQHWRIREOLJDWLRQH[FHHGVWKHUHFRYHUDEOHYDOXHWKDWSRUWLRQRIWKH
LQFUHDVHLVFKDUJHGGLUHFWO\WRH[SHQVHV

7KHIROORZLQJSUHVHQWVWKHUHFRQFLOLDWLRQRIWKHEHJLQQLQJDQGHQGLQJDJJUHJDWHFDUU\LQJ
DPRXQWRIWKHREOLJDWLRQ
  





$VVHWUHWLUHPHQWREOLJDWLRQEHJLQQLQJRI\HDU
   
/LDELOLWLHVLQFXUUHG
   

$FFUHWLRQH[SHQVH

 


$VVHWUHWLUHPHQWREOLJDWLRQHQGRI\HDU
   

7KHNH\DVVXPSWLRQVRQZKLFKWKHFDUU\LQJDPRXQWRIWKHREOLJDWLRQLVEDVHGLQFOXGHDULVN
IUHHUDWHRI ± DQGLQIODWLRQUDWHRI7KHWRWDOXQGLVFRXQWHGDPRXQWRI
WKHHVWLPDWHGFDVKIORZVUHTXLUHGWRVHWWOHWKHUHPDLQLQJREOLJDWLRQLV 
 ZKLFKLVQHWRIDPRXQWVSDLGLQSUHYLRXV\HDUVWRWDOOLQJ7KHH[SHFWHG
WLPLQJRISD\PHQWRIWKHFDVKIORZUHTXLUHGIRUVHWWOLQJWKHREOLJDWLRQLVWR\HDUV
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,VODQG:DVWH0DQDJHPHQW&RUSRUDWLRQ
1RWHVWRWKH&RQVROLGDWHG)LQDQFLDO6WDWHPHQWV
0DUFK

 &RPPLWPHQWV

7KH&RUSRUDWLRQFRQGXFWVDSRUWLRQRILWVRSHUDWLRQVWKHFRPSRVWIDFLOLW\SXUVXDQWWRDQ
RSHUDWLQJDJUHHPHQWZLWKDWKLUGSDUW\RSHUDWRU(IIHFWLYH$SULOWKHDJUHHPHQWSURYLGHV
IRUWKHSD\PHQWE\WKH&RUSRUDWLRQWRWKHRSHUDWRURIWKHIDFLOLW\DPLQLPXPDQQXDOIHHSOXVDQ
H[FHVVWRQQDJHIHH7KHPLQLPXPDQQXDOIHHFRPPLWPHQWXQGHUWKHRSHUDWLQJDJUHHPHQWLV
DVIROORZV




  
 
  

  

  


7KH&RUSRUDWLRQKDVHQWHUHGLQWRYDULRXVDJUHHPHQWVIRUWKHFROOHFWLRQRIUHF\FODEOHVZDVWH
DQGFRPSRVWPDWHULDOV(IIHFWLYH-XO\WKH&RUSRUDWLRQHQWHUHGLQWRLWVQHZFRQWUDFWIRU
UHF\FODEOHVZKLFKFDUULHVLQWR0LQLPXPSD\PHQWVIRUWKHFRQWUDFWVFXUUHQWO\LQSODFHDUH
DVIROORZV










  

  

  

  

  

  


7KH&RUSRUDWLRQKDVHQWHUHGLQWRDZDVWHSURFHVVLQJDJUHHPHQWGDWHG$XJXVWWR
VXSSO\3(,(QHUJ\6\VWHPVZLWKDPLQLPXPDQQXDOJXDUDQWHHGDPRXQWRIPHWULF
WRQQHVRIZDVWH7KH\HDUDJUHHPHQWH[SLULQJLQ$XJXVWSURYLGHVIRUWKHSD\PHQWE\
WKH&RUSRUDWLRQRIDSHUPHWULFWRQQHTXDUWHUO\IHHDGMXVWHGIRUFRQVXPHUSULFHLQGH[
IOXFWXDWLRQV$Q\VKRUWDJHLVWKHUHVSRQVLELOLW\RIWKH&RUSRUDWLRQ&XUUHQWDQQXDOFRVWVIRUWKH
ZDVWHSURFHVVLQJDUHHVWLPDWHGDW  


 )LQDQFLDOULVNPDQDJHPHQW

7KH&RUSRUDWLRQ¶VILQDQFLDOLQVWUXPHQWVFRQVLVWRIFDVKDQGFDVKHTXLYDOHQWVUHFHLYDEOHV
DFFRXQWVSD\DEOHDQGDFFUXHGOLDELOLWLHVDQGORQJWHUPGHEW

)LQDQFLDOULVNIDFWRUV
7KHIROORZLQJVHFWLRQVGHVFULEHWKH&RUSRUDWLRQ¶VILQDQFLDOULVNH[SRVXUHDQGUHODWHGPLWLJDWLRQ
VWUDWHJLHV

&UHGLWULVN
&UHGLWULVNLVWKHULVNRIDQXQH[SHFWHGORVVLIDFXVWRPHURUFRXQWHUSDUW\WRDILQDQFLDO
LQVWUXPHQWIDLOVWRPHHWLWVFRQWUDFWXDOREOLJDWLRQV7KH&RUSRUDWLRQLVVXEMHFWWRFUHGLWULVN
WKURXJKWUDGHUHFHLYDEOHV7KH&RUSRUDWLRQPLWLJDWHVFUHGLWULVNDVVRFLDWHGZLWKLWVWUDGH
UHFHLYDEOHVWKURXJKHVWDEOLVKLQJFUHGLWDSSURYDOOLPLWVDQGDUHJXODUPRQLWRULQJSURFHVV7KH
&RUSRUDWLRQJHQHUDOO\FRQVLGHUVWKHFUHGLWTXDOLW\RILWVILQDQFLDODVVHWVWKDWDUHQHLWKHUSDVW
GXHRULPSDLUHGWREHVROLG&UHGLWULVNLVPLWLJDWHGGXHWRWKHODUJHQXPEHURIFXVWRPHUV
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,VODQG:DVWH0DQDJHPHQW&RUSRUDWLRQ
1RWHVWRWKH&RQVROLGDWHG)LQDQFLDO6WDWHPHQWV
0DUFK

 )LQDQFLDOULVNPDQDJHPHQW FRQW¶G 

$OORZDQFHIRUGRXEWIXODFFRXQWVLVUHYLHZHGDWHDFKEDODQFHVKHHWGDWH7KH&RUSRUDWLRQ
XSGDWHVLWVHVWLPDWHVRIDOORZDQFHVIRUGRXEWIXODFFRXQWVEDVHGRQFXVWRPHUKLVWRU\

+RXVHKROGXVHUIHHVDUHFROOHFWHGE\WKH3URYLQFHRI3ULQFH(GZDUG,VODQGWKURXJKLWV
SURYLQFLDOWD[V\VWHP

,QWHUHVWUDWHULVN
,QWHUHVWUDWHULVNLVWKHSRWHQWLDOIRUILQDQFLDOORVVDULVLQJIURPFKDQJHVLQLQWHUHVWUDWHV
)LQDQFLDOLQVWUXPHQWVWKDWSRWHQWLDOO\VXEMHFWWKH&RUSRUDWLRQWRLQWHUHVWUDWHULVNLQFOXGH
ILQDQFLDOOLDELOLWLHVZLWKIORDWLQJLQWHUHVWUDWHV7KH&RUSRUDWLRQFXUUHQWO\KDVQRILQDQFLDO
LQVWUXPHQWVZKLFKDUHH[SRVHGWRLQWHUHVWUDWHULVNGXHWRIORDWLQJUDWHVEXWLVH[SRVHGWRULVN
DVVRFLDWHGZLWKIL[HGWHUPGHEWWKDWPDWXUHVDVQRWHGLQ1RWH

/LTXLGLW\ULVN
/LTXLGLW\ULVNLVWKHULVNWKDWWKH&RUSRUDWLRQPD\QRWKDYHFDVKDYDLODEOHWRVDWLVI\ILQDQFLDO
OLDELOLWLHVDVWKH\FRPHGXH7KH&RUSRUDWLRQSUHSDUHVDQDQQXDOFDVKIORZEXGJHWZKLFKLW
PRQLWRUVRQDPRQWKO\EDVLVWRHQVXUHWKDWLWKDVVXIILFLHQWDYDLODEOHIXQGVWRPHHWFXUUHQW
DQGIRUHVHHDEOHIXWXUHILQDQFLDOUHTXLUHPHQWV

0DUNHWULVN
7KH&RUSRUDWLRQLVVXEMHFWWRPDUNHWULVNUHODWHGWRWKHSULFHRIGLHVHOIXHO7KH&RUSRUDWLRQ
KDVHQWHUHGLQWRYDULRXVDJUHHPHQWVIRUWKHFROOHFWLRQRIUHF\FODEOHVZDVWHDQGFRPSRVW
PDWHULDOV7KHVHFRQWUDFWVLQFOXGHDSURYLVLRQWKDWUHTXLUHVWKH&RUSRUDWLRQWRSD\DQDQQXDO
IXHODGMXVWPHQWEDVHGRQWKHDQQXDODYHUDJHSULFHRIGLHVHOIXHODVFRPSDUHGWRWKHEDVH
UDWHSHUWKHFRQWUDFW)RUWKH\HDUHQG0DUFKKDGWKHDYHUDJHSULFHRIGLHVHOIXHO
LQFUHDVHGRUGHFUHDVHGE\GXULQJWKH\HDUWKHHDUQLQJVRIWKH&RUSRUDWLRQZRXOGKDYH
LQFUHDVHGRUGHFUHDVHGE\DSSUR[LPDWHO\  7KH&RUSRUDWLRQ
FXUUHQWO\KDVQRVWUDWHJ\LQSODFHWRPLWLJDWHWKLVULVN0DQDJHPHQWGRHVPRQLWRUWKHFXUUHQW
SULFHRIIXHORQDUHJXODUEDVLV

)DLUYDOXHV
7KHFDUU\LQJDPRXQWVIRUFDVKDQGFDVKHTXLYDOHQWVUHFHLYDEOHVDFFRXQWVSD\DEOHDQG
DFFUXHGOLDELOLWLHVDSSUR[LPDWHIDLUYDOXHGXHWRWKHVKRUWWHUPPDWXULW\RIWKHVHLQVWUXPHQWV
RUWHUPVRIWKHLQVWUXPHQW7KHFDUU\LQJDPRXQWIRUWKHORQJWHUPGHEWDSSUR[LPDWHGIDLU
YDOXHDVWKHLQWHUHVWUDWHZDVUHIOHFWLYHRIUDWHVDYDLODEOHIRUVLPLODUGHEW







38%/,&$&&2817692/80(,,,



,VODQG:DVWH0DQDJHPHQW&RUSRUDWLRQ
1RWHVWRWKH&RQVROLGDWHG)LQDQFLDO6WDWHPHQWV
0DUFK

 )LQDQFLDOULVNPDQDJHPHQW FRQW¶G 

,)56³)LQDQFLDO,QVWUXPHQWV±'LVFORVXUHV´SUHVFULEHVWKHIROORZLQJWKUHHOHYHOIDLUYDOXH
KLHUDUFK\IRUGLVFORVXUHSXUSRVHVEDVHGRQWKHWUDQVSDUHQF\RIWKHLQSXWVXVHGWRPHDVXUH
WKHIDLUYDOXHVRIWKHDVVHWDQGOLDELOLWLHV

D  /HYHO±TXRWHGSULFH XQDGMXVWHG RILGHQWLFDOLQVWUXPHQWVLQDFWLYHPDUNHWVWKDWWKH
UHSRUWLQJHQWLW\KDVWKHDELOLW\WRDFFHVVDWWKHPHDVXUHPHQWGDWH
E  /HYHO±LQSXWVDUHTXRWHGSULFHVRIVLPLODULQVWUXPHQWVLQDFWLYHPDUNHWVTXRWHG
SULFHVIRULGHQWLFDORUVLPLODULQVWUXPHQWVLQPDUNHWVWKDWDUHQRWDFWLYHLQSXWVRWKHU
WKDQTXRWHGSULFHVXVHGLQDYDOXDWLRQPRGHOWKDWDUHREVHUYDEOHIRUWKDWLQVWUXPHQW
DQGLQSXWVWKDWDUHGHULYHGSULQFLSDOO\IURPRUFRUURERUDWHGE\REVHUYDEOHPDUNHW
GDWDE\FRUUHODWLRQRURWKHUPHDQV
F  /HYHO±RQHRUPRUHVLJQLILFDQWLQSXWVXVHGLQDYDOXDWLRQWHFKQLTXHDUH
XQREVHUYDEOHIRUWKHLQVWUXPHQWV

'HWHUPLQDWLRQRIIDLUYDOXHDQGWKHUHVXOWLQJKLHUDUFK\UHTXLUHVWKHXVHRIREVHUYDEOHPDUNHW
GDWDZKHQHYHUDYDLODEOH7KHFODVVLILFDWLRQRIDILQDQFLDOLQVWUXPHQWLQWKHKLHUDUFK\LVEDVHG
XSRQWKHORZHVWOHYHORILQSXWWKDWLVVLJQLILFDQWWRWKHPHDVXUHPHQWRIIDLUYDOXH

7KH&RUSRUDWLRQGRHVQRWKDYHDQ\ILQDQFLDOLQVWUXPHQWVPHDVXUHGDWIDLUYDOXH


 (PSOR\HHIXWXUHEHQHILWV

6KRUWWHUPEHQHILWV
7KH&RUSRUDWLRQ¶VVKRUWWHUPEHQHILWVIRUTXDOLILHGDFWLYHHPSOR\HHVLQFOXGHEDVHVDODU\
FRPSHQVDWHGDEVHQFHVJURXSOLIHLQVXUDQFHGHQWDODQGPHGLFDOFRYHUDJH

3HQVLRQSODQ
7KHSHUPDQHQWHPSOR\HHVRIWKH&RUSRUDWLRQSDUWLFLSDWHLQWKHPXOWLHPSOR\HUFRQWULEXWRU\
GHILQHGEHQHILWSHQVLRQSODQDGPLQLVWHUHGE\WKH3URYLQFHRI3ULQFH(GZDUG,VODQGXQGHUWKH
&LYLO6HUYLFH6XSHUDQQXDWLRQ$FW7KH&LYLO6HUYLFH6XSHUDQQXDWLRQ)XQGSURYLGHVSHQVLRQV
WRHPSOR\HHVRIWKH3URYLQFLDO*RYHUQPHQWDQGFHUWDLQFURZQFRUSRUDWLRQVDQGDJHQFLHV
EDVHGRQWKHOHQJWKRIVHUYLFHDQGDYHUDJHVDODU\6LQFHVXIILFLHQWLQIRUPDWLRQLVQRWUHDGLO\
DYDLODEOHWRDFFRXQWIRUWKH&RUSRUDWLRQ¶VSDUWLFLSDWLRQLQWKHSODQXVLQJGHILQHGEHQHILW
SHQVLRQSODQDFFRXQWLQJWKHVHILQDQFLDOVWDWHPHQWVKDYHEHHQSUHSDUHGXVLQJDFFRXQWLQJ
UXOHVIRUGHILQHGFRQWULEXWLRQSHQVLRQSODQV7KHFXUUHQW\HDUH[SHQVHIRUWKLVSHQVLRQSODQLV
  

$W0DUFKWKH&LYLO6HUYLFH6XSHUDQQXDWLRQ)XQGUHSRUWHGWKDWWKHSHQVLRQSODQZDV
IXOO\IXQGHG
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,VODQG:DVWH0DQDJHPHQW&RUSRUDWLRQ
1RWHVWRWKH&RQVROLGDWHG)LQDQFLDO6WDWHPHQWV
0DUFK

 (PSOR\HHIXWXUHEHQHILWV FRQW¶G 

5HWLUHPHQWSD\EHQHILWV
7KH&RUSRUDWLRQVFXUUHQWO\SURYLGHVDUHWLUHPHQWSD\EHQHILWHTXDOWRRQHZHHNV¶SD\IRUHDFK
\HDURIVHUYLFHVXEMHFWWRDPD[LPXPEHQHILWHTXDOWRZHHNV¶SD\7KHUHWLUHPHQWSD\
EHQHILWLVSD\DEOHXSRQUHWLUHPHQW(PSOR\HHVTXDOLI\DWUHWLUHPHQWLIWKH\KDYHDFFUXHG
\HDUVRIVHUYLFHDWWDLQHGDJHDQGDUHHOLJLEOHWRUHFHLYHDSHQVLRQIURPWKH&LYLO6HUYLFH
6XSHUDQQXDWLRQ)XQG5HWLUHPHQWSD\EHQHILWVDUHDFFUXHGRQDQDQQXDOEDVLVEDVHGRQ
HOLJLELOLW\DQGDUHUHIOHFWHGLQWKHDFFRXQWVSD\DEOHDW\HDUHQG

(PSOR\HHEHQHILWVULVNV
7KH&RUSRUDWLRQ¶VGHILQHGEHQHILWSODQLVLQGLUHFWO\H[SRVHGWRHFRQRPLFULVNVZLWKUHVSHFWWR
PHDVXUHPHQWULVNIURPDVVXPSWLRQVEDVHGRQHFRQRPLFIDFWRUVVXFKDVGLVFRXQWUDWHV
DIIHFWHGE\YRODWLOHERQGPDUNHWV%HQHILWREOLJDWLRQVDUHH[SRVHGWRXQFHUWDLQW\RIIXWXUH
HFRQRPLFFRQGLWLRQVSULPDULO\LQIODWLRQULVNGXHWRXQFHUWDLQW\RIWKHWLPLQJRIWKHSD\PHQWV


'HPRJUDSKLFIDFWRUVDIIHFWFXUUHQWDQGIXWXUHEHQHILWFRVWVZLWKUHVSHFWWRWKHDPRXQWDQG
WLPHKRUL]RQRIH[SHFWHGSD\PHQWVGXHWRVXFKIDFWRUVDVZRUNIRUFHDYHUDJHDJHDQG
HDUQLQJVOHYHOVDWWULWLRQDQGUHWLUHPHQWUDWHV

7KH&RUSRUDWLRQLVDOVRH[SRVHGWRIXQGLQJULVNLQWKHPXOWLHPSOR\HUSODQVDULVLQJIURP
OHJLVODWLYHFKDQJHVDIIHFWLQJHOLJLELOLW\IRUDQGDPRXQWRISHQVLRQDQGUHODWHGEHQHILWVDQG
SHUIRUPDQFHRISODQDVVHWVDIIHFWHGE\LQYHVWPHQWSROLFLHVVHWE\WKHJRYHUQPHQW%HFDXVH
WKHVHSODQVDUHJRYHUQHGE\OHJLVODWLRQUDWKHUWKDQFRQWUDFWWKHUHLVOLWWOHIOH[LELOLW\IRU
SDUWLFLSDQWVZLWKUHVSHFWWRZLWKGUDZDOIURPWKHSODQSODQZLQGXSRUDPHQGPHQWVDQG
IXQGLQJUHTXLUHPHQWV


 5HODWHGSDUW\WUDQVDFWLRQV


,QFOXGHGLQWKHVHFRQVROLGDWHGILQDQFLDOVWDWHPHQWVDUHWUDQVDFWLRQVZLWKYDULRXV3ULQFH(GZDUG
,VODQGFURZQFRUSRUDWLRQVGHSDUWPHQWVDJHQFLHVDQGERDUGVUHODWHGWRWKH&RUSRUDWLRQE\
YLUWXHRIFRPPRQLQIOXHQFHE\WKH*RYHUQPHQWRI3ULQFH(GZDUG,VODQG5RXWLQHRSHUDWLQJ
WUDQVDFWLRQVLQWKHRUGLQDU\FRXUVHRIEXVLQHVVZLWKUHODWHGSDUWLHVDUHVHWWOHGDWSUHYDLOLQJ
PDUNHWSULFHVXQGHUQRUPDOWUDGHWHUPV

7KHWDEOHEHORZSUHVHQWVWRWDOFRPSHQVDWLRQRIWKHNH\PDQDJHPHQWSHUVRQQHOZKLFK
LQFOXGHVWKH%RDUGRI'LUHFWRUVDQGVHQLRUH[HFXWLYHPDQDJHPHQW%RDUGRI'LUHFWRU
+RQRUDULXPVDUHSDLGEDVHGRQVWDQGDUGVVHWDQGDSSURYHGE\WKH7UHDVXU\%RDUG




6KRUWWHUPHPSOR\HHEHQHILWV
3RVWHPSOR\PHQWEHQHILWV
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,VODQG:DVWH0DQDJHPHQW&RUSRUDWLRQ
1RWHVWRWKH&RQVROLGDWHG)LQDQFLDO6WDWHPHQWV
0DUFK

 5DWHUHJXODWLRQ

7KH&RUSRUDWLRQLVVXEMHFWWRUDWHUHJXODWLRQRQWKHKRXVHKROGXVHUIHHVDQGGLVSRVDOIHHV
FKDUJHGWRUHVLGHQWVRI3ULQFH(GZDUG,VODQGXQGHUWKHIsland Regulatory Appeals
Commission Act7KHSXUSRVHRIWKLV$FWZKLFKLVDGPLQLVWHUHGE\WKH,VODQG5HJXODWRU\DQG
$SSHDO&RPPLVVLRQ ,5$& LVWRUHJXODWHWKHUDWHWKH&RUSRUDWLRQPD\FKDUJHIRUFROOHFWLRQ
DQGGLVSRVDORIVROLGZDVWHZLWKLQ3ULQFH(GZDUG,VODQGDQGWRHQVXUHDWDOOWLPHVDMXVWDQG
UHDVRQDEOHSULFHIRUWKLVVHUYLFH&KDQJHVLQKRXVHKROGXVHUIHHVDQGGLVSRVDOIHHVFDQRQO\
EHLPSOHPHQWHGZLWKWKHDSSURYDORI,5$&


 &DSLWDOPDQDJHPHQW

7KH&RUSRUDWLRQ¶VREMHFWLYHVZKHQPDQDJLQJFDSLWDOLVWRVDIHJXDUGWKH&RUSRUDWLRQ¶VDELOLW\WR
VXSSRUWWKHQRUPDORSHUDWLQJUHTXLUHPHQWVRQDQRQJRLQJEDVLVVXSSRUWDQ\FDSLWDO
H[SHQGLWXUHVWKDWPD\EHUHTXLUHGLQWKHQRUPDORSHUDWLRQVRIWKH&RUSRUDWLRQDQGJHQHUDWH
VXIILFLHQWFDVKIORZWRPDQDJHLWVH[LVWLQJGHEW

7KH&RUSRUDWLRQ¶VFDSLWDOFRQVLVWVRIFDVKDQGFDVKHTXLYDOHQWVORQJWHUPGHEWDQGQHWDVVHWV
7KH&RUSRUDWLRQ¶VSULPDU\XVHVRIWKHVHIXQGVDUHWRILQDQFHFDSLWDOH[SHQGLWXUHVUHSD\GHEW
REOLJDWLRQVDQGIXQGQRUPDORSHUDWLRQV,QRUGHUWRIDFLOLWDWHWKHPDQDJHPHQWRILWVFDSLWDO
UHTXLUHPHQWVWKH&RUSRUDWLRQSUHSDUHVDQQXDORSHUDWLQJEXGJHWVDQGDFWXDOWREXGJHW
IRUHFDVWVRQDTXDUWHUO\EDVLV7RPDLQWDLQRUREWDLQDGGLWLRQDOFDSLWDOWKH&RUSRUDWLRQPD\
LVVXHQHZGHEWUHGXFHRSHUDWLQJFRVWVXWLOL]HWKHFHQWUDOEDQNLQJFUHGLWDJUHHPHQWRUPDNHD
UHTXHVWWR,5$&WRLQFUHDVHKRXVHKROGXVHUDQGGLVSRVDOIHHV

7KH&RUSRUDWLRQLVQRWVXEMHFWWRH[WHUQDOO\LPSRVHGFDSLWDOUHTXLUHPHQWVDQGWKHUHKDYHEHHQ
QRFKDQJHVZLWKUHVSHFWWRWKHRYHUDOOFDSLWDOULVNPDQDJHPHQWVWUDWHJ\GXULQJWKH\HDU


 %DQNLQGHEWHGQHVV

7KH&RUSRUDWLRQKDVDQDXWKRUL]HGRSHUDWLQJRYHUGUDIWRI7KHRSHUDWLQJRYHUGUDIW
EHDUVLQWHUHVWDWSULPHOHVVIRUXSWR3ULPHDW0DUFKZDV$V
VHFXULW\WKH&RUSRUDWLRQKDVSURYLGHGDJHQHUDOVHFXULW\DJUHHPHQWRQLWVLQYHVWPHQWV WHUP
GHSRVLWV KHOGZLWK7RURQWR'RPLQLRQ%DQN7KHRYHUGUDIWSURWHFWLRQGRHVQRWUHTXLUHILQDQFLDO
JXDUDQWHH


 2WKHUPDWWHUV

&RVWVDVVRFLDWHGZLWKWKHFORVXUHDQGGHFRPPLVVLRQLQJRISURYLQFLDOGXPSVLWHVDUHWKH
UHVSRQVLELOLW\RIWKH3URYLQFHRI3ULQFH(GZDUG,VODQG
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,VODQG:DVWH0DQDJHPHQW&RUSRUDWLRQ
&RQVROLGDWHG6FKHGXOHRI5HYHQXHV
<HDUHQGHG0DUFK








 



 



 



 



 

 
 











 

 
 













 

 

+RXVHKROG8VHU)HHV

%LOOHGE\,VODQG:DVWH0DQDJHPHQW&RUSRUDWLRQ
%LOOHGWKURXJKSURSHUW\WD[HV
&DUWUHYHQXHV
5HIXQGVDQGDGMXVWPHQWV

  



'LVSRVDO)HHV

(DVW3ULQFH:DVWH0DQDJHPHQW)DFLOLW\
(QHUJ\IURP:DVWH
&HQWUDO&RPSRVW)DFLOLW\
%URFNWRQ
'LQJZHOOV0LOOV
0XUUD\5LYHU
1HZ/RQGRQ
2WKHU
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,VODQG:DVWH0DQDJHPHQW&RUSRUDWLRQ
&RQVROLGDWHG6FKHGXOHRI([SHQGLWXUHV
<HDUHQGHG0DUFK
























 



























 









 


 

$GPLQLVWUDWLRQ

'XHVDQGPHPEHUVKLSV
,QVXUDQFH
,QWHUHVWDQGEDQNFKDUJHV
0LVFHOODQHRXV
2IILFHHTXLSPHQW
2IILFHVXSSOLHV
3URIHVVLRQDOIHHV
5HQW
5HSDLUVDQGPDLQWHQDQFH
6DODULHVDQGEHQHILWV
6XSSOLHV
7HOHSKRQH
7UDYHO
8WLOLWLHV





$GYHUWLVLQJ(GXFDWLRQDQG3XEOLF5HODWLRQV

$GYHUWLVLQJ
(GXFDWLRQ
3XEOLFUHODWLRQV
:DJHVDQGEHQHILWV




















 






 

5HVLGHQWLDO&ROOHFWLRQ

&DUWSXUFKDVHVDQGZULWHRIIV
&ROOHFWLRQFRQWUDFWV
 &RPSRVWDQGZDVWH
 5HF\FODEOHV
2SHUDWLRQVVXSSRUWWHFKQLFLDQV
 :DJHVDQGEHQHILWV
 9HKLFOHDQGVXSSOLHV
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,VODQG:DVWH0DQDJHPHQW&RUSRUDWLRQ
&RQVROLGDWHG6FKHGXOHRI([SHQGLWXUHV
<HDUHQGHG0DUFK
   

'LVSRVDO

(DVW3ULQFH:DVWH0DQDJHPHQW)DFLOLW\

 $FFUHWLRQ
(TXLSPHQWUHQWDO
*DVDQGRLO
+RXVHKROGKD]DUGRXVZDVWH
/HDFKDWHGLVSRVDO

2IILFHDQGPLVFHOODQHRXV
5HSDLUVDQGPDLQWHQDQFH
6DODULHVZDJHVDQGEHQHILWV
6HFXULW\
6XSSOLHVDQGPDWHULDOV
7HOHSKRQH
7UDYHODQGFRQIHUHQFHV
8WLOLWLHV




4XHHQV&RXQW\5HJLRQDO/DQGILOO

5HSDLUVDQGPDLQWHQDQFH
 8WLOLWLHV



(QHUJ\IURP:DVWH

)O\DVKGLVSRVDO
3(,(QHUJ\6\VWHPV
5HSDLUVDQGPDLQWHQDQFH±VFDOH
6FDOHKRXVHVXSSOLHV
:DJHVDQGEHQHILWV±VFDOHRSHUDWRUDQGLQVSHFWRU



&HQWUDO&RPSRVWLQJ)DFLOLW\

&RQWUDFW
,QVXUDQFH
3URSHUW\WD[
5HSDLUVDQGPDLQWHQDQFH
:DJHVDQGEHQHILWV
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,VODQG:DVWH0DQDJHPHQW&RUSRUDWLRQ
&RQVROLGDWHG6FKHGXOHRI([SHQGLWXUHV
<HDUHQGHG0DUFK
   









'LVSRVDO FRQW¶G 

:DVWH:DWFK'URS2II&HQWHUV

%OXHEDJGLVSRVDO
*UHHQ,VOH(QYLURQPHQWDOFRQWUDFW
+RXVHKROGKD]DUGRXVZDVWH
0DWHULDODQGVXSSOLHV
0LVFHOODQHRXVDQGDVSKDOWVKLQJOHV
5HSDLUVDQGPDLQWHQDQFH
6HFXULW\
6LJQDJH
7HOHSKRQH
7UDYHO
8WLOLWLHV
:DJHVDQGEHQHILWV



7UDQVSRUWDWLRQRI0DWHULDO

0RWRUYHKLFOH
6XSSOLHV
:DJHVDQGEHQHILWV




























































 

 

























 

 







 
 

 

 

7LUH&ROOHFWLRQDQG'LVSRVDO

&ROOHFWLRQ
'LVSRVDO












38%/,&$&&2817692/80(,,,





,VODQG:DVWH0DQDJHPHQW&RUSRUDWLRQ
&RQVROLGDWHG6FKHGXOHRI8WLOLW\2SHUDWLRQV
<HDUHQGHG0DUFK



















 2SHUDWLQJ


 2SHUDWLQJ



 5HYHQXHV
 FRVWV
 5HYHQXHV

FRVWV


$GGLFWLRQV










$OEDQ\


 
 
 
 
%ORRPILHOG










%UXGHQHOO


 
 
 
 
&RUUHFWLRQV










&URZEXVK


 
 




(DVWHUQ6FKRRO 









)LQDQFH3(,










*HRUJHWRZQ


 
 
 
 
0LOO5LYHU


 
 
 
 
1RUWKSRUW$OEHUWRQ









2WKHU










3DUNV










:HVWHUQ6FKRRO 




















,QFOXGHGLQWKHFRVWVDERYHDUHZDJHVRI  FDSLWDODVVHW
GHSUHFLDWLRQRI  DPRUWL]DWLRQRIGHIHUUHGJRYHUQPHQWDVVLVWDQFHRI
 ± DQGLQWHUHVWRI  
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P.E.I. Agriculture Insurance Corporation

Audited Financial Statements for P.E.I. Agriculture Insurance Corporation for the year
ended March 31, 2020 were not provided to the Office of the Comptroller as required by
Section 70 (4) of the Financial Administration Act. Unaudited, draft financial statements
were used in the preparation of the Public Accounts.
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PRINCE EDWARD ISLAND
CANNABIS MANAGEMENT CORPORATION
Financial Statements
March 31, 2020
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PRINCE EDWARD ISLAND CANNABIS MANAGEMENT CORPORATION
Index to Financial Statements
March 31, 2020

3DJH
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6WDWHPHQWRI)LQDQFLDO3RVLWLRQ



6WDWHPHQWRI&KDQJHVLQ(TXLW\



6WDWHPHQWRI3URILWRU/RVV



6WDWHPHQWRI&DVK)ORZ



1RWHVWR)LQDQFLDO6WDWHPHQWV



6FKHGXOHVWR)LQDQFLDO6WDWHPHQWV
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the Commissioners of Prince Edward Island Cannabis Management Corporation
2SLQLRQ
:H KDYH DXGLWHG WKH ILQDQFLDO VWDWHPHQWV RI 3ULQFH (GZDUG ,VODQG &DQQDELV 0DQDJHPHQW &RUSRUDWLRQ
WKH &RUSRUDWLRQ  ZKLFK FRPSULVH WKH VWDWHPHQW RI ILQDQFLDO SRVLWLRQ DV DW 0DUFK   DQG WKH
VWDWHPHQWV RI FKDQJHV LQ HTXLW\ SURILW RU ORVV DQG FDVK IORZ IRU WKH \HDU WKHQ HQGHG DQG QRWHV WR WKH
ILQDQFLDOVWDWHPHQWVLQFOXGLQJDVXPPDU\RIVLJQLILFDQWDFFRXQWLQJSROLFLHV
,QRXURSLQLRQWKHDFFRPSDQ\LQJILQDQFLDOVWDWHPHQWVSUHVHQWIDLUO\LQDOOPDWHULDOUHVSHFWVWKHILQDQFLDO
SRVLWLRQRIWKH&RUSRUDWLRQDVDW0DUFKDQGLWVILQDQFLDOSHUIRUPDQFHDQGLWVFDVKIORZIRUWKH
\HDU WKHQHQGHGLQDFFRUGDQFHZLWK,QWHUQDWLRQDO)LQDQFLDO5HSRUWLQJ6WDQGDUGV
%DVLVIRU2SLQLRQ
:H FRQGXFWHG RXU DXGLW LQ DFFRUGDQFH ZLWK &DQDGLDQ JHQHUDOO\ DFFHSWHG DXGLWLQJ VWDQGDUGV 2XU
UHVSRQVLELOLWLHVXQGHUWKRVHVWDQGDUGVDUHIXUWKHUGHVFULEHGLQWKH$XGLWRU V5HVSRQVLELOLWLHVIRUWKH$XGLW
RIWKH)LQDQFLDO6WDWHPHQWVVHFWLRQRIRXUUHSRUW:HDUHLQGHSHQGHQWRIWKH&RUSRUDWLRQLQDFFRUGDQFH
ZLWKWKHHWKLFDOUHTXLUHPHQWVWKDWDUHUHOHYDQWWRRXUDXGLWRIWKHILQDQFLDOVWDWHPHQWVLQ&DQDGDDQGZH
KDYHIXOILOOHGRXURWKHUHWKLFDOUHVSRQVLELOLWLHVLQDFFRUGDQFHZLWKWKRVHUHTXLUHPHQWV:HEHOLHYHWKDWWKH
DXGLWHYLGHQFHZHKDYHREWDLQHGLVVXIILFLHQWDQGDSSURSULDWHWRSURYLGHDEDVLVIRURXU RSLQLRQ
5HVSRQVLELOLWLHVRI0DQDJHPHQWDQG7KRVH&KDUJHGZLWK*RYHUQDQFHIRUWKH)LQDQFLDO6WDWHPHQWV
0DQDJHPHQW LV UHVSRQVLEOH IRU WKH SUHSDUDWLRQ DQG IDLU SUHVHQWDWLRQ RI WKH ILQDQFLDO VWDWHPHQWV LQ
DFFRUGDQFH ZLWK ,QWHUQDWLRQDO )LQDQFLDO 5HSRUWLQJ 6WDQGDUGV DQG IRU VXFK LQWHUQDO FRQWURO DV
PDQDJHPHQWGHWHUPLQHVLVQHFHVVDU\WRHQDEOHWKHSUHSDUDWLRQRIILQDQFLDOVWDWHPHQWVWKDWDUHIUHHIURP
PDWHULDOPLVVWDWHPHQWZKHWKHUGXHWRIUDXGRUHUURU
,QSUHSDULQJWKHILQDQFLDOVWDWHPHQWVPDQDJHPHQWLVUHVSRQVLEOHIRUDVVHVVLQJWKH&RUSRUDWLRQ VDELOLW\WR
FRQWLQXH DV D JRLQJ FRQFHUQ GLVFORVLQJ DV DSSOLFDEOH PDWWHUV UHODWLQJ WR JRLQJ FRQFHUQ DQG XVLQJ WKH
JRLQJ FRQFHUQ EDVLV RI DFFRXQWLQJ XQOHVV PDQDJHPHQW HLWKHU LQWHQGV WR OLTXLGDWH WKH &RUSRUDWLRQ RU WR
FHDVHRSHUDWLRQVRUKDVQRUHDOLVWLFDOWHUQDWLYHEXWWRGRVR
7KRVH FKDUJHG ZLWK JRYHUQDQFH DUH UHVSRQVLEOH IRU RYHUVHHLQJ WKH &RUSRUDWLRQ V ILQDQFLDO UHSRUWLQJ
SURFHVV

(continues)
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$XGLWRU V5HVSRQVLELOLWLHVIRUWKH$XGLWRIWKH)LQDQFLDO6WDWHPHQWV
2XUREMHFWLYHVDUHWRREWDLQUHDVRQDEOHDVVXUDQFHDERXWZKHWKHUWKHILQDQFLDOVWDWHPHQWVDVDZKROHDUH
IUHH IURP PDWHULDO PLVVWDWHPHQW ZKHWKHU GXH WR IUDXG RU HUURU DQG WR LVVXH DQ DXGLWRU¶V UHSRUW WKDW
LQFOXGHVRXURSLQLRQ5HDVRQDEOHDVVXUDQFHLVDKLJKOHYHORIDVVXUDQFHEXWLVQRWDJXDUDQWHHWKDWDQ
DXGLWFRQGXFWHGLQDFFRUGDQFHZLWK&DQDGLDQJHQHUDOO\DFFHSWHGDXGLWLQJVWDQGDUGVZLOODOZD\VGHWHFWD
PDWHULDO PLVVWDWHPHQW ZKHQ LW H[LVWV 0LVVWDWHPHQWV FDQ DULVH IURP IUDXG RU HUURU DQG DUH FRQVLGHUHG
PDWHULDOLILQGLYLGXDOO\RULQWKHDJJUHJDWHWKH\FRXOGUHDVRQDEO\EHH[SHFWHGWRLQIOXHQFHWKHHFRQRPLF
GHFLVLRQVRIXVHUVWDNHQRQWKHEDVLVRIWKHVHILQDQFLDOVWDWHPHQWV$VSDUWRIDQDXGLWLQDFFRUGDQFHZLWK
&DQDGLDQ JHQHUDOO\ DFFHSWHG DXGLWLQJ VWDQGDUGV ZH H[HUFLVH SURIHVVLRQDO MXGJPHQW DQG PDLQWDLQ
SURIHVVLRQDOVNHSWLFLVPWKURXJKRXWWKHDXGLW:HDOVR










,GHQWLI\ DQG DVVHVV WKH ULVNV RI PDWHULDO PLVVWDWHPHQW RI WKH ILQDQFLDO VWDWHPHQWV ZKHWKHU GXH WR
IUDXG RU HUURU GHVLJQ DQG SHUIRUP DXGLW SURFHGXUHV UHVSRQVLYH WR WKRVH ULVNV DQG REWDLQ DXGLW
HYLGHQFHWKDWLVVXIILFLHQWDQGDSSURSULDWHWRSURYLGHDEDVLVIRURXURSLQLRQ7KHULVNRIQRWGHWHFWLQJ
DPDWHULDOPLVVWDWHPHQWUHVXOWLQJIURPIUDXGLVKLJKHUWKDQIRURQHUHVXOWLQJIURPHUURUDVIUDXGPD\
LQYROYH FROOXVLRQ IRUJHU\ LQWHQWLRQDO RPLVVLRQV PLVUHSUHVHQWDWLRQV RU WKH RYHUULGH RI LQWHUQDO
FRQWURO
2EWDLQDQXQGHUVWDQGLQJRILQWHUQDOFRQWUROUHOHYDQWWRWKHDXGLWLQRUGHUWRGHVLJQDXGLWSURFHGXUHV
WKDW DUH DSSURSULDWH LQ WKH FLUFXPVWDQFHV EXW QRW IRU WKH SXUSRVH RI H[SUHVVLQJ DQ RSLQLRQ RQ WKH
HIIHFWLYHQHVVRIWKH&RUSRUDWLRQ¶VLQWHUQDOFRQWURO
(YDOXDWH WKH DSSURSULDWHQHVV RI DFFRXQWLQJ SROLFLHV XVHG DQG WKH UHDVRQDEOHQHVV RI DFFRXQWLQJ
HVWLPDWHVDQGUHODWHGGLVFORVXUHVPDGHE\PDQDJHPHQW
&RQFOXGH RQ WKH DSSURSULDWHQHVV RI PDQDJHPHQW¶V XVH RI WKH JRLQJ FRQFHUQ EDVLV RI DFFRXQWLQJ
DQGEDVHGRQWKHDXGLWHYLGHQFHREWDLQHGZKHWKHUDPDWHULDOXQFHUWDLQW\H[LVWVUHODWHGWRHYHQWVRU
FRQGLWLRQVWKDWPD\FDVWVLJQLILFDQWGRXEWRQWKH&RUSRUDWLRQ¶VDELOLW\WRFRQWLQXHDVDJRLQJFRQFHUQ
,I ZH FRQFOXGH WKDW D PDWHULDO XQFHUWDLQW\ H[LVWV ZH DUH UHTXLUHG WR GUDZ DWWHQWLRQ LQ RXU DXGLWRU¶V
UHSRUWWRWKHUHODWHGGLVFORVXUHVLQWKHILQDQFLDOVWDWHPHQWVRULIVXFKGLVFORVXUHVDUHLQDGHTXDWHWR
PRGLI\RXURSLQLRQ2XUFRQFOXVLRQVDUHEDVHGRQWKHDXGLWHYLGHQFHREWDLQHGXSWRWKHGDWHRIRXU
DXGLWRU¶V UHSRUW +RZHYHU IXWXUH HYHQWV RU FRQGLWLRQV PD\ FDXVH WKH &RUSRUDWLRQ WR FHDVH WR
FRQWLQXHDVDJRLQJFRQFHUQ
(YDOXDWH WKH RYHUDOO SUHVHQWDWLRQ VWUXFWXUH DQG FRQWHQW RI WKH ILQDQFLDO VWDWHPHQWV LQFOXGLQJ WKH
GLVFORVXUHVDQGZKHWKHUWKHILQDQFLDOVWDWHPHQWVUHSUHVHQWWKHXQGHUO\LQJWUDQVDFWLRQVDQGHYHQWVLQ
DPDQQHUWKDWDFKLHYHVIDLUSUHVHQWDWLRQ

:H FRPPXQLFDWH ZLWK WKRVH FKDUJHG ZLWK JRYHUQDQFH UHJDUGLQJ DPRQJ RWKHU PDWWHUV WKH SODQQHG
VFRSHDQGWLPLQJRIWKHDXGLWDQGVLJQLILFDQWDXGLWILQGLQJVLQFOXGLQJDQ\VLJQLILFDQWGHILFLHQFLHVLQLQWHUQDO
FRQWUROWKDWZHLGHQWLI\GXULQJRXUDXGLW

056%&+$57(5('352)(66,21$/$&&2817$176,1&

&KDUORWWHWRZQ3(
'HFHPEHU
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PRINCE EDWARD ISLAND CANNABIS MANAGEMENT CORPORATION
Statement of Financial Position
March 31, 2020
2020



ASSETS
Current
&DVK
$FFRXQWVUHFHLYDEOH 1RWH
,QYHQWRU\ 1RWH
'XHIURP3URYLQFHRI3ULQFH(GZDUG,VODQG 1RWH
3UHSDLGH[SHQVHV

$









6,944,043
3,813,335




$ 10,757,378

 

$



Property and equipment 6FKHGXOHVDQG
Total assets

1,092,658
447,305
5,292,505
111,575

LIABILITIES
Current
$FFRXQWVSD\DEOHDQGDFFUXHGOLDELOLWLHV 1RWH
'HIHUUHGUHYHQXH
'XHWR3URYLQFHRI3ULQFH(GZDUG,VODQG 1RWH
&XUUHQWSRUWLRQRIGHEHQWXUHVSD\DEOH 1RWH
&XUUHQWSRUWLRQRIOHDVHOLDELOLWLHV 1RWH
Debentures payable 1RWH
Lease liabilities 1RWH
Total liabilities

2,875,769
3,904
272,274
987,908
160,060







4,299,915
5,054,613
1,402,850





$ 10,757,378

 

Contractual obligations 1RWH

ON BEHALF OF THE PRINCE EDWARD ISLAND CANNABIS MANAGEMENT CORPORATION

BBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBChair
BBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBCommissioner
1RWHVWRDUHDQLQWHJUDOSDUWRIWKHVHILQDQFLDOVWDWHPHQWV
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PRINCE EDWARD ISLAND CANNABIS MANAGEMENT CORPORATION
Statement of Changes in Equity
Year Ended March 31, 2020
2020
Retained earnings - beginning of year

$

1HWLQFRPH ORVV  6WDWHPHQW

$QQXDOLQFRPHGLVWULEXWLRQWR3URYLQFHRI3ULQFH(GZDUG,VODQG
Retained earnings - end of year

$

1RWHVWRDUHDQLQWHJUDOSDUWRIWKHVHILQDQFLDOVWDWHPHQWV


-






653,401



653,401



(653,401)



-
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PRINCE EDWARD ISLAND CANNABIS MANAGEMENT CORPORATION
Statement of Profit or Loss
Year Ended March 31, 2020
2020

Income
6DOHV

$ 16,355,262

&RVWRIVDOHV 1RWH
*URVVPDUJLQ
Expenses
$PRUWL]DWLRQRISURSHUW\DQGHTXLSPHQW 6FKHGXOHVDQG
,QVXUDQFHDQGSURSHUW\WD[HV 1RWH
,QWHUHVWRQOHDVHOLDELOLWLHV 1RWH
,QWHUHVWRQGHEHQWXUHV 1RWHV
2WKHURSHUDWLQJH[SHQVHV 1RWH
5HQW
5HSDLUVDQGPDLQWHQDQFH
6DODULHVDQGEHQHILWV 1RWHV
6WRUHDQGRIILFHVXSSOLHV
7UDYHO
8WLOLWLHV


GD\V





12,365,754



3,989,508



420,019
46,417
59,889
218,123
250,281
848
57,055
2,687,032
167,511
37,476
87,906













4,032,557



Loss from operations

(43,049)



Other income 1RWH

696,450



Net income (loss)

$

1RWHVWRDUHDQLQWHJUDOSDUWRIWKHVHILQDQFLDOVWDWHPHQWV


653,401
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PRINCE EDWARD ISLAND CANNABIS MANAGEMENT CORPORATION
Statement of Cash Flow
Year Ended March 31, 2020
2020

Cash flows from operating activities
1HWLQFRPH ORVV
,WHPQRWDIIHFWLQJFDVK
$PRUWL]DWLRQRISURSHUW\DQGHTXLSPHQW

$

&KDQJHVLQQRQFDVKZRUNLQJFDSLWDO
$FFRXQWVUHFHLYDEOH
,QYHQWRU\
3UHSDLGH[SHQVHV
$FFRXQWVSD\DEOHDQGDFFUXHGOLDELOLWLHV
'HIHUUHGUHYHQXH

Cash flows from investing activities
3XUFKDVHRISURSHUW\DQGHTXLSPHQW
3XUFKDVHRIULJKWRIXVHDVVHWV

Cash flows from financing activities
$QQXDOLQFRPHGLVWULEXWLRQWR3URYLQFHRI3ULQFH(GZDUG,VODQG
$GYDQFH WR IURPWKH3URYLQFHRI3ULQFH(GZDUG,VODQG
3URFHHGVIURPOHDVHOLDELOLWLHV
5HSD\PHQWRIGHEHQWXUHVSD\DEOH
5HSD\PHQWRIOHDVHOLDELOLWLHV
3URFHHGVIURPGHEHQWXUHVSD\DEOH

Increase (decrease) in cash

653,401


GD\V



420,019



1,073,420



484,674
89,019
(88,849)
(2,779,865)
930







(2,294,091)



(1,220,671)



(193,169)
(1,667,672)




(1,860,841)



(653,401)
762,042
1,654,334
(957,479)
(91,424)
-








714,072



(2,367,440)

Cash - beginning of year





3,460,098



Cash - end of year

$

1,092,658





Cash consists of:
&DVKRQKDQG
&DVKLQILQDQFLDOLQVWLWXWLRQV

$

37,361
1,055,297






$

1,092,658





,QWHUHVWUHFHLYHG

$

35,469





,QWHUHVWSDLG

$

287,739





Cash flow supplementary information

1RWHVWRDUHDQLQWHJUDOSDUWRIWKHVHILQDQFLDOVWDWHPHQWV
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PRINCE EDWARD ISLAND CANNABIS MANAGEMENT CORPORATION
Notes to Financial Statements
Year Ended March 31, 2020
1.

DESCRIPTION OF BUSINESS
3ULQFH(GZDUG,VODQG&DQQDELV0DQDJHPHQW&RUSRUDWLRQ WKH&RUSRUDWLRQ LVDZKROO\RZQHG&URZQ
&RUSRUDWLRQRIWKH3URYLQFHRI3ULQFH(GZDUG,VODQGDQGLVUHVSRQVLEOHIRUWKHGLVWULEXWLRQDQGVDOHRI
DGXOWXVHFDQQDELVWKURXJKRXW3ULQFH(GZDUG,VODQG7KHKHDGRIILFHLVORFDWHGDW*DUILHOG6WUHHWLQ
&KDUORWWHWRZQZLWKIRXUUHWDLORXWOHWVORFDWHGDFURVVWKHSURYLQFH
 3(, ,QF ZDV LQFRUSRUDWHG DV D SULYDWH FRPSDQ\ XQGHU WKH &RPSDQLHV $FW RI 3ULQFH
(GZDUG ,VODQG RQ 'HFHPEHU   7KLV FRPSDQ\ ZDV GLVVROYHG ZKHQ WKH &DQQDELV
0DQDJHPHQW &RUSRUDWLRQ $FW ZDV SURFODLPHG RQ $XJXVW   DW ZKLFK WLPH DOO SURSHUW\ RI
 3(, ,QF EHFDPH WKH SURSHUW\ RI WKH &RUSRUDWLRQ DQG WKH FODLPV ULJKWV OLDELOLWLHV
REOLJDWLRQV DQG SULYLOHJHV RI  3(, ,QF ZHUH WUDQVIHUUHG WR DQG EHFDPH YHVWHG LQ WKH
&RUSRUDWLRQ

2.

BASIS OF PRESENTATION
7KH ILQDQFLDO VWDWHPHQWV KDYH EHHQ SUHSDUHG LQ DFFRUGDQFH ZLWK DQG DUH LQ FRPSOLDQFH ZLWK
,QWHUQDWLRQDO )LQDQFLDO 5HSRUWLQJ 6WDQGDUGV ,)56  DV LVVXHG E\ WKH ,QWHUQDWLRQDO $FFRXQWLQJ
6WDQGDUGV%RDUG ,$6% 7KHSULQFLSDODFFRXQWLQJSROLFLHVDSSOLHGLQWKHSUHSDUDWLRQRIWKHILQDQFLDO
VWDWHPHQWVDUHVHWRXWLQ1RWH
7KHVH ILQDQFLDO VWDWHPHQWV ZHUH DXWKRUL]HG IRU LVVXDQFH E\ WKH %RDUG RI &RPPLVVLRQHUV RQ
'HFHPEHU

3.

BASIS OF MEASUREMENT
7KH ILQDQFLDO VWDWHPHQWV KDYH EHHQ SUHSDUHG RQ D KLVWRULFDO FRVW EDVLV DQG DUH SUHVHQWHG LQ
&DQDGLDQGROODUVZKLFKLVWKHIXQFWLRQDOFXUUHQF\RIWKH&RUSRUDWLRQ
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4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
&KDQJHVLQDFFRXQWLQJVWDQGDUGV
7KHVHILQDQFLDOVWDWHPHQWVKDYHEHHQSUHSDUHGLQDFFRUGDQFHZLWK,)56LVVXHGDQGLQHIIHFWDVRI
0DUFK   7KH VLJQLILFDQW DFFRXQWLQJ SROLFLHV XVHG LQ WKH SUHSDUDWLRQ RI WKHVH ILQDQFLDO
VWDWHPHQWVDUHVXPPDUL]HGEHORZ
$Q RYHUYLHZ RI WKH VWDQGDUGV DPHQGPHQWV DQG LQWHUSUHWDWLRQV RQ WKH FRQYHUVLRQ WR ,)56 WKRVH
DGDSWHGLQWKHFXUUHQW\HDUDQGWKRVHZKLFKDUHLVVXHGEXWQRW\HWLQHIIHFWDUHSUHVHQWHGEHORZ
IFRS 16 'Leases'
,QWKH,QWHUQDWLRQDO$FFRXQWLQJ6WDQGDUGV%RDUGLVVXHG,)56UHSODFLQJ,$6DQGUHODWHG
LQWHUSUHWDWLRQV 7KH VWDQGDUG LQWURGXFHV D VLQJOH RQEDODQFH VKHHW UHFRJQLWLRQ DQG PHDVXUHPHQW
PRGHO IRU OHVVHHV HOLPLQDWLQJ WKH GLVWLQFWLRQ EHWZHHQ RSHUDWLQJ DQG ILQDQFH OHDVHV /HVVHHV
UHFRJQL]HDULJKWRIXVHDVVHWUHSUHVHQWLQJLWVFRQWURORIDQGULJKWWRXVHWKHXQGHUO\LQJDVVHWDQGD
OHDVHOLDELOLW\UHSUHVHQWLQJLWVREOLJDWLRQWRPDNHIXWXUHOHDVHSD\PHQWV/HVVRUDFFRXQWLQJUHPDLQV
VLPLODUWR,$6
,)56EHFDPHHIIHFWLYHIRUDQQXDOSHULRGVEHJLQQLQJRQRUDIWHU-DQXDU\7KH&RUSRUDWLRQ
DGRSWHG WKH VWDQGDUG RQ $SULO   XVLQJ WKH PRGLILHG UHWURVSHFWLYH DSSURDFK 7KH &RUSRUDWLRQ
DSSOLHG WKH UHTXLUHPHQWV RI WKH VWDQGDUG UHWURVSHFWLYHO\ ZLWK WKH FXPXODWLYH HIIHFWV RI LQLWLDO
DSSOLFDWLRQUHFRJQL]HGLQUHWDLQHGHDUQLQJV3ULRU\HDUVILJXUHVZHUHQRWUHVWDWHGDVSHUPLWWHGXQGHU
WKHWUDQVLWLRQSURYLVLRQVLQWKHVWDQGDUGDQGFRQWLQXHWREHUHSRUWHGXQGHU,$6
,)56SHUPLWVWKHXVHRIUHFRJQLWLRQH[HPSWLRQVDQGSUDFWLFDOH[SHGLHQWV7KH&RUSRUDWLRQDSSOLHG
WKHIROORZLQJUHFRJQLWLRQH[HPSWLRQVDQGSUDFWLFDOH[SHGLHQWV


HOHFWHGWRPHDVXUHWKHULJKWRIXVHDVVHWVDWDQDPRXQWHTXDOWRWKHOHDVHOLDELOLW\DGMXVWHG
IRUDQ\SUHSDLGRUDFFUXHGOHDVHSD\PHQWVWKDWH[LVWHGDWWKHGDWHRIWUDQVLWLRQDQG



DFFRXQWLQJOHDVHVZKLFKHQGZLWKLQPRQWKVRIWKHGDWHRILQLWLDODSSOLFDWLRQDVVKRUWWHUP
OHDVHV

2QWUDQVLWLRQWR,)56WKHZHLJKWHGDYHUDJHLQFUHPHQWDOERUURZLQJUDWHDSSOLHGWROHDVHOLDELOLWLHV
UHFRJQL]HGXQGHU,)56ZDV
&DVK
&DVKLVFRPSULVHGRIFDVKRQKDQGDQGDPRXQWVRQGHSRVLWZLWKILQDQFLDOLQVWLWXWLRQV
$FFRXQWVUHFHLYDEOH
$FFRXQWVUHFHLYDEOHDULVHIURPWUDGHVDOHVDFFUXHGLQWHUHVWDQG+DUPRQL]HG6DOHV7D[UHFHLYDEOH
$PRXQWVGHHPHGXQFROOHFWLEOHDUHZULWWHQRIIDQGGHGXFWHGIURPWKHFDUU\LQJYDOXHRIWKHUHFHLYDEOH
$PRXQWVVXEVHTXHQWO\UHFRYHUHGIURPDFFRXQWVSUHYLRXVO\ZULWWHQRIIDUHFUHGLWHGWRWKHDOORZDQFH
DFFRXQWLQWKHSHULRGRIUHFRYHU\
(continues)
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PRINCE EDWARD ISLAND CANNABIS MANAGEMENT CORPORATION
Notes to Financial Statements
Year Ended March 31, 2020
4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
,QYHQWRU\
,QYHQWRULHVDUHVWDWHGDWWKHORZHURIFRVWDQGQHWUHDOL]DEOHYDOXHRQDILUVWLQILUVWRXWEDVLV&RVW
LQFOXGHVWKHFRVWVWRSXUFKDVHGXW\DQGH[FLVHWD[HVDQGVWDQGDUGIUHLJKWUDWHVIRUJRRGVUHFHLYHG
1HWUHDOL]DEOHYDOXHUHSUHVHQWVWKHDPRXQWWKDWPD\EHUHDOL]HGIURPWKHVDOHRIDQLQYHQWRU\LWHP
XQGHU QRUPDO EXVLQHVV FRQGLWLRQV :KHQ LQYHQWRULHV DUH VROG WKH FDUU\LQJ DPRXQW RI WKRVH
LQYHQWRULHVDUHUHFRJQL]HGDVDQH[SHQVHLQWKHSHULRGLQZKLFKWKHUHODWHGUHYHQXHLVUHFRJQL]HG
7KHDPRXQWRIDQ\ZULWHGRZQRILQYHQWRULHVWRQHWUHDOL]DEOHYDOXHDQGDOOORVVHVRILQYHQWRULHVVKDOO
EHUHFRJQL]HGDVDQH[SHQVHLQWKHSHULRGWKHORVVRUZULWHGRZQRFFXUV7KHDPRXQWRIUHYHUVDORI
DQ\ZULWHGRZQVDULVLQJIURPDQLQFUHDVHLQQHWUHDOL]DEOHYDOXHVKDOOEHUHFRJQL]HGDVDUHGXFWLRQ
LQWKHDPRXQWRILQYHQWRULHVUHFRJQL]HGDVDQH[SHQVHLQWKHSHULRGLQZKLFKWKHUHYHUVDORFFXUV
3URSHUW\DQGHTXLSPHQW
3URSHUW\DQGHTXLSPHQW LVVWDWHGDWFRVWOHVVDFFXPXODWHGDPRUWL]DWLRQDQGDQ\LPSDLUPHQWORVVHV
$OOFDSLWDODVVHWDGGLWLRQVRYHUDUHFDSLWDOL]HG3URSHUW\DQGHTXLSPHQWDUHEURNHQGRZQLQWR
FRPSRQHQWVZKHQWKHFRPSRQHQWVDUHVLJQLILFDQWDQGKDYHGLIIHULQJXVHIXOOLYHVWKDQWKHUHVWRIWKH
DVVHW$PRUWL]DWLRQLVFDOFXODWHGRQDVWUDLJKWOLQHEDVLVDWWKHIROORZLQJUDWHV
(TXLSPHQW
&RPSXWHUHTXLSPHQW
,QIRUPDWLRQV\VWHPV
&RPSXWHUVRIWZDUH
/HDVHKROGLPSURYHPHQWV
5LJKWRIXVHDVVHWV





DQG
WHUPRIWKHOHDVH

2QHKDOIRIWKHDQQXDOUDWHLVUHFRUGHGLQWKH\HDURIDFTXLVLWLRQQRDPRUWL]DWLRQLVUHFRUGHGLQWKH
\HDURIGLVSRVDO
/HDVHV
7KH &RUSRUDWLRQ UHFRJQL]HV ULJKWRIXVH DVVHWV DQG OHDVH OLDELOLWLHV IRU LWV OHDVHV H[FHSW IRU FHUWDLQ
FODVVHVRIXQGHUO\LQJDVVHWVLQZKLFKWKHOHDVHWHUPVDUHPRQWKVRUOHVVRUIRUORZYDOXHGDVVHWV
5LJKWRIXVH DVVHWV DUH LQFOXGHG LQ SURSHUW\ DQG HTXLSPHQW RQ WKH VWDWHPHQW RI ILQDQFLDO SRVLWLRQ
7KH DPRUWL]DWLRQ H[SHQVH RQ ULJKWRIXVH DVVHWV DQG LQWHUHVW H[SHQVH RQ OHDVH OLDELOLWLHV UHSODFHG
UHQWH[SHQVHZKLFKZDVSUHYLRXVO\UHFRJQL]HGRQDVWUDLJKWOLQHEDVLVXQGHU,$6RYHUWKHWHUPRI
WKHOHDVH
,PSDLUPHQW
7KH&RUSRUDWLRQDVVHVVHVDWHDFKUHSRUWLQJGDWHZKHWKHUWKHUHLVREMHFWLYHHYLGHQFHWKDWDILQDQFLDO
DVVHW RU JURXS RI ILQDQFLDO DVVHWV LV LPSDLUHG $ ILQDQFLDO DVVHW RU D JURXS RI ILQDQFLDO DVVHWV LV
LPSDLUHGDQGLPSDLUPHQWORVVHVDUHUHFRUGHGRQO\LIWKHUHLVREMHFWLYHHYLGHQFHRILPSDLUPHQWDVD
UHVXOWRIRQHRUPRUHHYHQWVWKDWRFFXUUHGDIWHUWKHLQLWLDOUHFRJQLWLRQRIWKHDVVHW DORVVHYHQW DQG
WKH ORVV HYHQW KDV DQ LPSDFW RQ WKH HVWLPDWHG IXWXUH FDVK IORZV RI WKH ILQDQFLDO DVVHW RU JURXS RI
ILQDQFLDODVVHWVWKDWFDQEHUHOLDEO\HVWLPDWHG
(continues)
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4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
)LQDQFLDODVVHWVDQGILQDQFLDOOLDELOLWLHV
2QLQLWLDOUHFRJQLWLRQDILQDQFLDODVVHWLVFODVVLILHGDVPHDVXUHGDWDPRUWL]HGFRVWIDLUYDOXHWKURXJK
RWKHUFRPSUHKHQVLYHLQFRPH )92&, RUIDLUYDOXHWKURXJKSURILWRUORVV )973/ $ILQDQFLDODVVHWLV
PHDVXUHG DW DPRUWL]HG FRVW LI LW PHHWV ERWK RI WKH IROORZLQJFRQGLWLRQVDQGLVQRWGHVLJQDWHGDVDW
)973/ WKH DVVHW LV KHOG ZLWKLQ D EXVLQHVV PRGHO ZKRVH REMHFWLYH LV WR KROG DVVHWV WR FROOHFW
FRQWUDFWXDOFDVKIORZDQGWKHFRQWUDFWXDOWHUPVRIWKHILQDQFLDODVVHWJLYHULVHRQVSHFLILHGGDWHVWR
FDVKIORZVWKDWDUHVROHO\SD\PHQWVRISULQFLSDODQGLQWHUHVWRQWKHSULQFLSDODPRXQWRXWVWDQGLQJ$OO
RWKHUILQDQFLDODVVHWVDUHFODVVLILHGDVPHDVXUHGDW)973/)LQDQFLDODVVHWVWKDWDUHKHOGIRUWUDGLQJ
RU PDQDJHG DQG ZKRVH SHUIRUPDQFH LV HYDOXDWHG RQ D IDLU YDOXH EDVLV DUH PHDVXUHG DW )973/
EHFDXVH WKH\ DUH QHLWKHU KHOG WR FROOHFW FRQWUDFWXDO FDVK IORZV QRU KHOG ERWK WR FROOHFW FRQWUDFWXDO
FDVKIORZVDQGWRVHOOILQDQFLDODVVHWV
)LQDQFLDODVVHWVDUHQRWUHFODVVLILHGVXEVHTXHQWWRWKHLULQLWLDOUHFRJQLWLRQH[FHSWLQWKHSHULRGDIWHU
WKH&RUSRUDWLRQFKDQJHVLWVEXVLQHVVPRGHOIRUPDQDJLQJILQDQFLDODVVHWV7KHUHZHUHQRFKDQJHV
WRDQ\RIWKH&RUSRUDWLRQEXVLQHVVPRGHOVGXULQJWKHFXUUHQWRUSULRU\HDU
7KH &RUSRUDWLRQ FODVVLILHV LWV ILQDQFLDO OLDELOLWLHV RWKHU WKDQ ILQDQFLDO JXDUDQWHHV DQG ORDQ
FRPPLWPHQWV DV PHDVXUHG DW DPRUWL]HG FRVW RU)973/7KH&RUSRUDWLRQGHUHFRJQL]HVDILQDQFLDO
OLDELOLW\ZKHQLWVFRQWUDFWXDOREOLJDWLRQVDUHGLVFKDUJHGRUFDQFHOOHGRUH[SLUH
)LQDQFLDODVVHWVDQGILQDQFLDOOLDELOLWLHVDUHRIIVHWDQGWKHQHWDPRXQWSUHVHQWHGLQWKHVWDWHPHQWRI
ILQDQFLDOSRVLWLRQZKHQDQGRQO\ZKHQWKH&RUSRUDWLRQFXUUHQWO\KDVOHJDOO\HQIRUFHDEOHULJKWWRVHW
RIIWKHDPRXQWVDQGLWLQWHQGVHLWKHUWRVHWWOHWKHPRQDQHWEDVLVRUWRUHDOLVHWKHDVVHWDQGVHWWOHWKH
OLDELOLW\VLPXOWDQHRXVO\
7KH&RUSRUDWLRQKDVFODVVLILHGLWVILQDQFLDODVVHWVDQGOLDELOLWLHVDVIROORZV
&DVKIDLUYDOXHWKURXJKSURILWRUORVV
$FFRXQWV UHFHLYDEOH DFFRXQWV SD\DEOH DQG DFFUXHG OLDELOLWLHV GHEHQWXUHV SD\DEOH OHDVH OLDELOLWLHV
DQGGXHWRWKH3URYLQFHRI3ULQFH(GZDUG,VODQGDPRUWL]HGFRVW
7UDQVDFWLRQ FRVWV IRU IDLU YDOXH WKURXJK SURILW RU ORVV LQVWUXPHQWV DUH UHFRJQL]HG DV SURILW RU ORVV
LPPHGLDWHO\ ZKLOH WUDQVDFWLRQ FRVWV IRURWKHUILQDQFLDOLQVWUXPHQWVIRUPSDUWRIWKHRULJLQDOYDOXHRI
WKHILQDQFLDOLQVWUXPHQW
'HUHFRJQLWLRQRIDILQDQFLDOLQVWUXPHQWRFFXUVZKHQWKHFRQWUDFWXDOULJKWVWRWKHFDVKIORZJHQHUDWHG
E\ WKH DVVHW H[SLUH ZKHQ WKH ILQDQFLDO DVVHW DQG VXEVWDQWLDOO\ DOO RI WKH ULVNV DQG UHZDUGV DUH
WUDQVIHUUHGWRDWKLUGSDUW\RUZKHQWKHREOLJDWLRQLQWKHFRQWUDFWLVGLVFKDUJHGFDQFHOOHGRUH[SLUHV
(continues)
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
5HYHQXHUHFRJQLWLRQ
5HYHQXHLVGHULYHGIURPWKHVDOHRIJRRGVDQGRWKHULQFRPHIURPWKHUHQGHULQJRIVHUYLFHV
5HYHQXHLVPHDVXUHGE\UHIHUHQFHWRWKHIDLUYDOXHRIWKHFRQVLGHUDWLRQUHFHLYHGRUUHFHLYDEOHE\WKH
&RUSRUDWLRQIRUJRRGVRUVHUYLFHVVXSSOLHGH[FOXVLYHRIVDOHVWD[
5HYHQXH IURP WKH VDOH RI JRRGV LV UHFRJQL]HG ZKHQ WKH DPRXQW RI UHYHQXH FDQ EH UHOLDEO\
PHDVXUHGFROOHFWLRQLVSUREDEOHWKHFRVWVLQFXUUHGRUWREHLQFXUUHGFDQEHUHOLDEO\PHDVXUHGDQG
ZKHQVLJQLILFDQWULVNVDQGUHZDUGVRIRZQHUVKLSKDYHEHHQWUDQVIHUUHGWRWKHEX\HU6LJQLILFDQWULVNV
DQG UHZDUGV DUH JHQHUDOO\ FRQVLGHUHG WR EH WUDQVIHUUHG WR WKH EX\HU ZKHQ WKH FXVWRPHU KDV WDNHQ
OHJDOWLWOHDQGSRVVHVVLRQRIWKHJRRGV
2WKHULQFRPHLQFOXGHVLQWHUHVWRQEDQNGHSRVLWVDQGLQVWRUHPDUNHWLQJIHHV5HYHQXHVIURPLQWHUHVW
RQ EDQN GHSRVLWV DUH UHFRJQL]HG ZKHQ WKH\ FDQ EH UHOLDEO\ PHDVXUHG 5HYHQXHV IURP PDUNHWLQJ
IHHV DUH UHFRJQL]HG ZKHQ WKH DPRXQW RI WKH UHYHQXHV FDQEHUHOLDEO\PHDVXUHGDQGLWLVSUREDEOH
WKHHFRQRPLFEHQHILWVZLOOIORZWRWKH&RUSRUDWLRQ
7KH&RUSRUDWLRQVHOOVJLIWFDUGVWRLWVFXVWRPHUVDQGLQLWLDOO\UHFRUGVWKHDPRXQWWRGHIHUUHGUHYHQXH
5HYHQXH LV UHFRJQL]HG DV WKH JLIW FDUGV DUH UHGHHPHG ,I LQ WKH RSLQLRQ RI PDQDJHPHQW WKH
OLNHOLKRRGRIWKHJLIWFDUGEHLQJUHGHHPHGLVUHPRWHWKHQWKHUHYHQXHZLOOEHUHFRJQL]HGDWWKDWWLPH
([SHQVHV
([SHQVHVDUHUHFRUGHGRQDQDFFUXDOEDVLVLQWKHSHULRGLQZKLFKWKHWUDQVDFWLRQRUHYHQWWKDWJDYH
ULVHWRWKHH[SHQVHRFFXUUHG
6LJQLILFDQWDFFRXQWLQJMXGJPHQWVDQGHVWLPDWHV
7KH SUHSDUDWLRQ RI ILQDQFLDO VWDWHPHQWV LQ DFFRUGDQFH ZLWK ,)56 UHTXLUHV PDQDJHPHQW WR PDNH
HVWLPDWHV MXGJPHQWV DQG DVVXPSWLRQV WKDW DIIHFW WKH UHSRUWHG DPRXQWV RI DVVHWV OLDELOLWLHV
UHYHQXHV DQG H[SHQVHV 7KH DFWXDO UHVXOWV PD\ PDWHULDOO\ GLIIHU IURP PDQDJHPHQW V HVWLPDWLRQ
,WHPV UHTXLULQJ WKH XVH RI VLJQLILFDQW HVWLPDWHV LQFOXGH XVHIXO OLYHV RI SURSHUW\ DQG HTXLSPHQW
DFFUXHGOLDELOLWLHVOHJDOFRQWLQJHQFLHVDQGLPSDLUPHQW
)XWXUHDFFRXQWLQJGHYHORSPHQWV
$QXPEHURIQHZVWDQGDUGVDQGDPHQGPHQWVWRVWDQGDUGVDQGLQWHUSUHWDWLRQVDUHQRW\HWHIIHFWLYH
IRUWKH\HDUHQGHG0DUFKDQGKDYHQRWEHHQDGRSWHGE\WKH&RUSRUDWLRQLQSUHSDULQJWKHVH
ILQDQFLDOVWDWHPHQWV7KHVHFKDQJHVDUHQRWH[SHFWHGWRKDYHDPDWHULDOLPSDFWRQWKH&RUSRUDWLRQ V
ILQDQFLDOVWDWHPHQWV
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5.

ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE
2020
7UDGHDFFRXQWVUHFHLYDEOH
+67UHFHLYDEOH
,QWHUHVWUHFHLYDEOH



$

380,464
66,685
156







$

447,305





$OO DPRXQWV LQ WKH DFFRXQWV UHFHLYDEOH EDODQFH DUH VKRUW WHUP 7KH QHW FDUU\LQJ YDOXH RI DFFRXQWV
UHFHLYDEOHLVFRQVLGHUHGDUHDVRQDEOHDSSUR[LPDWLRQRIIDLUYDOXH
$OORIWKH&RUSRUDWLRQ VWUDGHDQGRWKHUUHFHLYDEOHVKDYHEHHQUHYLHZHGIRULQGLFDWLRQVRILPSDLUPHQW
,W LV PDQDJHPHQW V DVVHVVPHQW WKDW DQ DOORZDQFH RI  LV UHTXLUHG WR IDLUO\ VWDWH WKH YDOXH RI
DFFRXQWVUHFHLYDEOH
6.

INVENTORY
2020
:DUHKRXVHV
6WRUHV



$

3,499,702
1,792,803






$

5,292,505





,QYHQWRULHV UHFRJQL]HG LQ WKH VWDWHPHQW RI ILQDQFLDO SRVLWLRQ FRQVLVW RI FDQQDELV SURGXFWV DQG
DFFHVVRULHV KHOG IRU VDOH ,Q  D WRWDO RI      RI LQYHQWRULHV ZDV
LQFOXGHGLQWKHVWDWHPHQWRISURILWRUORVVDVDFRVWRIVDOHV
7KHUHZHUHQRZULWHGRZQVRILQYHQWRULHVGXULQJILVFDO 1LO 1RQHRIWKHLQYHQWRULHVDUH
SOHGJHGDVVHFXULW\IRUOLDELOLWLHV
7.

ACCOUNTS PAYABLE AND ACCRUED LIABILITIES
2020
$FFRXQWVSD\DEOHDQGDFFUXHGOLDELOLWLHV
3ULQFH(GZDUG,VODQG/LTXRU&RQWURO&RPPLVVLRQ
$FFUXHGLQWHUHVW



$

2,740,512
69,450
65,807







$

2,875,769





,QFOXGHG LQ DFFRXQWV SD\DEOHV DQG DFFUXDOV LV      RZLQJ WR WKH 3URYLQFH RI
3ULQFH(GZDUG,VODQGDUHODWHGSDUW\IRUDFFUXHGYDFDWLRQDQGZDJHVHWWOHPHQWDPRXQWV
7KHDFFUXHGLQWHUHVWRI  RQWKHGHEHQWXUHVSD\DEOHLVRZHGWRWKH3URYLQFH
RI3ULQFH(GZDUG,VODQGDUHODWHGSDUW\
7KHSD\DEOHIURPWKH3ULQFH(GZDUG,VODQG/LTXRU&RQWURO&RPPLVVLRQFRQVLVWSULPDULO\RIDFFUXDOV
WRDFFRXQWIRUWKHVKDUHVXVHRIUHVRXUFHVRIWKH&RPPLVVLRQDQGLVEDVHGRQDEHVWHVWLPDWHRIWKH
FRVWRIWKRVHUHVRXUFHVXVHG
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8.

DUE TO (FROM) PROVINCE OF PRINCE EDWARD ISLAND
3ULQFH (GZDUG ,VODQG &DQQDELV 0DQDJHPHQW &RUSRUDWLRQ LV D ZKROO\ RZQHG &URZQ &RUSRUDWLRQ RI
WKH3URYLQFHRI3ULQFH(GZDUG,VODQG7KH&RUSRUDWLRQ VHPSOR\HHVDODULHVDQGEHQHILWVDUHSDLGE\
WKH3URYLQFHDQGDUHVXEVHTXHQWO\UHLPEXUVHGE\WKH&RUSRUDWLRQ1HWORVVLQFXUUHGGXULQJWKH\HDU
LVUHFHLYDEOHIURPWKH3URYLQFHDQGQHWLQFRPHLQFXUUHGGXULQJWKH\HDULVSD\DEOHWRWKH3URYLQFH
2020
'XHWR IURP 3URYLQFHRI3ULQFH(GZDUG,VODQG

$

272,274






7KHVH WUDQVDFWLRQV DUH LQ WKH QRUPDO FRXUVH RI RSHUDWLRQV DQG DUH PHDVXUHG DW WKH H[FKDQJH
DPRXQWZKLFKLVWKHDPRXQWRIFRQVLGHUDWLRQHVWDEOLVKHGDQGDJUHHGWRE\WKHUHODWHGSDUWLHV

9.

DEBENTURES PAYABLE
2020
3URYLQFHRI3ULQFH(GZDUG,VODQGUHSD\DEOHLQDQQXDO
EOHQGHGLQVWDOOPHQWVRI7KHGHEHQWXUHPDWXUHVRQ
1RYHPEHU

$

3URYLQFHRI3ULQFH(GZDUG,VODQGUHSD\DEOHLQDQQXDO
EOHQGHGLQVWDOOPHQWVRI7KHGHEHQWXUHPDWXUHVRQ
1RYHPEHU

&XUUHQWSRUWLRQ

3,201,103





2,841,418



6,042,521



(987,908)
$



5,054,613






3ULQFLSDOUHSD\PHQWVRIGHEHQWXUHVDUHH[SHFWHGWREHUHSDLGRYHUWKHQH[WILYH\HDUVDVIROORZV





7KHUHDIWHU
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10. LEASE LIABILITIES
2020
7KH &RUSRUDWLRQ OHDVHV SURSHUWLHV IRU LWV UHWDLO VWRUHV /HDVH
WHUPVDUHQHJRWLDWHGRQDQLQGLYLGXDOEDVLVDQGFRQWDLQDZLGH
UDQJHRIGLIIHUHQWWHUPVDQGFRQGLWLRQV
&XUUHQWSRUWLRQ



$

1,562,910
(160,060)






$

1,402,850














)XWXUHPLQLPXPFDSLWDOOHDVHSD\PHQWVDUHDSSUR[LPDWHO\





7KHUHDIWHU
7RWDOPLQLPXPOHDVHSD\PHQWV



/HVVDPRXQWUHSUHVHQWLQJLQWHUHVWDWYDULRXVUDWHV






11. CONTRACTUAL OBLIGATIONS
7KH &RUSRUDWLRQ KDV HQWHUHG LQWR FRQWUDFWV ZLWK YDULRXV VXSSOLHUV IRU KDUGZDUH PDLQWHQDQFH
VRIWZDUH VXSSRUW VHUYLFHV DQG VHFXULW\ VHUYLFHV 7KH WRWDO RI WKHVHFRQWUDFWVLVDQGWKH\
H[SLUHEHWZHHQRQHDQGWKUHH\HDUV
12. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
7KHVH ILQDQFLDO VWDWHPHQWV LQFOXGH WKH UHVXOWV RI QRUPDO RSHUDWLQJ WUDQVDFWLRQV ZLWK YDULRXV
SURYLQFLDO GHSDUWPHQWV &URZQ FRUSRUDWLRQV DQG DJHQFLHV ZLWK ZKLFK WKH &RUSRUDWLRQ LV UHODWHG
2SHUDWLQJ WUDQVDFWLRQV ZLWK UHODWHG SDUWLHV VXFK DV LQVXUDQFH RI      DQG
LQWHUHVW RQ GHEHQWXUHV RI      DUH UHFRUGHG DW WKH H[FKDQJH DPRXQW ZKLFK
DUHUDWHVDVGHWHUPLQHGE\WKH3URYLQFHRI3ULQFH(GZDUG,VODQG
0DQDJHPHQWDQGVWDIIRIWKH3ULQFH(GZDUG,VODQG/LTXRU&RQWURO&RPPLVVLRQ 3(,/&& DVVLVWHGLQ
WKHGHYHORSPHQWPDQDJHPHQWDQGRQJRLQJRSHUDWLRQRIWKH&RUSRUDWLRQ$QHVWLPDWLRQRIWKHFRVW
RI WKHVH VHUYLFHV KDV EHHQ H[SHQVHG LQ YDULRXV DFFRXQWV LQ WKH DPRXQW RI   
 
.H\ PDQDJHPHQW UHFHLYHG      GXULQJ WKHSHULRGIRUVDODULHVDQGEHQHILWV
3RVWHPSOR\PHQW EHQHILWV DUH WKH UHVSRQVLELOLW\ RI WKH 3URYLQFH DQG DUH QRW LQFOXGHG LQ WKHVH
ILQDQFLDOVWDWHPHQWV
7KH &RUSRUDWLRQ V HPSOR\HH VDODULHV DQG EHQHILWV DUH SDLG E\ WKH 3URYLQFH DQG VXEVHTXHQWO\
UHLPEXUVHGE\WKH&RUSRUDWLRQ
1HWORVVRULQFRPHLQFXUUHGGXULQJWKHSHULRGLVUHFHLYDEOHIURPRUSD\DEOHWRWKH3URYLQFH7KHQHW
LQFRPHWREHSDLGWRWKH3URYLQFHDW\HDUHQGLV ORVVWREHUHFRYHUHGRI 
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PRINCE EDWARD ISLAND CANNABIS MANAGEMENT CORPORATION
Notes to Financial Statements
Year Ended March 31, 2020
13. OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES
2WKHURSHUDWLQJH[SHQVHVLQFOXGHFRQVXOWLQJOHJDOSURIHVVLRQDOGHYHORSPHQWEDQNDQGFUHGLWFDUG
IHHVDQGVHFXULW\H[SHQVHV
14. EMPLOYEE BENEFITS
3HQVLRQEHQHILWV
3HUPDQHQW HPSOR\HHV RI WKH &RUSRUDWLRQ SDUWLFLSDWH LQ WKH 3URYLQFH RI 3ULQFH (GZDUG ,VODQG &LYLO
6HUYLFH 6XSHUDQQXDWLRQ 3HQVLRQ 3ODQ WKH 3ODQ  ZKLFK LV D PXOWLHPSOR\HU FRQWULEXWRU\ GHILQHG
EHQHILWSHQVLRQSODQ7KH3ODQSURYLGHVDSHQVLRQRQUHWLUHPHQWEDVHGRQWZRSHUFHQWRIWKHDYHUDJH
VDODU\ IRU WKH KLJKHVW WKUHH \HDUV WLPHV WKH QXPEHU RI \HDUV RI SHQVLRQDEOH VHUYLFH IRU VHUYLFH WR
'HFHPEHU   DQG WZR SHUFHQW RI WKH FDUHHU DYHUDJH VDODU\ LQGH[HG ZLWK FRVW RI OLYLQJ
DGMXVWPHQWVIRUVHUYLFHDIWHU,QGH[LQJLVVXEMHFWWRWKHIXQGHGOHYHORIWKHSODQDIWHU'HFHPEHU
  7KH 3ODQ LV DGPLQLVWHUHG E\ WKH 3URYLQFH RI 3ULQFH (GZDUG ,VODQG 7KH &RUSRUDWLRQ V
DQQXDO SRUWLRQ RI FRQWULEXWLRQ V WR WKH 3ODQ RI     ZDVSDLGE\WKH3URYLQFH
DQG LV QRW UHIOHFWHG LQ WKHVH ILQDQFLDO VWDWHPHQWV $Q\ XQIXQGHG OLDELOLW\ RI WKH 3ODQ LV WKH
UHVSRQVLELOLW\ RI WKH 3URYLQFH DQG WKHUHIRUH QR OLDELOLW\ KDV EHHQ UHFRJQL]HG LQ WKHVH ILQDQFLDO
VWDWHPHQWV )RU DGGLWLRQDO LQIRUPDWLRQ RQ WKH 3ODQ VHH WKH 3URYLQFH V FRQVROLGDWHG ILQDQFLDO
VWDWHPHQWV
5HWLULQJDOORZDQFH
7KH &RUSRUDWLRQ SURYLGHV D UHWLUHPHQW DOORZDQFH WR LWV SHUPDQHQW HPSOR\HHV 7KH DPRXQW SDLG WR
HOLJLEOH HPSOR\HHV DW UHWLUHPHQW LV EDVHG RQ WKH QXPEHU RI \HDUV RI VHUYLFH DQG WKH UDWH RI SD\ LQ
HIIHFWDWWKHUHWLUHPHQWGDWH7KHEHQHILWFRVWVDQGOLDELOLWLHVUHODWHGWRWKHDOORZDQFHDUHDVVXPHGE\
WKH3URYLQFHDQGDUHQRWLQFOXGHGLQWKHVHILQDQFLDOVWDWHPHQWV
6LFNOHDYH
&ODVVLILHGHPSOR\HHVDUHFUHGLWHG H[FOXGHGHPSOR\HHV GD\VSHUPRQWKIRUXVHDVSDLG
DEVHQFHVLQWKH\HDUGXHWRLOOQHVVRULQMXU\8QGHUH[LVWLQJHPSOR\PHQWDJUHHPHQWVHPSOR\HHVDUH
DOORZHGWRDFFXPXODWHXQXVHGVLFNGD\FUHGLWVHDFK\HDUXSWRWKHDOORZDEOHPD[LPXP$FFXPXODWHG
FUHGLWVPD\EHXVHGLQIXWXUH\HDUVWRWKHH[WHQWWKHHPSOR\HH VLOOQHVVRULQMXU\H[FHHGVWKHFXUUHQW
\HDU V DOORFDWLRQ 7KH XVH RI DFFXPXODWHG VLFN GD\V IRU VLFN OHDYH FRPSHQVDWLRQ FHDVHV RQ
WHUPLQDWLRQRIHPSOR\PHQWDQGWKHUHLVQRREOLJDWLRQWRVHWWOHWKHVHDPRXQWVZLWKFDVKSD\PHQWV$
OLDELOLW\KDVQRWEHHQFDOFXODWHGDQGQRDFFUXDOKDVEHHQUHFRUGHGLQWKHVHILQDQFLDOVWDWHPHQWV7KH
UHODWHGOLDELOLW\LVUHFRUGHGE\WKH3URYLQFH6DODU\H[SHQVHLVLQFOXGHGLQWKHVHILQDQFLDOVWDWHPHQWV
15. OTHER INCOME
2020
0DUNHWLQJIHHV
0LVFHOODQHRXV
,QWHUHVW





$

608,175
52,806
35,469







$

696,450
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PRINCE EDWARD ISLAND CANNABIS MANAGEMENT CORPORATION
Notes to Financial Statements
Year Ended March 31, 2020
16. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
7KH&RUSRUDWLRQDSSOLHV,)56ZKHQDFFRXQWLQJIRULWVILQDQFLDOLQVWUXPHQWV,)56VSHFLILHVKRZ
DQHQWLW\VKRXOGFODVVLI\DQGPHDVXUHILQDQFLDODVVHWVDQGILQDQFLDOOLDELOLWLHV
7KH FDUU\LQJ DPRXQWV SUHVHQWHG LQ WKH VWDWHPHQW RI ILQDQFLDO SRVLWLRQ UHODWH WR WKH IROORZLQJ
FDWHJRULHVRIILQDQFLDODVVHWVDQGOLDELOLWLHV
2020

 Financial assets
)LQDQFLDODVVHWVPHDVXUHGDWDPRUWL]HGFRVW
$FFRXQWVUHFHLYDEOH
'XHIURP3URYLQFHRI3ULQFH(GZDUG,VODQG

)LQDQFLDO DVVHWV PHDVXUHG DW IDLU YDOXH WKURXJK SURILW RU
ORVV


 Financial liabilities
2WKHUILQDQFLDOOLDELOLWLHVPHDVXUHGDWDPRUWL]HGFRVW
1RQFXUUHQW
'HEHQWXUHVSD\DEOH
/HDVHOLDELOLWLHV

&XUUHQW
$FFRXQWVSD\DEOHDQGDFFUXHGOLDELOLWLHV
&XUUHQWSRUWLRQRIGHEHQWXUHVSD\DEOH
&XUUHQWSRUWLRQRIOHDVHOLDELOLWLHV
'XHWR3URYLQFHRI3ULQFH(GZDUG,VODQG

$

447,305
447,305





1,092,658






$

1,539,963





$

5,054,613
1,402,850
6,457,463







2,875,769
987,908
160,060
272,274
4,296,011







$ 10,753,474

 

17. FAIR VALUE
)LQDQFLDO DVVHWV DQG OLDELOLWLHV DUH PHDVXUHG DW IDLU YDOXH RQ LQLWLDO UHFRJQLWLRQ H[FHSW IRU FHUWDLQ
UHODWHGSDUW\WUDQVDFWLRQV0HDVXUHPHQWLQVXEVHTXHQWSHULRGVLVEDVHGRQIDLUYDOXHWKURXJKSURILW
DQGORVVRUDWDPRUWL]HGFRVWXVLQJWKHHIIHFWLYHLQWHUHVWUDWHPHWKRG
)LQDQFLDODVVHWVDQGOLDELOLWLHVUHFRUGHGLQWKHVWDWHPHQWRIILQDQFLDOSRVLWLRQDWIDLUPDUNHWYDOXHDUH
FDWHJRUL]HGEDVHGRQWKHIDLUYDOXHKLHUDUFK\RILQSXWV7KH/HYHOKLHUDUFK\LVXQDGMXVWHGTXRWHG
SULFHVLQDFWLYHPDUNHWVIRULGHQWLFDODVVHWVDQGOLDELOLWLHV7KLVOHYHORILQSXWVLVXVHGWRPHDVXUHWKH
IDLUYDOXHRIFDVK
)DLU YDOXH IRU DFFRXQWV UHFHLYDEOH DFFRXQWV SD\DEOH DQG DFFUXHG OLDELOLWLHV DPRXQWV GXH WRIURP
UHODWHGSDUWLHVDSSUR[LPDWHWKHLUFDUU\LQJDPRXQWVGXHWRWKHLUVKRUWWHUPQDWXUHV
7KH IDLU YDOXH RI GHEHQWXUHV SD\DEOH DQG OHDVH OLDELOLWLHV DUH QRW PDWHULDOO\ GLIIHUHQW IURP WKHLU
FDUU\LQJYDOXHDVWKHUHKDVQRWEHHQDVLJQLILFDQWIOXFWXDWLRQLQLQWHUHVWUDWHV



38%/,&$&&2817692/80(,,,



PRINCE EDWARD ISLAND CANNABIS MANAGEMENT CORPORATION
Notes to Financial Statements
Year Ended March 31, 2020
18. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
7KH &RUSRUDWLRQ LV H[SRVHG WR YDULRXV ULVNV WKURXJK LWV ILQDQFLDO LQVWUXPHQWV 7KH &RUSRUDWLRQ V
ILQDQFLDO DVVHWV DQG OLDELOLWLHV E\ FDWHJRU\ DUH VXPPDUL]HG LQ 1RWH   7KH IROORZLQJ DQDO\VLV
SURYLGHVLQIRUPDWLRQDERXWWKH&RUSRUDWLRQ VULVNH[SRVXUHDQGFRQFHQWUDWLRQDVRI0DUFK
D &UHGLWULVN
&UHGLW ULVN LV WKH ULVN WKDW WKH &RUSRUDWLRQ ZLOO LQFXU D ORVV EHFDXVH D FXVWRPHU IDLOV WR PHHW DQ
REOLJDWLRQ 7KH &RUSRUDWLRQ LV H[SRVHGWRWKLVULVNIRUILQDQFLDOLQVWUXPHQWVFODVVLILHGDVILQDQFLDO
DVVHWVPHDVXUHGDWDPRUWL]HGFRVWE\JUDQWLQJFUHGLWWRFXVWRPHUV7KH&RUSRUDWLRQ VPD[LPXP
H[SRVXUHWRFUHGLWULVNLVOLPLWHGWRWKHFDUU\LQJDPRXQWRIWKHVHILQDQFLDODVVHWVUHFRJQL]HGDWWKH
UHSRUWLQJGDWHZKLFKLVVXPPDUL]HGEHORZ
2020

2019

'XHIURPWKH3URYLQFHRI3ULQFH(GZDUG,VODQG









$FFRXQWVUHFHLYDEOH









7KH&RUSRUDWLRQKDVPLWLJDWHGLWVH[SRVXUHWRWKLVULVNWKURXJKWKHOLPLWHGH[WHQVLRQRIFUHGLWDQG
LWV FRQWUDFWXDO UHODWLRQVKLSV ZLWKLWVEXVLQHVVSDUWQHUV7KH&RUSRUDWLRQ VPDQDJHPHQWFRQVLGHUV
WKDW DQ DOORZDQFH RI  LV UHTXLUHG IRU WKH DERYH ORDQV DQG UHFHLYDEOHV WR EH IDLUO\ VWDWHG 7KH
ORDQVDQGUHFHLYDEOHVDUHVKRZQQHWRIWKHDOORZDQFH
6RPH RI WKH XQLPSDLUHG ILQDQFLDO DVVHWV PHDVXUHG DW DPRUWL]HG FRVWV DUH SDVW GXH DV DW WKH
UHSRUWLQJ GDWH 7KH &RUSRUDWLRQ FRQVLGHUV WKH +67 UHFHLYDEOH WR EH FXUUHQW 7KH DJLQJ RI
XQLPSDLUHGDVVHWVLVDVIROORZV
GD\V
GD\V
GD\V
7UDGHUHFHLYDEOHVDQGDFFUXHGLQWHUHVW
+67UHFHLYDEOH
'XHIURPWKH3URYLQFHRI3ULQFH(GZDUG,VODQG


$

$

247,402

126,420
6,798 
380,620
66,685
447,305










:LWKUHVSHFWWRILQDQFLDODVVHWVPHDVXUHGDWDPRUWL]HGFRVWWKH&RUSRUDWLRQLVQRWH[SRVHGWRDQ\
VLJQLILFDQWFUHGLWULVNH[SRVXUHWRDQ\VLQJOHVXSSOLHU7UDGHUHFHLYDEOHVFRQVLVWRIDODUJHQXPEHU
RI FXVWRPHUV LQ YDULRXV LQGXVWULHV DQG JHRJUDSKLFDO DUHDV 0DQDJHPHQW FRQVLGHUV WKH FUHGLW
TXDOLW\RIWUDGHUHFHLYDEOHVWREHJRRG
E 0DUNHWULVN
0DUNHWULVNLVWKHULVNWKDWWKHIDLUYDOXHRUIXWXUHFDVKIORZVRIDILQDQFLDOLQVWUXPHQWZLOOIOXFWXDWH
EHFDXVHRIFKDQJHVLQPDUNHWSULFHV0DUNHWULVNFRPSULVHVWKUHHW\SHVRIULVNFXUUHQF\UDWHULVN
LQWHUHVWUDWHULVNDQGRWKHUSULFHULVN7KH&RUSRUDWLRQ VPDUNHWULVNPDQDJHPHQWIRFXVHVRQWKH
XQSUHGLFWDELOLW\RIILQDQFLDODQGHFRQRPLFPDUNHWVDQGVHHNVWRPLQLPL]HSRWHQWLDOHIIHFWVRQWKH
&RUSRUDWLRQ V ILQDQFLDO SHUIRUPDQFH 7KH &RUSRUDWLRQ V ILQDQFLDO LQVWUXPHQWV DUH QRW VXEMHFW WR
VLJQLILFDQWSULFHULVNRUFXUUHQF\ULVN
(continues)
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PRINCE EDWARD ISLAND CANNABIS MANAGEMENT CORPORATION
Notes to Financial Statements
Year Ended March 31, 2020
18. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
F ,QWHUHVWUDWHULVN
,QWHUHVWUDWHULVNLVWKHULVNWKDWWKHYDOXHRIDILQDQFLDOLQVWUXPHQWPLJKWEHDGYHUVHO\DIIHFWHGE\D
FKDQJH LQ WKH LQWHUHVW UDWHV  7KH &RUSRUDWLRQ V SROLF\ LV WR PLQLPL]H LQWHUHVW UDWH FDVK IORZ ULVN
H[SRVXUHVRQORQJWHUPILQDQFLDO/RQJWHUPERUURZLQJLVDWIL[HGUDWHV
G /LTXLGLW\ULVN
/LTXLGLW\ ULVN LV WKH ULVN WKDW WKH &RUSRUDWLRQ ZRXOG EH XQDEOH WR PHHW LWV REOLJDWLRQV 7KH
&RUSRUDWLRQ PDQDJHV OLTXLGLW\ QHHGV E\ PRQLWRULQJ VFKHGXOHG GHEW VHUYLFLQJ SD\PHQWV IRU ORQJ
WHUPILQDQFLDOOLDELOLWLHVDVZHOODVFDVKLQIORZVDQGRXWIORZVGXHLQGD\WRGD\EXVLQHVV7KHGDWD
XVHGIRUDQDO\]LQJWKHVHFDVKIORZVLVFRQVLVWHQWZLWKWKDWXVHGLQWKHFRQWUDFWXDOPDWXULW\DQDO\VLV
EHORZ /LTXLGLW\ QHHGV DUH PRQLWRUHG LQ YDULRXV WLPH EDQGV RQ D GD\WRGD\ DQG ZHHNWRZHHN
EDVLVDVZHOODVRQWKHEDVLVRIDUROOLQJGD\RXWORRN1HWFDVKUHTXLUHPHQWVDUHFRPSDUHGWR
DYDLODEOHERUURZLQJIDFLOLWLHVLQRUGHUWRGHWHUPLQHDQ\VXUSOXVRUVKRUWIDOO
7KH &RUSRUDWLRQ V REMHFWLYH LV WR PDLQWDLQ FDVK DQG PDUNHWDEOH VHFXULWLHV WR PHHW LWV OLTXLGLW\
UHTXLUHPHQWV IRU D PLQLPXP  GD\ SHULRG 7KLV REMHFWLYH ZDV PHW IRU WKH UHSRUWLQJ SHULRG
)XQGLQJ IRU ORQJ WHUP OLTXLGLW\ QHHGV DUH VHFXUHG E\ DGHTXDWH DPRXQWV RI FRPPLWWHG FUHGLW
IDFLOLWLHV 7KH &RUSRUDWLRQ V H[LVWLQJFDVKUHVRXUFHVWUDGHUHFHLYDEOHVDQGFDVKJHQHUDWHGIURP
RSHUDWLRQVVLJQLILFDQWO\H[FHHGWKHFXUUHQWFDVKRXWIORZUHTXLUHPHQWV
7KH&RUSRUDWLRQ VFRQWUDFWXDOILQDQFLDOOLDELOLWLHVDVDW0DUFKPDWXUHVDVIROORZV

&XUUHQW

1RQFXUUHQW

:LWKLQ
PRQWKV WRPRQWKV
$FFRXQWVSD\DEOHDQGDFFUXHG
OLDELOLWLHV
'XHWR3(,/&&
'XHWRWKH3URYLQFH
/HDVHOLDELOLWLHV
'HEHQWXUHVSD\DEOH

$IWHU\HDUV

WR\HDUV

















































19. CAPITAL MANAGEMENT
7KH FDSLWDO VWUXFWXUH RI WKH &RUSRUDWLRQ FXUUHQWO\ FRQVLVWV RI DPRXQWV GXH WR UHODWHG SDUWLHV
GHEHQWXUHVSD\DEOHDQGOHDVHOLDELOLWLHV7KH&RUSRUDWLRQPDQDJHVWKHFDSLWDOVWUXFWXUHDQGPDNHV
DGMXVWPHQWV WR LW LQ WKH OLJKW RI FKDQJHV LQ HFRQRPLF FRQGLWLRQV DQG WKH ULVN FKDUDFWHULVWLFV RI WKH
XQGHUO\LQJDVVHWV,QRUGHUWRPDLQWDLQRUDGMXVWWKHFDSLWDOVWUXFWXUHWKHFRPSDQ\PD\DUUDQJHPRUH
ORDQVRUDGYDQFHVIURPUHODWHGSDUWLHV0DQDJHPHQWUHYLHZVLWVFDSLWDOPDQDJHPHQWDSSURDFKRQD
UHJXODUEDVLV7KH&RUSRUDWLRQLVQRWVXEMHFWWRH[WHUQDOO\LPSRVHGFDSLWDOUHTXLUHPHQWV
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PRINCE EDWARD ISLAND CANNABIS MANAGEMENT CORPORATION
Notes to Financial Statements
Year Ended March 31, 2020
20. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS
7KH UHFHQW RXWEUHDN RI WKH &RURQDYLUXV 'LVHDVH  RU &29,' KDV VSUHDG DFURVV WKH JOREH
DQG LV LPSDFWLQJ ZRUOGZLGH HFRQRPLF DFWLYLW\ 7KLV JOREDO SDQGHPLF SRVHV WKH ULVN WKDW WKH
&RUSRUDWLRQ RU LWV FOLHQWV HPSOR\HHV FRQWUDFWRUV VXSSOLHUV DQG RWKHU SDUWQHUV PD\ EH XQDEOH WR
FRQGXFWUHJXODUEXVLQHVVDFWLYLWLHVIRUDQLQGHILQLWHSHULRGRIWLPH:KLOHLWLVQRWSRVVLEOHDWWKLVWLPH
WR HVWLPDWH WKH LPSDFW WKDW &29,' FRXOG KDYH RQ WKH &RUSRUDWLRQ V EXVLQHVV WKH FRQWLQXHG
VSUHDGRI&29,'DQGWKHPHDVXUHVWDNHQE\WKHIHGHUDOSURYLQFLDODQGPXQLFLSDOJRYHUQPHQWVWR
FRQWDLQLWVLPSDFWFRXOGDGYHUVHO\LPSDFWWKH&RUSRUDWLRQ VEXVLQHVVILQDQFLDOFRQGLWLRQRUUHVXOWVRI
RSHUDWLRQV7KHH[WHQWWRZKLFKWKH&29,'RXWEUHDNLPSDFWVWKH&RUSRUDWLRQ VUHVXOWVZLOOGHSHQG
RQIXWXUHGHYHORSPHQWVWKDWDUHKLJKO\XQFHUWDLQDQGFDQQRWEHSUHGLFWHGLQFOXGLQJQHZLQIRUPDWLRQ
WKDWPD\HPHUJHFRQFHUQLQJWKHVSUHDGRIWKHYLUXVDQGJRYHUQPHQWDFWLRQV
$VRI$SULO3ULQFH(GZDUG,VODQG/LTXRU&RQWURO&RPPLVVLRQKDVDJUHHGWRPDNHDYDLODEOH
WR 3ULQFH (GZDUG ,VODQG &DQQDELV 0DQDJHPHQW &RUSRUDWLRQ D OLQH RI FUHGLW DFFRXQW XS WR
DWDUDWHRI
21. COMPARATIVE FIGURES
6RPHRIWKHFRPSDUDWLYHILJXUHVKDYHEHHQUHFODVVLILHGWRFRQIRUPWRWKHFXUUHQW\HDU VSUHVHQWDWLRQ





1,667,672

$ 2,508,558 $ 1,860,841 $

-

193,169

-

-

-

-

-

128,947

-

64,222 $

Additions

Disposals
and Write
Downs

1,667,672

2,701,727

2,087,727

29,418
298,102
65,331

221,149 $

$ 4,369,399 $

$

Cost
End
of Year

136,045 $

1RWHVDUHDQLQWHJUDOSDUWRIWKHVHILQDQFLDOVWDWHPHQWV


-

136,045

74,695

2,285
29,810
13,562

15,693 $

Accum
Amort
Beginning
of Year

7KH&RUSRUDWLRQKDVQRWSOHGJHGDQ\RILWVSURSHUW\SODQWDQGHTXLSPHQWDVVHFXULW\

5LJKWRIXVHDVVHWV

2,508,558

(TXLSPHQW
$
156,927 $
&RPSXWHU
HTXLSPHQW
29,418
,QIRUPDWLRQV\VWHPV
298,102
&RPSXWHUVRIWZDUH
65,331
/HDVHKROG
LPSURYHPHQWV
1,958,780

Cost
Beginning
of Year

420,019 $

131,867

288,152

152,175

11,426
59,621
27,123

37,807 $

Amort
in the
Year

-

-

-

-

-

-

Disposals
and Write
Downs

PRINCE EDWARD ISLAND CANNABIS MANAGEMENT CORPORATION
SCHEDULE TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT
YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2020

$

$

1,535,805

2,277,530

1,860,857

15,707
208,671
24,646

167,649

Net
Book
Value

556,064 $ 3,813,335

131,867

424,197

226,870

13,711
89,431
40,685

53,500 $

Accum
Amort
End
of Year

Schedule 1
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1,958,780

-

-

$

-

-

-

-

-

Disposals
and Write
Downs

1RWHVDUHDQLQWHJUDOSDUWRIWKHVHILQDQFLDOVWDWHPHQWV

$ 2,508,558 $

298,102
65,331

-

156,927 $
29,418

$

-

-

Additions

(TXLSPHQW
$
&RPSXWHU
HTXLSPHQW
)LQDQFLDO
LQIRUPDWLRQV\VWHP
&RPSXWHUVRIWZDUH
/HDVHKROG
LPSURYHPHQWV

Cost
Beginning
of Period

1,958,780

298,102
65,331

29,418

156,927 $

-

-

-

-

-

Accum
Amort
Beginning
of Period



$ 2,508,558 $

$

Cost
End
of Period

$

$

136,045 $

74,695

29,810
13,562

2,285

15,693 $

Amort
in the
Period

-

-

-

-

-

Disposals
and Write
Downs

PRINCE EDWARD ISLAND CANNABIS MANAGEMENT CORPORATION
SCHEDULE TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT
459 DAYS ENDED MARCH 31, 2019

$

$

1,884,085

268,292
51,769

27,133

141,234

Net
Book
Value

136,045 $ 2,372,513

74,695

29,810
13,562

2,285

15,693 $

Accum
Amort
End
of Period

Schedule 2
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P.E.I. Civil Service Superannuation Fund

Audited Financial Statements for P.E.I. Civil Service Superannuation Fund for the year
ended March 31, 2020 were not provided to the Office of the Comptroller as required by
Section 70 (4) of the Financial Administration Act. Unaudited, draft financial statements
were used in the preparation of the Public Accounts.
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Grant Thornton LLP
Suite 410
98 Fitzroy Street, PO Box 187
Charlottetown, PE
C1A 7K4
T +1 902 892 6547
F +1 902 566 5358

To the Members of the Board of
Prince Edward Island Energy Corporation
Opinion
We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Prince Edward Island Energy Corporation (the
“Corporation”), which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at March 31, 2020, and
the consolidated statement of profit, comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows for the year
then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting
policies.
In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects,
the financial position of Prince Edward Island Energy Corporation as at March 31, 2020, and its financial
performance and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards.
Basis for opinion
We conducted our audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of
the consolidated financial statements section of our report. We are independent of the Corporation in
accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the consolidated financial
statements in Canada, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our opinion.
Other matter
The consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2019 were audited by another auditor
who expressed an unmodified opinion on those financial statements on June 27, 2019.
Responsibilities of management and those charged with governance for the consolidated financial
statements
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these consolidated financial
statements in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards, and for such internal control as
management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
In preparing the consolidated financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the
Corporation’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to a going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the
Corporation or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative to do so.
Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Corporation’s financial reporting process.

Audit | Tax | Advisory
© 2014 Grant Thornton LLP. A Canadian Member of Grant Thornton International Ltd
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Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial statements
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users
taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.
As part of an audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:
x

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence
that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

x

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
the Corporation's internal control.

x

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by management.

x

Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions
that may cast significant doubt on the Corporation 's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude
that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the Corporation to cease to continue as a going concern.

x

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements, including
the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying transactions
and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

x

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or business
activities within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain solely responsible
for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

Charlottetown, Canada
August 28, 2020

Chartered Professional Accountants
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Prince Edward Island Energy Corporation
Consolidated Statement of Profit
For the years ended March 31,
2020
Revenue from Contracts with Customers
Wind energy sales
Ratepayer recoveries
Grants
Total Revenue from Contracts with Customers

2019

$ 18,532,866
1,562,575
115,000
20,210,441

$ 19,103,740
1,562,582
115,000
20,781,322

565,048
4,723,757
5,288,805

536,459
6,461,610
6,998,069

Total Revenue

25,499,246

27,779,391

Wind Expenses
Consultants
Depreciation (Note 7)
Electricity
Insurance
Finance costs
Land owner fees and community support
Repairs and maintenance
Service and warranty fees
Other wind expenses
Total Wind Expenses

4,392
4,807,564
209,954
368,275
4,831,994
530,917
370,663
3,704,394
36,993
14,865,146

71,321
4,615,881
221,751
329,028
6,943,547
503,376
438,299
3,626,746
37,107
16,787,056

Operating Profit

10,634,100

10,992,335

130,173
1,562,575
(274,608)
432,217
83,189
1,933,546

118,120
1,562,582
49,193
332,649
92,492
2,155,036

Other Revenue
Other wind revenue
Finance income
Total Other Revenue

General and Administrative Expenses
Consulting and professional services
Depreciation of non-wind assets (Note 7)
Net (gain) loss on disposal of assets
Wages and employee benefits
Other general expenses
Total General and Administrative Expenses
Total Profit for the Year

$

8,700,554

$

8,837,299

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Prince Edward Island Energy Corporation
Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
For the years ended March 31,
2020
Profit for the Period
Other Comprehensive Income
Items that may be reclassified to profit or loss
Net gain (loss) on cash flow hedges
Hedging gains reclassified to profit or loss
Total Other Comprehensive Income (Loss) for the Year
Total Comprehensive Income (Loss) for the Year

$

8,700,554

2019
$

(18,678,950)
(18,678,950)
$ (9,978,396)

8,837,299

(6,862,109)
(140,721)
(7,002,830)
$

1,834,469

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Prince Edward Island Energy Corporation
Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
For the years ended March 31,
Cash flow
hedge reserve
Balance at April 1, 2018
Total Comprehensive Income for the Year
Profit for the year
Other comprehensive income
Total Comprehensive Income for the Year
Balance at March 31, 2019
Total Comprehensive Income for the Year
Profit for the year
Other comprehensive income
Total Comprehensive Income for the Year
Balance at March 31, 2020

$

5,684,265

$

(7,002,830)
(7,002,830)

Retained
Earnings

Total
Equity

$ 54,274,831

$ 59,959,096

$

$

8,837,299
8,837,299

8,837,299
(7,002,830)
1,834,469

$ (1,318,565)

$ 63,112,130

$ 61,793,565

$

$

$

(18,678,950)
(18,678,950)

$ (19,997,515)

8,700,554
8,700,554

$ 71,812,684

8,700,554
(18,678,950)
(9,978,396)

$ 51,815,169

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Prince Edward Island Energy Corporation
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
For the years ended March 31,
2020
Cash flows from operating activities:
Cash receipts from customers and other
Cash paid to suppliers and employees

Cash flows from investing activities:
Increase in other financial assets
Decrease in other financial assets
Increase in property, plant and equipment
Interest received
Other finance income received

Cash flows from financing activities:
Proceeds from debt
Repayment of debt
Receipt of government grants
Interest paid
Other finance costs paid

Net increase (decrease) in cash
Cash, beginning of year
Cash, end of year (Note 4)

2019

$ 25,610,349
(10,068,245)
15,542,104

$ 27,134,191
(11,017,286)
16,116,905

(249,170)
5,798,081
(5,062,645)
4,620,574
5,106,840

(776,820)
10,699,182
(907,871)
5,207,163
1,361,697
15,583,351

(6,173,968)
201,159
(4,800,919)
(10,773,728)

19,014,210
(80,178,167)
16,664,204
(5,722,571)
(1,220,976)
(51,443,300)

9,875,216

(19,743,044)

13,329,653

33,072,697

$ 23,204,869

$ 13,329,653

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Prince Edward Island Energy Corporation
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended March 31, 2020
1. Corporate Information and Nature of Operations
The Prince Edward Island Energy Corporation is a Crown corporation established by the Energy Corporation Act,
and therefore is exempt from income taxes under Section 149(1)(d) of the Canadian Income Tax Act. The
Corporation's principal business activities include the development and promotion of energy systems in Prince
Edward Island.
The Corporation’s registered office is located at 16 Fitzroy Street in Charlottetown, Prince Edward Island, C1A 7N8.
In these Consolidated Financial Statements, all dollars are expressed in Canadian dollars.
These Consolidated Financial Statements were authorized for issue by the Corporation’s Board of Directors on
August 28, 2020.
2. Significant Accounting Policies
Statement of Compliance
These Consolidated Financial Statements were prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards (IFRS) as issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB). They have been prepared on
a going concern basis under the historical cost convention, except for assets required to be measured at fair value in
accordance with IFRS.
The preparation of Consolidated Financial Statements in accordance with IFRS requires the use of certain critical
accounting estimates. It also requires management to exercise judgment in applying the Corporation’s accounting
policies. The areas involving a higher degree of judgment or complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates
are significant to the consolidated financial statements are disclosed in Note 3.
Basis of Consolidation
These Financial Statements are the Consolidated Financial Statements of Prince Edward Island Energy Corporation
and its wholly owned subsidiary, Prince Edward Island Renewable Energy Corporation. All intercompany balances
and transactions are eliminated upon consolidation.
Revenue from Contracts with Customers
The Corporation is in the business of providing wind energy and access to electricity grid infrastructure. Revenue
from contracts with customers is recognized when control of the good or services are transferred to the customer at
an amount that reflects the consideration to which the Corporation expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods
or services. The Corporation has generally concluded that it is the principal in its revenue arrangements, except for
the agency services below, because it typically controls the good or services before transferring them to the customer.
The disclosures of significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions relating to revenue from contracts
with customers are provided in note 3.
Sale of wind energy:
The Corporation sells wind power through a number of Power Purchase Agreements (PPAs) with Maritime Electric
Company Limited. With the exception of agency services described below, revenue from the sale of wind energy is
recognized based on the kilowatt hours of wind energy delivered and the applicable per-kilowatt hour selling price.
The Corporation also purchases and resells wind power on behalf of other entities. The Corporation is acting as an
agent in these arrangements and, as a result, records revenue at the net amount that it retains for its agency services.

8

38%/,&$&&2817692/80(,,,



2. Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Ratepayer recoveries:
The Corporation provides electricity ratepayers with connection to the mainland electricity grid and ongoing access
to a supply of electricity through the PEI-NB Cable Interconnection. Associated ratepayer recovery revenue equal to
the capital cost of the Interconnection is recognized over the period of the contract, which coincides with the estimated
useful life of the property, plant and equipment, based on the time elapsed. Ratepayer recoveries received in excess
of revenue recognized are recorded as contract liabilities.
The amounts recovered from ratepayers explicitly include a significant financing component equal to the financing
costs of the PEI-NB Cable Interconnection Project. The portion of the recoveries pertaining to the significant financing
component are recognized separately as finance income.
Sale of Renewable Energy Certificates (RECs):
The Corporation acts as an agent in selling RECs to third parties on behalf of the Province of PEI. The Corporation
records revenue at the net amount that it retains for its agency services, which is equal to an annual grant provided
by the Province.
Other Wind Revenue
Other wind revenue consists primarily of liquidated damages receivable under service and warranty contracts and
rent revenue.
Liquidated damages:
The Corporation enters into service and warranty agreements which provide for scheduled and unscheduled wind
turbine maintenance. These contracts require that the turbines be available for energy generation a certain
percentage of time per contract year. Should actual turbine availability be less than the specified percentage, the
Corporation is entitled to receive liquidated damages from the service and warranty provider. Liquidated damages
are recognized annually at the end of each contract year for the amount calculated in accordance with the service
and warranty contract provisions.
Rent revenue:
The Corporation earns revenue from the rental of land and buildings. Rent revenue is recognized over the period of
each lease agreement at the amounts specified in or calculated per the relevant agreement provisions.
Cash
Unrestricted cash in the Consolidated Statement of Financial Position consists of unrestricted bank balances held in
Canadian currency.
Restricted cash in the Consolidated Statement of Financial Position consists of bank balances held in Canadian
currency which, per the terms of a loan agreement, is restricted for settlement of long-term indebtedness that is
expected to occur more than twelve months after the financial year end.
For the purpose of the Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows, cash consists of unrestricted and restricted cash, as
defined above.
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2. Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Financial Instruments
Trade Receivables:
Trade receivables are amounts due from customers for the rendering of services or sale of goods in the ordinary
course of business.
Financial Assets:
Financial assets within the scope of IFRS 9 Financial Instruments are classified as financial assets at fair value
through profit and loss, amortized cost or designated as hedging instruments, as appropriate. When financial assets
are initially recognized, they are measured at fair value, plus, in the case of financial assets measured at amortized
cost, directly attributable financing costs. The Corporation determines the classification of the financial assets at
initial recognition, and, where appropriate, evaluates this designation at each financial year end.
Loans and receivables for which the objective of the Corporation’s business model is to hold the financial asset to
collect the contractual cash flows (rather than to sell the instrument prior to its contractual maturity to realize its fair
value changes) and for which the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows
that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal outstanding are recognized at amortized cost.
All other financial assets, except derivative financial instruments designated as hedging instruments, are measured
at fair value through profit or loss.
Impairment of Financial Assets:
A financial asset is considered to be impaired if objective evidence indicates that events have had a negative effect
on the estimated future cash flows of that asset. An impairment loss in respect of a financial asset measured at
amortized cost is calculated as the difference between its carrying amount and the present value of the estimated
future cash flows discounted at the original effective interest rate.
The Corporation measures the loss allowance for trade receivables at an amount equal to lifetime expected credit
losses. The expected credit losses on trade receivables are estimated using a provision matrix by reference to past
default experience of the debtor and an analysis of the debtor’s current financial position, adjusted for factors that are
specific to the debtors, general economic conditions of the industry in which the debtors operate and an assessment
of both the current as well as the forecasted direction of conditions at the reporting date.
The Corporation writes off a trade receivable when there is information indicating that the debtor is in severe financial
difficulty and there is no realistic prospect of recovery. Trade receivables that have been written off are not subject
to enforcement activities.
Debt Instruments:
Debt instruments are initially recognized at fair value, which is the proceeds received, less attributable
financing costs. Subsequent to initial recognition, debt instruments are stated at amortized cost with any
difference net of transaction costs incurred. Any discount between the net proceeds received and the principal value
due on redemption is amortized over the duration of the debt instrument and is recognized as part of financing costs
using the effective interest method.
Interest on indebtedness is expensed as incurred unless capitalized for qualifying assets in accordance with IAS 23
Borrowing Costs.
Debt is classified as a current liability unless the Corporation has an unconditional right to defer settlement for at least
12 months after the reporting period.
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2. Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Derivative Financial Instruments and Hedge Accounting:
The Corporation uses derivative financial instruments in the form of interest rate swaps to hedge its interest rate risks.
Such derivative financial instruments are initially recognized at fair value on the date on which a derivative contract
is entered into and are subsequently remeasured at fair value. Derivatives are carried as financial assets when the
fair value is positive and as financial liabilities when the fair value is negative.
Interest rate swaps when hedging the exposure to variability in cash flows that is either attributable to a particular risk
associated with a recognized asset or liability or a highly probable forecast transaction are classified as cash flow
hedges.
At the inception of a hedge relationship, the Corporation formally designates and documents the hedge relationship
to which it wishes to apply hedge accounting and the risk management objective and strategy for undertaking the
hedge. The documentation includes identification of the hedging instrument, the hedged item, the nature of the risk
being hedged and how the Corporation will assess whether the hedging relationship meets the hedge effectiveness
requirements (including the analysis of sources of hedge ineffectiveness and how the hedge ratio is determined). A
hedging relationship qualifies for hedge accounting if it meets all of the following effectiveness requirements:
• There is ‘an economic relationship’ between the hedged item and the hedging instrument.
• The effect of credit risk does not ‘dominate the value changes’ that result from that economic relationship.
• The hedge ratio of the hedging relationship is the same as that resulting from the quantity of the hedged item that
the Corporation actually hedges and the quantity of the hedging instrument that the Corporation actually uses to
hedge that quantity of hedged item.
Hedges that meet all the qualifying criteria for hedge accounting are accounted for, as described below:
Cash flow hedges
The effective portion of the gain or loss on the hedging instrument is recognized in other comprehensive income in
the cash flow hedge reserve, while any ineffective portion is recognized immediately in the statement of profit or loss.
The cash flow hedge reserve is adjusted to the lower of the cumulative gain or loss on the hedging instrument and
the cumulative change in fair value of the hedged item. The amount accumulated in other comprehensive income is
reclassified to profit or loss as a reclassification adjustment in the same period or periods during which the hedged
cash flows affect profit or loss.
If cash flow hedge accounting is discontinued, the amount that has been accumulated in other comprehensive income
must remain in accumulated other comprehensive income if the hedged future cash flows are still expected to occur.
Otherwise, the amount will be immediately reclassified to profit or loss as a reclassification adjustment. After
discontinuation, once the hedged cash flow occurs, any amount remaining in accumulated other comprehensive
income must be accounted for depending on the nature of the underlying transaction as described above. Additional
information regarding derivatives and hedging are provided in notes 11 and 14.
Fair values
Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date. All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or
disclosed in the consolidated financial statements are categorized within the fair value hierarchy, depending on the
observability of the significant inputs used in the measurement.
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2. Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) for identical assets and liabilities in active markets that are accessible at the
measurement date.
Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly
or indirectly.
Level 3: unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.
Property, Plant and Equipment
Property, plant and equipment is stated at cost, less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses. Depreciation
is calculated on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful life of the assets. The useful lives are estimated as
follows:
Asset
Wind turbines and towers
Distribution
Transmission
Building
Radar Equipment
Roads

Rate
5-40 years
30 years
40 years
20 years
10 years
40 years

Depreciation is only recognized for assets available for use in their current state.
Assets under Development
Development costs and assets under construction are recorded at cost. Capitalized costs related to an asset under
development include all eligible expenditures incurred in connection with the development and construction of the
asset until it is available for its intended use. The Corporation capitalizes all directly attributable costs. Upon a project
becoming commercially operational, the accumulated costs, including capitalized borrowing costs, if any, are
transferred to property, plant and equipment and are amortized on a straight line basis over the estimated useful lives
of the various components.
Impairment of Long-Lived Assets
The Corporation assesses, at each reporting date, whether there is an indication that an asset may be
impaired. If any such indication exists, the Corporation makes an estimate of the asset’s recoverable amount.
An
asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs to sell and its value in use. The
recoverable amount is determined for each asset group for which cash flows are generated independently from other
assets in the group. When the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered
impaired and is written down to its recoverable amount. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows
are discounted to their present value using a discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value
of money and the risks specific to the asset. Impairment losses from continuing operations are recognized in the
Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income in the line item “Depreciation”.

12
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2. Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Government Grants
Government grants are recognized when there is reasonable assurance that the grant will be received and all
attached conditions will be complied with. When the grant relates to an expense item, it is deducted from the expense
for which it is intended to compensate. When the grant relates to an asset, it is deducted from the asset’s carrying
amount.
Provisions
Provisions are recognized when the Corporation has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past
event, it is probable that the Corporation will be required to settle that obligation and a reliable estimate can be
made of the amount of the obligation.
The amount recognized as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration required to settle the present
obligation at the reporting date, taking into account the risks and uncertainties surrounding the obligation. Where a
provision is measured using the cash flows estimated to settle the present obligation, its carrying amount is the
present value of those cash flows.
Decommissioning provisions
Provisions for the costs to decommission turbines and restore leased land to its original condition, as required by the
terms and conditions of the lease, are recognized when the obligation is incurred, either at the commencement date
or as a consequence of having used the underlying asset during a particular period of the lease, at management’s
best estimate of the expenditure that would be required to restore the assets. Estimates are regularly reviewed and
adjusted as appropriate for new circumstances.
Pension Liabilities
Employees of the Corporation are members of the Province of Prince Edward Island pension plan. The pension plan
obligation is a liability of the Province and not the Corporation; therefore, no liability for these costs has been recorded.
Standards and Interpretations – New Standard Adopted
IFRS 16 Leases, as issued by IASB in January 2016, replaces IAS 17, IFRIC 4, SIC-15 and SIC-27 and is mandatory
for all entities beginning on or after January 1, 2019. The Corporation adopted IFRS 16 effective April 1, 2019, but
the adoption has had no impact on the consolidated financial statements
3. Critical Accounting Estimates, Judgments and Errors
The preparation of consolidated financial statements requires management to make estimates and judgments about
the future. Estimates and judgments are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and other
factors, including expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.
Accounting estimates will, by definition, seldom equal the actual results. The following discussion sets forth
management’s most critical estimates and assumptions in determining the value of assets and liabilities, and the
most critical judgments in applying accounting policies.
Revenue from Contracts with Customers
The Corporation applied the following judgements that significantly affect the determination of the amount and timing
of revenue from contracts with customers:

13
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3. Critical Accounting Estimates, Judgments and Errors (continued)
Determining the timing of satisfaction of access to electricity grid infrastructure
The Corporation concluded that revenue for ratepayer recoveries is to be recognized over time because the customer
simultaneously receives and consumes the benefits provided by connection to the mainland electricity grid and
ongoing access to a supply of electricity. The Corporation recognizes revenue on the basis of time elapsed relative
to the total period of the contract, which aligns with the estimated useful life of the PEI-NB Cable Interconnection.
Principal versus agent considerations
The Corporation sells Renewable Energy Certificates (RECs) on behalf of the Province of PEI. The Corporation
determined that it does not control the RECs before they are transferred to customers, and it does not have the ability
to direct the use of the RECs or obtain benefits from the RECs. Therefore, the Corporation determined that it is an
agent in these contracts.
Decommissioning Provisions
In accordance with IAS 16, the cost of an item of property, plant and equipment includes the initial estimate of the
costs of dismantling and removing the item and restoring the site to its original state. Decommissioning and site
restoration costs have been estimated based on currently available information. These estimates will be revised as
new information becomes available and such changes could have a significant impact on these financial statements.
Asset Lives
Given the relatively new and constantly evolving wind energy industry, it is difficult to predict the useful lives of major
components of property, plant and equipment. Useful lives of wind turbines and related infrastructure are determined
based on suppliers’ estimated design lives of the turbines with reference to the length of the power purchase
agreements the Corporation has in place. The estimated useful lives, residual value and depreciation methods will
be adjusted as new information becomes available and such changes could have a significant impact on these
consolidated financial statements.
COVID 19
Since January 31, 2020, the spread of COVID-19 has severely impacted many local economies around the globe.
In many countries, including Canada, businesses are being forced to cease or limit operations for long or indefinite
periods of time. Measures taken to contain the spread of the virus, including travel bans, quarantines, social
distancing, and closures of non-essential services have triggered significant disruptions to businesses worldwide,
resulting in an economic slowdown. The duration and impact of the COVID-19 pandemic remains unclear at this
time.
The Corporation has determined that these events have not had a material impact on the carrying value of assets
and liabilities reported in these consolidated financial statements as at March 31, 2020, with the exception of
derivative financial instruments, the fair value of which declined significantly as a result of a decrease in market
interest rates. The duration and impact of the COVID-19 pandemic, as well as the effectiveness of government and
central bank responses, remains unclear at this time. It is not possible to reliably estimate the duration and severity
of these consequences, as well as their impact on the financial position and results of the Corporation for future
periods.
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4. Cash
For the purpose of the Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows, cash consists of the following:
2020
Unrestricted cash
Restricted cash

$ 21,678,033
1,526,836
$ 23,204,869

2019
$ 12,191,072
1,138,581
$ 13,329,653

5. Trade Receivables

Trade receivables from contracts
with customers
Other trade receivables
HST

2020

2019

2,995,384
3,642,285
155,673
6,793,342

2,711,170
1,138,716
3,849,886

Trade receivables are non-interest bearing and are generally on 30-day payment terms. Included in trade receivables
are past due amounts totaling $646,373 (2019 - $7,115). No loss allowance was recognized for the year ended
March 31, 2020 as historical experience and factors specific to the debtor indicate that the receivables are
recoverable.
6. Other Financial Assets
2020
Customers of a local utility provider (Point Lepreau financing), 3.41%,
receivable in variable monthly installments based on usage which is
approximately $346,861 including principal and interest, due March 2038.

2019

$ 54,028,324

$ 57,317,100

19,014,210

19,014,210

Customers of a local utility provider (Dalhousie financing), 1.87%, receivable in
in variable monthly installments based on usage which is approximately
$97,363 of principal and interest, due April 2021.

1,252,015

2,385,442

Customers of a local utility provider (NB Interconnection Transmission prorated
share of PEI-NB Cable Interconnection financing), 2.51%, receivable in
variable monthly installments based on usage which is approximately $38,236
including principal and interest, due February 2046.

10,740,313

11,032,555

Wind Energy Institute of Canada, 4.02%, receivable in quarterly installments of
$223,641 including principal and interest, due June 2036, secured by first
charge on materials, buildings and equipment and site specific general
security.

10,302,272

11,091,191

Customers of a local utility provider (Point Lepreau financing), 2.81%,
receivable in monthly interest only payments up to April 2021, then monthly
payments of principal and interest of $117,793, due March 2038.
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6. Other Financial Assets (continued)
Accrued interest receivable
Less: current portion

103,538
95,440,672
(4,352,065)
$ 91,088,607

355
100,840,853
(3,988,607)
$ 96,852,246

PEI Energy Accord – Point Lepreau and Dalhousie Financing
In November 2011, the Province of Prince Edward Island entered into the Prince Edward Island Energy Accord which
requires the Corporation to assume certain financing responsibilities and recover these costs from customers of a
local utility provider. The Prince Edward Island Energy Accord expired February 29, 2016 and a new collection
agreement was signed between the Province of PEI, Maritime Electric Company Limited and the Corporation. The
costs of electricity include the costs associated with the refurbishment of Point Lepreau Nuclear Generating Station
Facility and the exit of the utility provider from the Dalhousie Unit Participation agreement. The Corporation has
obtained financing from the Toronto Dominion Bank to cover these costs. Terms and conditions for repayment of the
Point Lepreau and Dalhousie debt and the terms and conditions for the receivable from the customers of the utility
provider differ because the payments from customers are based on kilowatt hour sales and repayment of debt is a
fixed monthly payment. Although there are timing differences in payments received from customers and repayments
of debt obligations, all financing costs associated with Point Lepreau and Dalhousie incurred by the Corporation are
receivable from customers of the utility provider until the amounts are fully recovered. Due to the variable monthly
payments based on kilowatt hour sales and variable interest payments, the current portion recognized, and estimated
maturities disclosed may be different from the actual amounts recognized.
PEI-NB Cable Interconnection Project
In May 2014, the Corporation entered into a Construction Agency Agreement with Maritime Electric Company Limited
for the upgrade of the interconnection between the electrical systems of Prince Edward Island and mainland Canada.
Under this agreement, the Corporation assumes financing responsibility for the upgrade. Financing has been
obtained from Toronto Dominion Bank and all financing costs will be recovered from customers of a local utility
provider. The PEI-NB Cable Interconnection Project, with the exception of the NB Interconnection Transmission as
described below, has been accounted for as property, plant and equipment.
A key component of the PEI-NB Cable Interconnection Project is the construction of transmission facilities in New
Brunswick (“NB Interconnection Transmission”). Ownership of this transmission must remain with NB Power in
accordance with the provisions of the New Brunswick Electricity Act. A receivable from the customers of the local
utility provider has been recorded for the NB Interconnection Transmission costs. Given that the financing obtained
from Toronto Dominion Bank is in respect of the entire PEI-NB Cable Interconnection Project, a portion of the
payments received from customers must be allocated to the NB Interconnection Transmission. The proportionate
share of financing related to the NB Interconnection Transmission has been estimated based on costs incurred to
the end of the reporting period. As a result, the current portion recognized in relation to the receivable from customers
of the local utility provider may differ from the actual amounts recognized.
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7. Property, Plant and Equipment, Net
Wind Turbines
and Towers
Gross Amount
At March 31, 2018
Acquisitions
Disposals
At March 31, 2019
Acquisitions
Disposals
At March 31, 2020

Transmission
and
Distribution

Land and
Buildings

Roads

Assets under
Equipment Development

96,710,187
1,128,726
(2,627,465)
95,211,448
2,175,665
(831,960)
96,555,153

78,268,529
(197,474)
(190,843)
77,880,212
305
77,880,517

1,214,738
1,214,738
1,214,738

2,229,932
13,523
2,243,455
2,243,455

576,786
576,786

Accumulated Depreciation
41,218,709
At March 31, 2018
Depreciation
3,824,565
Impairment
Disposals
(1,709,134)
At March 31, 2019
43,334,140
Depreciation
3,976,334
Impairment
Disposals
(320,178)
At March 31, 2020
46,990,296

5,422,756
2,024,696
250,000
(52,297)
7,645,155
2,040,592
250,000
9,935,747

250,047
31,585
281,632
31,585
313,217

358,297
55,942
414,239
56,333
470,572

38,695
38,695

70,235,057
67,944,770

933,106
901,521

1,829,216
1,772,883

538,091

Carrying Amount
At March 31, 2019
At March 31, 2020

51,877,308
49,564,857

Total

275,908 178,699,294
108,829
1,053,604
- (2,818,308)
384,737 176,934,590
1,775,618
4,528,374
(831,960)
2,160,355 180,631,004

-

47,249,809
5,936,788
250,000
(1,761,431)
51,675,166
6,143,539
250,000
(320,178)
57,748,527

384,737 125,259,424
2,160,355 122,882,477

Included in Transmission and Distribution is a 100MW transmission line which is not available for use in its current
state. In accordance with the October 2008 agreement between the Corporation and Maritime Electric Company
Limited governing the construction of the transmission line, the amount for which the asset can be sold to a third party
equals cost less depreciation at a rate of 0% for the first seven years after construction and 5% per annum thereafter.
The seven-year period expired December 31, 2015. During the year, an impairment loss of $250,000 (2019 $250,000) was recognized in depreciation in the Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss to write down the asset to
its recoverable amount. At March 31, 2020, the recoverable amount, based on fair value less costs of disposal, was
$3,937,500 (2019 - $4,187,500). Since the estimate of fair value based on the terms of the October 2008 agreement
is a significant unobservable input, the fair value of the transmission line is classified as a level 3 fair value.
8. Trade Payables and Accrued Liabilities
2020
Trade Payables
HST
Accrued Liabilities

$

$

2,167,472
260,862
1,218,797
3,647,131

2019
$

$

1,662,116
572,034
65,264
2,299,414

Trade payables are non-interest bearing and normally settled within 30 days. Included in trade payables is $778,267
(2019 - $749,834) due to various Provincial Government controlled departments and agencies.
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9. Contract Liabilities
2020
Balance, beginning of year
Amount received
Debt collections allocated to repayment of NB Interconnection Transmission
Debt collections allocated to interest revenue
Debt collection revenue recognized
Balance, end of year

2019

1,351,654
3,579,018
(586,959)
(1,372,112)
(1,562,575)
1,409,026

639,079
4,499,218
(674,433)
(1,549,628)
(1,562,582)
1,351,654

These amounts relate to the collection and recognition in comprehensive income of ratepayer recoveries on the PEINB Cable Interconnection. All end of year balances are current.
10. Provisions
During the year, a review of wind turbine decommissioning and site restoration costs resulted in the recognition of a
decommissioning provision. The effect of this change on actual and expected depreciation expense and finance
costs in the current and future years is as follows:
2020

2021

2022

2023

2024

Thereafter

Increase in
depreciation
expense

113,764

119,691

119,691

119,691

116,678

549,759

Increase in
finance costs

31,075

27,270

27,914

28,574

29,014

185,637

11. Long-term indebtedness
2020

2019

Toronto Dominion term loan, bearing interest at variable rates based on 30day Bankers’ Acceptances, hedged by a floating to fixed interest rate swap
bearing interest at 2.51%, payable in monthly payments of principal and
interest of $235,399, due February 2046.

$ 66,790,868

$ 67,922,412

Toronto Dominion term loan, bearing interest at variable rates based on 30day Bankers’ Acceptances, hedged by a floating to fixed interest rate swap
bearing interest at 3.41%, payable in monthly payments of principal and
interest of $346,861, due March 2038.

55,951,939

58,167,464

Toronto Dominion term loan, bearing interest at variable rates based on 30day Bankers’ Acceptances, hedged by a floating to fixed interest rate swap
bearing interest at 2.99%, payable in monthly payments of principal and
interest of $213,564, due July 2033.

28,152,174

29,845,646

Toronto Dominion term loan, bearing interest at variable rates based on 30day Bankers’ Acceptances, hedged by a floating to fixed interest rate swap
bearing interest at 2.81%, payable in monthly interest only payments until April
2021, then monthly payments of principal and interest of $117,793, due March
2038.

19,014,210

19,014,210
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11. Long-term indebtedness (continued)
Toronto Dominion term loan, bearing interest at variable rates based on 30day Bankers’ Acceptances, hedged by a floating to fixed interest rate swap
bearing interest at 1.87%, payable in monthly payments of principal and
interest of $97,363, due April 2021.

1,252,015

2,385,442

1,276

1,276

Bonds Payable, 5% compounded with dates ranging from December 31, 2006
to April 30, 2008 maturing five years from the date of issuance, guaranteed by
the Province of Prince Edward Island.
Less: current portion

171,162,482
(6,353,358)
$ 164,809,124

177,336,450
(6,175,244)
$ 171,161,206

The aggregate maturities of long-term indebtedness including accrued interest subsequent to March 31, 2020 are as
follows: 2021 - $6,353,358; 2022 - $6,271,621; 2023 - $6,439,574; 2024 - $6,637,617; 2025 - $6,841,829; thereafter
- $138,618,483.
In accordance with a loan agreement, the Corporation must deposit $30,000 per month into a sinking fund for future
settlement of long-term indebtedness. The balance of the sinking fund is presented on the Consolidated Statement
of Financial Position as restricted cash.
Additional information regarding derivatives and hedging are provided in notes 12 and 14.
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12. Financial Instruments
Fair Value
through
Earnings

Amortized
Cost

Derivatives
designated as
hedging
instruments

-

13,329,653
3,849,886
100,840,853
(2,299,414)
(177,336,450)
(61,615,472)

3,822,824
(5,141,389)
(1,318,565)

13,329,653
3,849,886
100,840,853
(2,299,414)
3,822,824
(5,141,389)
(177,336,450)
(62,934,037)

-

23,204,869
6,793,342
95,440,672
(3,647,131)
(171,162,482)
(49,370,730)

(19,997,515)
(19,997,515)

23,204,869
6,793,342
95,440,672
(3,647,131)
(19,997,515)
(171,162,482)
(69,368,245)

March 31, 2019
Cash, including restricted cash
Trade receivables, net
Other financial assets, including current
Trade payables and accrued liabilities
Derivative financial instruments, assets
Derivative financial instruments, liabilities
Long-term indebtedness, including current
March 31, 2020
Cash, including restricted cash
Trade receivables, net
Other financial assets, including current
Trade payables and accrued liabilities
Derivative financial instruments, liabilities
Long-term indebtedness, including current

Total

Net gains (losses) by category by period were as follows:
Financial assets at amortized cost
Financial liabilities at amortized cost
Derivatives designated as hedging instruments

2020
788,034
(900,377)
(18,678,950)

2019
823,858
(1,446,515)
(6,862,109)

Additional details regarding net gains (losses) on derivatives designated as hedging instruments are as follows:
2020
Hedging gains (losses) recognized in other comprehensive income
Hedging gains reclassified to profit or loss due to interest rate swap
unwinds

(18,678,950)
-

2019
(6,862,109)
140,721

The carrying values of financial instruments included in current assets and current liabilities approximate their fair
value, reflecting the short-term maturity, normal trade credit terms and/or the nature of these instruments.
Derivative financial instruments consist of interest rate swaps with a financial institution that are designated as
cash flow hedges. The carrying values of derivative financial instruments equal their fair values, which are
calculated as the present values of the future rights and obligations between the two parties to receive or deliver
future cash flows. The fair values of the Corporation’s interest rate swaps are classified as Level 2 fair values as
the significant inputs are directly or indirectly observable.
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12. Financial Instruments (continued)
Hedge effectiveness is determined at the inception of the hedge relationship, and through periodic prospective
effectiveness assessments to ensure that an economic relationship exists between the hedged item and hedging
instrument. The Corporation enters into interest rate swaps that have similar critical terms as the hedged items, such
as reference rate, reset dates, payment dates, maturities and notional amount. As all critical terms of long-term
indebtedness and corresponding interest rate swaps matched during the year, the economic relationships were 100%
effective.
If changes in circumstances affect the terms of the hedged item such that the critical terms no longer match exactly
with the critical terms of the hedging instrument, the Corporation uses the hypothetical derivative method to assess
effectiveness. Hedge ineffectiveness for interest rate swaps may arise if there is a credit value/debt value adjustment
on an interest rate swap which is not matched by the corresponding loan, or if there are differences in critical terms
between the interest rate swaps and loans. There was no ineffectiveness during the years ended March 31, 2020
and 2019 in relation to the interest rate swaps.
Additional information regarding derivatives and hedging are provided in notes 11 and 14.
The fair value of other financial assets and long-term debt is calculated by discounting the future cash flow of each
instrument at the estimated yield to maturity for the same or similar issues at the balance sheet date, or by using
quoted market prices when available. The fair value of the Corporation's other financial assets and long-term debt is
determined using the provincial Crown borrowing rate for similar terms. The estimated fair value of other financial
assets is $99,872,642 (2019 – $101,912,138). The estimated fair value of long-term indebtedness is $168,253,117
(2019 - $171,105,148).
13. Government Grants
Government grants have been recorded in the Corporation’s financial statements as follows:
Government grants deducted from carrying amount of related asset
Government grants recognized as income

2020

2019

1,763,386
115,000
1,878,386

1,120,718
115,000
1,235,718

Government grants have been received for construction related to the PEI-NB Cable Interconnection Project which
upgraded the interconnection between the electrical systems of Prince Edward Island and mainland Canada, and to
compensate the Corporation for selling renewable energy certificate’s on behalf of the Provincial Government.
Under the conditions of the grant related to the PEI-NB Cable Interconnection Project, the Corporation must ensure
the ongoing operation, maintenance and repair of the assets for a period of five years after the end of the project.
Government grants have also been received and applied against the carrying amount of the development and
construction of a 30-megawatt wind farm and an electrical smart-grid project, both scheduled to be completed in
2021.
There are no unfilled conditions or contingencies attached to the other grants.
14. Risk Management
The Corporation’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks, including market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk.
The Corporation uses various strategies to manage these risks.
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14. Risk Management (continued)
Market Risk

Risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument held by the Corporation
will fluctuate because of changes in market prices (i.e. commodity price risk, interest rate risk
and currency risk).

Credit Risk

Risk of loss due to the failure of the borrower or counterparty to fulfill its contractual obligations.

Liquidity Risk

Risk that the Corporation cannot meet a demand for cash or fund an obligation when it is due.

Market Risk
Commodity price risk is defined as the risk that the fair value of future cash flows will fluctuate because of changes
in the price of electricity. The Corporation manages this risk by entering into long-term PPA’s. These PPA’s provide
price assurance. Currently 100% of the Corporation’s electricity production is contracted under long-term PPA’s
which expire between 2022 and 2033.
Interest rate risk is defined as the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument held by the
Corporation will fluctuate because of changes in interest rates. The Corporation’s exposure to the risk of changes in
market interest rates relates primarily to the Corporation’s long-term debt obligations with floating interest rates.
The Corporation manages its interest rate risk by entering into interest rate swaps, in which it agrees to exchange, at
specified intervals, the difference between fixed and variable rate interest amounts calculated by reference to an
agreed-upon notional principal amount. At March 31, 2020, after taking into account the effect of interest rate swaps,
100% of the Corporation’s borrowings are at a fixed rate of interest (2019 – 100%). The fixed interest rates of the
swaps range between 1.87% and 3.41% (2019 – 1.87% and 3.41%). The swap contracts require settlement of net
interest receivable or payable on a monthly basis. The settlement dates coincide with the dates on which interest is
payable on the underlying debt.
The effects of the interest rate swaps on the Corporation’s financial position and performance are as follows:
2020
Carrying amount – derivative financial instruments (assets)
Carrying amount – derivative financial instruments (liabilities)
Notional amount
Maturity date
Hedge ratio
Change in fair value of outstanding hedging instruments since beginning of year
Change in value of hedged item used to determine hedge effectiveness
Balance in cash flows hedge reserve for continuing hedges
Weighted average hedged rate for the year

(19,997,515)
171,161,206
2020
1:1
(18,678,950)
18,678,950
(19,997,515)
2.91%

2019
3,822,824
(5,141,389)
177,335,174
2019
1:1
(7,002,830)
7,002,830
(1,318,565)
2.87%

Additional information regarding derivatives and hedging are provided in notes 11 and 12.
Currency risk is defined as the risk that the fair value of future cash flows will fluctuate because of changes in foreign
exchange rates. The Corporation currently incurs almost all of its revenues and expenditures in Canadian dollars
but does have some expenses related to its turbine supply and maintenance agreements that are denominated in
US dollars. To mitigate these risks, the Corporation monitors the risks associated with foreign exchange rate
fluctuations and, from time to time, may enter into forward foreign exchange contracts. As at March 31, 2020, the
Corporation did not hold any foreign exchange contacts.
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14. Risk Management (continued)
Credit Risk
The Corporation’s credit risk is limited to cash, trade receivables and other financial assets. The Corporation’s
maximum exposure to credit risk in relation to each class of recognized financial assets is limited to the carrying
amount of those assets as indicated in the statement of financial position. The maximum credit exposure does not
take into account the value of any collateral or other security held, in the event the counterparty fails to perform its
obligations under the financial instrument in question. The Corporation considers a financial asset to be in default
when the borrower is unlikely to pay its credit obligations to the Corporation in full, without recourse by the Corporation
to actions such as realizing security (if any is held).
The Corporation has minimal credit risk with respect to cash as it is held at high-credit quality financial institutions.
Trade receivable risk is managed through the PPA process whereby the counterparty to the PPA is a utility subject
to government regulation and legislation and is a subsidiary of a highly rated public company. Of the trade receivables
balance at the end of the year, $2,990,866 (2019 - $2,708,741) is due from the utility, the Corporation’s largest
customer $166,482 (2019 – $134,538) is due from the Federal Government and $1,520,658 (2019 - $ nil) is due from
the Prince Edward Island Infrastructure Secretariat in respect of Federal Government grants. Apart from this, the
Corporation does not have significant credit risk exposure to any single counterparty or any group of counterparties
having similar characteristics. All other financial assets are categorized as performing as counterparties have a low
risk of default and all contractual cash flows have been met. No expected credit loss provisions have been
recognized.
The Corporation actively manages its exposure to credit risk by assessing the ability of counterparties to fulfill their
obligations under the related contracts prior to entering into such contracts. The Corporation makes detailed
assessments of credit quality of all counterparties and, where appropriate, obtains corporate guarantees, collateral
or other security to support the ultimate collection of these financial assets.
Liquidity Risk
The Corporation actively manages its liquidity through cash and debt management strategies. Such strategies include
continually monitoring forecasted and actual cash flows to assess and further reduce liquidity risk. The Corporation’s
cash resources, trade receivables, other financial asset receivables and cash generated from operations significantly
exceed the current cash outflow requirements.
15. Capital Management
The Corporation's debt management plan is built on the goal of ensuring the capacity to meet long-term obligations
and ensuring financial health, while achieving the growth plans of the Corporation. In order to facilitate the
management of its capital requirements, the Corporation prepares annual operating budgets and actual to budget
forecasts on a quarterly basis. The Corporation's capital consists of short-term debt having a term to maturity of one
year or less, long-term debt having a term to maturity greater than one year and equity, primarily in the form of
retained earnings. There has been no change with respect to the overall capital risk management strategy during
the year.
The Corporation is subject to an externally imposed requirement to contribute to a sinking fund for the future
settlement of long-term indebtedness and has complied with this requirement during the year.
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16. Commitments and Financial Guarantees
Commitments
Turbine service and warranty agreements:
The Corporation enters into service and warranty agreements in the ordinary course of business. Certain agreements
are denominated in US dollars and have been converted to Canadian dollars using the exchange rate in effect at
March 31, 2020. The contracts provide for scheduled and unscheduled maintenance and require annual minimum
payments, subject to inflationary increases, as applicable. The committed amounts over the next five years and
beyond are as follows: 2021 - $3,664,113; 2022 - $3,664,113; 2023 - $2,227,268; 2024 - $2,207,312; 2025 $2,207,312; thereafter - $10,662,238.
Power Purchase Agreements (PPAs):
The Corporation is contractually obligated, through PPA’s totaling 19 megawatts with private wind developers, to
purchase all wind power produced, and then sell all wind power purchased to Maritime Electric Company Limited.
These PPA’s expire in 2026 (9 megawatts) and 2036 (10 megawatts). The Corporation is contractually obligated,
through PPA’s totaling 73.56 megawatts, to sell all wind power produced at its wind farm facilities to Maritime Electric
Company Limited. These PPA’s expire in 2022 (5.28 megawatts), 2023 (3 megawatts), 2024 (5.28 megawatts), 2026
(30 megawatts) and 2033 (30 megawatts).
Land lease payments:
In the normal course of business, the Corporation has entered into agreements for the use of, or option to use, land
in perpetuity in connection with the operation of its wind farms. Payment under these agreements is dependent on
the amount of power generated by the wind farm assets; therefore, future minimum payments are indeterminable.
Development:
At March 31, 2020, the Corporation had outstanding contractual construction commitments amounting to
approximately $24,898,500 (2019 - $nil) which represents a turbine supply agreement for the 30-megawatt wind farm
project currently in the development phase. Additional construction costs related to this project have not yet been
committed to by the Corporation. Project funding for the 30-megawatt wind farm has been arranged through the
Government of Canada’s Investing in Canada Infrastructure Plan. Under this Plan, the Government of Canada will
provide, through the Province of Prince Edward Island’s Department of Transportation, Infrastructure and Energy, up
to a maximum of $29,850,000 in funding for the project. As of March 31, 2020, $1,692,350 (2019 – $nil) of project
funding had been received or committed to through the Invest in Canada Infrastructure Plan.
At March 31, 2020, the Corporation had arranged a funding agreement with the Government of Canada – Department
of Natural Resources to study and develop an electrical smart grid on Prince Edward Island. The project is currently
in the study phase. The maximum contribution toward the smart grid project shall not exceed the lesser of 25% of
total project costs or a maximum of $4,373,250. At March 31, 2020, funding in the amount of $39,290 (2019 - $nil)
had been received or committed to by the Government of Canada – Department of Natural Resources toward the
project.
In addition, project funding for electricity transmission infrastructure in western PEI has been arranged through the
Government of Canada’s Investing in Canada Infrastructure Plan. Under this Plan, the Government of Canada will
provide, through the Province of Prince Edward Island’s Department of Transportation, Infrastructure and Energy,
up to a maximum of $21,250,000 in funding for the project. As of March 31, 2020, no project funding had been
received or committed through the Invest in Canada Infrastructure Plan.
17. Related Party Transactions
Salaries and benefits for Corporation employees paid by and reimbursed to the Province of PEI during 2020 totaled
$432,217 (2019 - $332,649).
During 2020, the Corporation received $115,000 (2019 - $115,000) in grants from the Province of PEI in exchange
for the Corporation acting as an agent in the sale of Renewable Energy Certificates.
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17. Related Party Transactions (continued)
During the year, the Corporation provided $142,978 (2019 - $106,679) in funding for a program, administered
through the Province of PEI, that supports economic, social and community-based projects in the area surrounding
one of the Corporation's wind farms.
Interest paid to the Province of PEI during the year in respect of long-term indebtedness totaled $ Nil (2019 $203,832).
Key Management Compensation
Key management includes the CEO. Salary and short-term benefits paid to the CEO totaled $158,420 (2019 –
$149,893).
18. Prior Period Comparative Figures
Certain prior period comparatives have been restated to conform to the presentation format adopted in the current
year.

25



38%/,&$&&2817692/80(,,,

38%/,&$&&2817692/80(,,,





38%/,&$&&2817692/80(,,,

38%/,&$&&2817692/80(,,,





38%/,&$&&2817692/80(,,,

38%/,&$&&2817692/80(,,,





38%/,&$&&2817692/80(,,,

38%/,&$&&2817692/80(,,,





38%/,&$&&2817692/80(,,,

38%/,&$&&2817692/80(,,,





38%/,&$&&2817692/80(,,,

38%/,&$&&2817692/80(,,,





38%/,&$&&2817692/80(,,,

38%/,&$&&2817692/80(,,,





38%/,&$&&2817692/80(,,,

38%/,&$&&2817692/80(,,,





38%/,&$&&2817692/80(,,,

38%/,&$&&2817692/80(,,,





38%/,&$&&2817692/80(,,,

38%/,&$&&2817692/80(,,,





38%/,&$&&2817692/80(,,,

38%/,&$&&2817692/80(,,,





38%/,&$&&2817692/80(,,,

38%/,&$&&2817692/80(,,,





38%/,&$&&2817692/80(,,,

38%/,&$&&2817692/80(,,,





38%/,&$&&2817692/80(,,,

38%/,&$&&2817692/80(,,,





38%/,&$&&2817692/80(,,,

38%/,&$&&2817692/80(,,,







P.E.I. Housing Corporation

Audited Financial Statements for P.E.I. Housing Corporation for the year ended March
31, 2020 were not provided to the Office of the Comptroller as required by Section 70
(4) of the Financial Administration Act. Unaudited, draft financial statements were used
in the preparation of the Public Accounts.
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0DQDJHPHQW V5HSRUW
Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements
7KHILQDQFLDOVWDWHPHQWVKDYHEHHQSUHSDUHGE\PDQDJHPHQWLQDFFRUGDQFHZLWK&DQDGLDQSXEOLFVHFWRU
DFFRXQWLQJVWDQGDUGVDQGWKHLQWHJULW\DQGREMHFWLYLW\RIWKHVHVWDWHPHQWVDUHPDQDJHPHQW VUHVSRQVLELOLW\
0DQDJHPHQWLVUHVSRQVLEOHIRUWKHQRWHVWRWKHILQDQFLDOVWDWHPHQWVDQGHQVXULQJWKDWWKLVLQIRUPDWLRQLV
FRQVLVWHQWZKHUHDSSURSULDWHZLWKWKHLQIRUPDWLRQFRQWDLQHGLQWKHILQDQFLDOVWDWHPHQWV
0DQDJHPHQWLVUHVSRQVLEOHIRULPSOHPHQWLQJDQGPDLQWDLQLQJDV\VWHPRILQWHUQDOFRQWUROWRSURYLGH
UHDVRQDEOHDVVXUDQFHWKDWUHOLDEOHILQDQFLDOLQIRUPDWLRQLVSURGXFHG
7KH%RDUGRI&RPPLVVLRQHUVLVUHVSRQVLEOHIRUHQVXULQJWKDWPDQDJHPHQWIXOILOVLWVUHVSRQVLELOLWLHVIRU
ILQDQFLDOUHSRUWLQJDQGLQWHUQDOFRQWURO7KH%RDUGUHYLHZVLQWHUQDOILQDQFLDOUHSRUWVRQDUHJXODUEDVLVDQG
H[WHUQDOO\DXGLWHGILQDQFLDOVWDWHPHQWVDQQXDOO\
7KHILQDQFLDOVWDWHPHQWVKDYHEHHQDXGLWHGE\$UVHQDXOW%HVW&DPHURQ(OOLVLQGHSHQGHQWH[WHUQDODXGLWRUV
DSSRLQWHGE\WKH&RPPLVVLRQ7KHDFFRPSDQ\LQJ,QGHSHQGHQW$XGLWRU V5HSRUWRXWOLQHVWKHLU
UHVSRQVLELOLWLHVWKHVFRSHRIWKHLUH[DPLQDWLRQDQGWKHLURSLQLRQRQWKHILQDQFLDOVWDWHPHQWV
2QEHKDOIRI3ULQFH(GZDUG,VODQG+XPDQ5LJKWV&RPPLVVLRQ
BBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBB
%UHQGD-3LFDUG4&
([HFXWLYH'LUHFWRU
-XO\
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-XO\
,QGHSHQGHQW$XGLWRU V5HSRUW
7RWKH&RPPLVVLRQHUVRI3ULQFH(GZDUG,VODQG+XPDQ5LJKWV&RPPLVVLRQ
Opinion
:HKDYHDXGLWHGWKHDFFRPSDQ\LQJILQDQFLDOVWDWHPHQWVRI3ULQFH(GZDUG,VODQG+XPDQ5LJKWV&RPPLVVLRQ
ZKLFKFRPSULVHWKHVWDWHPHQWRIILQDQFLDOSRVLWLRQDVDW0DUFKDQGWKHVWDWHPHQWVRIRSHUDWLRQVDQG
DFFXPXODWHGVXUSOXVFKDQJHVLQQHWILQDQFLDODVVHWVDQGFDVKIORZVIRUWKH\HDUWKHQHQGHGDQGQRWHVWRWKH
ILQDQFLDOVWDWHPHQWVLQFOXGLQJDVXPPDU\RIVLJQLILFDQWDFFRXQWLQJSROLFLHV
,QRXURSLQLRQWKHDFFRPSDQ\LQJILQDQFLDOVWDWHPHQWVSUHVHQWIDLUO\LQDOOPDWHULDOUHVSHFWVWKHILQDQFLDOSRVLWLRQ
RI3ULQFH(GZDUG,VODQG+XPDQ5LJKWV&RPPLVVLRQDVDW0DUFKDQGWKHUHVXOWVRILWVRSHUDWLRQVDQGLWV
FDVKIORZVIRUWKH\HDUWKHQHQGHGLQDFFRUGDQFHZLWK&DQDGLDQSXEOLFVHFWRUDFFRXQWLQJVWDQGDUGV
Basis for Opinion
:HFRQGXFWHGRXUDXGLWLQDFFRUGDQFHZLWK&DQDGLDQJHQHUDOO\DFFHSWHGDXGLWLQJVWDQGDUGV2XUUHVSRQVLELOLWLHV
XQGHUWKRVHVWDQGDUGVDUHIXUWKHUGHVFULEHGLQWKH$XGLWRU¶V5HVSRQVLELOLWLHVIRUWKH$XGLWRIWKH)LQDQFLDO
6WDWHPHQWVVHFWLRQRIRXUUHSRUW
:HDUHLQGHSHQGHQWRI3ULQFH(GZDUG,VODQG+XPDQ5LJKWV&RPPLVVLRQLQDFFRUGDQFHZLWKWKHHWKLFDO
UHTXLUHPHQWVWKDWDUHUHOHYDQWWRRXUDXGLWRIWKHILQDQFLDOVWDWHPHQWVLQ&DQDGDDQGZHKDYHIXOILOOHGRXURWKHU
HWKLFDOUHVSRQVLELOLWLHVLQDFFRUGDQFHZLWKWKHVHUHTXLUHPHQWV:HEHOLHYHWKDWWKHDXGLWHYLGHQFHZHKDYHREWDLQHG
LVVXIILFLHQWDQGDSSURSULDWHWRSURYLGHDEDVLVIRURXURSLQLRQ
Other Information
0DQDJHPHQWLVUHVSRQVLEOHIRUWKHRWKHULQIRUPDWLRQ7KHRWKHULQIRUPDWLRQFRPSULVHV0DQDJHPHQW V$QQXDO
5HSRUW
2XURSLQLRQRQWKHILQDQFLDOVWDWHPHQWVGRHVQRWFRYHUWKHRWKHULQIRUPDWLRQDQGZLOOQRWH[SUHVVDQ\IRUPRI
DVVXUDQFHFRQFOXVLRQWKHUHRQ
,QFRQQHFWLRQZLWKRXUDXGLWRIWKHILQDQFLDOVWDWHPHQWVRXUUHVSRQVLELOLW\LVWRUHDGWKHRWKHULQIRUPDWLRQLGHQWLILHG
DERYHDQGLQGRLQJVRFRQVLGHUZKHWKHUWKHRWKHULQIRUPDWLRQLVPDWHULDOO\LQFRQVLVWHQWZLWKWKHILQDQFLDO
VWDWHPHQWVRURXUNQRZOHGJHREWDLQHGLQWKHDXGLWRURWKHUZLVHDSSHDUVWREHPDWHULDOO\PLVVWDWHG
0DQDJHPHQW V$QQXDO5HSRUWLVH[SHFWHGWREHPDGHDYDLODEOHWRXVDIWHUWKHGDWHRIWKHDXGLWRU VUHSRUW,IEDVHG
RQWKHZRUNZHZLOOSHUIRUPRQWKLVRWKHULQIRUPDWLRQZHFRQFOXGHWKDWWKHUHLVDPDWHULDOPLVVWDWHPHQWRIWKLV
RWKHULQIRUPDWLRQZHDUHUHTXLUHGWRUHSRUWWKDWIDFWWRWKRVHFKDUJHGZLWKJRYHUQDQFH
Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial Statements
0DQDJHPHQWLVUHVSRQVLEOHIRUWKHSUHSDUDWLRQDQGIDLUSUHVHQWDWLRQRIWKHILQDQFLDOVWDWHPHQWVLQDFFRUGDQFH
ZLWK&DQDGLDQSXEOLFVHFWRUDFFRXQWLQJVWDQGDUGVDQGIRUVXFKLQWHUQDOFRQWURODVPDQDJHPHQWGHWHUPLQHVLV
QHFHVVDU\WRHQDEOHWKHSUHSDUDWLRQRIILQDQFLDOVWDWHPHQWVWKDWDUHIUHHIURPPDWHULDOPLVVWDWHPHQWZKHWKHUGXH
WRIUDXGRUHUURU
,QSUHSDULQJWKHILQDQFLDOVWDWHPHQWVPDQDJHPHQWLVUHVSRQVLEOHIRUDVVHVVLQJ3ULQFH(GZDUG,VODQG+XPDQ
5LJKWV&RPPLVVLRQ¶VDELOLW\WRFRQWLQXHDVDJRLQJFRQFHUQGLVFORVLQJDVDSSOLFDEOHPDWWHUVUHODWHGWRJRLQJ
FRQFHUQDQGXVLQJWKHJRLQJFRQFHUQEDVLVRIDFFRXQWLQJXQOHVVPDQDJHPHQWHLWKHULQWHQGVWROLTXLGDWH3ULQFH
(GZDUG,VODQG+XPDQ5LJKWV&RPPLVVLRQRUWRFHDVHRSHUDWLRQVRUKDVQRUHDOLVWLFDOWHUQDWLYHEXWWRGRVR
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7KRVHFKDUJHGZLWKJRYHUQDQFHDUHUHVSRQVLEOHIRURYHUVHHLQJWKH3ULQFH(GZDUG,VODQG+XPDQ5LJKWV
&RPPLVVLRQ¶VILQDQFLDOUHSRUWLQJSURFHVV
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements
2XUREMHFWLYHVDUHWRREWDLQUHDVRQDEOHDVVXUDQFHDERXWZKHWKHUWKHILQDQFLDOVWDWHPHQWVDVDZKROHDUHIUHH
IURPPDWHULDOPLVVWDWHPHQWZKHWKHUGXHWRIUDXGRUHUURUDQGWRLVVXHDQDXGLWRU¶VUHSRUWWKDWLQFOXGHVRXU
RSLQLRQ5HDVRQDEOHDVVXUDQFHLVDKLJKOHYHORIDVVXUDQFHEXWLVQRWDJXDUDQWHHWKDWDQDXGLWFRQGXFWHGLQ
DFFRUGDQFHZLWK&DQDGLDQJHQHUDOO\DFFHSWHGDXGLWLQJVWDQGDUGVZLOODOZD\VGHWHFWDPDWHULDOPLVVWDWHPHQW
ZKHQLWH[LVWV0LVVWDWHPHQWVFDQDULVHIURPIUDXGRUHUURUDQGDUHFRQVLGHUHGPDWHULDOLILQGLYLGXDOO\RULQWKH
DJJUHJDWHWKH\FRXOGUHDVRQDEO\EHH[SHFWHGWRLQIOXHQFHWKHHFRQRPLFGHFLVLRQVRIXVHUVWDNHQRQWKHEDVLVRI
WKHVHILQDQFLDOVWDWHPHQWV$VSDUWRIDQDXGLWLQDFFRUGDQFHZLWK&DQDGLDQJHQHUDOO\DFFHSWHGDXGLWLQJ
VWDQGDUGVZHH[HUFLVHSURIHVVLRQDOMXGJPHQWDQGPDLQWDLQSURIHVVLRQDOVNHSWLFLVPWKURXJKRXWWKHDXGLW:H
DOVR
x

,GHQWLI\DQGDVVHVVWKHULVNVRIPDWHULDOPLVVWDWHPHQWRIWKHILQDQFLDOVWDWHPHQWVZKHWKHUGXHWRIUDXGRU
HUURUGHVLJQDQGSHUIRUPDXGLWSURFHGXUHVUHVSRQVLYHWRWKRVHULVNVDQGREWDLQDXGLWHYLGHQFHWKDWLV
VXIILFLHQWDQGDSSURSULDWHWRSURYLGHDEDVLVIRURXURSLQLRQ7KHULVNRIQRWGHWHFWLQJDPDWHULDO
PLVVWDWHPHQWUHVXOWLQJIURPIUDXGLVKLJKHUWKDQIRURQHUHVXOWLQJIURPHUURUDVIUDXGPD\LQYROYH
FROOXVLRQIRUJHU\LQWHQWLRQDORPLVVLRQVPLVUHSUHVHQWDWLRQVRUWKHRYHUULGHRILQWHUQDOFRQWURO

x

2EWDLQDQXQGHUVWDQGLQJRILQWHUQDOFRQWUROUHOHYDQWWRWKHDXGLWLQRUGHUWRGHVLJQDXGLWSURFHGXUHVWKDWDUH
DSSURSULDWHLQWKHFLUFXPVWDQFHVEXWQRWIRUWKHSXUSRVHRIH[SUHVVLQJDQRSLQLRQRQWKHHIIHFWLYHQHVVRI
3ULQFH(GZDUG,VODQG+XPDQ5LJKWV&RPPLVVLRQ¶VLQWHUQDOFRQWURO

x

(YDOXDWHWKHDSSURSULDWHQHVVRIDFFRXQWLQJSROLFLHVXVHGDQGWKHUHDVRQDEOHQHVVRIDFFRXQWLQJHVWLPDWHVDQG
UHODWHGGLVFORVXUHVPDGHE\PDQDJHPHQW

x

&RQFOXGHRQWKHDSSURSULDWHQHVVRIPDQDJHPHQW¶VXVHRIWKHJRLQJFRQFHUQEDVLVRIDFFRXQWLQJDQGEDVHG
RQWKHDXGLWHYLGHQFHREWDLQHGZKHWKHUDPDWHULDOXQFHUWDLQW\H[LVWVUHODWHGWRHYHQWVRUFRQGLWLRQVWKDWPD\
FDVWVLJQLILFDQWGRXEWRQ3ULQFH(GZDUG,VODQG+XPDQ5LJKWV&RPPLVVLRQ¶VDELOLW\WRFRQWLQXHDVDJRLQJ
FRQFHUQ,IZHFRQFOXGHWKDWDPDWHULDOXQFHUWDLQW\H[LVWVZHDUHUHTXLUHGWRGUDZDWWHQWLRQLQRXUDXGLWRU¶V
UHSRUWWRWKHUHODWHGGLVFORVXUHVLQWKHILQDQFLDOVWDWHPHQWVRULIVXFKGLVFORVXUHVDUHLQDGHTXDWHWRPRGLI\
RXURSLQLRQ2XUFRQFOXVLRQVDUHEDVHGRQWKHDXGLWHYLGHQFHREWDLQHGXSWRWKHGDWHRIRXUDXGLWRU¶VUHSRUW
+RZHYHUIXWXUHHYHQWVRUFRQGLWLRQVPD\FDXVH3ULQFH(GZDUG,VODQG+XPDQ5LJKWV&RPPLVVLRQWRFHDVH
WRFRQWLQXHDVDJRLQJFRQFHUQ

x

(YDOXDWHWKHRYHUDOOSUHVHQWDWLRQVWUXFWXUHDQGFRQWHQWRIWKHILQDQFLDOVWDWHPHQWVLQFOXGLQJWKH
GLVFORVXUHVDQGZKHWKHUWKHILQDQFLDOVWDWHPHQWVUHSUHVHQWWKHXQGHUO\LQJWUDQVDFWLRQVDQGHYHQWVLQD
PDQQHUWKDWDFKLHYHVIDLUSUHVHQWDWLRQ

:HFRPPXQLFDWHZLWKWKRVHFKDUJHGZLWKJRYHUQDQFHUHJDUGLQJDPRQJRWKHUPDWWHUVWKHSODQQHGVFRSHDQG
WLPLQJRIWKHDXGLWDQGVLJQLILFDQWDXGLWILQGLQJVLQFOXGLQJDQ\VLJQLILFDQWGHILFLHQFLHVLQLQWHUQDOFRQWUROWKDWZH
LGHQWLI\GXULQJRXUDXGLW

&KDUWHUHG3URIHVVLRQDO$FFRXQWDQWV



38%/,&$&&2817692/80(,,,



3ULQFH(GZDUG,VODQG+XPDQ5LJKWV&RPPLVVLRQ
6WDWHPHQWRI)LQDQFLDO3RVLWLRQ
$VDW0DUFK




















$FFRXQWVSD\DEOHDQGDFFUXHGOLDELOLWLHV QRWH





1HWILQDQFLDODVVHWV



















$VVHWV
)LQDQFLDODVVHWV
&DVK
$FFRXQWVUHFHLYDEOH QRWH
*UDQWVUHFHLYDEOH*RYHUQPHQWRI&DQDGD QRWH
*UDQWVUHFHLYDEOH3URYLQFHRI3ULQFH(GZDUG,VODQG QRWH

/LDELOLWLHV

&RPPLWPHQWVDQGFRQWLQJHQWOLDELOLW\ QRWHDQG
1RQILQDQFLDODVVHWV
3UHSDLGH[SHQVHV
7DQJLEOHFDSLWDODVVHWV QRWH

$FFXPXODWHGVXUSOXV

$SSURYHGRQEHKDOIRIWKH3ULQFH(GZDUG,VODQG+XPDQ5LJKWV&RPPLVVLRQ
BBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBB&KDLU

BBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBB&RPPLVVLRQHU
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3ULQFH(GZDUG,VODQG+XPDQ5LJKWV&RPPLVVLRQ
6WDWHPHQWRI2SHUDWLRQVDQG$FFXPXODWHG6XUSOXV
)RUWKH\HDUHQGHG0DUFK
%XGJHW
8QDXGLWHG





































































































$FFXPXODWHGVXUSOXV%HJLQQLQJRI\HDU







$FFXPXODWHGVXUSOXV(QGRI\HDU







5HYHQXH
*UDQWV3URYLQFHRI3ULQFH(GZDUG,VODQG QRWH
*UDQWV*RYHUQPHQWRI&DQDGD6+3SURMHFW
IXQGLQJ QRWH
2WKHUJUDQWV
,QNLQGFRQWULEXWLRQV QRWH
&$6+5$

([SHQVHV
&$6+5$
&RPPLVVLRQHUSHUGLHPV
&RQIHUHQFHVDQGWUDLQLQJ
(TXLSPHQW
+HDULQJH[SHQVHV
'XHVDQGIHHV
0LVFHOODQHRXV
2IILFHDQGVSHFLDOSURMHFWV
3KRWRFRS\LQJ
3URIHVVLRQDOIHHV
3URMHFW6+3 QRWH
5HQW
6DODULHVDQGEHQHILWV QRWHVDQG
7UDYHOVWDII
FRPPLVVLRQHUV
7HOHSKRQH
$PRUWL]DWLRQ

$QQXDOVXUSOXV
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3ULQFH(GZDUG,VODQG+XPDQ5LJKWV&RPPLVVLRQ
6WDWHPHQWRI&KDQJHVLQ1HW)LQDQFLDO$VVHWV
)RUWKH\HDUHQGHG0DUFK
%XGJHW
8QDXGLWHG








1HWILQDQFLDODVVHWV%HJLQQLQJRI\HDU







$QQXDOVXUSOXV
'HFUHDVH LQFUHDVH LQWDQJLEOHFDSLWDODVVHWV
'HFUHDVH LQFUHDVH LQSUHSDLGH[SHQVHV

























1HWILQDQFLDODVVHWV(QGRI\HDU
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3ULQFH(GZDUG,VODQG+XPDQ5LJKWV&RPPLVVLRQ
6WDWHPHQWRI&DVK)ORZV
)RUWKH\HDUHQGHG0DUFK


































3XUFKDVHRIWDQJLEOHFDSLWDODVVHWV





,QFUHDVH GHFUHDVH LQFDVK













&DVKSURYLGHGE\ XVHGLQ
2SHUDWLQJDFWLYLWLHV
$QQXDOVXUSOXV
,WHPQRWDIIHFWLQJFDVK
$PRUWL]DWLRQ
1HWFKDQJHLQQRQFDVKZRUNLQJFDSLWDOLWHPV
,QFUHDVHLQDFFRXQWVUHFHLYDEOH
,QFUHDVHLQJUDQWVUHFHLYDEOH*RYHUQPHQWRI&DQDGD
'HFUHDVH LQFUHDVH LQJUDQWVUHFHLYDEOH3URYLQFHRI3ULQFH(GZDUG,VODQG
,QFUHDVH GHFUHDVH LQDFFRXQWVSD\DEOHDQGDFFUXHGOLDELOLWLHV
'HFUHDVH LQFUHDVH LQSUHSDLGH[SHQVHV

&DSLWDODFWLYLW\

&DVK%HJLQQLQJRI\HDU
&DVK(QGRI\HDU
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3ULQFH(GZDUG,VODQG+XPDQ5LJKWV&RPPLVVLRQ
1RWHVWR)LQDQFLDO6WDWHPHQWV
0DUFK


3XUSRVHRIWKH2UJDQL]DWLRQ
7KH3ULQFH(GZDUG,VODQG+XPDQ5LJKWV&RPPLVVLRQ WKH&RPPLVVLRQ LVDFRUSRUDWHERG\HVWDEOLVKHGXQGHU
VHFWLRQ  RIWKH+XPDQ5LJKWV$FWRI3ULQFH(GZDUG,VODQG7KH&RPPLVVLRQLVUHVSRQVLEOHIRU
DGPLQLVWHULQJDQGHQIRUFLQJWKHHuman Rights ActDQGSURYLGLQJHGXFDWLRQDQGSXEOLFLQIRUPDWLRQLQWKHILHOG
RIKXPDQULJKWV7KH&RPPLVVLRQDOVRLQTXLUHVLQWRDQGHQGHDYRXUVWRHIIHFWDVHWWOHPHQWRIDQ\FRPSODLQWRI
DYLRODWLRQRIWKH Human Rights ActILOHGZLWKWKH&RPPLVVLRQDVSUHVFULEHGE\WKH$FW
7KH&RPPLVVLRQLVDQRQWD[DEOHHQWLW\XQGHUWKHSURYLVLRQVRIWKHIHGHUDOIncome Tax Act



6XPPDU\RIVLJQLILFDQWDFFRXQWLQJSROLFLHV
%DVLVRIDFFRXQWLQJ
7KHVHILQDQFLDOVWDWHPHQWVKDYHEHHQSUHSDUHGLQDFFRUGDQFHZLWK&DQDGLDQSXEOLFVHFWRUDFFRXQWLQJ
VWDQGDUGV6LQFHWKH&RPPLVVLRQKDVQRXQUHDOL]HGUHPHDVXUHPHQWJDLQVRUORVVHVDWWULEXWHGWRIRUHLJQ
H[FKDQJHGHULYDWLYHVSRUWIROLRLQYHVWPHQWVRURWKHUILQDQFLDOLQVWUXPHQWVDVWDWHPHQWRIUHPHDVXUHPHQW
JDLQVDQGORVVHVLVQRWSUHSDUHG
D &DVK
&DVKFRQVLVWRIEDODQFHVRQGHSRVLWZLWKDILQDQFLDOLQVWLWXWLRQ
E $FFRXQWVUHFHLYDEOH
$FFRXQWVUHFHLYDEOHDUHUHFRUGHGDWFRVWOHVVDQ\VSHFLILFSURYLVLRQZKHQFROOHFWLRQLVLQGRXEW
F *UDQWVUHFHLYDEOH
*UDQWVUHFHLYDEOHDUHUHFRJQL]HGLQWKHSHULRGLQZKLFKWKHWUDQVDFWLRQRUHYHQWWKDWJDYHULVHWRWKHJUDQW
RFFXUUHG
G 3UHSDLGH[SHQVHV
3UHSDLGH[SHQVHVDUHFKDUJHGWRH[SHQVHRYHUWKHSHULRGVH[SHFWHGWREHQHILW
H $FFRXQWVSD\DEOHDQGDFFUXHGOLDELOLWLHV
$FFRXQWVSD\DEOHDQGDFFUXHGOLDELOLWLHVDUHUHFRUGHGIRUDOODPRXQWVGXHIRUZRUNSHUIRUPHGDQGJRRGVRU
VHUYLFHVUHFHLYHGGXULQJWKH\HDU
I 7DQJLEOHFDSLWDODVVHWV
7DQJLEOHFDSLWDODVVHWVDUHUHFRUGHGDWFRVW
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3ULQFH(GZDUG,VODQG+XPDQ5LJKWV&RPPLVVLRQ
1RWHVWR)LQDQFLDO6WDWHPHQWV
0DUFK
7KHFRVWOHVVHVWLPDWHGUHVLGXDOYDOXHRIWDQJLEOHFDSLWDODVVHWVLVDPRUWL]HGRQDVWUDLJKWOLQHEDVLVRYHU
WKHLUHVWLPDWHGXVHIXOOLIHDVIROORZV
&RPSXWHUKDUGZDUH
)XUQLWXUHDQGHTXLSPHQW
/HDVHKROGLPSURYHPHQWV

\HDUV
\HDUV
\HDUV

$PRUWL]DWLRQLVFDOFXODWHGDWWKHQRUPDODQQXDOUDWHLQWKH\HDURIDFTXLVLWLRQQRDPRUWL]DWLRQLVUHFRUGHG
LQWKH\HDURIGLVSRVDO
J 5HYHQXHV
7UDQVIHUVIURPWKH3URYLQFHRI3ULQFH(GZDUG,VODQGDQG*RYHUQPHQWRI&DQDGD UHYHQXHVIURPQRQ
H[FKDQJHWUDQVDFWLRQV DUHUHFRJQL]HGDVUHYHQXHZKHQWKHWUDQVIHULVDXWKRUL]HGDQ\HOLJLELOLW\FULWHULDDUH
PHWDQGDUHDVRQDEOHHVWLPDWHRIWKHDPRXQWFDQEHPDGH
5HYHQXHVIURPRWKHUJUDQWVDUHUHFRJQL]HGLQWKHSHULRGLQZKLFKWKHWUDQVDFWLRQRUHYHQWWKDWJDYHULVHWR
WKHUHYHQXHRFFXUUHG5HYHQXHVDUHUHFRUGHGRQDQDFFUXDOEDVLVH[FHSWZKHQWKHDFFUXDOVFDQQRWEH
GHWHUPLQHGZLWKDUHDVRQDEOHGHJUHHRIFHUWDLQW\RUZKHQWKHLUHVWLPDWLRQLVLPSUDFWLFDEOH
K ([SHQVHV
([SHQVHVDUHUHFRUGHGDQDFFUXDOEDVLVLQWKHSHULRGLQZKLFKWKHWUDQVDFWLRQRUHYHQWWKDWJDYHULVHWRWKH
H[SHQVHRFFXUUHG
L

)LQDQFLDOLQVWUXPHQWV
L

0HDVXUHPHQWRIILQDQFLDOLQVWUXPHQWV
3ULQFH(GZDUG,VODQG+XPDQ5LJKWV&RPPLVVLRQ VILQDQFLDOLQVWUXPHQWVFRQVLVWRIFDVKDFFRXQWV
UHFHLYDEOHJUDQWVUHFHLYDEOH*RYHUQPHQWRI&DQDGDDQGDFFRXQWVSD\DEOHDQGDFFUXHGOLDELOLWLHV
7KH&RPPLVVLRQLQLWLDOO\PHDVXUHVLWVILQDQFLDODVVHWVDQGILQDQFLDOOLDELOLWLHVDWIDLUYDOXHDGMXVWHGE\
LQWKHFDVHRIDILQDQFLDOLQVWUXPHQWWKDWZLOOQRWEHPHDVXUHGVXEVHTXHQWO\DWIDLUYDOXHWKHDPRXQWRI
WUDQVDFWLRQFRVWVGLUHFWO\DWWULEXWDEOHWRWKHLQVWUXPHQW7KLVIDLUYDOXHDPRXQWLVWKHQGHHPHGWREH
WKHDPRUWL]HGFRVWRIWKHILQDQFLDOLQVWUXPHQW
7KH&RPPLVVLRQVXEVHTXHQWO\PHDVXUHVDOOLWVILQDQFLDODVVHWVDQGILQDQFLDOOLDELOLWLHVDWDPRUWL]HG
FRVW
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3ULQFH(GZDUG,VODQG+XPDQ5LJKWV&RPPLVVLRQ
1RWHVWR)LQDQFLDO6WDWHPHQWV
0DUFK
LL

,PSDLUPHQW
)RUILQDQFLDODVVHWVPHDVXUHGDWFRVWRUDPRUWL]HGFRVWWKH&RPPLVVLRQGHWHUPLQHVZKHWKHUWKHUHDUH
LQGLFDWLRQVRISRVVLEOHLPSDLUPHQW:KHQWKHUHLVDQLQGLFDWLRQRILPSDLUPHQWDQGWKH&RPPLVVLRQ
GHWHUPLQHVWKDWDVLJQLILFDQWDGYHUVHFKDQJHKDVRFFXUUHGGXULQJWKHSHULRGLQWKHH[SHFWHGWLPLQJRU
DPRXQWRIIXWXUHFDVKIORZVDZULWHGRZQLVUHFRJQL]HGLQDQQXDOVXUSOXV$SUHYLRXVO\UHFRJQL]HG
LPSDLUPHQWORVVPD\EHUHYHUVHGWRWKHH[WHQWRIWKHLPSURYHPHQW7KHFDUU\LQJDPRXQWRIWKH
ILQDQFLDODVVHWPD\QRWEHJUHDWHUWKDQWKHDPRXQWWKDWZRXOGKDYHEHHQUHSRUWHGDWWKHGDWHRIWKH
UHYHUVDOKDGWKHLPSDLUPHQWQRWEHHQUHFRJQL]HGSUHYLRXVO\7KHDPRXQWRIWKHUHYHUVDOLVUHFRJQL]HG
LQDQQXDOVXUSOXV

LLL 5LVNV
7UDQVDFWLQJLQILQDQFLDOLQVWUXPHQWVH[SRVHVWKH&RPPLVVLRQWRFHUWDLQILQDQFLDOULVNVDQG
XQFHUWDLQWLHV7KHVHULVNVLQFOXGH
D &UHGLWULVN7KH&RPPLVVLRQLVH[SRVHGWRFUHGLWULVNLQFRQQHFWLRQZLWKWKHFROOHFWLRQRILWV
DFFRXQWVDQGJUDQWVUHFHLYDEOH7KH&RPPLVVLRQPLWLJDWHVWKLVULVNE\SHUIRUPLQJFRQWLQXRXV
HYDOXDWLRQRILWVDFFRXQWVDQGJUDQWVUHFHLYDEOH
E /LTXLGLW\ULVN7KH&RPPLVVLRQ VH[SRVXUHWROLTXLGLW\ULVNLVGHSHQGHQWRQWKHFROOHFWLRQRI
DFFRXQWVDQGJUDQWVUHFHLYDEOHRUUDLVLQJRIIXQGVWRPHHWFRPPLWPHQWVDQGVXVWDLQRSHUDWLRQV
7KH&RPPLVVLRQFRQWUROVOLTXLGLW\ULVNE\PDQDJHPHQWRIZRUNLQJFDSLWDODQGFDVKIORZV
M 8VHRIHVWLPDWHV
7KHSUHSDUDWLRQRIWKHVHILQDQFLDOVWDWHPHQWVLQFRQIRUPLW\ZLWK&DQDGLDQSXEOLFVHFWRUDFFRXQWLQJ
VWDQGDUGVUHTXLUHVPDQDJHPHQWWRPDNHHVWLPDWHVDQGDVVXPSWLRQVWKDWDIIHFWWKHUHSRUWHGDPRXQWVRI
DVVHWVDQGOLDELOLWLHVWKHGLVFORVXUHRIFRQWLQJHQWDVVHWVDQGOLDELOLWLHVDWWKHGDWHRIWKHILQDQFLDOVWDWHPHQWV
DQGWKHUHSRUWHGDPRXQWVRIUHYHQXHVDQGH[SHQVHVGXULQJWKHSHULRG6LJQLILFDQWLWHPVVXEMHFWWRVXFK
HVWLPDWHVDQGDVVXPSWLRQVLQFOXGHWKHYDOXDWLRQRIDFFRXQWVDQGJUDQWVUHFHLYDEOHDQGWKHHVWLPDWHGOLIHRI
WDQJLEOHFDSLWDODVVHWV$FWXDOUHVXOWVFRXOGGLIIHUIURPWKRVHHVWLPDWHV



$FFRXQWVUHFHLYDEOH

$FFRXQWVUHFHLYDEOH
+67UHFHLYDEOH
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3ULQFH(GZDUG,VODQG+XPDQ5LJKWV&RPPLVVLRQ
1RWHVWR)LQDQFLDO6WDWHPHQWV
0DUFK



$FFRXQWVSD\DEOHDQGDFFUXHGOLDELOLWLHV


$FFRXQWVSD\DEOHDQGDFFUXHGOLDELOLWLHV
$FFUXHGYDFDWLRQSD\
















5HODWHGSDUW\WUDQVDFWLRQV
7KH&RPPLVVLRQKDGWKHIROORZLQJWUDQVDFWLRQVZLWKWKH3URYLQFHRI3ULQFH(GZDUG,VODQG

*UDQWVIURPWKH3URYLQFH











7KHUHLVDJUDQWUHFHLYDEOH3URYLQFHRI3ULQFH(GZDUG,VODQGLQWKHDPRXQWRIQLODW0DUFK 
 ,QFOXGHGLQVDODULHVDQGEHQHILWVLVVDODU\H[SHQVHRIQLO  DQGEHQHILWH[SHQVHVRIQLO
 UHODWHGWRVWDIIVHFRQGHGIURPWKH3URYLQFH



&RPPLWPHQWV
7KHPLQLPXPDJJUHJDWHOHDVHSD\PHQWVIRURSHUDWLQJOHDVHVRYHUWKHQH[WILYH\HDUVDUHDVIROORZV

<HDUHQGLQJ0DUFK













(PSOR\HH%HQHILWV
D

6LFN/HDYH
$OOHPSOR\HHVDUHFUHGLWHGGD\VSHUPRQWKIRUXVHDVSDLGDEVHQFHVLQWKH\HDUGXHWRLOOQHVVRU
LQMXU\8QGHUH[LVWLQJHPSOR\PHQWDJUHHPHQWVHPSOR\HHVDUHDOORZHGWRDFFXPXODWHXQXVHGVLFNGD\
FUHGLWVHDFK\HDUXSWRWKHDOORZDEOHPD[LPXP:LWKDSSURYDODFFXPXODWHGFUHGLWVPD\EHXVHGLQ
IXWXUH\HDUVWRH[WHQWWKDWWKHHPSOR\HH VLOOQHVVRULQMXU\H[FHHGVWKHFXUUHQW\HDU VDOORFDWLRQ
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3ULQFH(GZDUG,VODQG+XPDQ5LJKWV&RPPLVVLRQ
1RWHVWR)LQDQFLDO6WDWHPHQWV
0DUFK
E

3HQVLRQ%HQHILWV
Civil Service Superannuation Fund pension plan
(IIHFWLYH$SULOHPSOR\HHVRIWKH&RPPLVVLRQEHJDQWRSDUWLFLSDWHLQWKH3URYLQFHRI3ULQFH
(GZDUG,VODQG V&LYLO6HUYLFH6XSHUDQQXDWLRQ3ODQ WKH3ODQ ZKLFKLVDPXOWLHPSOR\HUGHILQHG
EHQHILWSHQVLRQSODQ7KH&RPPLVVLRQPDGHFRQWULEXWLRQVRILQILVFDO 
WRPDWFKHPSOR\HHFRQWULEXWLRQVWRWKHSODQRIRIWKHLUSHQVLRQDEOHVDODU\XSWRWKH\HDU V
PD[LPXPSHQVLRQDEOHHDUQLQJVSOXVRISHQVLRQDEOHVDODU\LQH[FHVVRIWKH\HDU VPD[LPXP
SHQVLRQDEOHHDUQLQJV$Q\XQIXQGHGOLDELOLW\LVWKHUHVSRQVLELOLW\RIWKH3URYLQFHRI3ULQFH(GZDUG
,VODQGDQGWKHUHIRUHQROLDELOLW\KDVEHHQUHFRJQL]HGLQWKHVHILQDQFLDOVWDWHPHQWV

F

5HWLUHPHQW$OORZDQFHV
7KH&RPPLVVLRQSURYLGHVDUHWLUHPHQWDOORZDQFHWRLWVSHUPDQHQWHPSOR\HHV7KHDPRXQWSDLGWR
HOLJLEOHHPSOR\HHVDWUHWLUHPHQWLVHTXDOWRRQHZHHN VSD\IRUHYHU\\HDURIVHUYLFHWRDPD[LPXPRI
ZHHNV7KHEHQHILWFRVWVDQGOLDELOLWLHVUHODWHGWRWKHDOORZDQFHDUHWKHUHVSRQVLELOLW\RIWKH
&RPPLVVLRQ7KHSURYLQFHKDVDJUHHGWRIXQGWKHVHOLDELOLWLHVDQGDFFRUGLQJO\WKH&RPPLVVLRQKDV
QRWHVWLPDWHGWKHOLDELOLW\DQGQROLDELOLW\KDVEHHQUHFRJQL]HGLQWKHVHILQDQFLDOVWDWHPHQWV



,QNLQGFRQWULEXWLRQV
'XULQJWKH\HDUWKH&RPPLVVLRQUHFHLYHGLQNLQGFRQWULEXWLRQVIRUVDODULHVDQGEHQHILWVH[SHQVHVLQWKH
DPRXQWRI  



&RQWLQJHQWOLDELOLW\
6LFNOHDYH
7KHXVHRIDFFXPXODWHGVLFNGD\VIRUVLFNOHDYHFRPSHQVDWLRQFHDVHVRQWHUPLQDWLRQRIHPSOR\PHQWDQGWKHUH
LVQRREOLJDWLRQWRVHWWOHWKHVHDPRXQWVZLWKFDVKSD\PHQWV&RQVHTXHQWO\QROLDELOLW\KDVEHHQUHFRUGHGLQ
WKHVHILQDQFLDOVWDWHPHQWVIRUVLFNOHDYH
+RZHYHUWKHUHLVDFRQWLQJHQWOLDELOLW\IRUXQXVHGVLFNOHDYHWLPHGXULQJHPSOR\HHV ZRUNLQJ\HDUV$W0DUFK
WKLVFRQWLQJHQWOLDELOLW\IRUDFFXPXODWHGEXWXQXVHGVLFNOHDYHZDV  
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3ULQFH(GZDUG,VODQG+XPDQ5LJKWV&RPPLVVLRQ
1RWHVWR)LQDQFLDO6WDWHPHQWV
0DUFK

 7DQJLEOHFDSLWDODVVHWV
$FRQWLQXLW\RIWDQJLEOHFDSLWDODVVHWVIRUWKH\HDUHQGHG0DUFKLVDVIROORZV
&RVW
%DODQFHDW
0DUFK


&RPSXWHUKDUGZDUH
)XUQLWXUHDQGHTXLSPHQW
/HDVHKROGLPSURYHPHQWV

$GGLWLRQV
QRWH


7UDQVIHUV
GLVSRVDOV


%DODQFHDW
0DUFK



























$FFXPXODWHGDPRUWL]DWLRQ
%DODQFHDW
0DUFK


&RPSXWHUKDUGZDUH
)XUQLWXUHDQGHTXLSPHQW
/HDVHKROGLPSURYHPHQWV

1HWERRNYDOXH

$GGLWLRQV


7UDQVIHUV
GLVSRVDOV


%DODQFHDW
0DUFK
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3ULQFH(GZDUG,VODQG+XPDQ5LJKWV&RPPLVVLRQ
1RWHVWR)LQDQFLDO6WDWHPHQWV
0DUFK

 6H[XDO+DUDVVPHQW3URMHFW 6+3 5HYHQXHDQG([SHQGLWXUHV
3HUWKHILQDQFLDOVWDWHPHQWV
&DSLWDO ,QFXUUHG$SULO
H[SHQGLWXUHV
WR-XQH
LQ\HDU DOORZHGE\IXQGHU
QRWH
WREHLQFOXGHG
DGGLWLRQV
LQ<HDUEXGJHW



-XO\WR
0DUFK


$OORZDEOH
3URMHFW
([SHQGLWXUHV
LQ<HDU


5HYHQXH
*UDQWV*RYHUQPHQWRI&DQDGD



([SHQGLWXUHV H[FOXGLQJDPRUWL]DWLRQ
6DODULHVDQGEHQHILWV
7UDYHO
7UDLQLQJ
2IILFH
3URJUDPGHOLYHU\
3URIHVVLRQDOIHHV
(YDOXDWLRQ
$XGLW

















































<HDUSURMHFWDGPLQLVWUDWLRQIHHV
7RWDOSURMHFWH[SHQGLWXUHV<HDUFODLP






'XULQJWKH\HDUWKH&RPPLVVLRQVLJQHGD3URMHFW)XQGLQJ$JUHHPHQWXQGHUZKLFKWKH*RYHUQPHQWRI&DQDGD
ZLOOFRQWULEXWHWRWKH&RPPLVVLRQIRUWKHFRVWVRIDSURMHFWHQWLWOHG3URYLGLQJLQIRUPDWLRQDQGHGXFDWLRQ
UHJDUGLQJVH[XDOKDUDVVPHQWLQWKHZRUNSODFH
7KLVLVDILYH\HDUDJUHHPHQWZLWKDWHUPIURP-XO\WR0DUFK$QQXDOEXGJHWVDUHDSSURYHG
E\WKH*RYHUQPHQWRI&DQDGDIRUHOLJLEOHSURMHFWH[SHQGLWXUHVRQDILVFDO\HDUEDVLVHQGLQJ0DUFK
'XHWRWKHLPSDFWRI&RYLGRQHOLJLEOHSURMHFWH[SHQGLWXUHVLQFXUUHGGXULQJILVFDOWKH*RYHUQPHQWRI
&DQDGDKDVDOORZHGWKH&RPPLVVLRQWRH[WHQGLWVVSHQGLQJRQILVFDOSURMHFWJUDQWVXQWLO-XQH
(OLJLEOHSURMHFWH[SHQGLWXUHVLQFXUUHGEHWZHHQ$SULO-XQHDUHQRWUHFRUGHGLQWKH&RPPLVVLRQ V
ILQDQFLDOVWDWHPHQWVIRUWKH\HDUHQGHG0DUFKKRZHYHUWKHVHHOLJLEOHSURMHFWH[SHQGLWXUHVDUH
GLVFORVHGLQWKLVQRWHWRVKRZWKHWRWDOVRQ\HDURIWKHSURMHFW
,QFOXGHGLQ*UDQWVUHFHLYDEOH*RYHUQPHQWRI&DQDGDRQWKHVWDWHPHQWRIILQDQFLDOSRVLWLRQLVLQ
JUDQWUHYHQXHWREHUHFLHYHGIRUHOLJLEOHSURMHFWH[SHQGLWXUHVLQFXUUHGGXULQJWKHILVFDO\HDUHQGHG0DUFK
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),1$1&,$/67$7(0(176
6WDWHPHQWRI)LQDQFLDO3RVLWLRQ



6WDWHPHQWRI&KDQJHVLQ(TXLW\



6WDWHPHQWRI3URILWRU/RVV



6WDWHPHQWRI&DVK)ORZ



1RWHVWR)LQDQFLDO6WDWHPHQWV



6FKHGXOHVWR)LQDQFLDO6WDWHPHQWV
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the Commissioners of Prince Edward Island Liquor Control Commission
2SLQLRQ
:H KDYH DXGLWHG WKH ILQDQFLDO VWDWHPHQWV RI 3ULQFH (GZDUG ,VODQG /LTXRU &RQWURO &RPPLVVLRQ WKH
&RPPLVVLRQ  ZKLFK FRPSULVH WKH VWDWHPHQW RI ILQDQFLDO SRVLWLRQ DV DW 0DUFK   DQG WKH
VWDWHPHQWV RI FKDQJHV LQ HTXLW\ SURILW RU ORVV DQG FDVK IORZ IRU WKH \HDU WKHQ HQGHG DQG QRWHV WR WKH
ILQDQFLDOVWDWHPHQWVLQFOXGLQJDVXPPDU\RIVLJQLILFDQWDFFRXQWLQJSROLFLHV
,QRXURSLQLRQWKHDFFRPSDQ\LQJILQDQFLDOVWDWHPHQWVSUHVHQWIDLUO\LQDOOPDWHULDOUHVSHFWVWKHILQDQFLDO
SRVLWLRQRIWKH&RPPLVVLRQDVDW0DUFKDQGLWVILQDQFLDOSHUIRUPDQFHDQGLWVFDVKIORZIRUWKH
\HDU WKHQHQGHGLQDFFRUGDQFHZLWK,QWHUQDWLRQDO)LQDQFLDO5HSRUWLQJ6WDQGDUGV
%DVLVIRU2SLQLRQ
:H FRQGXFWHG RXU DXGLW LQ DFFRUGDQFH ZLWK &DQDGLDQ JHQHUDOO\ DFFHSWHG DXGLWLQJ VWDQGDUGV 2XU
UHVSRQVLELOLWLHVXQGHUWKRVHVWDQGDUGVDUHIXUWKHUGHVFULEHGLQWKH$XGLWRU V5HVSRQVLELOLWLHVIRUWKH$XGLW
RIWKH)LQDQFLDO6WDWHPHQWVVHFWLRQRIRXUUHSRUW:HDUHLQGHSHQGHQWRIWKH&RPPLVVLRQLQDFFRUGDQFH
ZLWKWKHHWKLFDOUHTXLUHPHQWVWKDWDUHUHOHYDQWWRRXUDXGLWRIWKHILQDQFLDOVWDWHPHQWVLQ&DQDGDDQGZH
KDYHIXOILOOHGRXURWKHUHWKLFDOUHVSRQVLELOLWLHVLQDFFRUGDQFHZLWKWKRVHUHTXLUHPHQWV:HEHOLHYHWKDWWKH
DXGLWHYLGHQFHZHKDYHREWDLQHGLVVXIILFLHQWDQGDSSURSULDWHWRSURYLGHDEDVLVIRURXU RSLQLRQ
2WKHU0DWWHU
7KHILQDQFLDOVWDWHPHQWVRIWKH&RPPLVVLRQIRUWKH\HDUHQGHG0DUFKZHUHDXGLWHGE\DQRWKHU
DXGLWRUZKRH[SUHVVHGDQXQPRGLILHGRSLQLRQRQWKRVHVWDWHPHQWVRQ-XQH
5HVSRQVLELOLWLHVRI0DQDJHPHQWDQG7KRVH&KDUJHGZLWK*RYHUQDQFHIRUWKH)LQDQFLDO6WDWHPHQWV
0DQDJHPHQW LV UHVSRQVLEOH IRU WKH SUHSDUDWLRQ DQG IDLU SUHVHQWDWLRQ RI WKH ILQDQFLDO VWDWHPHQWV LQ
DFFRUGDQFH ZLWK ,QWHUQDWLRQDO )LQDQFLDO 5HSRUWLQJ 6WDQGDUGV DQG IRU VXFK LQWHUQDO FRQWURO DV
PDQDJHPHQWGHWHUPLQHVLVQHFHVVDU\WRHQDEOHWKHSUHSDUDWLRQRIILQDQFLDOVWDWHPHQWVWKDWDUHIUHHIURP
PDWHULDOPLVVWDWHPHQWZKHWKHUGXHWRIUDXGRUHUURU
,QSUHSDULQJWKHILQDQFLDOVWDWHPHQWVPDQDJHPHQWLVUHVSRQVLEOHIRUDVVHVVLQJWKH&RPPLVVLRQ VDELOLW\
WRFRQWLQXHDVDJRLQJFRQFHUQGLVFORVLQJDVDSSOLFDEOHPDWWHUVUHODWLQJWRJRLQJFRQFHUQDQGXVLQJWKH
JRLQJ FRQFHUQ EDVLV RI DFFRXQWLQJ XQOHVV PDQDJHPHQW HLWKHU LQWHQGVWROLTXLGDWHWKH&RPPLVVLRQRUWR
FHDVHRSHUDWLRQVRUKDVQRUHDOLVWLFDOWHUQDWLYHEXWWRGRVR
7KRVH FKDUJHG ZLWK JRYHUQDQFH DUH UHVSRQVLEOH IRU RYHUVHHLQJ WKH &RPPLVVLRQ V ILQDQFLDO UHSRUWLQJ
SURFHVV

(continues)
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$XGLWRU V5HVSRQVLELOLWLHVIRUWKH$XGLWRIWKH)LQDQFLDO6WDWHPHQWV
2XUREMHFWLYHVDUHWRREWDLQUHDVRQDEOHDVVXUDQFHDERXWZKHWKHUWKHILQDQFLDOVWDWHPHQWVDVDZKROHDUH
IUHH IURP PDWHULDO PLVVWDWHPHQW ZKHWKHU GXH WR IUDXG RU HUURU DQG WR LVVXH DQ DXGLWRU¶V UHSRUW WKDW
LQFOXGHVRXURSLQLRQ5HDVRQDEOHDVVXUDQFHLVDKLJKOHYHORIDVVXUDQFHEXWLVQRWDJXDUDQWHHWKDWDQ
DXGLWFRQGXFWHGLQDFFRUGDQFHZLWK&DQDGLDQJHQHUDOO\DFFHSWHGDXGLWLQJVWDQGDUGVZLOODOZD\VGHWHFWD
PDWHULDO PLVVWDWHPHQW ZKHQ LW H[LVWV 0LVVWDWHPHQWV FDQ DULVH IURP IUDXG RU HUURU DQG DUH FRQVLGHUHG
PDWHULDOLILQGLYLGXDOO\RULQWKHDJJUHJDWHWKH\FRXOGUHDVRQDEO\EHH[SHFWHGWRLQIOXHQFHWKHHFRQRPLF
GHFLVLRQVRIXVHUVWDNHQRQWKHEDVLVRIWKHVHILQDQFLDOVWDWHPHQWV$VSDUWRIDQDXGLWLQDFFRUGDQFHZLWK
&DQDGLDQ JHQHUDOO\ DFFHSWHG DXGLWLQJ VWDQGDUGV ZH H[HUFLVH SURIHVVLRQDO MXGJPHQW DQG PDLQWDLQ
SURIHVVLRQDOVNHSWLFLVPWKURXJKRXWWKHDXGLW:HDOVR










,GHQWLI\ DQG DVVHVV WKH ULVNV RI PDWHULDO PLVVWDWHPHQW RI WKH ILQDQFLDO VWDWHPHQWV ZKHWKHU GXH WR
IUDXG RU HUURU GHVLJQ DQG SHUIRUP DXGLW SURFHGXUHV UHVSRQVLYH WR WKRVH ULVNV DQG REWDLQ DXGLW
HYLGHQFHWKDWLVVXIILFLHQWDQGDSSURSULDWHWRSURYLGHDEDVLVIRURXURSLQLRQ7KHULVNRIQRWGHWHFWLQJ
DPDWHULDOPLVVWDWHPHQWUHVXOWLQJIURPIUDXGLVKLJKHUWKDQIRURQHUHVXOWLQJIURPHUURUDVIUDXGPD\
LQYROYH FROOXVLRQ IRUJHU\ LQWHQWLRQDO RPLVVLRQV PLVUHSUHVHQWDWLRQV RU WKH RYHUULGH RI LQWHUQDO
FRQWURO
2EWDLQDQXQGHUVWDQGLQJRILQWHUQDOFRQWUROUHOHYDQWWRWKHDXGLWLQRUGHUWRGHVLJQDXGLWSURFHGXUHV
WKDW DUH DSSURSULDWH LQ WKH FLUFXPVWDQFHV EXW QRW IRU WKH SXUSRVH RI H[SUHVVLQJ DQ RSLQLRQ RQ WKH
HIIHFWLYHQHVVRIWKH&RPPLVVLRQ¶VLQWHUQDOFRQWURO
(YDOXDWH WKH DSSURSULDWHQHVV RI DFFRXQWLQJ SROLFLHV XVHG DQG WKH UHDVRQDEOHQHVV RI DFFRXQWLQJ
HVWLPDWHVDQGUHODWHGGLVFORVXUHVPDGHE\PDQDJHPHQW
&RQFOXGH RQ WKH DSSURSULDWHQHVV RI PDQDJHPHQW¶V XVH RI WKH JRLQJ FRQFHUQ EDVLV RI DFFRXQWLQJ
DQGEDVHGRQWKHDXGLWHYLGHQFHREWDLQHGZKHWKHUDPDWHULDOXQFHUWDLQW\H[LVWVUHODWHGWRHYHQWVRU
FRQGLWLRQVWKDWPD\FDVWVLJQLILFDQWGRXEWRQWKH&RPPLVVLRQ¶VDELOLW\WRFRQWLQXHDVDJRLQJFRQFHUQ
,I ZH FRQFOXGH WKDW D PDWHULDO XQFHUWDLQW\ H[LVWV ZH DUH UHTXLUHG WR GUDZ DWWHQWLRQ LQ RXU DXGLWRU¶V
UHSRUWWRWKHUHODWHGGLVFORVXUHVLQWKHILQDQFLDOVWDWHPHQWVRULIVXFKGLVFORVXUHVDUHLQDGHTXDWHWR
PRGLI\RXURSLQLRQ2XUFRQFOXVLRQVDUHEDVHGRQWKHDXGLWHYLGHQFHREWDLQHGXSWRWKHGDWHRIRXU
DXGLWRU¶V UHSRUW +RZHYHU IXWXUH HYHQWV RU FRQGLWLRQV PD\ FDXVH WKH &RPPLVVLRQ WR FHDVH WR
FRQWLQXHDVDJRLQJFRQFHUQ
(YDOXDWH WKH RYHUDOO SUHVHQWDWLRQ VWUXFWXUH DQG FRQWHQW RI WKH ILQDQFLDO VWDWHPHQWV LQFOXGLQJ WKH
GLVFORVXUHVDQGZKHWKHUWKHILQDQFLDOVWDWHPHQWVUHSUHVHQWWKHXQGHUO\LQJWUDQVDFWLRQVDQGHYHQWVLQ
DPDQQHUWKDWDFKLHYHVIDLUSUHVHQWDWLRQ

:H FRPPXQLFDWH ZLWK WKRVH FKDUJHG ZLWK JRYHUQDQFH UHJDUGLQJ DPRQJ RWKHU PDWWHUV WKH SODQQHG
VFRSHDQGWLPLQJRIWKHDXGLWDQGVLJQLILFDQWDXGLWILQGLQJVLQFOXGLQJDQ\VLJQLILFDQWGHILFLHQFLHVLQLQWHUQDO
FRQWUROWKDWZHLGHQWLI\GXULQJRXUDXGLW

056%&+$57(5('352)(66,21$/$&&2817$176,1&

&KDUORWWHWRZQ3(
'HFHPEHU
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PRINCE EDWARD ISLAND LIQUOR CONTROL COMMISSION
Statement of Financial Position
March 31, 2020
2020



ASSETS
Current
&DVK
$FFRXQWVUHFHLYDEOH 1RWH
,QYHQWRU\ 1RWH
3UHSDLGH[SHQVH

$








15,404,956
9,295,695




$ 24,700,651

 

$



Property and equipment 6FKHGXOHVDQG
Total assets

5,270,113
2,065,159
7,958,613
111,071

LIABILITIES
Current
$FFRXQWVSD\DEOHDQGDFFUXHGOLDELOLWLHV 1RWH
'HIHUUHGUHYHQXH
'HIHUUHGOHDVHLQGXFHPHQWV
'XHWRWKH3URYLQFHRI3ULQFH(GZDUG,VODQG 1RWH
&XUUHQWSRUWLRQRIGHEHQWXUHVSD\DEOH 1RWH
&XUUHQWSRUWLRQRIOHDVHOLDELOLWLHV 1RWH
Debentures payable 1RWH
Lease liabilities 1RWH
Total liabilities

5,090,753
368,276
372,340
14,499,996
177,053
773,467
21,281,885
137,153
3,281,613





$ 24,700,651

 

Contractual obligations 1RWH
Lease commitments 1RWH

ON BEHALF OF THE PRINCE EDWARD ISLAND LIQUOR CONTROL COMMISSION

BBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBChair
BBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBCommissioner
1RWHVDUHDQLQWHJUDOSDUWRIWKHVHILQDQFLDOVWDWHPHQWV
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PRINCE EDWARD ISLAND LIQUOR CONTROL COMMISSION
Statement of Changes in Equity
Year Ended March 31, 2020
2020
Retained earnings - beginning of year

$

1HWLQFRPH 6WDWHPHQW

$QQXDOLQFRPHGLVWULEXWLRQWR3URYLQFHRI3ULQFH(GZDUG,VODQG
Retained earnings - end of year

$

1RWHVDUHDQLQWHJUDOSDUWRIWKHVHILQDQFLDOVWDWHPHQWV


-






22,468,919



22,468,919



(22,468,919)



-
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PRINCE EDWARD ISLAND LIQUOR CONTROL COMMISSION
Statement of Profit or Loss
Year Ended March 31, 2020
2020
Income
6DOHV 1RWH



$ 83,473,652

 

&RVWRIVDOHV 1RWH

47,530,611



*URVVPDUJLQ

35,943,041



1,379,290
710,443
235,467
16,379
249,144
204,271
593,591
932,811
10,485,520
765,705
101,528
802,096














16,476,245



19,466,796



3,002,123



$ 22,468,919

 

Expenses
$PRUWL]DWLRQRISURSHUW\DQGHTXLSPHQW 6FKHGXOHVDQG
&UHGLWDQGGHELWFDUGFKDUJHV
,QVXUDQFHDQGSURSHUW\WD[HV 1RWH
,QWHUHVWRQGHEHQWXUHV 1RWHV
,QWHUHVWRQOHDVHOLDELOLWLHV 1RWH
2SHUDWLQJOHDVHV
2WKHURSHUDWLQJH[SHQVHV 1RWH
5HSDLUVDQGPDLQWHQDQFH
6DODULHVDQGEHQHILWV 1RWHV
6WRUHDQGRIILFHH[SHQVHV
7UDYHO
8WLOLWLHV

Income from operations
Other income 1RWH
Net income

1RWHVDUHDQLQWHJUDOSDUWRIWKHVHILQDQFLDOVWDWHPHQWV
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PRINCE EDWARD ISLAND LIQUOR CONTROL COMMISSION
Statement of Cash Flow
Year Ended March 31, 2020
2020
Cash flows from operating activities
1HWLQFRPH
,WHPVQRWDIIHFWLQJFDVK
$PRUWL]DWLRQRISURSHUW\DQGHTXLSPHQW
*DLQRQGLVSRVDORISURSHUW\DQGHTXLSPHQW

$ 22,468,919



 

1,379,290
(17,000)




23,831,209
&KDQJHVLQQRQFDVKZRUNLQJFDSLWDO
$FFRXQWVUHFHLYDEOH
,QYHQWRU\
3UHSDLGH[SHQVH
$FFRXQWVSD\DEOHDQGDFFUXHGOLDELOLWLHV
'HIHUUHGUHYHQXH



(134,289)
841,189
182,323
782,061
40,408

Cash flows from investing activities
3XUFKDVHRISURSHUW\DQGHTXLSPHQW
3XUFKDVHRIULJKWRIXVHDVVHWV
3URFHHGVRQGLVSRVDORISURSHUW\DQGHTXLSPHQW

Cash flows from financing activities
$QQXDOLQFRPHGLVWULEXWLRQWR3URYLQFHRI3ULQFH(GZDUG,VODQG
$GYDQFHVIURPWKH3URYLQFHRI3ULQFH(GZDUG,VODQG
5HSD\PHQWRIOHDVHOLDELOLWLHV
5HSD\PHQWRIGHEHQWXUHVSD\DEOH
'HIHUUHGOHDVHLQGXFHPHQWV
3URFHHGVIURPOHDVHOLDELOLWLHV







1,711,692



25,542,901



(931,949)
(3,757,083)
48,169





(4,640,863)



(22,468,919)
1,946,193
(295,426)
(201,213)
(63,830)
3,586,353








(17,496,842)



Increase (decrease) in cash

3,405,196



Cash - beginning of year

1,864,917



Cash - end of year

$

5,270,113





Cash consists of:
&DVKRQKDQG
&DVKLQILQDQFLDOLQWXLWLRQV

$

112,195
5,157,918






$

5,270,113





$

268,103





Cash flow supplementary information
,QWHUHVWSDLG

1RWHVDUHDQLQWHJUDOSDUWRIWKHVHILQDQFLDOVWDWHPHQWV
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PRINCE EDWARD ISLAND LIQUOR CONTROL COMMISSION
Notes to Financial Statements
Year Ended March 31, 2020
1.

DESCRIPTION OF BUSINESS
3ULQFH (GZDUG ,VODQG /LTXRU &RQWURO &RPPLVVLRQ WKH &RPPLVVLRQ  LV D ZKROO\ RZQHG &URZQ
FRUSRUDWLRQ RIWKH3URYLQFHRI3ULQFH(GZDUG,VODQGHVWDEOLVKHGXQGHUWKHSURYLVLRQVRIWKH Liquor
Control ActDQGLVWKHUHIRUHDQRQWD[DEOHHQWLW\XQGHUWKHSURYLVLRQVRIWKHIHGHUDOIncome Tax Act
7KH &RPPLVVLRQ LV UHVSRQVLEOH IRU PDQDJLQJ WKH LPSRUWDWLRQ VDOH DQG GLVWULEXWLRQ RI EHYHUDJH
DOFRKRO WKURXJKRXW 3ULQFH (GZDUG ,VODQG 7KH KHDG RIILFH LV ORFDWHG DW  *DUILHOG 6WUHHW LQ
&KDUORWWHWRZQZLWKRXWOHWVLQYDULRXVORFDWLRQVDFURVVWKHSURYLQFH

2.

BASIS OF PRESENTATION
7KH ILQDQFLDO VWDWHPHQWV KDYH EHHQ SUHSDUHG LQ DFFRUGDQFH ZLWK DQG DUH LQ FRPSOLDQFH ZLWK
,QWHUQDWLRQDO )LQDQFLDO 5HSRUWLQJ 6WDQGDUGV ,)56  DV LVVXHG E\ WKH ,QWHUQDWLRQDO $FFRXQWLQJ
6WDQGDUGV%RDUG ,$6% 7KHSULQFLSDODFFRXQWLQJSROLFLHVDSSOLHGLQWKHSUHSDUDWLRQRIWKHILQDQFLDO
VWDWHPHQWVDUHVHWRXWLQ1RWH
7KHVH ILQDQFLDO VWDWHPHQWV ZHUH DXWKRUL]HG IRU LVVXDQFH E\ WKH %RDUG RI &RPPLVVLRQHUV RQ
'HFHPEHU

3.

BASIS OF MEASUREMENT
7KH ILQDQFLDO VWDWHPHQWV KDYH EHHQ SUHSDUHG RQ D KLVWRULFDO FRVW EDVLV DQG DUH SUHVHQWHG LQ
&DQDGLDQGROODUVZKLFKLVWKHIXQFWLRQDOFXUUHQF\RIWKH&RPPLVVLRQ

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
&KDQJHVLQDFFRXQWLQJVWDQGDUGV
7KHVHILQDQFLDOVWDWHPHQWVKDYHEHHQSUHSDUHGLQDFFRUGDQFHZLWK,)56LVVXHGDQGLQHIIHFWDVRI
0DUFK   7KH VLJQLILFDQW DFFRXQWLQJ SROLFLHV XVHG LQ WKH SUHSDUDWLRQ RI WKHVH ILQDQFLDO
VWDWHPHQWVDUHVXPPDUL]HGEHORZ
$Q RYHUYLHZ RI WKH VWDQGDUGV DPHQGPHQWV DQG LQWHUSUHWDWLRQV RQ WKH FRQYHUVLRQ WR ,)56 WKRVH
DGDSWHGLQWKHFXUUHQW\HDUDQGWKRVHZKLFKDUHLVVXHGEXWQRW\HWLQHIIHFWDUHSUHVHQWHGEHORZ
IFRS 16 'Leases'
,QWKH,QWHUQDWLRQDO$FFRXQWLQJ6WDQGDUGV%RDUGLVVXHG,)56UHSODFLQJ,$6DQGUHODWHG
LQWHUSUHWDWLRQV 7KH VWDQGDUG LQWURGXFHV D VLQJOH RQEDODQFH VKHHW UHFRJQLWLRQ DQG PHDVXUHPHQW
PRGHO IRU OHVVHHV HOLPLQDWLQJ WKH GLVWLQFWLRQ EHWZHHQ RSHUDWLQJ DQG ILQDQFH OHDVHV /HVVHHV
UHFRJQL]HDULJKWRIXVHDVVHWUHSUHVHQWLQJLWVFRQWURORIDQGULJKWWRXVHWKHXQGHUO\LQJDVVHWDQGD
OHDVHOLDELOLW\UHSUHVHQWLQJLWVREOLJDWLRQWRPDNHIXWXUHOHDVHSD\PHQWV/HVVRUDFFRXQWLQJUHPDLQV
VLPLODUWR,$6
,)56EHFDPHHIIHFWLYHIRUDQQXDOSHULRGVEHJLQQLQJRQRUDIWHU-DQXDU\7KH&RUSRUDWLRQ
DGRSWHG WKH VWDQGDUG RQ $SULO   XVLQJ WKH PRGLILHG UHWURVSHFWLYH DSSURDFK 7KH &RUSRUDWLRQ
DSSOLHG WKH UHTXLUHPHQWV RI WKH VWDQGDUG UHWURVSHFWLYHO\ ZLWK WKH FXPXODWLYH HIIHFWV RI LQLWLDO
DSSOLFDWLRQUHFRJQL]HGLQUHWDLQHGHDUQLQJV3ULRU\HDUVILJXUHVZHUHQRWUHVWDWHGDVSHUPLWWHGXQGHU
WKHWUDQVLWLRQSURYLVLRQVLQWKHVWDQGDUGDQGFRQWLQXHWREHUHSRUWHGXQGHU,$6
,)56SHUPLWVWKHXVHRIUHFRJQLWLRQH[HPSWLRQVDQGSUDFWLFDOH[SHGLHQWV7KH&RUSRUDWLRQDSSOLHG
WKHIROORZLQJUHFRJQLWLRQH[HPSWLRQVDQGSUDFWLFDOH[SHGLHQWV
(continues)
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4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)


HOHFWHGWRPHDVXUHWKHULJKWRIXVHDVVHWVDWDQDPRXQWHTXDOWRWKHOHDVHOLDELOLW\DGMXVWHG
IRUDQ\SUHSDLGRUDFFUXHGOHDVHSD\PHQWVWKDWH[LVWHGDWWKHGDWHRIWUDQVLWLRQDQG



DFFRXQWLQJOHDVHVZKLFKHQGZLWKLQPRQWKVRIWKHGDWHRILQLWLDODSSOLFDWLRQDVVKRUWWHUP
OHDVHV

2QWUDQVLWLRQWR,)56WKHZHLJKWHGDYHUDJHLQFUHPHQWDOERUURZLQJUDWHDSSOLHGWROHDVHOLDELOLWLHV
UHFRJQL]HGXQGHU,)56ZDV
&DVK
&DVKLVFRPSULVHGRIFDVKRQKDQGDQGDPRXQWVRQGHSRVLWZLWKILQDQFLDOLQVWLWXWLRQV
$FFRXQWVUHFHLYDEOH
$FFRXQWV UHFHLYDEOH DULVH IURP WUDGH VDOHV 3ULQFH (GZDUG ,VODQG &DQQDELV 0DQDJHPHQW
&RUSRUDWLRQDQGWKH3URYLQFHRI3ULQFH(GZDUG,VODQG$PRXQWVGHHPHGXQFROOHFWLEOHDUHZULWWHQRII
DQG GHGXFWHG IURP WKH FDUU\LQJ YDOXH RI WKH UHFHLYDEOH $PRXQWV VXEVHTXHQWO\ UHFRYHUHG IURP
DFFRXQWVSUHYLRXVO\ZULWWHQRIIDUHFUHGLWHGWRWKHDOORZDQFHDFFRXQWLQWKHSHULRGRIUHFRYHU\
,QYHQWRU\
,QYHQWRULHVDUHVWDWHGDWWKHORZHURIFRVWDQGQHWUHDOL]DEOHYDOXHRQDILUVWLQILUVWRXWEDVLV&RVW
LQFOXGHVWKHFRVWVWRSXUFKDVHGXW\DQGH[FLVHWD[HVDQGVWDQGDUGIUHLJKWUDWHVIRUJRRGVUHFHLYHG
1HWUHDOL]DEOHYDOXHUHSUHVHQWVWKHDPRXQWWKDWPD\EHUHDOL]HGIURPWKHVDOHRIDQLQYHQWRU\LWHP
XQGHU QRUPDO EXVLQHVV FRQGLWLRQV :KHQ LQYHQWRULHV DUH VROG WKH FDUU\LQJ DPRXQW RI WKRVH
LQYHQWRULHVDUHUHFRJQL]HGDVDQH[SHQVHLQWKHSHULRGLQZKLFKWKHUHODWHGUHYHQXHLVUHFRJQL]HG
7KHDPRXQWRIDQ\ZULWHGRZQRILQYHQWRULHVWRQHWUHDOL]DEOHYDOXHDQGDOOORVVHVRILQYHQWRULHVVKDOO
EHUHFRJQL]HGDVDQH[SHQVHLQWKHSHULRGWKHORVVRUZULWHGRZQRFFXUV7KHDPRXQWRIUHYHUVDORI
DQ\ZULWHGRZQVDULVLQJIURPDQLQFUHDVHLQQHWUHDOL]DEOHYDOXHVKDOOEHUHFRJQL]HGDVDUHGXFWLRQ
LQWKHDPRXQWRILQYHQWRULHVUHFRJQL]HGDVDQH[SHQVHLQWKHSHULRGLQZKLFKWKHUHYHUVDORFFXUV
3URSHUW\DQGHTXLSPHQW
3URSHUW\DQGHTXLSPHQW LVVWDWHGDWFRVWOHVVDFFXPXODWHGDPRUWL]DWLRQDQGDQ\LPSDLUPHQWORVVHV
$OOFDSLWDODVVHWDGGLWLRQVRYHUDUHFDSLWDOL]HG3URSHUW\DQGHTXLSPHQWDUHEURNHQGRZQLQWR
FRPSRQHQWVZKHQWKHFRPSRQHQWVDUHVLJQLILFDQWDQGKDYHGLIIHULQJXVHIXOOLYHVWKDQWKHUHVWRIWKH
DVVHW$PRUWL]DWLRQLVFDOFXODWHGRQDVWUDLJKWOLQHEDVLVDWWKHIROORZLQJUDWHV
%XLOGLQJV
(TXLSPHQW
9HKLFOHV
/HDVHKROGLPSURYHPHQWV
)LQDQFLDOLQIRUPDWLRQV\VWHP
5LJKWRIXVHDVVHWV




DQG

WHUPRIWKHOHDVH

2QHKDOIRIWKHDQQXDOUDWHLVUHFRUGHGLQWKH\HDURIDFTXLVLWLRQQRDPRUWL]DWLRQLVUHFRUGHGLQWKH
\HDURIGLVSRVDO
(continues)
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PRINCE EDWARD ISLAND LIQUOR CONTROL COMMISSION
Notes to Financial Statements
Year Ended March 31, 2020
4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
/HDVHV
7KH &RPPLVVLRQ UHFRJQL]HG ULJKWRIXVH DVVHWV DQG OLDELOLWLHV IRU LWV RSHUDWLQJ OHDVHV H[FHSW IRU
FHUWDLQ FODVVHV RI XQGHUO\LQJ DVVHWV LQ ZKLFK WKH OHDVH WHUPV DUH  PRQWKV RU OHVV RU ORZ YDOXHG
DVVHWV 7KH DPRUWL]DWLRQ H[SHQVH RQ ULJKWRIXVH DVVHWV DQG LQWHUHVW H[SHQVH RQ OHDVH OLDELOLWLHV
UHSODFHGUHQWH[SHQVHZKLFKZDVSUHYLRXVO\UHFRJQL]HGRQDVWUDLJKWOLQHEDVLVXQGHU,$6RYHU
WKHWHUPRIWKHOHDVH
,PSDLUPHQW
7KH &RPPLVVLRQ DVVHVVHV DW HDFK UHSRUWLQJ GDWH ZKHWKHU WKHUH LV REMHFWLYH HYLGHQFH WKDW D
ILQDQFLDODVVHWRUJURXSRIILQDQFLDODVVHWVLVLPSDLUHG$ILQDQFLDODVVHWRUDJURXSRIILQDQFLDODVVHWV
LVLPSDLUHGDQGLPSDLUPHQWORVVHVDUHUHFRUGHGRQO\LIWKHUHLVREMHFWLYHHYLGHQFHRILPSDLUPHQWDV
DUHVXOWRIRQHRUPRUHHYHQWVWKDWRFFXUUHGDIWHUWKHLQLWLDOUHFRJQLWLRQRIWKHDVVHW DORVVHYHQW
DQGWKHORVVHYHQWKDVDQLPSDFWRQWKHHVWLPDWHGIXWXUHFDVKIORZVRIWKHILQDQFLDODVVHWRUJURXSRI
ILQDQFLDODVVHWVWKDWFDQEHUHOLDEO\HVWLPDWHG
'HIHUUHGOHDVHLQGXFHPHQWV
7KH&RPPLVVLRQUHFHLYHGLQGXFHPHQWVWRH[WHQGDOHDVHDWRQHRILWVORFDWLRQV7KLVDPRXQWZLOOEH
DPRUWL]HGRYHUWKHWHUPRIWKHOHDVHWRRIIVHWWKHFRVWRIWKHOHDVHGSUHPLVH
(continues)
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
)LQDQFLDODVVHWVDQGILQDQFLDOOLDELOLWLHV
2QLQLWLDOUHFRJQLWLRQDILQDQFLDODVVHWLVFODVVLILHGDVPHDVXUHGDWDPRUWL]HGFRVWIDLUYDOXHWKURXJK
RWKHUFRPSUHKHQVLYHLQFRPH )92&, RUIDLUYDOXHWKURXJKSURILWRUORVV )973/ $ILQDQFLDODVVHWLV
PHDVXUHG DW DPRUWL]HG FRVW LI LW PHHWV ERWK RI WKH IROORZLQJFRQGLWLRQVDQGLVQRWGHVLJQDWHGDVDW
)973/ WKH DVVHW LV KHOG ZLWKLQ D EXVLQHVV PRGHO ZKRVH REMHFWLYH LV WR KROG DVVHWV WR FROOHFW
FRQWUDFWXDOFDVKIORZDQGWKHFRQWUDFWXDOWHUPVRIWKHILQDQFLDODVVHWJLYHULVHRQVSHFLILHGGDWHVWR
FDVKIORZVWKDWDUHVROHO\SD\PHQWVRISULQFLSDODQGLQWHUHVWRQWKHSULQFLSDODPRXQWRXWVWDQGLQJ$OO
RWKHUILQDQFLDODVVHWVDUHFODVVLILHGDVPHDVXUHGDW)973/)LQDQFLDODVVHWVWKDWDUHKHOGIRUWUDGLQJ
RU PDQDJHG DQG ZKRVH SHUIRUPDQFH LV HYDOXDWHG RQ D IDLU YDOXH EDVLV DUH PHDVXUHG DW )973/
EHFDXVH WKH\ DUH QHLWKHU KHOG WR FROOHFW FRQWUDFWXDO FDVK IORZV QRU KHOG ERWK WR FROOHFW FRQWUDFWXDO
FDVKIORZVDQGWRVHOOILQDQFLDODVVHWV
)LQDQFLDODVVHWVDUHQRWUHFODVVLILHGVXEVHTXHQWWRWKHLULQLWLDOUHFRJQLWLRQH[FHSWLQWKHSHULRGDIWHU
WKH&RPPLVVLRQFKDQJHVLWVEXVLQHVVPRGHOIRUPDQDJLQJILQDQFLDODVVHWV7KHUHZHUHQRFKDQJHV
WRDQ\RIWKH&RPPLVVLRQEXVLQHVVPRGHOVGXULQJWKHFXUUHQWRUSULRU\HDU
7KH &RPPLVVLRQ FODVVLILHV LWV ILQDQFLDO OLDELOLWLHV RWKHU WKDQ ILQDQFLDO JXDUDQWHHV DQG ORDQ
FRPPLWPHQWVDVPHDVXUHGDWDPRUWL]HGFRVWRU)973/7KH&RPPLVVLRQGHUHFRJQL]HVDILQDQFLDO
OLDELOLW\ZKHQLWVFRQWUDFWXDOREOLJDWLRQVDUHGLVFKDUJHGRUFDQFHOOHGRUH[SLUH
)LQDQFLDODVVHWVDQGILQDQFLDOOLDELOLWLHVDUHRIIVHWDQGWKHQHWDPRXQWSUHVHQWHGLQWKHVWDWHPHQWRI
ILQDQFLDOSRVLWLRQZKHQDQGRQO\ZKHQWKH&RPPLVVLRQFXUUHQWO\KDVOHJDOO\HQIRUFHDEOHULJKWWRVHW
RIIWKHDPRXQWVDQGLWLQWHQGVHLWKHUWRVHWWOHWKHPRQDQHWEDVLVRUWRUHDOLVHWKHDVVHWDQGVHWWOHWKH
OLDELOLW\VLPXOWDQHRXVO\
7KH&RPPLVVLRQKDVFODVVLILHGLWVILQDQFLDODVVHWVDQGOLDELOLWLHVDVIROORZV
&DVKIDLUYDOXHWKURXJKSURILWRUORVV
$FFRXQWV UHFHLYDEOH DFFRXQWV SD\DEOH DQG DFFUXHG OLDELOLWLHV GHEHQWXUHV SD\DEOH OHDVH OLDELOLWLHV
DQGGXHWRWKH3URYLQFHRI3ULQFH(GZDUG,VODQGDPRUWL]HGFRVW
7UDQVDFWLRQ FRVWV IRU IDLU YDOXH WKURXJK SURILW RU ORVV LQVWUXPHQWV DUH UHFRJQL]HG DV SURILW RU ORVV
LPPHGLDWHO\ ZKLOH WUDQVDFWLRQ FRVWV IRURWKHUILQDQFLDOLQVWUXPHQWVIRUPSDUWRIWKHRULJLQDOYDOXHRI
WKHILQDQFLDOLQVWUXPHQW
'HUHFRJQLWLRQRIDILQDQFLDOLQVWUXPHQWRFFXUVZKHQWKHFRQWUDFWXDOULJKWVWRWKHFDVKIORZJHQHUDWHG
E\ WKH DVVHW H[SLUH ZKHQ WKH ILQDQFLDO DVVHW DQG VXEVWDQWLDOO\ DOO RI WKH ULVNV DQG UHZDUGV DUH
WUDQVIHUUHGWRDWKLUGSDUW\RUZKHQWKHREOLJDWLRQLQWKHFRQWUDFWLVGLVFKDUJHGFDQFHOOHGRUH[SLUHV
(continues)
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
5HYHQXHUHFRJQLWLRQ
5HYHQXHLVGHULYHGIURPWKHVDOHRIJRRGVDQGRWKHULQFRPHIURPWKHUHQGHULQJRIVHUYLFHV
5HYHQXHLVPHDVXUHGE\UHIHUHQFHWRWKHIDLUYDOXHRIWKHFRQVLGHUDWLRQUHFHLYHGRUUHFHLYDEOHE\WKH
&RPPLVVLRQIRUWKHJRRGVRUVHUYLFHVVXSSOLHGH[FOXVLYHRIVDOHVWD[GHSRVLWVDQGKHDOWKWD[
5HYHQXH IURP WKH VDOH RI JRRGV LV UHFRJQL]HG ZKHQ WKH DPRXQW RI UHYHQXH FDQ EH UHOLDEO\
PHDVXUHGFROOHFWLRQLVSUREDEOHWKHFRVWVLQFXUUHGRUWREHLQFXUUHGFDQEHUHOLDEO\PHDVXUHGDQG
ZKHQWKH&RPPLVVLRQWUDQVIHUVFRQWURORIWKHJRRGVWRWKHFXVWRPHU
2WKHULQFRPHLQFOXGHVSHUPLWOLFHQVHPDUNHWLQJIHHVDQGOLPLWHGWLPHRIIHUSURPRWLRQV5HYHQXHV
IURP SHUPLWV DQG OLFHQVH IHHV DUH UHFRJQL]HG ZKHQ WKH\ FDQ EH UHOLDEO\ PHDVXUHG DQG WKH
DVVRFLDWHGULJKWWRVHOORUSURGXFHEHYHUDJHDOFRKROKDVEHHQXWLOL]HG5HYHQXHVIURPPDUNHWLQJIHHV
DUH UHFRJQL]HG ZKHQ WKH DPRXQW RI UHYHQXHV FDQ EH UHOLDEO\ PHDVXUHG DQG LW LV SUREDEO\ WKDW
HFRQRPLFEHQHILWVZLOOIORZWRWKH&RPPLVVLRQ0DUNHWLQJIHHVDUHHDUQHGGXULQJWKHQLQHPDUNHWLQJ
SHULRGV RI WKH ILVFDO \HDU $Q\ YDULDEOH DPRXQWV GXH FDQ EH UHOLDEO\ PHDVXUHG DW WKH HQG RI HDFK
PDUNHWLQJ SHULRG $OO RWKHU UHYHQXH DPRXQWV FDQ EH UHOLDEO\ PHDVXUHG DW WKH EHJLQQLQJ RI WKH
PDUNHWLQJ SHULRG $OO LQFUHPHQWDO FRVWV RI WKH SURJUDPV DUH WKH UHVSRQVLELOLW\ RI WKH VXSSOLHU
0DUNHWLQJ IHHV GR QRWVSDQPXOWLSOHILVFDO\HDUVUHVXOWLQJLQQRUHVWDWHPHQWRISULRUILVFDO\HDUVIRU
FRQWUDFWUHYHQXHVXQGHUPDUNHWLQJIHHV
7KH &RPPLVVLRQ VHOOV JLIW FDUGV WR LWV FXVWRPHUV DQG LQLWLDOO\ UHFRUGV WKH DPRXQW WR GHIHUUHG
UHYHQXH 5HYHQXH LV UHFRJQL]HG DV WKH JLIW FDUGVDUHUHGHHPHG ,ILQWKHRSLQLRQRIPDQDJHPHQW
WKHOLNHOLKRRGRIWKHJLIWFDUGEDODQFHQRWEHLQJUHGHHPHGLVKLJKO\SUREDEO\WKHQWKHUHYHQXHZLOOEH
UHFRJQL]HGDWWKDWWLPH
([SHQVHV
([SHQVHV DUH UHFRJQL]HG RQ DQ DFFUXDO EDVLV LQ WKH SHULRG LQ ZKLFK WKH WUDQVDFWLRQ RU HYHQW WKDW
JDYHULVHWRWKHH[SHQVHRFFXUUHG
6LJQLILFDQWDFFRXQWLQJMXGJPHQWVDQGHVWLPDWHV
7KH SUHSDUDWLRQ RI ILQDQFLDO VWDWHPHQWV LQ FRQIRUPLW\ ZLWK ,)56 UHTXLUHV PDQDJHPHQW WR PDNH
HVWLPDWHVMXGJPHQWVDQGDVVXPSWLRQVWKDWDIIHFWWKHUHSRUWHGDPRXQWRIDVVHWVOLDELOLWLHVUHYHQXHV
DQG H[SHQVHV 7KH DFWXDO UHVXOWV PD\ PDWHULDOO\ GLIIHU IURP PDQDJHPHQW V HVWLPDWLRQ ,WHPV
UHTXLULQJWKHXVHRIVLJQLILFDQWHVWLPDWHVLQFOXGHSURSHUW\DQGHTXLSPHQWDFFUXHGOLDELOLWLHVVWDQGDUG
LQYHQWRU\ IUHLJKW UDWHV OHJDO FRQWLQJHQFLHV LPSDLUPHQW DQG HVWLPDWHG FRVWV ELOOHG WR WKH 3ULQFH
(GZDUG,VODQG&DQQDELV0DQDJHPHQW&RUSRUDWLRQIRUVKDUHGXVHRIUHVRXUFHV
)XWXUHFKDQJHVLQVLJQLILFDQWDFFRXQWLQJSROLFLHV
$QXPEHURIQHZVWDQGDUGVDQGDPHQGPHQWVWRVWDQGDUGVDQGLQWHUSUHWDWLRQVDUHQRW\HWHIIHFWLYH
IRUWKH\HDUHQGHG0DUFKDQGKDYHQRWEHHQDGRSWHGE\WKH&RPPLVVLRQLQSUHSDULQJWKHVH
ILQDQFLDO VWDWHPHQWV 7KHVH FKDQJHV DUH QRW H[SHFWHG WR KDYH D PDWHULDO LPSDFW RQ WKH
&RPPLVVLRQ VILQDQFLDOVWDWHPHQWV
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5.

ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE
2020
7UDGHDFFRXQWVUHFHLYDEOH
3URYLQFHRI3ULQFH(GZDUG,VODQG
3ULQFH(GZDUG,VODQG&DQQDELV0DQDJHPHQW&RUSRUDWLRQ



$

1,973,218
87,172
69,450
2,129,840
(64,681)









$

2,065,159





$OORZDQFHIRUGRXEWIXODFFRXQWV

$OO DPRXQWV LQ WKH DFFRXQWV UHFHLYDEOH EDODQFH DUH VKRUWWHUP 7KH QHW FDUU\LQJ YDOXH RI DFFRXQWV
UHFHLYDEOHLVFRQVLGHUHGDUHDVRQDEOHDSSUR[LPDWLRQRIIDLUYDOXH
$OO RI WKH &RPPLVVLRQ V WUDGH DQG RWKHU UHFHLYDEOHV KDYH EHHQ UHYLHZHG IRU LQGLFDWLRQV RI
LPSDLUPHQW ,W LV PDQDJHPHQW V DVVHVVPHQW WKDW DQ DOORZDQFH RI      LV
UHTXLUHGWRIDLUO\VWDWHWKHYDOXHRIDFFRXQWVUHFHLYDEOH
7KHUHFHLYDEOHVIURPWKH3ULQFH(GZDUG,VODQG&DQQDELV0DQDJHPHQW&RUSRUDWLRQFRQVLVWSULPDULO\
RI DFFUXDOV WR DFFRXQW IRU WKH VKDUHG XVH RI UHVRXUFHV RI WKH &RPPLVVLRQ DQG LV EDVHG RQ D EHVW
HVWLPDWHRIWKHFRVWRIWKRVHUHVRXUFHVXVHG
7KHUHFHLYDEOHIURPWKH3URYLQFHRI3ULQFH(GZDUG,VODQGSULPDULO\UHODWHVWRDZDJHUHLPEXUVHPHQW
IRU RQH HPSOR\HH RQ VHFRQGPHQW WR WKH &RPPLVVLRQ 7KH FDUU\LQJ DPRXQW RI WKH UHFHLYDEOH LV
FRQVLGHUHG D UHDVRQDEOH DSSUR[LPDWLRQ RI IDLU YDOXHV DV WKLV ILQDQFLDO DVVHW LV H[SHFWHGWREHSDLG
ZLWKLQWKH\HDUVXFKWKDWWKHWLPHYDOXHRIPRQH\LVQRWVLJQLILFDQW
6.

INVENTORY
2020
:DUHKRXVH
6WRUHV
,QWUDQVLW



$

4,237,470
3,501,251
219,892







$

7,958,613





,QYHQWRULHVUHFRJQL]HGLQWKHVWDWHPHQWRIILQDQFLDOSRVLWLRQFRQVLVWRIOLTXRUSURGXFWVKHOGIRUVDOH,Q
 D WRWDO RI      RI LQYHQWRULHV ZDV LQFOXGHG LQ WKH VWDWHPHQW RI
SURILWRUORVVDVFRVWRIJRRGVVDOHV
,QWUDQVLWLQYHQWRU\FRQVLVWVRIEHYHUDJHDOFRKROWKDWKDVEHHQFXVWRPVFOHDUHGDWWKHGRFNLQ+DOLID[
DV SDUW RI D FRQVROLGDWHG ORDG GHVWLQHG IRU WKUHH OLTXRU ERDUGV LQ WKH 0DULWLPHV 7KH &RPPLVVLRQ
RZQVWKHLQYHQWRU\LQWKLVFDVHDIWHULWKDVEHHQFOHDUHGDWWKHSRLQWRIHQWU\LQWR&DQDGD
7KHUHZHUHQRZULWHGRZQVRILQYHQWRULHV1RUHYHUVDOVRISUHYLRXVZULWHGRZQVZHUHUHFRJQL]HGDV
DUHGXFWLRQRIH[SHQVHLQRU1RQHRIWKHLQYHQWRULHVDUHSOHGJHGDVVHFXULW\IRUOLDELOLWLHV
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7.

ACCOUNTS PAYABLE AND ACCRUED LIABILITIES
2020
$FFRXQWVSD\DEOHDQGDFFUXHGOLDELOLWLHV
3URYLQFHRI3ULQFH(GZDUG,VODQG

8.



$

5,090,753
-






$

5,090,753





DUE TO THE PROVINCE OF PRINCE EDWARD ISLAND
3ULQFH (GZDUG ,VODQG /LTXRU &RQWURO &RPPLVVLRQ LV D ZKROO\ RZQHG &URZQ &RUSRUDWLRQ RI WKH
3URYLQFHRI3ULQFH(GZDUG,VODQG7KH&RPPLVVLRQ VHPSOR\HHVDODULHVDQGEHQHILWVDUHSDLGE\WKH
3URYLQFHDQGDUHVXEVHTXHQWO\UHLPEXUVHGE\WKH&RPPLVVLRQ1HWSURILWHDUQHGGXULQJWKHSHULRGLV
SD\DEOHWRWKH3URYLQFH
2020

'XHWRWKH3URYLQFHRI3ULQFH(GZDUG,VODQG

9.

$ 14,499,996


 

DEBENTURES PAYABLE
2020
3URYLQFH RI 3(,   UHSD\DEOH LQ DQQXDO EOHQGHG
LQVWDOOPHQWV RI   7KH ORDQ PDWXUHV RQ -DQXDU\ 

3URYLQFH RI 3(,   UHSD\DEOH LQ DQQXDO EOHQGHG
LQVWDOOPHQWVRI7KHORDQPDWXUHVRQ6HSWHPEHU

3URYLQFH RI 3(,   UHSD\DEOH LQ DQQXDO EOHQGHG
LQVWDOOPHQWV RI   7KH ORDQ PDWXUHV RQ )HEUXDU\ 

3URYLQFH RI 3(,   UHSD\DEOH LQ DQQXDO EOHQGHG
LQVWDOOPHQWV RI   7KH ORDQ PDWXUHG RQ -DQXDU\ 


$

&XUUHQWSRUWLRQ
$

179,342







83,054



51,810



-



314,206
(177,053)




137,153





3ULQFLSDOUHSD\PHQWVRIORQJWHUPGHEWDUHH[SHFWHGWREHUHSDLGRYHUWKHQH[WIRXU\HDUVDVIROORZV
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10. LEASE LIABILITIES
2020
7KH &RPPLVVLRQ OHDVHV  UHWDLO RXWOHWV DQG  ZDUHKRXVH
/HDVHWHUPVDUHQHJRWLDWHGRQDQLQGLYLGXDOEDVLVDQGFRQWDLQ
DZLGHUDQJHRIWHUPVDQGFRQGLWLRQV
&XUUHQWSRUWLRQ



$

4,055,080
(773,467)






$

3,281,613














)XWXUHPLQLPXPFDSLWDOOHDVHSD\PHQWVDUHDSSUR[LPDWHO\





7KHUHDIWHU
7RWDOPLQLPXPOHDVHSD\PHQWV



/HVVDPRXQWUHSUHVHQWLQJLQWHUHVWDWYDULRXVUDWHV






11. CONTRACTUAL OBLIGATIONS
7KH &RPPLVVLRQ KDV HQWHUHG LQWR FRQWUDFWV ZLWK YDULRXV VXSSOLHUV IRU KDUGZDUH PDLQWHQDQFH
VRIWZDUH VXSSRUW VHUYLFHV DQG VHFXULW\ VHUYLFHV 7KH WRWDO RI WKHVHFRQWUDFWVLVDQGWKH\
H[SLUHEHWZHHQRQHDQGWKUHH\HDUV
12. LEASE COMMITMENTS
7KH &RPPLVVLRQ KDV DQ RSHUDWLQJ OHDVH ZLWK UHVSHFW WR LWV SUHPLVHV DW  0W (GZDUG 5RDG
&KDUORWWHWRZQWKDWH[SLUHVRQ$XJXVW)XWXUHPLQLPXPOHDVHSD\PHQWVDVDW\HDUHQGDUH
DVIROORZV






13. SALES
2020



*URVVUHFHLSWV
/HVVWD[HVFROOHFWHGDQGUHPLWWHG
3URYLQFLDO+HDOWK7D[
+DUPRQL]HG6DOHV7D[

$121,112,506



21,246,773
16,392,081




6DOHV

$ 83,473,652
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14. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
7KHVH ILQDQFLDO VWDWHPHQWV LQFOXGH WKH UHVXOWV RI QRUPDO RSHUDWLQJ WUDQVDFWLRQV ZLWK YDULRXV
SURYLQFLDO GHSDUWPHQWV &URZQ FRUSRUDWLRQV DQG DJHQFLHV ZLWK ZKLFK WKH &RPPLVVLRQ LV UHODWHG
2SHUDWLQJWUDQVDFWLRQVZLWKUHODWHGSDUWLHVVXFKDVLQVXUDQFHDQGSURSHUW\WD[HVRI 
   DQG LQWHUHVW RQ GHEHQWXUHV RI      DUH UHFRUGHG DW UDWHV DV
GHWHUPLQHGE\WKH3URYLQFHRI3ULQFH(GZDUG,VODQG
.H\ PDQDJHPHQW UHFHLYHG      GXULQJ WKH \HDU IRU VDODULHV DQG EHQHILWV
3RVWHPSOR\PHQWEHQHILWVDUHWKHUHVSRQVLELOLW\RIWKHSURYLQFHDQGDUHQRWLQFOXGHGLQWKHVHILQDQFLDO
VWDWHPHQWV
7KH &RPPLVVLRQ V HPSOR\HHV VDODULHV DQG EHQHILWV DUH SDLG E\ WKH SURYLQFH DQG VXEVHTXHQWO\
UHLPEXUVHGE\WKH&RPPLVVLRQ
3URILW HDUQHG GXULQJ WKH SHULRG LV SD\DEOH WR WKH 3URYLQFH 7KH RXWVWDQGLQJ EDODQFH GXH WR WKH
3URYLQFHDW\HDUHQGLV  
0DQDJHPHQWDQGVWDIIRIWKH3ULQFH(GZDUG,VODQG/LTXRU&RQWURO&RPPLVVLRQ 3(,/&& DVVLVWHGLQ
WKH GHYHORSPHQW PDQDJHPHQW DQG RQJRLQJ RSHUDWLRQ RI WKH 3ULQFH (GZDUG ,VODQG &DQQDELV
0DQDJHPHQW&RUSRUDWLRQ$QHVWLPDWLRQRIWKHFRVWRIWKHVHVHUYLFHVKDVEHHQH[SHQVHGLQYDULRXV
DFFRXQWVLQWKHDPRXQWRI  
15. OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES
2WKHU RSHUDWLQJ H[SHQVHV LQFOXGH FRQVXOWLQJ OHJDO SURIHVVLRQDO GHYHORSPHQW VHFXULW\ DQG YHKLFOH
H[SHQVHV ,QFOXGHG DV DQ H[SHQVH IRU WKH FXUUHQW \HDU LV D SURYLVLRQ IRU EDG GHEW RI 1LO  
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16. EMPLOYEE BENEFITS
3HQVLRQEHQHILWV
3HUPDQHQW HPSOR\HHV RI WKH &RPPLVVLRQ SDUWLFLSDWH LQ WKH 3URYLQFH RI 3ULQFH (GZDUG ,VODQG &LYLO
6HUYLFH 6XSHUDQQXDWLRQ 3HQVLRQ 3ODQ WKH 3ODQ  ZKLFK LV D PXOWLHPSOR\HU FRQWULEXWRU\ GHILQHG
EHQHILWSHQVLRQSODQ7KH3ODQSURYLGHVDSHQVLRQRQUHWLUHPHQWEDVHGRQWZRSHUFHQWRIWKHDYHUDJH
VDODU\ IRU WKH KLJKHVW WKUHH \HDUV WLPHV WKH QXPEHU RI \HDUV RI SHQVLRQDEOH VHUYLFH IRU VHUYLFH WR
'HFHPEHU   DQG WZR SHUFHQW RI WKH FDUHHU DYHUDJH VDODU\ LQGH[HG ZLWK FRVW RI OLYLQJ
DGMXVWPHQWVIRUVHUYLFHDIWHU,QGH[LQJLVVXEMHFWWRWKHIXQGHGOHYHORIWKHSODQDIWHU'HFHPEHU
  7KH 3ODQ LV DGPLQLVWHUHG E\ WKH 3URYLQFH RI 3ULQFH (GZDUG ,VODQG 7KH &RPPLVVLRQ V
DQQXDOSRUWLRQRIFRQWULEXWLRQ VWRWKH3ODQRI  ZDVSDLGE\WKH3URYLQFH
DQG LV QRW UHIOHFWHG LQ WKHVH ILQDQFLDO VWDWHPHQWV $Q\ XQIXQGHG OLDELOLW\ RI WKH 3ODQ LV WKH
UHVSRQVLELOLW\ RI WKH 3URYLQFH DQG WKHUHIRUH QR OLDELOLW\ KDV EHHQ UHFRJQL]HG LQ WKHVH ILQDQFLDO
VWDWHPHQWV )RU DGGLWLRQDO LQIRUPDWLRQ RQ WKH 3ODQ VHH WKH 3URYLQFH V FRQVROLGDWHG ILQDQFLDO
VWDWHPHQWV
5HWLULQJDOORZDQFH
7KH&RPPLVVLRQSURYLGHVDUHWLUHPHQWDOORZDQFHWRLWVSHUPDQHQWHPSOR\HHV7KHDPRXQWSDLGWR
HOLJLEOH HPSOR\HHV DW UHWLUHPHQW LV EDVHG RQ WKH QXPEHU RI \HDUV RI VHUYLFH DQG WKH UDWH RI SD\ LQ
HIIHFWDWWKHUHWLUHPHQWGDWH7KHEHQHILWFRVWVDQGOLDELOLWLHVUHODWHGWRWKHDOORZDQFHDUHDVVXPHGE\
WKH3URYLQFHDQGDUHQRWLQFOXGHGLQWKHVHILQDQFLDOVWDWHPHQWV
6LFNOHDYH
&ODVVLILHGHPSOR\HHVDUHFUHGLWHG H[FOXGHGHPSOR\HHV GD\VSHUPRQWKIRUXVHDVSDLG
DEVHQFHVLQWKH\HDUGXHWRLOOQHVVRULQMXU\8QGHUH[LVWLQJHPSOR\PHQWDJUHHPHQWVHPSOR\HHVDUH
DOORZHGWRDFFXPXODWHXQXVHGVLFNGD\FUHGLWVHDFK\HDUXSWRWKHDOORZDEOHPD[LPXP$FFXPXODWHG
FUHGLWVPD\EHXVHGLQIXWXUH\HDUVWRWKHH[WHQWWKHHPSOR\HH VLOOQHVVRULQMXU\H[FHHGVWKHFXUUHQW
\HDU V DOORFDWLRQ 7KH XVH RI DFFXPXODWHG VLFN GD\V IRU VLFN OHDYH FRPSHQVDWLRQ FHDVHV RQ
WHUPLQDWLRQRIHPSOR\PHQWDQGWKHUHLVQRREOLJDWLRQWRVHWWOHWKHVHDPRXQWVZLWKFDVKSD\PHQWV$
OLDELOLW\KDVQRWEHHQFDOFXODWHGDQGQRDFFUXDOKDVEHHQUHFRUGHGLQWKHVHILQDQFLDOVWDWHPHQWV7KH
UHODWHGOLDELOLW\LVUHFRUGHGE\WKH3URYLQFH6DODU\H[SHQVHLVLQFOXGHGLQWKHVHILQDQFLDOVWDWHPHQWV
17. OTHER INCOME
2020
/72VDOHV
0DUNHWLQJIHHV
/72SURJUDPIHHV
3URJUDPIHHV
3HUPLWVIHHVDQGOLFHQVHV
$PRUWL]DWLRQRIOHDVHKROG,QGXFHPHQW
0LVFHOODQHRXV
*DLQRQGLVSRVDORISURSHUW\DQGHTXLSPHQW



$

1,477,602
420,395
414,953
403,426
144,128
64,075
60,545
17,000












$

3,002,124





18. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
7KH&RPPLVVLRQDSSOLHV,)56ZKHQDFFRXQWLQJIRULWVILQDQFLDOLQVWUXPHQWV,)56VSHFLILHVKRZ
DQHQWLW\VKRXOGFODVVLI\DQGPHDVXUHILQDQFLDODVVHWVDQGILQDQFLDOOLDELOLWLHV
(continues)
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18. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
2020



)LQDQFLDO$VVHWV
7KH FDUU\LQJ DPRXQWV SUHVHQWHG LQ WKH VWDWHPHQW RI ILQDQFLDO SRVLWLRQ UHODWH WR WKH IROORZLQJ
FDWHJRULHVRIILQDQFLDODVVHWVDQGOLDELOLWLHV
2020
Financial assets
  )LQDQFLDO DVVHWV PHDVXUHG DW IDLU YDOXH WKURXJK SURILW RU
ORVV
)LQDQFLDODVVHWVPHDVXUHGDWDPRUWL]HGFRVW

Financial liabilities
)LQDQFLDOOLDELOLWLHVPHDVXUHGDWDPRUWL]HGFRVW
1RQFXUUHQW
'HEHQWXUHVSD\DEOH
/HDVHOLDELOLWLHV
&XUUHQW
'XHWRWKH3URYLQFHRI3ULQFH(GZDUG,VODQG
$FFRXQWVSD\DEOHDQGDFFUXHGOLDELOLWLHV
&XUUHQWSRUWLRQRIGHEHQWXUHVSD\DEOH
&XUUHQWSRUWLRQRIOHDVHOLDELOLWLHV

$

5,270,113
2,065,159








7,335,272



137,153
3,281,613
3,418,766





14,499,996
5,090,753
177,053
773,467






23,960,035



19. FAIR VALUE
)LQDQFLDO DVVHWV DQG OLDELOLWLHV DUH PHDVXUHG DW IDLU YDOXH RQ LQLWLDO UHFRJQLWLRQ H[FHSW IRU FHUWDLQ
UHODWHGSDUW\WUDQVDFWLRQV0HDVXUHPHQWLQVXEVHTXHQWSHULRGVLVEDVHGRQIDLUYDOXHWKURXJKSURILW
DQGORVVRUDWDPRUWL]HGFRVWXVLQJWKHHIIHFWLYHLQWHUHVWUDWHPHWKRG
)LQDQFLDODVVHWVDQGOLDELOLWLHVUHFRUGHGLQWKHVWDWHPHQWRIILQDQFLDOSRVLWLRQDWIDLUPDUNHWYDOXHDUH
FDWHJRUL]HGEDVHGRQWKHIDLUYDOXHKLHUDUFK\RILQSXWV7KH/HYHOKLHUDUFK\LVXQDGMXVWHGTXRWHG
SULFHVLQDFWLYHPDUNHWVIRULGHQWLFDODVVHWVDQGOLDELOLWLHV7KLVOHYHORILQSXWVLVXVHGWRPHDVXUHWKH
IDLUYDOXHRIFDVK
)DLUYDOXHIRUDFFRXQWVUHFHLYDEOHDFFRXQWVSD\DEOHDQGDFFUXHGOLDELOLWLHVDPRXQWVGXHWRIURPWKH
3URYLQFHRI3ULQFH(GZDUG,VODQGDSSUR[LPDWHWKHLUFDUU\LQJDPRXQWVGXHWRWKHLUVKRUWWHUPQDWXUHV
7KH IDLU YDOXH RI GHEHQWXUHV SD\DEOH DQG OHDVH OLDELOLWLHV DUH QRW PDWHULDOO\ GLIIHUHQW IURP WKHLU
FDUU\LQJYDOXHDVWKHUHKDVQRWEHHQDVLJQLILFDQWIOXFWXDWLRQLQLQWHUHVWUDWHV





38%/,&$&&2817692/80(,,,
PRINCE EDWARD ISLAND LIQUOR CONTROL COMMISSION
Notes to Financial Statements
Year Ended March 31, 2020
20. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
7KH &RPPLVVLRQ LV H[SRVHG WR YDULRXV ULVNV WKURXJK LWV ILQDQFLDO LQVWUXPHQWV 7KH &RUSRUDWLRQ V
ILQDQFLDO DVVHWV DQG OLDELOLWLHV E\ FDWHJRU\ DUH VXPPDUL]HG LQ 1RWH   7KH IROORZLQJ DQDO\VLV
SURYLGHVLQIRUPDWLRQDERXWWKH&RPPLVVLRQ VULVNH[SRVXUHDQGFRQFHQWUDWLRQDVRI0DUFK
D &UHGLWULVN
&UHGLW ULVN LV WKH ULVN WKDW WKH &RPPLVVLRQ ZLOO LQFXU D ORVV EHFDXVH D FXVWRPHU IDLOVWRPHHWDQ
REOLJDWLRQ7KH&RPPLVVLRQLVH[SRVHGWRWKLVULVNIRUILQDQFLDOLQVWUXPHQWVFODVVLILHGDVILQDQFLDO
DVVHWVPHDVXUHGDWDPRUWL]HGFRVWE\JUDQWLQJFUHGLWWRFXVWRPHUV7KH&RPPLVVLRQ VPD[LPXP
H[SRVXUHWRFUHGLWULVNLVOLPLWHGWRWKHFDUU\LQJDPRXQWRIWKHVHILQDQFLDODVVHWVUHFRJQL]HGDWWKH
UHSRUWLQJGDWH  
7KH&RPPLVVLRQKDVPLWLJDWHGLWVH[SRVXUHWRWKLVULVNWKURXJKWKHOLPLWHGH[WHQVLRQRIFUHGLWDQG
LWVFRQWUDFWXDOUHODWLRQVKLSVZLWKLWVEXVLQHVVSDUWQHUV7KH&RPPLVVLRQ VPDQDJHPHQWFRQVLGHUV
WKDWDQDOORZDQFHRI  LVUHTXLUHGIRUWKHDERYHORDQVDQGUHFHLYDEOHVWR
EHIDLUO\VWDWHG7KHORDQVDQGUHFHLYDEOHVDUHVKRZQQHWRIWKHH[SHFWHGFUHGLWORVVHV
7KH H[SHFWHG FUHGLW ORVVHV ZHUH FDOFXODWHG E\ UHYLHZLQJ WKH DJLQJ RI UHFHLYDEOHV DQG DVVLJQLQJ
KLJKHUSUREDELOLW\RIFUHGLWORVVHVWREDODQFHVRXWVWDQGLQJIRUORQJHUSHULRGVRIWLPH7KHILQDQFLDO
FRQGLWLRQRIFXVWRPHUVZDVDOVRHYDOXDWHGEDVHGRQH[SHULHQFH
:LWK UHVSHFW WR ILQDQFLDO DVVHWV PHDVXUHG DW DPRUWL]HG FRVW WKH &RPPLVVLRQ LV QRW H[SRVHG WR
DQ\ VLJQLILFDQW FUHGLW ULVN H[SRVXUH WR DQ\ VLQJOH VXSSOLHU 7UDGH UHFHLYDEOHV FRQVLVW RI D ODUJH
QXPEHU RI FXVWRPHUV LQ YDULRXV LQGXVWULHV DQG JHRJUDSKLFDO DUHDV 0DQDJHPHQW FRQVLGHUV WKH
FUHGLWTXDOLW\RIWUDGHUHFHLYDEOHVWREHJRRG
6RPH RI WKH XQLPSDLUHG ILQDQFLDO DVVHWV PHDVXUHG DW DPRUWL]HG FRVWV DUH SDVW GXH DV DW WKH
UHSRUWLQJGDWH7KHDJLQJRIXQLPSDLUHGDVVHWVLVDVIROORZV
&XUUHQW
/HVVWKDQGD\V
GD\V
GD\V\HDU
0RUHWKDQ\HDU


$

1,062,863





$

683,090
219,677 
99,529
2,065,159








E 0DUNHWULVN
0DUNHWULVNLVWKHULVNWKDWWKHIDLUYDOXHRUIXWXUHFDVKIORZVRIDILQDQFLDOLQVWUXPHQWZLOOIOXFWXDWH
EHFDXVHRIFKDQJHVLQPDUNHWSULFHV0DUNHWULVNFRPSULVHVWKUHHW\SHVRIULVNFXUUHQF\UDWHULVN
LQWHUHVWUDWHULVNDQGRWKHUSULFHULVN7KH&RPPLVVLRQ VPDUNHWULVNPDQDJHPHQWIRFXVHVRQWKH
XQSUHGLFWDELOLW\RIILQDQFLDODQGHFRQRPLFPDUNHWVDQGVHHNVWRPLQLPL]HSRWHQWLDOHIIHFWVRQWKH
&RUSRUDWLRQ VILQDQFLDOSHUIRUPDQFH,QFRPPRQZLWKPDQ\RUJDQL]DWLRQVWKDWSXUFKDVHLQIRUHLJQ
FXUUHQFLHVWKH&RPPLVVLRQPD\EHH[SRVHGWRDPDUJLQDOGHJUHHRIFXUUHQF\ULVN0DQDJHPHQW
KDVPLWLJDWHGWKHH[SRVXUHWRWKLVULVNE\OLPLWLQJWKHQXPEHURISXUFKDVHWUDQVDFWLRQVLQIRUHLJQ
FXUUHQF\
7KH &RPPLVVLRQ V SROLF\ LV WR PLQLPL]H LQWHUHVW UDWH FDVK IORZ ULVN H[SRVXUH RQ ORQJWHUP
ILQDQFLQJ/RQJWHUPERUURZLQJLVDWIL[HGUDWHV
(continues)
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20. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
F /LTXLGLW\ULVN
/LTXLGLW\ ULVN LV WKH ULVN WKDW WKH &RPPLVVLRQ ZRXOG EH XQDEOH WR PHHW LWV REOLJDWLRQV 7KH
&RPPLVVLRQ PDQDJHV OLTXLGLW\ QHHGV E\ PRQLWRULQJ VFKHGXOHG GHEW VHUYLFLQJ SD\PHQWV IRU ORQJ
WHUPILQDQFLDOOLDELOLWLHVDVZHOODVFDVKLQIORZVDQGRXWIORZVGXHLQGD\WRGD\EXVLQHVV7KHGDWD
XVHGIRUDQDO\VLQJWKHVHFDVKIORZVLVFRQVLVWHQWZLWKWKDWXVHGLQWKHFRQWUDFWXDOPDWXULW\DQDO\VLV
EHORZ /LTXLGLW\ QHHGV DUH PRQLWRUHG LQ YDULRXV WLPH EDQGV RQ D GD\WRGD\ DQG ZHHNWRZHHN
EDVLVDVZHOODVRQWKHEDVLVRIDUROOLQJGD\RXWORRN1HWFDVKUHTXLUHPHQWVDUHFRPSDUHGWR
DYDLODEOHERUURZLQJIDFLOLWLHVLQRUGHUWRGHWHUPLQHDQ\VXUSOXVRUVKRUWIDOO
7KH &RPPLVVLRQ V REMHFWLYH LV WR PDLQWDLQ FDVK DQG PDUNHWDEOH VHFXULWLHV WR PHHW LWV OLTXLGLW\
UHTXLUHPHQWV IRU D PLQLPXP  GD\ SHULRG 7KLV REMHFWLYH ZDV PHW IRU WKH UHSRUWLQJ SHULRG
)XQGLQJ IRU ORQJ WHUP OLTXLGLW\ QHHGV DUH VHFXUHG E\ DGHTXDWH DPRXQWV RI FRPPLWWHG FUHGLW
IDFLOLWLHV7KH&RPPLVVLRQ VH[LVWLQJFDVKUHVRXUFHVWUDGHUHFHLYDEOHVDQGFDVKJHQHUDWHGIURP
RSHUDWLRQVVLJQLILFDQWO\H[FHHGWKHFXUUHQWFDVKRXWIORZUHTXLUHPHQWV
7KH&RPPLVVLRQ VFRQWUDFWXDOILQDQFLDOOLDELOLWLHVDVDW0DUFKPDWXUHVDVIROORZV

&XUUHQW1RQFXUUHQW
:LWKLQ
PRQWKV
$FFRXQWV SD\DEOH DQG DFFUXHG
OLDELOLWLHV
 
'XHWRWKH3URYLQFH

/HDVHOLDELOLWLHV

'HEHQWXUHVSD\DEOH

 

$IWHU\HDUV

WRPRQWKV

WR\HDUV


































21. CAPITAL MANAGEMENT
7KH FDSLWDO VWUXFWXUH RI WKH &RPPLVVLRQ FXUUHQWO\ FRQVLVWV RI DPRXQWV GXH WR UHODWHG SDUWLHV
GHEHQWXUHVSD\DEOHDQGOHDVHOLDELOLWLHV7KH&RPPLVVLRQPDQDJHVWKHFDSLWDOVWUXFWXUHDQGPDNHV
DGMXVWPHQWV WR LW LQ WKH OLJKW RI FKDQJHV LQ HFRQRPLF FRQGLWLRQV DQG WKH ULVN FKDUDFWHULVWLFV RI WKH
XQGHUO\LQJDVVHWV,QRUGHUWRPDLQWDLQRUDGMXVWWKHFDSLWDOVWUXFWXUHWKH&RPPLVVLRQPD\DUUDQJH
PRUHORDQVRUDGYDQFHVIURPUHODWHGSDUWLHV0DQDJHPHQWUHYLHZVLWVFDSLWDOPDQDJHPHQWDSSURDFK
RQDUHJXODUEDVLV7KH&RPPLVVLRQLVQRWVXEMHFWWRH[WHUQDOO\LPSRVHGFDSLWDOUHTXLUHPHQWV
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22. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS
7KH UHFHQW RXWEUHDN RI WKH &RURQDYLUXV 'LVHDVH  RU &29,' KDV VSUHDG DFURVV WKH JOREH
DQG LV LPSDFWLQJ ZRUOGZLGH HFRQRPLF DFWLYLW\ 7KLV JOREDO SDQGHPLF SRVHV WKH ULVN WKDW WKH
&RPPLVVLRQ RU LWV FOLHQWV HPSOR\HHV FRQWUDFWRUV VXSSOLHUV DQG RWKHU SDUWQHUV PD\ EH XQDEOH WR
FRQGXFWUHJXODUEXVLQHVVDFWLYLWLHVIRUDQLQGHILQLWHSHULRGRIWLPH:KLOHLWLVQRWSRVVLEOHDWWKLVWLPH
WR HVWLPDWH WKH LPSDFW WKDW &29,' FRXOG KDYH RQ WKH &RPPLVVLRQ V EXVLQHVV WKH FRQWLQXHG
VSUHDGRI&29,'DQGWKHPHDVXUHVWDNHQE\WKHIHGHUDOSURYLQFLDODQGPXQLFLSDOJRYHUQPHQWVWR
FRQWDLQLWVLPSDFWFRXOGDGYHUVHO\LPSDFWWKH&RPPLVVLRQ VEXVLQHVVILQDQFLDOFRQGLWLRQRUUHVXOWVRI
RSHUDWLRQV 7KH H[WHQW WR ZKLFK WKH &29,' RXWEUHDN LPSDFWV WKH &RPPLVVLRQ V UHVXOWV ZLOO
GHSHQG RQ IXWXUH GHYHORSPHQWV WKDW DUH KLJKO\ XQFHUWDLQ DQG FDQQRW EH SUHGLFWHG LQFOXGLQJ QHZ
LQIRUPDWLRQWKDWPD\HPHUJHFRQFHUQLQJWKHVSUHDGRIWKHYLUXVDQGJRYHUQPHQWDFWLRQV
$VRI$SULO3ULQFH(GZDUG,VODQG/LTXRU&RQWURO&RPPLVVLRQKDVDJUHHGWRPDNHDYDLODEOH
WR 3ULQFH (GZDUG ,VODQG &DQQDELV 0DQDJHPHQW &RUSRUDWLRQ D OLQH RI FUHGLW DFFRXQW XS WR
DWDUDWHRI
23. COMPARATIVE FIGURES
7KHSULRU\HDUFRPSDUDWLYHILJXUHVZHUHDXGLWHGE\WKH2IILFHRI$XGLWRU*HQHUDORI3(,



93,849
931,949

4,397,989
-

21,578,785

$ 22,460,582 $ 4,689,032 $

3,757,083

603,576

6,852,554

881,797

$
24,378
77,411
132,735

63,908 $
6,229,739
3,799,527
235,068

Additions

Cost
End
of Year

Accum
Amort
Beginning
of Year

4,638,880

22,378,715

4,491,838
-

7,424,961

213,180

16,230,281

3,911,970
-

5,101,211

560,609

818,681

179,176
-

256,632

$
155,203
212,681
14,989

Amort
in the
Year

(132,019) $ 27,017,595 $ 16,443,461 $ 1,379,290 $

-

(132,019)

-

(31,169)

$
63,908 $
$
6,254,117
3,860,273
3,876,938
3,123,474
(100,850)
266,953
233,353

Disposals
and Write
Downs

1RWHVDUHDQLQWHJUDOSDUWRIWKHVHILQDQFLDOVWDWHPHQWV


7KH&RPPLVVLRQKDVQRWSOHGJHGDQ\RILWVSURSHUW\SODQWDQGHTXLSPHQWDVVHFXULW\

5LJKWRIXVHDVVHWV

/DQG
$
%XLOGLQJV
(TXLSPHQW
9HKLFOHV
/HDVHKROG
LPSURYHPHQW
)LQDQFLDOLQIRUPDWLRQ
V\VWHPV

Cost
Beginning
of Year

Accum
Amort
End
of Year

Net
Book
Value

Schedule 1

773,789

16,948,111

4,091,146
-

5,357,843

3,865,091

5,430,604

400,692
-

2,067,118

(100,851) $ 17,721,900 $ 9,295,695

-

(100,851)

-

-

$
$
63,908
4,015,476
2,238,641
3,336,155
540,783
(100,851)
147,491
119,462

Disposals
and Write
Downs

PRINCE EDWARD ISLAND LIQUOR CONTROL COMMISSION
SCHEDULE TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT
YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2020
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159,057
1,160,108

4,238,932

20,418,677

$ 21,300,474 $ 1,160,108 $

-

645,381

6,207,173

881,797

$
355,670
-

63,908 $
6,229,739
3,443,857
235,068

Additions

-

-

-

-

-

-

Disposals
and Write
Downs

1RWHVDUHDQLQWHJUDOSDUWRIWKHVHILQDQFLDOVWDWHPHQWV

5LJKWRIXVHDVVHWV

/DQG
$
%XLOGLQJV
(TXLSPHQW
9HKLFOHV
/HDVHKROG
LPSURYHPHQWV
)LQDQFLDOLQIRUPDWLRQ
V\VWHPV

Cost
Beginning
of Year

881,797

21,578,785

4,397,989

6,852,554

169,090

15,469,958

3,738,732

4,869,625

63,908 $
$
6,229,739
3,704,968
3,799,527
2,930,137
235,068
226,496

Accum
Amort
Beginning
of Year



$ 22,460,582 $ 15,639,048 $

$

Cost
End
of Year

804,413 $

44,090

760,323

173,238

231,586

$
155,305
193,337
6,857

Amort
in the
Year

-

-

-

-

-

-

Disposals
and Write
Downs

PRINCE EDWARD ISLAND LIQUOR CONTROL COMMISSION
SCHEDULE TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT
YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2019

213,180

16,230,281

3,911,970

5,101,211

668,617

5,348,504

486,019

1,751,343

$
63,908
3,860,273
2,369,466
3,123,474
676,053
233,353
1,715

Net
Book
Value

$ 16,443,461 $ 6,017,121

$

Accum
Amort
End
of Year

Schedule 2
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Prince Edward Island Museum and Heritage
Foundation
Financial Statements
March 31, 2020
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Management's Report
The integrity, relevance and comparability of the data in the accompanying financial statements are the
responsibility of management.
The financial statements are prepared by management in accordance with Canadian public sector accounting
standards established by the Public Sector Accounting Board of the Chartered Professional Accountants of
Canada. A summary of the significant accounting policies is disclosed in note 2 to the financial statements.
The preparation of non-consolidated financial statements necessarily involves the use of estimates based on
management's judgment, particularly when transactions affecting the current period cannot be finalized with a
certainty until future periods.
To meet its responsibility, management maintains a system of internal controls designed to provide reasonable
assurance that assets are safeguarded, transactions are properly authorized and recorded in compliance with
legislative and regulatory requirements, and reliable financial information is available on a timely basis for
preparation of the non-consolidated financial statements. These systems are monitored and evaluated by
management.
Management is accountable to the Board of Directors of Prince Edward Island Museum and Heritage
Foundation on matters of financial reporting and internal control. Management provides the Board of
Directors with externally audited financial statements annually. The Board also discusses any significant
financial reporting or internal control matters prior to their approval of the financial statements.
The financial statements have been audited by ArsenaultBestCameronEllis, independent external auditors
appointed by the Board. The accompanying Independent Auditor's Report outlines their responsibilities, the
scope of their examination and their opinion on the non-consolidated financial statements.
On behalf of Prince Edward Island Museum and Heritage Foundation
___________________________________
Carolyn McKillop
Chair
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October 6, 2020
Independent Auditor's Report
To the Board of Governors of Prince Edward Island Museum and Heritage Foundation
Qualified Opinion
We have audited the financial statements of Prince Edward Island Museum and Heritage Foundation, which
comprise the statement of financial position as at March 31, 2020, and the statements of operations and
accumulated surplus, remeasurement gains, changes in net financial assets and cash flows for the year then
ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.
In our opinion, except for the possible effects of the matter described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion
section of our report, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of Prince Edward Island Museum and Heritage Foundation as at March 31, 2020, and the
results of its operations, remeasurement gains and losses, changes in net financial assets and its cash flows for
the year then ended in accordance with Canadian public sector accounting standards.
Basis of Qualified Opinion
In common with many charitable organizations, Prince Edward Island Museum and Heritage Foundation
derives revenue from admissions, special events, donations, and other activities, the completeness of which is
not susceptible to satisfactory audit verification. Accordingly, verification of these revenues was limited to the
amounts recorded in the records of Prince Edward Island Museum and Heritage Foundation. Therefore, we
were not able to determine whether any adjustments might be necessary to revenue, annual surplus and cash
flows from operations for the years ended March 31, 2020 and March 31, 2019, financial assets as at March 31,
2020 and March 31, 2019, and accumulated surplus as at April 1 and March 31 for both the 2020 and 2019
years.
We conducted our audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of Prince Edward Island Museum and Heritage
Foundation in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements
in Canada, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
qualified audit opinion.
Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial Statements
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance
with Canadian public sector accounting standards, and for such internal control as management determines is
necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error.
In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing Prince Edward Island
Museum and Heritage Foundation’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends
to liquidate Prince Edward Island Museum and Heritage Foundation or to cease operations, or has no
realistic alternative but to do so.
Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Prince Edward Island Museum and
Heritage Foundation’s financial reporting process.
(1)
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards will always detect a material misstatement
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in
the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the
basis of these financial statements. As part of an audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted
auditing standards, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the
audit. We also:
!

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

!

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of Prince Edward Island Museum and Heritage Foundation’s internal control.

!

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by management.

!

Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and based
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that
may cast significant doubt on Prince Edward Island Museum and Heritage Foundation’s ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the
date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause Prince Edward Island
Museum and Heritage Foundation to cease to continue as a going concern.

!

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a
manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that
we identify during our audit.

Chartered Professional Accountants

(2)
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Prince Edward Island Museum and Heritage Foundation
Statement of Financial Position
As at March 31, 2020
2020
$

2019
$

158,862
85,710
1,024,378

133,886
132,771
1,143,864

1,268,950

1,410,521

32,662
840

40,562
3,540

33,502

44,102

1,235,448

1,366,419

59,013
605,369

63,010
532,159

664,382

595,169

1,899,830

1,961,588

1,862,138
37,692

1,846,944
114,644

1,899,830

1,961,588

Assets (note 9)
Financial assets
Cash
Accounts receivable (notes 3 and 12)
Investments (note 4)

Liabilities
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities (notes 5 and 12)
Deferred revenue (note 6)

Net financial assets
Non-financial assets
Inventory (note 7)
Tangible capital assets (schedule)

Accumulated surplus

Accumulated surplus consists of
Accumulated surplus (notes 8 and 9)
Accumulated remeasurement gains

Approved by the Board of Directors
_____________________________ Board Chair

_____________________________ Director
(3)
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Prince Edward Island Museum and Heritage Foundation
Statement of Operations and Accumulated Surplus
For the year ended March 31, 2020
(unaudited)
Budget
$

2020
$

2019
$

1,420,650
49,000
39,500
261,000
14,000
33,000
12,775

1,387,833
54,790
40,485
293,574
19,250
63,955
20,407

1,220,160
48,706
35,485
251,704
8,866
53,077
32,048

1,829,925

1,880,294

1,650,046

5,000
200,000
59,000
16,400
28,000
40,600
91,700
54,068
25,000
45,000
7,500
105,550
1,152,107

7,062
186,107
76,786
16,825
30,196
42,897
96,964
57,430
48,825
40,716
10,013
102,530
1,229,626

7,997
27,152
67,934
16,564
27,901
42,370
93,822
50,556
23,608
70,758
8,636
107,310
1,055,808

1,829,925

1,945,977

1,600,416

Revenues
Province of Prince Edward Island - operating
grants (notes 10 and 12)
Government of Canada grant (note 11)
Memberships and donations
Admissions and special events
Publishing
Investment income
Other income

Expenses
Artifact collection and equipment
Provincial projects (note 10)
Federal project (note 11)
Insurance, taxes and interest
Lease (note 12)
Office
Other operating expenses
Public programs
Publishing
Repairs and maintenance
Travel
Utilities
Wages and benefits (note 13)

Operating surplus (loss)

-

(65,683)

49,630

-

137,009
(56,132)

209,892
(33,592)

-

80,877

176,300

-

15,194

225,930

Accumulated surplus - Beginning of year

1,846,944

1,621,014

Accumulated surplus - End of year

1,862,138

1,846,944

Other revenue (expense)
Province of Prince Edward Island - capital grant (notes
10 and 12)
Amortization

Annual surplus

(4)
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Prince Edward Island Museum and Heritage Foundation
Statement of Remeasurement Gains
For the year ended March 31, 2020
2020
$

2019
$

Accumulated remeasurement gains - Beginning of year

114,644

Unrealized gains (losses) attributable to:
Equity investments

(58,364)

9,305

Amounts reclassified to the Statement of Operations:
Investment income

(18,588)

(20,172)

Accumulated remeasurement gains - End of year

37,692

114,644

(5)
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Prince Edward Island Museum and Heritage Foundation
Statement of Changes in Net Financial Assets
For the year ended March 31, 2020
(unaudited)
Budget
$

Net financial assets - Beginning of year

1,312,884

2020
$

2019
$

1,366,419

1,312,884

Changes in year
Annual surplus
Unrealized gains (losses)
Unrealized gains transferred to investment income
Change in inventory
Amortization of tangible capital assets
Increase in tangible capital assets

-

15,194
(58,364)
(18,588)
3,997
56,132
(129,342)

225,930
9,305
(20,172)
3,264
33,592
(198,384)

Change in net financial assets

-

(130,971)

53,535

Net financial assets - End of year

1,312,884

(6)

1,235,448

1,366,419
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Prince Edward Island Museum and Heritage Foundation
Statement of Cash Flows
For the year ended March 31, 2020
2020
$

2019
$

15,194

225,930

56,132

33,592

71,326

259,522

47,061
3,997
(7,900)
(2,700)

(68,865)
3,264
11,028
1,410

Cash provided by (used in)
Operating activities
Annual surplus
Item not affecting cash
Amortization on tangible capital assets

Net change in non-cash working capital items
Decrease (increase) in accounts receivable
Decrease in inventory
Increase (decrease) in accounts payable and accrued liabilities
Increase (decrease) in deferred revenue

111,784

206,359

(129,342)
42,534

(198,384)
(42,304)

(86,808)

(240,688)

24,976

(34,329)

Cash - Beginning of year

133,886

168,215

Cash - End of year

158,862

133,886

Investing activities
Acquisition of tangible capital assets
Decrease (increase) in investments

Change in cash

(7)
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Prince Edward Island Museum and Heritage Foundation
Notes to Financial Statements
March 31, 2020

1

Nature of operations
The Prince Edward Island Museum and Heritage Foundation is a corporate body established under the
Museum Act whose purpose is to study, collect, preserve, interpret and protect the human and natural heritage
of Prince Edward Island for the use, benefit and enjoyment of the people of the Province.
The Museum is a registered charitable organization under the federal Income Tax Act and is exempt from
taxation.

2

Summary of significant accounting policies
Basis of accounting
The financial statements of the Foundation have been prepared in accordance with Canadian public sector
accounting standards established by the Public Sector Accounting Standards Board of CPA Canada. The
following is a summary of significant accounting policies used in the preparation of these statements.
Cash
Cash includes cash on hand and balances on deposit at banks.
Accounts receivable
Accounts receivable are recorded at cost less an appropriate provision when collection is in doubt.
Inventory
Inventory held for resale including books, magazines and gift store items are recorded at the lower of cost or
net realizable value. In the year of publishing, 10 percent of the original value is written down, if published in
the first half of the fiscal year. A write down in the first year is not applied if published in the second half of
the fiscal year. Books and magazines published by the Foundation are written down by 20 percent of their
original value annually to approximate net realizable value.
Investments
Equity investments quoted in an active market are recorded at fair value. All other investments are valued at
cost or amortized cost less any write-down associated with a loss in value that is other than a temporary
decline.
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities are recorded for all amounts due for work performed and goods or
services received during the year.

(8)
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Prince Edward Island Museum and Heritage Foundation
Notes to Financial Statements
March 31, 2020
Deferred revenue
Deferred revenue represents revenue received for subscriptions and books for which expenditures will occur
beyond the year end date. Revenue is recognized in the period in which the expenditures occur.
Tangible capital assets
Tangible capital assets are recorded at cost, which includes amounts that are directly related to the acquisition,
design, construction, development, improvement or betterment of the assets. Cost includes overhead directly
attributable to construction and development. Interest is not capitalized. Assets less than $5,000 are expensed
during the year.
The cost, less residual value, of the tangible capital assets, excluding land, is amortized on a straight-line basis
over their useful lives as follows:
Buildings
Equipment
Leaseholds
Vehicles

25 years
5 years
5 years
5 years

Amortization is calculated at one-half of the normal annual rate in the year of acquisition; no amortization is
recorded in the year of disposal.
Fully amortized capital assets are reported at a nominal value of $1.
Contributed capital assets are recorded at the estimated value at the time of donation. Estimate value is
determined using appraised value, if available, or tax assessed value.
The Foundation holds numerous works of art, artifacts, and historical treasures. The nature of these items
include: material culture from Mi'kmaq ethno-historic and pre-contact archaeological household articles;
18th, 19th and 20th century Canadian furniture; textiles which includes clothing, rugs, tools and marine
artifacts. The Foundation also holds a large body of archival documents which includes maps, paintings,
drawings, photographs and books. These works of art are reported at a nominal value of $1.
Tangible capital assets are written down when conditions indicate that they no longer contribute to the ability
to provide goods or services, or when the value of future economic benefits associated with the tangible
capital assets are less than their net book value.
Revenue recognition
Revenues are recognized in the period in which the transaction or event that gave rise to the revenue occurred,
so long as the transaction can be reasonably measured and collection is reasonably assured. All revenues are
recorded on an accrual basis, except when the accruals cannot be determined with a reasonable degree of
certainty or when their estimation is impracticable.
Government grants (revenues from non-exchange transactions) are recognized as revenues when the transfer
is authorized, any eligibility criteria are met and reasonable estimates of the amounts can be made.
(9)
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Prince Edward Island Museum and Heritage Foundation
Notes to Financial Statements
March 31, 2020
Expenses
Expenses are reported on an accrual basis in the period in which the transaction or event which gave rise to
the expense occurred.
Financial instruments
The Foundation's financial instruments consist of cash, accounts receivable, investments and accounts payable
and accrued liabilities.
All financial assets other than equity investments are recorded at cost or amortized cost, less any provisions.
Equity investments are valued at fair value and are categorized as level 1 for the purpose of describing the
basis of the inputs used to measure fair value. Level 1 reflects unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities. Unrealized gains and losses from changes in the fair value of equity investments
are recognized in the statement of remeasurement gains and losses. Upon settlement, the cumulative gain or
loss is recognized in the statement of operations.
Management estimates and judgments
The presentation of financial statements in conformity with Canadian public sector standards requires
management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amount of assets and liabilities and
disclosure of contingent liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues
and expenditures during the year. Actual results could differ from those estimates. The following areas
require significant estimates:
!

The amount recorded regarding the allowance for possible credit losses is subject to management's
assessment of the performance of the company's accounts receivable and investments;

!

The amount recorded for amortization of tangible capital assets on the statement of operations is subject
to management's assessment of the estimated useful life of the Foundation's tangible capital assets;

!

The recognized amounts of potential claims and liabilities depend on management's assessment of future
costs and the probability these events will occur; and

!

Since January 31, 2020, the outbreak of COVID-19 (coronavirus) has resulted in governments worldwide
enacting emergency measures to combat the spread of the virus. These measures have caused material
disruption to businesses globally resulting in an economic slowdown, and global equity markets have
experienced significant volatility and weakness. The duration and impact of the COVID-19 outbreak is
unknown at this time, as is the outcome of government and central bank interventions.
In management's estimation, these events have not had a material impact on the carrying value of assets
and liabilities reported in these financial statements as at March 31, 2020. The duration and impact of
the COVID-19 pandemic remains unclear at this time. Therefore, it is not possible to reliably estimate
the duration and severity of these consequences, as well as their impact on the financial position and
results of the Foundation for future periods.

(10)
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Prince Edward Island Museum and Heritage Foundation
Notes to Financial Statements
March 31, 2020

3

Accounts receivable
2020
$
General
Province of Prince Edward Island

4

2019
$

15,270
70,440

22,311
110,460

85,710

132,771

2020
$

2019
$

35,000
40,000
40,000
60,000
60,000
100,000
40,000
60,000
100,000
9,000
40,000
100,000
50,000
-

35,000
40,000
40,000
60,000
60,000
100,000
40,000
100,000
9,000
100,000
40,000
40,000
90,000

734,000

754,000

6

6

734,006

754,006

Investments

Investments at cost and amortized cost:
Guaranteed investment certificates:
National Bank of Canada, yield 2.31%, maturing May 21, 2020
General Bank of Canada, yield 2.35%, maturing September 25, 2020
Canadian Western Trust, yield 2.37%, maturing September 25, 2021
Natcan Trust Company, yield 1.97%, maturing December 8, 2021
National Bank of Canada, yield 1.97%, maturing December 8, 2021
Homequity Bank, yield 2.02%, maturing March 28, 2022
Equitable Bank, yield 2.64%, maturing September 26, 2022
Equitable Bank, yield 2.43%, maturing September 30, 2022
Home Trust Company, yield 3.3%, maturing March 28, 2023
ICICI Bank Canada, yield 3.25%, maturing March 28, 2023
ICICI Bank Canada, yield 2.63%, maturing June 6, 2023
Manulife Bank CDA, yield 3.35%, maturing January 23, 2024
General Bank of Canada, yield 2.58%, maturing January 29, 2025
Equitable Bank, yield 2.12%, matured during the year
B2B Bank, yield 2.1%, matured during the year
HSBC Bank, yield 2.55%, matured during the year

Souris Credit Union Shares
Total investments at cost and amortized cost (market value of
investments $742,856; 2019 - $761,650)

(11)
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Prince Edward Island Museum and Heritage Foundation
Notes to Financial Statements
March 31, 2020
Equity investments at fair value:
Mutual Funds
Russell Cdn. Equity Pool
Russell US Equity Pool
Russell Overseas Equity Pool
RBC Investment Savings

Common shares
Bank of Nova Scotia
National Bank of Canada
Nutrien Ltd.
Power Corp of Canada
Toronto-Dominion Bank

Foreign securities
Cisco Systems
International Business Machines Corp.
Microsoft Corp.
Novo Nordisk

Total equity investments at fair value

Total investments
5

38,796
64,184
18,002
10,000

50,307
69,828
20,975
40,000

130,982

181,110

28,735
14,141
9,622
15,282
21,539

35,570
15,681
14,096
21,033
26,107

89,319

112,487

15,183
17,165
27,731
9,992

19,810
20,708
39,340
16,403

70,071

96,261

290,372

389,858

1,024,378

1,143,864

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities
2020
$
General
Province of Prince Edward Island
Payroll remittance

6

2019
$

31,479
1,183
-

31,141
4,849
4,572

32,662

40,562

Deferred revenue
2020
$
Subscriptions

840
(12)

2019
$
3,540
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Prince Edward Island Museum and Heritage Foundation
Notes to Financial Statements
March 31, 2020

7

Inventory
2020
$
Publishing inventory - amortized cost
Gift shop/book inventory - at cost

8

2019
$

40,784
18,229

43,101
19,909

59,013

63,010

2020
$

2019
$

180,887
605,369
1,075,882

158,711
526,090
1,162,143

1,862,138

1,846,944

Accumulated surplus
Accumulated surplus consists of:

Unrestricted surplus
Equity in tangible capital assets
Endowment fund assets

Reconciliation of equity in tangible capital assets:
Equity in tangible capital assets - beginning of year
Capital grants received during the year
Amortization during the year

526,090
135,411
(56,132)

349,532
209,892
(33,334)

Equity in tangible capital assets - end of year

605,369

526,090

Equity in tangible capital assets represents the capital grants that have been received for the sole purpose of
financing the Foundation's tangible capital asset additions. Equity in tangible capital assets will be reduced
annually by the amortization expense associated with those tangible capital asset additions.

9

Endowment fund
The Endowment Fund is a component of Prince Edward Island Museum and Heritage Foundation. The
Endowment Fund is a special purpose fund established by agreement between the Province of Prince Edward
Island and the Foundation with the objective of preserving the historical heritage of the Province of Prince
Edward Island. The investments, administration, and control of expenses of the Fund are governed by three
Trustees:
!
!
!

The Minister of the Department of Finance of the Province of Prince Edward Island;
The Chief Justice of Prince Edward Island, and
The Chairman of the Board of Governors of the Foundation.

(13)
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Prince Edward Island Museum and Heritage Foundation
Notes to Financial Statements
March 31, 2020
The Trustees approve annually an allocation of the net income derived from the Fund investments to the
Foundation for operations or capital projects that meet the objectives of the Foundation. The capital portion of
the Fund may also be used for the benefit of the Foundation provided there is unanimous agreement by the
Trustees and consent by the Lieutenant Governor-in-Council, and provided the objectives of the Foundation
are met. Normally, only the income from investments is expended. Any unspecified bequests received over
$5,000 are added to the Endowment Fund assets. Endowment Fund assets are included in the assets of the
Foundation in the statement of financial position.
2020
$

2019
$

Endowment fund assets - Beginning of year
Amounts reclassified to the Statement of Operations
Revenue
Transfer to unrestricted surplus

1,162,143
(18,588)
5,327
(73,000)

1,119,995
(20,172)
62,320
-

Endowment fund assets - End of year

1,075,882

1,162,143

Transfers of $73,000 (2019 - nil) from endowment fund assets to unrestricted surplus were approved by the
board of directors.
Endowment fund assets are included in the following accounts on the statement of financial position:

Cash
Accounts receivable
Investments

(14)

2020
$

2019
$

42,654
8,850
1,024,378

10,632
7,647
1,143,864

1,075,882

1,162,143
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Prince Edward Island Museum and Heritage Foundation
Notes to Financial Statements
March 31, 2020
10 Grants - Province of Prince of Edward Island
2020
$
Operating grants:
Department of Education, Early Learning and Culture - operating
grant
Prince Edward Island Employment Development Agency
Less: Grants received - Digitization project equipment

Capital grants:
Department of Education, Early Learning and Culture - capital grant
Add: Grants received - Digitization project equipment

2019
$

1,382,991
4,842
-

1,236,959
11,210
(28,009)

1,387,833

1,220,160

137,009
-

181,883
28,009

137,009

209,892

Included in the $1,382,991 (2019 - $1,236,959) operating grant reported above is $184,193 (2019 - $69,963)
for Provincial projects. Revenues and expenses for these projects are detailed as follows:
2020
Net
$

Revenue
$

Expenses
$

159,741
24,452

159,616
26,491

125
(2,039)

184,193

186,107

(1,914)

Revenue
$

2020
Expenses
$

Revenue
$

2019
Expenses
$

54,790

76,786

48,706

67,934

Project
Digitization - Collections
Edukits - Collections

11 Government of Canada

Project
Canadian Museum Association
Young Canada Works

(15)
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Prince Edward Island Museum and Heritage Foundation
Notes to Financial Statements
March 31, 2020

12 Related party transactions
The Foundation is a Provincial Government agency and as such is considered related to all entities in the
government reporting entity.
Accounts receivable at year end include $70,440 (2019 - $110,460) from the Province of Prince Edward
Island. Accounts payable at year end include $1,883 (2019 - $4,849) to the Province of Prince Edward Island.
Certain costs and assets provided by the Province of Prince Edward Island such as museum sites, operating
and administrative costs, insurance and certain employee wages and benefit costs are assumed by the Province
and and are not reflected in the Foundation's financial statements.
Included in operating grants from the Province of Prince Edward Island were $1,140,377 (2019 - $1,015,151)
for employee wages and benefits, $244,943 (2019 - $219,907) for other operating grants, and $2,513 (2019 $13,111) for office expenses. Capital grants received from the Province of Prince Edward Island during the
year total $137,009 (2019 - $209,892). The Foundation has also entered into a lease agreement with Finance
PEI, payments made to Finance PEI were $22,536 (2019 - $27,901) (see note 15).
Transactions with the Province of Prince Edward Island are recorded at amounts as determined by the
Province.
The Foundation operates various properties owned by the Province of Prince Edward Island. The Foundation
did not incur any expenses for capital repairs on these properties.

13 Employee future benefits
Sick leave
Classified employees are credited 1.25 (excluded employees - 1.5) days per month for use as paid absence in
the year, due to illness or injury. Under existing employment agreements employees are allowed to
accumulate unused sick day credits each year, up to the allowable maximum. Accumulated credits may be
used in future years to the extent that the employee's illness or injury exceeds the current years allocation.
Accumulated sick days for sick leave compensation cease on termination of employment and there is no
obligation to settle these amounts with cash payments. A liability has not been calculated and no accrual has
been recorded in these financial statements. The related liability is recorded by the Province of Prince Edward
Island. Salary expense is included in these financial statements.

(16)
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Prince Edward Island Museum and Heritage Foundation
Notes to Financial Statements
March 31, 2020
Pension
Permanent employees of the Foundation participate in the Province of Prince Edward Island's Civil Service
Superannuation Plan (the Plan) which is a multi-employer contributory defined benefit pension plan. The Plan
provides a pension on retirement based on two percent of the average salary for the highest three years times
the number of years of pensionable service. The Plan is administered by the Province of Prince Edward Island.
The Foundation's annual portion of contributions to the Plan was $49,438 (2019 - $46,302) and are paid by
the Province of Prince Edward Island and recognized on the financial statements of the Province of Prince
Edward Island. Any unfunded liability is the responsibility of the Province of Prince Edward Island and
therefore no liability has been recognized in these financial statements.
Retirement allowance
The Foundation provides a retirement allowance to its permanent employees. The amount paid to eligible
employees at retirement is based on the number of years of service and the rate of pay in effect at the
retirement date. The benefit costs and liabilities related to the allowance are assumed by the Province of
Prince Edward Island and are not included in these financial statements.

14 Financial risk management objectives and policies
Prince Edward Island Museum and Heritage Foundation’s principal business activities result in a statement of
financial position that consists primarily of financial instruments. The principal financial risks that arise from
transacting financial instruments include credit, liquidity, market and operational risk. Authority for all risktaking activities rests with the Board of Directors (Board), which approves risk management policies,
delegates’ limits and regularly reviews management’s risk assessments and compliance with approved
policies. Qualified professionals throughout Prince Edward Island Museum and Heritage Foundation manage
these risks through comprehensive and integrated control processes and models, including regular review and
assessment of risk measurement and reporting processes.
(a) Credit risk
Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Foundation if a customer or counterparty of a financial
instrument fails to meet its contractual obligations. Credit risk arises primarily from the Foundation's
accounts receivable and investments.
The Foundation's maximum exposure to credit risk at the statement of financial position date in relation
to each class of recognized financial assets is the carrying amount of those assets indicated in the
statement of financial position. The maximum credit exposure does not take into account the value of any
collateral or other security held, in the event other entities/parties fail to perform their obligations under
the financial instruments in question.

(17)
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Prince Edward Island Museum and Heritage Foundation
Notes to Financial Statements
March 31, 2020
The Foundation's maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date was:

Cash
Accounts receivable
Investments

2020
$

2019
$

158,862
85,710
1,024,378

133,886
132,771
1,143,864

1,268,950

1,410,521

(b) Liquidity risk
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Foundation may not be able to meet its financial obligations as they
come due. Specifically, the Foundation needs to ensure it has adequate resources to repay all accounts
payable and accrued liabilities as they come due. The Foundation's approach to manage liquidity risk is
to closely monitor its cash flows and forecast the expected receipts and obligations.
The Foundation's financial liabilities of $33,502 are expected to be repaid within one year.
(c) Market risk
Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices, such as interest rates and equity prices will affect
the Foundation’s income or the value of its holdings in financial instruments. The objective of market
risk management is to manage and control market risk exposures within acceptable parameters, while
optimizing the return on risk.
The Foundation does not hold or operate in foreign currency and thus market risk is derived from interest
rate and price risk. The Foundation is exposed to interest rate and price risk because of the investments
held by the Foundation. The Foundation is not exposed to commodity price risk. To manage its price risk
arising from marketable securities, the company diversifies its portfolio.
(d) Operational risk
Operational risk is the risk of direct or indirect loss arising from a wide variety of causes associated with
the Foundation’s processes, personnel, technology and infrastructure, and from external factors other
than credit, market and liquidity risks such as those arising from legal and regulatory requirements and
generally accepted standards of corporate behaviour.
The Foundation’s objective is to manage operational risk so as to balance the avoidance of financial
losses and damage to the Foundation’s reputation with overall cost effectiveness and to avoid control
procedures that restrict initiative and creativity. The primary responsibility for the development and
implementation of controls to address operational risk is assigned to senior management.

(18)
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Prince Edward Island Museum and Heritage Foundation
Notes to Financial Statements
March 31, 2020

15 Lease commitments
The Foundation has entered into a five-year lease agreement to lease storage space at West Royalty Industrial
Park commencing July 1, 2016. The lease expires on June 30, 2021. Lease payments in the next two years are
as follows:
$
Year ending March 31, 2021
2022

28,820
7,205

16 Budgeted figures
Budgeted figures have been provided for comparative purposes and were derived from estimates approved by
the board of governors.

(19)

Land
Buildings
Equipment
Leaseholds
Vehicles

Land
Buildings
Equipment
Leaseholds
Vehicles

198,384

784,635

Additions
$

Beginning
$
9,000
28,009
161,375
-

129,342

983,019

21,608
715,838
1
10,220
36,968

118,914
10,428
-

Additions
$

21,608
724,838
28,010
171,595
36,968

Beginning
$

As at and for the year ended March 31, 2020

Schedule of Tangible Capital Assets

(20)

983,019

21,608
724,838
28,010
171,595
36,968

Ending
$

Cost

1,112,361

21,608
843,752
28,010
182,023
36,968

Ending
$

Cost

Prince Edward Island Museum and Heritage Foundation

417,268

370,080
10,220
36,968

Beginning
$

450,860

384,733
2,801
26,358
36,968

Beginning
$

506,992

401,945
8,403
59,676
36,968

Ending
$

33,592

14,653
2,801
16,138
-

Amortization
$

450,860

384,733
2,801
26,358
36,968

Ending
$

Accumulated amortization

56,132

17,212
5,602
33,318
-

Amortization
$

Accumulated amortization

532,159

21,608
340,105
25,209
145,237
-

Net book
value
$

2019

605,369

21,608
441,807
19,607
122,347
-

Net book
value
$

2020

Schedule
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P.E.I. Pension Plan for Members of the Legislative Assembly

Audited Financial Statements for P.E.I. Pension Plan for Members of the Legislative
Assembly for the year ended December 31, 2019 were not provided to the Office of the
Comptroller as required by Section 70 (4) of the Financial Administration Act.
Unaudited, draft financial statements were used in the preparation of the Public
Accounts.






38%/,&$&&2817692/80(,,,

38%/,&$&&2817692/80(,,,







P.E.I. Public Trustee

Audited Financial Statements for P.E.I. Public Trustee for the year ended March 31,
2020 were not provided to the Office of the Comptroller as required by Section 70 (4) of
the Financial Administration Act. Unaudited, draft financial statements were used in the
preparation of the Public Accounts.
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Management’s Responsibility For Financial Reporting
March 31, 2020
The financial statements have been prepared by management in accordance with Canadian
public sector accounting standards, and the integrity and objectivity of these statements are
management’s responsibility. Management is also responsible for all of the notes to the
financial statements and schedules, and for ensuring that this information is consistent, where
appropriate, with the information contained in the financial statements. A summary of the
significant accounting policies are described in Note 2 to the financial statements.
Management is also responsible for implementing and maintaining a system of internal controls
to provide reasonable assurance that reliable financial information is produced. The internal
controls are designed to provide reasonable assurance that assets are safeguarded,
transactions are properly authorized and recorded in compliance with legislative and regulatory
requirements, and reliable financial information is available on a timely basis for preparation of
the financial statements.
The Board of Directors is responsible for ensuring that management fulfils its responsibilities for
financial reporting and internal control, and exercises these responsibilities through the Board.
The Board reviews internal financial statements on a quarterly basis and external audited
financial statements yearly. The Board also discusses any significant financial reporting or
internal control matters prior to their approval of the financial statements.
The external auditors, Grant Thornton LLP, conduct an independent examination, in
accordance with Canadian auditing standards, and express their opinion on the financial
statements. The external auditors have full and free access to financial management of the
Public Schools Branch and meet when required. The accompanying Auditor’s Report outlines
their responsibilities, the scope of their examination and their opinion on the financial
statements.
On behalf of the Public Schools Branch

Director of Corporate Services

Coordinator of Corporate Services
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Independent auditors’ report

To the Board of Directors
of the Public Schools Branch
Opinion
We have audited the financial statements of the Public Schools Branch (“the Entity”), which comprise
the statement of financial position as at March 31, 2020, and the statements of operations, change in
net debt and cash flow for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a
summary of significant accounting policies.
In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly in all material respects, the
financial position of the Public Schools Branch as at March 31, 2020, and its results of operations, its
changes in its net debt, and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Canadian public
sector accounting standards.

Basis for Opinion
We conducted our audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the
Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Entity in
accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in
Canada, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial
Statements
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with Canadian public sector accounting standards, and for such internal control as
management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Entity’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to a going concern and using
the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Entity or to
cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.
Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Entity’s financial reporting process.
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that
an audit conducted in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards will always
detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence
the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.
As part of an audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:
x

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error,
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override
of internal control.

x

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Entity's internal control.

x

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

x

Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Entity's ability to continue as a going concern.
If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's
report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate,
to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of
our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Entity to cease to
continue as a going concern.

x

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.
Summerside, Prince Edward Island
July 24, 2020

Chartered Professional Accountants
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Public Schools Branch
Statements of operations and changes in net financial
assets
Year Ended March 31
Revenue
Transfers from the Department
of Education
Salaries and benefits
Maintenance and operation
Transportation
Instructional supplies
Administration
Renovations and equipment
Special program funding and
recoveries
Other revenue (Note 3)

2020

2019
%

%

$ 212,244,814
11,892,421
3,878,103
2,305,997
1,576,500
1,094,798

90.8
5.1
1.6
1.0
0.7
0.5

$ 201,109,875
12,111,300
3,151,900
2,288,698
1,751,047
1,177,600

90.4
5.4
1.4
1.1
0.8
0.5

272,249
428,136

0.1
0.2

385,816
474,217

0.2
0.2

233,693,018

100.0

222,450,453

100.0

211,945,529
12,942,742
4,197,494
2,376,460
1,464,242
765,460

90.7
5.6
1.8
1.0
0.6
0.3

200,379,712
13,152,143
4,053,143
2,291,670
1,548,206
1,024,021

90.0
5.9
1.8
1.1
0.7
0.5

233,691,927

100.0

222,448,895

100.0

Expenses (Note 4)
Page
Salaries and benefits
13
Maintenance and operation 14
Transportation
15
Instructional
16
Administration
17
Renovations and equipment 18

Excess revenues (expenses)

$

1,091

$

1,558

Net financial assets,
beginning of period

$

3,850

$

2,292

Excess revenues (expenses)
Net financial assets, end of period

1,091
$

4,941

1,558
$

3,850
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Public Schools Branch
Statement of financial position
March 31

2020

Financial assets
Cash
Receivables
Department of Education
Trade and other
Department of Education - post-employment benefits
Department of Education - deferred salary plan
Restricted cash
Trust funds (Note 5)

$

Financial liabilities
Payables and accruals
General
Salaries and benefits
Department of Education
Deferred revenue (Note 6)
Post-employment benefits (Note 7)
Deferred salary program
Deferred revenue
Trust funds (Note 5)

Net assets

$

5,239,193

2019
$

4,985,433

8,389,112
1,234,111
52,257,211
1,422,207
100,000
266,020

8,919,241
955,668
48,946,793
1,197,076
100,000
263,633

68,907,854

65,367,844

2,522,211
6,356,788
1,913,168
4,065,308
52,257,211
1,422,207
100,000
266,020

3,449,587
7,541,603
997,111
2,868,191
48,946,793
1,197,076
100,000
263,633

68,902,913

65,363,994

4,941

$

3,850

Contingency (Note 9)
On behalf of the Board

Chairperson

Trustee
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Public Schools Branch
Statement of cash flows
Year Ended March 31

2020

2019

(Decrease) increase in cash and cash equivalents
Operating activities
Excess expenses
Change in non-cash working capital:
Receivables
Payables
Deferred revenue
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents

$

1,091

(3,283,863)
2,341,802
1,197,117

$

1,558

(2,628,064)
3,030,403
465,440

256,147

869,337

5,349,066

4,479,729

$ 5,605,213

$ 5,349,066

$ 5,239,193
366,020

$ 4,985,433
363,633

$ 5,605,213

$ 5,349,066

Cash and cash equivalents,
Beginning of period
End of period

Components of cash and cash equivalents:
Unrestricted cash and cash equivalents
Restricted cash and cash equivalents
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Public Schools Branch
Notes to the financial statements
March 31, 2020
1.

Nature of operations

The Branch has the responsibility to provide primary and secondary education requirements
for English speaking students in Prince Edward Island. The Entity is funded by the
Department of Education, Early Learning and Culture of Prince Edward Island (the
Department).

2.

Summary of significant accounting policies

Basis of accounting
The Entity prepares its financial statements in accordance with Canadian Public Sector
Accounting Standards.
Revenue recognition
The Entity follows the deferral method of accounting for grants for special projects. Grants
restricted for special projects are recognized as revenue in the year in which the related
expenses are incurred. The unexpended portion of grants received for specific purchases is
deferred and used for the related future purchases. Unrestricted amounts are recognized as
revenue when received or receivable if the amount to be received can be reasonably
estimated and collection is reasonably assured.
Government transfers are recognized as revenues when the transfer is authorized and any
eligibility criteria are met. To the extent that transfer stipulations give rise to an obligation that
meets the definition of a liability, transfers are recognized as deferred revenue.
Retirement allowances
The Public Schools Branch records an annual expense based on the change in the
actuarially determined obligation for retirement allowance benefits, net of payments during
the year. Funds to settle the obligation which are a liability of the Entity will be reimbursed by
the Department at the time of payment. Therefore, a receivable from the Department is
recorded for the entire retirement allowance amount.
Retirement allowances are provided to employees on death or retirement if the employee has
10 years of continuous service (5 years for excluded member). The retirement allowance is
for so many days per year of service with maximums which vary based on union affiliation.
Vacation pay
Vacation entitlements are expensed as earned.
Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand and balances with banks, net of bank
overdraft.
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Public Schools Branch
Notes to the financial statements
March 31, 2020
2.

Summary of significant accounting policies (cont’d)

Pension plans
Instructional employees of the Entity are members of the Teacher Superannuation Pension
Plan of the Province of Prince Edward Island. The expense of the Entity is limited to current
year contributions as any shortfall in funding of the pension plan is the responsibility of the
Province of Prince Edward Island. Amounts paid to this plan during the year were
$12,109,771 (2019 - $11,327,360).
Non-instructional employees are members of the Prince Edward Island Education Sector
Pension Plan with both defined benefit/defined contribution components. The expense of the
Entity is limited to a matching contribution equal to the employee’s portion.
Certain non-instructional employees of the Entity are members of the Civil Service
Superannuation Pension Plan of the Province of Prince Edward Island. The expense of the
Entity is limited to current year contributions as any shortfall in funding of the pension plan is
the responsibility of the Province of Prince Edward Island. Amounts paid to this plan during
the year were $2,626,277 (2019 - $2,536,904)
Workers’ compensation claims
The Public Schools Branch is a registered employer with the Worker’s Compensation Entity
of Prince Edward Island for instructional and non-instructional staff. The Entity records an
annual expense based on payroll assessments in accordance with the Workers’
Compensation Act.
Deferred salary plan
Teachers employed with the Public Schools Branch can participate in a program that allows
them to defer a portion of their annual salary and take a paid leave of absence. The deferral
results in a liability to the teachers, which is satisfied during the paid leave of absence. Funds
to settle the obligation, which are a liability of the Board, will be reimbursed by the
Department, and therefore there is an offsetting receivable due from the Department.
Measurement uncertainty and the use of estimates
Canadian public sector accounting standards require management to make estimates
and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of
contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements, and the reported
amounts of revenue and expenses during the year.
Measurement uncertainty that may be material to these financial statements exists for the
liability for employee future benefits of $52,257,211 (2019 - $48,946,793) because actual
experience may differ significantly from actuarial assumptions.
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Public Schools Branch
Notes to the financial statements
March 31, 2020
2.

Summary of significant accounting policies (cont’d)

These estimates and assumptions are reviewed periodically and, as adjustments become
necessary, they are reported in earnings in the periods in which they become known. While
best estimates are used for reporting items to subject to measurement uncertainty, it is
reasonably possible that changes in future conditions, occurring within one fiscal year, could
require material changes in the amounts recognized or disclosed.

3.

Other revenue

Recoverable salaries
Miscellaneous
Rentals
School overage reimbursements

4.

2020

2019

$

258,801
45,560
52,898
70,877

$

309,198
38,999
63,150
62,870

$

428,136

$

474,217

Expenses by department

The following is a summary of the expenses reported on the statement of operations by
department excluding employee benefits:

Instructional
Administration
Transportation
Maintenance and operations
Employee benefits

5.

2020

2019

$ 178,564,633
1,464,242
4,197,494
13,708,203
35,757,355

$ 147,415,104
7,964,822
10,885,102
22,900,043
33,283,824

$ 233,691,927

$ 222,448,895

Trust funds

Trust funds are comprised of contributions from various sources that are administered by the
Entity. The interest that is earned on the contributions may be disbursed for specified
educational purposes. Investments are recorded at cost and are comprised of GIC’s. Cost
approximates fair market value.
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Public Schools Branch
Notes to the financial statements
March 31, 2020
6.

Deferred revenue

Funds designated for:
Capital funding
Special program funding
Staff professional development
Maintenance work
Student leadership and school development

7.

2020

2019

$

525,000
1,178,419
11,178
2,259,618
91,093

$

175,000
2,029,092
78,002
574,919
11,178

$

4,065,308

$

2,868,191

Post-employment benefits

An analysis of the components of, and changes in, post-employment benefits liabilities is as
follows:
2020
Retirement allowance
Balance, April 1, 2019 (2019 - April 1, 2018)
Amortization of actuarial gain
Current service cost
Interest accrued
Less: payments made
Balance, March 31, 2020 (2019 – March 31, 2019)
Vacation pay

Unamortized actuarial adjustment

$ 48,152,112

2019

$

45,163,191

840,032
3,501,343
1,492,999
(2,713,546)

678,925
3,149,047
1,524,011
(2,363,062)

51,272,940

48,152,112

984,271

794,681

52,257,211

48,946,793

$ (2,031,820)

$

(1,314,686)
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Public Schools Branch
Notes to the financial statements
March 31, 2020
7.

Post-employment benefits (cont’d)

The retirement allowance balances are based on an independent actuarial valuation dated
April 1, 2017, provided to the Pension and Benefits Division of the Province of Prince Edward
Island Civil Service Commission. The report was subsequently amended for a change in the
discount rate to be used in the valuation of the liability the amendment was dated April 1,
2020. The Province of Prince Edward Island projects the total liability in the years between
the tri-annual actuarial valuations. The amendment dated April 1, 2020 is reflected in the
2020 projection prepared by the Province of Prince Edward Island.
The economic assumptions used in determining the actuarial value of accrued retirement
allowances were developed by reference to expected long term market conditions. Significant
actuarial assumptions used in the valuations and projections are:
Discount rate
Expected inflation rate
Expected average remaining service life

8.

2.99% per annum
2.25% per annum
13 years

Grant allocations figures

The Entity’s activities are funded by the Department. The annual grant allocation from the
Department provides details as to the funding allocations for each operational area with the
exception of salaries. The grant for salaries is for an approved number of full time employees
for the Entity. Funding for the approved number of positions is provided by The Department
but the actual dollar value of the approved positions is not included in the identified grant.
Since a dollar value was not provided for salaries, the grant associated with this expenditure
has been excluded from the financial statements, the following figures are the operational
budget allocations provided by the Department compared to the actual results for 2020:
Grant
allocation
by category
March 31,
2020
Administration
Renovations and equipment
Program
Maintenance and operations
Transportation
Professional development

$

1,576,500
1,094,800
2,306,000
12,301,600
3,210,100
88,200

Actual
expenditures
by category
March 31,
2020
$

1,464,242
765,460
2,376,460
12,942,743
4,197,494
-
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Public Schools Branch
Notes to the financial statements
March 31, 2020
9.

Contingency

The Branch has elected to self-insure itself related to collision coverage. During the year, no
events were reported in accordance with the policies of the collision contingency fund.
The Branch has received funding from the Department to fund expenditures which qualify for
the collision contingency fund. These funds are being deferred on the balance sheet and
unspent funds are reported as restricted cash.

10.

COVID 19

Since January 31, 2020, the spread of COVID-19 has severely impacted many local economies
around the globe. In many countries, including Canada, businesses and organizations are
being forced to cease or limit operations for long or indefinite periods of time. Measures taken
to contain the spread of the virus, including travel bans, quarantines, social distancing, and
closures of non-essential services have triggered significant disruptions to businesses and
organizations worldwide, resulting in an economic slowdown. The duration and impact of the
COVID-19 pandemic remains unclear at this time.
The outbreak of COVID-19 and related global responses have caused material disruptions to
organizations around the world, leading to an economic slowdown. The Branch’s schools have
been closed since March of 2020. The Branch and the Department of Education, Early
Learning and Culture are currently forecasting and planning to reopen schools in September of
2020. Any unanticipated costs related to Covid-19 will be closely monitored as a way to assess
if additional funding for the Branch is required.
The duration and impact of theCOVID-19 pandemic, as well as the effectiveness of government
and central bank responses, remains unclear at this time. It is not possible to reliably estimate
the duration and severity of these consequences, as well as their impact on the financial impact
on the financial position and results of the Branch for future periods.
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Public Schools Branch
Schedule of salaries and benefits expenses
Year Ended March 31
Branch administration support
Branch management
Instructional
Maintenance and operation
School administration support
Educational assistants and youth service workers
Transportation
Benefits

2020
$

1,663,898
1,630,067
134,840,456
9,030,951
3,506,853
18,410,086
7,105,863
29,922,981

2019
$

1,562,769
1,536,175
129,247,137
8,723,879
3,317,674
15,876,296
6,831,959
27,931,841

206,111,155

195,027,730

5,834,374

5,351,982

$ 211,945,529

$ 200,379,712

Retirement allowance

Note:
Branch administration support includes board office, clerical and secretarial staff.
Branch management includes director of Public Schools Branch; directors and leaders of
student services, human resources, corporate services; coordinators for financial services,
property services and transportation and property and transportation management and
supervisors.
Instructional salaries include consultants, principals, vice-principals, department heads, and
teachers.
Maintenance and operations salaries include building, janitorial and maintenance staff.
School administration support includes school secretarial staff.
Transportation salaries include bus driver staff.
Benefits include the employer’s share of Canada pension and employment insurance, group
insurance, workers’ compensation premiums, pension and teacher superannuation
premiums.
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Public Schools Branch
Schedule of maintenance and operation expenses
Year Ended March 31
Building repairs
Electricity
Fire and safety
Fuel - heating
Ground maintenance
Insurance
Miscellaneous
Property taxes
Rentals
Service contracts and professional services
Service vehicles
Sewer and water
Snow removal
Supplies
Travel
Waste disposal

2020
$

1,679,513
3,098,218
32,164
4,654,708
146,453
617,824
34,463
35,600
244,841
235,579
107,514
331,604
821,004
498,391
12,450
392,416

$ 12,942,742

2019
$

1,641,174
3,156,331
52,576
4,894,979
195,650
571,046
49,385
35,872
214,327
173,219
109,614
320,723
844,098
488,832
13,332
390,985

$ 13,152,143
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Public Schools Branch
Schedule of transportation expenses
Year Ended March 31
Bus parts and repairs
Communications
Contracted services
Extra-curricular transportation
Fuel
Insurance
Professional services
Snow removal
Supplies
Travel

2020

2019

$

2,100,835
71,638
113,602
(142)
1,615,837
200,965
5,025
72,073
7,719
9,942

$

1,937,870
35,862
111,181
(1,977)
1,672,104
188,663
4,960
91,300
2,301
10,879

$

4,197,494

$

4,053,143
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Public Schools Branch
Schedule of instructional expenses
Year Ended March 31
Academic supplies
Art
Computer literacy
Curriculum programs
Duplicating supplies
English and language arts
French
Guidance and resource
Home economics and family living
Industrial arts
Library and resource centres
Mathematics
Music
Physical education
Science
Student services
Vocational education

2020

2019

$

509,069
33,477
504
562,732
442,775
11,925
13,592
1,502
48,413
32,068
156,788
11,345
81,090
91,098
47,935
117,020
215,127

$

458,090
31,614
2,540
535,432
410,502
7,911
12,872
931
54,120
33,854
148,499
11,620
124,903
115,802
46,613
102,725
193,642

$

2,376,460

$

2,291,670
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Public Schools Branch
Schedule of administration expenses
Year Ended March 31
Advertising
Courier services
Equal chances for learning
Graduation
Insurance
Miscellaneous
Office supplies
Postal services
Professional development
Professional services
Public, staff and student relations
Telephone
Travel
Trustees remuneration
Trustees travel and other

2020

2019

$

8,215
28,372
10,054
27,778
410,301
36,389
76,442
21,945
85,523
54,154
84,248
297,907
309,731
11,744
1,439

$

8,358
30,063
17,419
30,020
383,514
27,038
66,239
25,815
60,347
236,787
83,343
267,995
290,462
16,745
4,061

$

1,464,242

$

1,548,206
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Public Schools Branch
Schedule of renovations and equipment expenses
Year Ended March 31
Audio-visual equipment
Classroom furniture and equipment
Computer equipment
Maintenance equipment
Miscellaneous equipment
Musical instruments
Office furniture and equipment
Playground

2020

2019

$

100,852
143,506
241,576
72,474
114,419
21,520
29,244
41,869

$

139,391
173,949
291,202
61,672
249,302
9,240
69,994
29,271

$

765,460

$

1,024,021
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Supreme Court of Prince Edward Island Trust Accounts

Audited Financial Statements for Supreme Court of Prince Edward Island Trust
Accounts for the year ended March 31, 2020 were not provided to the Office of the
Comptroller as required by Section 70 (4) of the Financial Administration Act.
Unaudited, draft financial statements were used in the preparation of the Public
Accounts.
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Financial Statements
March 31, 2020
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Management's Report
The integrity, relevance and comparability of the data in the accompanying financial statements are the
responsibility of management.
The financial statements are prepared by management in accordance with Canadian public sector accounting
standards established by the Public Sector Accounting Board of the Chartered Professional Accountants of
Canada. A summary of the significant accounting policies is disclosed in note 2 to the financial statements.
The preparation of financial statements necessarily involves the use of estimates based on management's
judgment, particularly when transactions affecting the current period cannot be finalized with a certainty until
future periods.
To meet its responsibility, management maintains a system of internal controls designed to provide reasonable
assurance that assets are safeguarded, transactions are properly authorized and recorded in compliance with
legislative and regulatory requirements, and reliable financial information is available on a timely basis for
preparation of the financial statements. These systems are monitored and evaluated by management.
Management is accountable to the Board of Directors of Tourism PEI on matters of financial reporting and
internal controls. Management provides the Board with externally audited financial statements annually. The
Board also discusses any significant financial reporting or internal control matters prior to their approval of
the financial statements.
The financial statements have been audited by ArsenaultBestCameronEllis, independent external auditors
appointed by the Board. The accompanying Independent Auditor's Report outlines their responsibilities, the
scope of their examination and their opinion on the financial statements.
On behalf of Tourism PEI
___________________________________
Kent MacDonald
Chief Executive Officer
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July 9, 2020
Independent Auditor's Report
To the Minister of Economic Growth, Tourism and Culture
Opinion
We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Tourism PEI, which comprise the statement
of financial position as at March 31, 2020, and the statements of operations, changes in net debt and cash
flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant
accounting policies.
In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of Tourism PEI as at March 31, 2020, and the results of its operations and its cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with Canadian public sector accounting standards.
Basis for Opinion
We conducted our audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit
of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of Tourism PEI in accordance with
the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in Canada, and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial Statements
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in
accordance with Canadian public sector accounting standards, and for such internal control as
management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing Tourism PEI’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate Tourism PEI or to cease
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.
Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing Tourism PEI’s financial reporting process.
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements. As part of an audit in accordance with
Canadian generally accepted auditing standards, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

(1)
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!

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as
fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

!

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of Tourism PEI’s internal control.

!

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

!

Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on Tourism PEI's ability to continue as a going concern. If
we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to
modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause Tourism PEI to cease to continue
as a going concern.

!

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in
a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal
control that we identify during our audit.

Chartered Professional Accountants

(2)
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Tourism PEI
Statement of Financial Position
As at March 31, 2020
2020
$

2019
$

Assets
Financial assets
Cash
Accounts receivable (notes 3 and 5)
Due from Province of Prince Edward Island

1,615,377
687,718
1,137,566

2,509,141
786,143
18,179

3,440,661

3,313,463

3,391,630
178,666

3,233,995
190,290

3,570,296

3,424,285

Liabilities
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities (note 5)
Deferred revenue (note 4)

Net debt

(129,635)

(110,822)

118,200
11,435

98,042
12,780

129,635

110,822

-

-

Non-financial assets
Inventory
Prepaid expenses

Accumulated surplus
Commitments (note 6)

Approved by the Corporation
_____________________________ Minister
(3)
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Tourism PEI
Statement of Operations
For the year ended March 31, 2020
2020

2020

2019

Budget
(unaudited)
$

Actual
$

Actual
$

Revenue
Grants from Province of Prince Edward Island
Marketing
Visitor Services
Brookvale Ski Park
Park Operations
Golf Operations
Project funding
Book PEI fees

14,658,000
615,000
90,000
450,000
1,285,500
4,070,000
35,000

15,843,906
141,690
14,296
583,175
1,381,127
4,100,001
187,700
1,450

13,980,123
558,802
87,317
502,964
1,338,143
4,093,900
33,100

21,203,500

22,253,345

20,594,349

467,700
366,300
3,227,900
946,000
4,290,700
3,945,900
223,700
138,900
881,900
885,100
4,269,900
316,100
336,700
397,600
509,100

513,052
390,082
3,324,696
1,105,930
4,374,734
4,609,572
219,546
140,410
684,316
908,602
4,428,418
379,703
285,584
362,716
525,984

452,417
355,404
3,103,166
1,022,640
4,381,581
3,857,518
210,521
139,488
789,877
872,550
3,833,226
280,601
307,733
373,591
614,036

21,203,500

22,253,345

20,594,349

-

-

-

Expenses (Schedule)
Finance and Administration
Parks Administration
Park Operations
Brookvale
Golf Operations
Strategy and Evaluation
Regulation and Compliance
French Services
Digital Marketing
Visitor Services
Advertising and Public Relations
Media Relations/Editorial
Fulfillment
Publications
Travel/Trade Sales

Operating surplus

(4)
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Tourism PEI
Statement of Changes in Net Debt
For the year ended March 31, 2020

Operating surplus
Acquisition of inventory
Acquisition of prepaid expenses
Consumption of inventory
Use of prepaid expenses

2020
$

2019
$

-

-

(118,200)
(11,435)
98,042
12,780

(98,042)
(12,780)
135,563
11,230

(18,813)

35,971

(18,813)

35,971

Net debt - Beginning of year

(110,822)

(146,793)

Net debt - End of year

(129,635)

(110,822)

Decrease (increase) in net debt

(5)
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Tourism PEI
Statement of Cash Flows
For the year ended March 31, 2020
2020
$

2019
$

-

-

Cash provided by (used in)
Operating activities
Operating surplus
Net change in non-cash working capital items
Decrease in accounts receivable
Increase in due from the Province of Prince Edward Island
Decrease (increase) in inventory
Decrease (increase) in prepaid expenses
Increase in accounts payable and accrued liabilities
Increase (decrease) in deferred revenue

Net change in cash

98,425
(1,119,387)
(20,158)
1,345
157,635
(11,624)
(893,764)

123,153
(10,808)
37,521
(1,550)
531,082
49,148
728,546

Cash - Beginning of year

2,509,141

1,780,595

Cash - End of year

1,615,377

2,509,141

(6)
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Tourism PEI
Notes to Financial Statements
March 31, 2020

1

Corporate status
Tourism PEI became a Crown corporation effective March 31, 1999 under the Tourism PEI Act passed by the
Government of Prince Edward Island on June 8, 1999. The objectives of Tourism PEI are to carry out tourism
related activities of the Province of Prince Edward Island.
The financial results of the corporation are included in the public accounts of the Province of Prince Edward
Island.

2

Summary of significant accounting policies
The financial statements of the corporation have been prepared in accordance with Canadian public sector
accounting standards established by the Public Sector Accounting Board of CPA Canada. The following is a
summary of significant accounting policies used in the preparation of these statements.
Financial instruments
The Corporation's financial instruments consists of cash, accounts receivable, accounts payable and accrued
liabilities and due from the Province of Prince Edward Island.
All financial assets and financial liabilities are initially recognized at fair value and subsequently measured at
cost or amortized cost
Cash
Cash consists of cash on hand and bank balances.
Due from the Province of Prince Edward Island
Current operations:
Excess revenue (expense) for the year for Tourism PEI is recorded as a reduction (increase) in Grants from
Province of Prince Edward Island and as an amount due from the Province of Prince Edward Island.
Inventory
Inventory is valued at the lower of cost, determined using the average cost method, and market. Market is
defined as net realizable value.
Revenue recognition and government assistance
Grants from the Province of Prince Edward Island are recorded as revenue when authorized. Revenue from
marketing activities is recorded when billed and revenue from Brookvale ski park, park operations, visitor
services and Book PEI fees is recorded when earned as services are provided.

(7)
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Tourism PEI
Notes to Financial Statements
March 31, 2020
Revenue from golf operation is recognized when goods or services are delivered to the customer and ultimate
collection is reasonably assured.
Deferred revenue is recorded when fees have been collected but the service has not been delivered.
Expenses
Expenses are recorded in the period in which the related goods and services are consumed except for certain
marketing related expenditures recorded in marketing expenses, that are recorded in the period the goods and
services are acquired and a liability incurred. In addition, grant expenditures recorded in Strategy and
Evaluation expenses are recorded in the period in which the funds are approved for disbursement and a
corresponding liability incurred.
Vacation pay and pension liabilities
The staff of Tourism PEI are employees of the Province of Prince Edward Island. Direct costs for employees
of the Province of Prince Edward Island allocated to Tourism PEI are charged to the company on a per-payroll
basis. Since the staff are employees of the Province, accrued vacation pay and pension obligations are
liabilities of the Province and not the corporation and no liability for these costs has been accrued by the
corporation as at March 31, 2020.
Management estimates
The presentation of financial statements in conformity with Canadian public sector accounting standards
requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amount of assets and
liabilities and disclosure of contingent liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported
amounts of revenues and expenditures during the reported period. Significant items subject to such estimates
and assumptions include the valuation of accounts receivable. Actual amounts could differ.

3

Accounts receivable

Accounts receivable (note 5)
HST receivable
Less: allowance for doubtful accounts

4

2020
$

2019
$

380,259
454,364
(146,905)

496,038
422,010
(131,905)

687,718

786,143

Deferred revenue
2020
$
Gift certificates
Prepaid golf passes and other fees

(8)

2019
$

88,157
90,509

89,743
100,547

178,666

190,290
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Notes to Financial Statements
March 31, 2020

5

Related party transactions
During the year, the corporation utilized office premises from a Department of the Province of Prince Edward
Island for nil (2019 - nil) consideration.
Tourism PEI utilizes the provincial parks, including Brookvale Ski Park, the provincial golf courses, the
provincial day parks and the full service campgrounds, as well as the Visitor Information Centres in carrying
out its mandate. Tourism PEI paid rent of nil (2019 - nil) to utilize these facilities.
Included in accounts receivable is $156,827 (2019 - $160) due from departments of the Province of Prince
Edward Island. Included in accounts payable and accrued liabilities is an amount of $28,211 (2019 - $18,153)
due to departments of the Province of Prince Edward Island and $2,879 (2019 - $88,805) due to provincial
Crown corporations.

6

Commitments
(a)

Tourism PEI has entered in various contracts resulting in the following commitments for the next four
years as follows:
$
Year ending March 31, 2021
2022
2023
2024

(b)

783,425
387,487
57,487
51,800

The minimum annual lease payments required over the next two years under an operating lease for
software expiring in October 2021 is as follows:
Equipment
$
Year ending March 31, 2021
2022

5,600
5,600

There is a requirement to pay the corporation's pro rata share, based on rental space, of the operating costs,
including property taxes, of the clubhouse premises in Brudenell, which amounted to $104,636 (2019 $84,131).

(9)
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7

Financial risk management objectives and policies
Tourism PEI’s principal business activities result in a statement of financial position that consists primarily of
financial instruments. The principal financial risks that arise from transacting financial instruments include
credit, liquidity, market and operational risk. Authority for all risk-taking activities rests with the Board of
Directors (Board), which approves risk management policies, delegates limits and regularly reviews
management’s risk assessments and compliance with approved policies. Qualified professionals throughout
Tourism PEI manage these risks through comprehensive and integrated control processes and models,
including regular review and assessment of risk measurement and reporting processes.
(a) Credit risk
Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the company if a customer or counterparty of a financial
instrument fails to meet its contractual obligations. Credit risk arises primarily from the company’s
accounts receivable.
Accounts receivable includes trade receivables, HST receivable and other accrued receivables.
Tourism PEI's maximum exposure to credit risk is $687,718, its carrying value of accounts receivable as
noted on the statement of financial position.
Details of the carrying value of accounts receivable that are past due at the financial statement date are as
follows:
Allowance
2020
Up to 90 Over 90 days for doubtful
Current days overdue
overdue
accounts
Total
$
$
$
$
$
Accounts receivable
156,858
21,820
39,404
(146,905)
71,177
Trade receivables
HST receivable
454,364
454,364
Other receivables
162,177
162,177
773,399

21,820

39,404

Up to 90 Over 90 days
Current days overdue
overdue
$
$
$
Accounts receivable
Trade receivables
HST receivable
Other receivables

(146,905)
Allowance
for doubtful
accounts
$

687,718

2019
Total
$

273,084
422,010
103,180

6,703
-

113,071
-

(131,905)
-

260,953
422,010
103,180

798,274

6,703

113,071

(131,905)

786,143

(10)
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Tourism PEI
Notes to Financial Statements
March 31, 2020
(b) Liquidity risk
Liquidity risk is the risk that the company may not be able to meet its financial obligations as they come
due. Specifically, the company needs to ensure it has adequate resources to repay all accounts payable
and accrued liabilities as they come due. The company's approach to manage liquidity risk is to closely
monitor its cash flows and forecast the expected receipts and obligations.
The company's financial liabilities total $3,570,296 and are expected to be repaid within one year.
(c) Operational risk
Operational risk is the risk of direct or indirect loss arising from a wide variety of causes associated with
the company’s processes, personnel, technology and infrastructure, and from external factors other than
credit, market and liquidity risks such as those arising from legal and regulatory requirements and
generally accepted standards of corporate behaviour.
The company’s objective is to manage operational risk so as to balance the avoidance of financial losses
and damage to the company’s reputation with overall cost effectiveness and to avoid control procedures
that restrict initiative and creativity. The primary responsibility for the development and implementation
of controls to address operational risk is assigned to senior management.
(d) Capital management
The primary objective of Tourism PEI's capital management is to ensure that it maintains a healthy
financial position in order to support its business. Tourism PEI manages its capital structure and makes
changes to it in light of changes in economic conditions.

(11)
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Tourism PEI
Consolidated Schedule of Expenses by Type
For the year ended March 31, 2020

Schedule
2020

Finance and Administration
Parks Administration
Park Operations
Brookvale
Golf Operations
Strategy and Evaluation
Regulation and Compliance
French Services
Digital Marketing
Visitor Services
Advertising and Public Relations
Media Relations/Editorial
Fulfillment
Publications
Travel/Trade Sales

Salaries
and benefits
$

Operating
Goods and
Services
$

336,211
315,880
2,119,215
736,069
2,441,069
554,663
202,562
183,603
779,029
383,933
244,944
136,058
156,483
167,727

176,841
74,202
1,205,481
369,861
1,933,665
4,054,909
16,984
140,410
500,713
129,573
4,044,485
134,759
149,526
206,233
358,257

513,052
390,082
3,324,696
1,105,930
4,374,734
4,609,572
219,546
140,410
684,316
908,602
4,428,418
379,703
285,584
362,716
525,984

8,757,446

13,495,899

22,253,345

Salaries
and benefits
$

Operating
Goods and
Services
$

266,540
302,366
2,020,149
640,016
2,417,174
434,819
184,193
282,252
743,155
379,068
151,252
130,769
147,368
160,864

185,877
53,038
1,083,017
382,624
1,964,407
3,422,699
26,328
139,488
507,625
129,395
3,454,158
129,349
176,964
226,223
453,172

452,417
355,404
3,103,166
1,022,640
4,381,581
3,857,518
210,521
139,488
789,877
872,550
3,833,226
280,601
307,733
373,591
614,036

8,259,985

12,334,364

20,594,349

Total
$

2019

Finance and Administration
Parks Administration
Park Operations
Brookvale
Golf Operations
Strategy and Evaluation
Regulation and Compliance
French Services
Digital Marketing
Visitor Services
Advertising and Public Relations
Media Relations/Editorial
Fulfillment
Publications
Travel/Trade Sales

(12)

Total
$
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